ESCULAPIO

JOURNAL OF SERVICES INSTITUTE OF MEDICAL SCIENCES, LAHORE.

VOLUME. 16

OCTOBER - DECEMBER 2020

ISSUE 04

FOUNDER

Prof. Faisal Masud (Vice Chancellor King Edward Medical University)

PATRON

Prof. Mahmood Ayyaz (Principal SIMS & Professor of General Surgery)

EDITOR-IN-CHIEF

Prof. Tayyiba Wasim (Obst. & Gynae)

ASSOCIATE EDITORS

Prof. Farid Ahmad Khan (Plastic Surgery) Prof. Muhammad Arif Nadeem (Medicine) Prof. Tayyaba Khawar Butt (Peads Medicine)

ASSISTANT EDITORS

Dr. Sobia Qazi (Medicine) Dr. Afshan Shahid (Community Medicine) Dr. Amtul Mussawar Sami (Ophthalmology) Dr. Ahmad Uziar Qureshi (Surgery) Dr. Adnan Aslam (Neurology) Prof. Shoaib Nabi (Thoracic Surgery)

INTERNATIONAL EDITORS

Prof. Khalid Saeed Khan (Spain) Prof. Coleman I Smith (USA) Prof. Ashar Chanan Khan (USA) Dr. Khalid Kamal Pasha (USA) Dr. Ayesha Najib (USA) Dr. Ishfaq Ahmad (UK)

PUBLISHED BY

ESCULAPIO OFFICE, GYNAE UNIT II, SERVICES HOSPITAL LAHORE PHONE: 042-99204879, www.esculapio.pk

> ONLINE EDITION VISIT THE WEBSITE FOR ONLINE: WWW.ESCULAPIO.PK FOR SUBMISSION: PUBLICATIONS@ESCULAPIO.PK

> > COMPOSED BY AMEER ALI

PRINTED BY TALAL PUBLISHERS

9- Rose Centre, Kabir Street, Urdu Bazar Lahore 0300-4327951

REVIEW BOARD

Prof. Dr. Mumtaz Hasan (Lahore) Prof. Dr. Javed Akram (Lahore) Prof. Tahir Shafi (Lahore) Prof. Dr. Shamim Ahmad Khan (Lahore) Prof. Dr. Iqbal Butt (Lahore) Prof. Dr. Rashid Latif Khan (Lahore) Prof. Dr. Tahir Saeed Haroon (Lahore) Prof. Dr. Farrukh Khan (Lahore) Prof. Dr. A. H. Nagi (Lahore) Prof. Dr. Abdul Majeed Chaudry Prof. Dr. Abdul Malik Achakzai (Quetta) Prof. Dr. Fareed A. Minhas (Rawalpindi) Prof. Dr. Zafar Iqbal (Lahore) Prof. Dr. Alaf Khan (Peshawar) Prof. Dr. Shabbir Nasir (Multan) Prof. Khalid Bashir (Lahore) Prof. Dr. J. P. Long (UK) Prof. Dr. Harry Minhas (Australia) Prof. Dr. Sasleri (UK) Dr. Zia Faroogi (Lahore) Maj. Ge. Dr. Naseem-ul-Majeed (Rawalpindi) Brig. Dr. Mowadat H. Rana (Rawalpindi) Brig. Dr. Muhammad Ayub (Rawalpindi)

EDITORIAL ADVISORY BOARD Prof. Muhammad Amjad (ENT) Prof. Kamran Khalid Chima (Pulmonology) Prof. Rubina Sohail (Obs. Gynae) Prof. Humayun Iqbal Khan (Paediatric Medicine) Prof. Muhammad Imran (Medicine) Prof. Tahreem Fatima (Anatomy) Prof. Shahbaz Aman (Dermatology) Prof. Kaukab Sultana (Biochemistry) Prof. Ali Raza Hashmi (Orthopaedic) Prof. Khalid Waheed (Ophthology) Prof. Dr. Muhammad Nadeem Aslam (General Surgery) Prof. Shumaila Seemi Malik (Radiology) Prof. Dr. Muhammad Waris Farooka (General Surgery) Prof. Naila Asad (Anaesthesia) Prof. Dr. Abdullah Haroon (Neurosurgery) Prof. Dr. Alia Bashir (Gynecologist) Prof. Dr. Faiza Bashir (Pathology) Prof. Dr. Najla Shore (Physiology) Prof. Faisal Mushtaq (Ortho) Prof. Tehseen Abid (Pharmacology) Prof. Ahmad Sohail (ENT-II)

Prof. M. Shoaib Nabi (Thoracic Surgery)

DISCLAIMER

Whilst every effort is made by the publisher, editors and editorial advisory board of the journal that no inaccurate or misleading data, opinion or statement appears in this journal, yet, they wish to make it clear that all the information appearing in the articles herein are the responsibility of authors, co-authors and contributors concerned. The publishers, editors and editorial advisory board accept no responsibility whatsoever for the consequences of any such inaccurate or misleading data, opinion or statement. Editor-in-Chief

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Guest Editorial

Teaching During Covid-19

Prof. Majeed Ch.

Editorial

Are You A Role Model?? Farid Ahmad Khan

Original Articles

Morphological Pattern of Endometrial Biopsy in Women with Clinical Diagnosis of Abnormal Uterine Bleeding	3
Nosheen Khurram, Nasim Aslam Ghumman, Noshin Wasim Yusuf	
Comparison of Analgesic Efficacy of Transversus Abdominis Plane Block Versus Infiltration of Local Anaesthetic into Surgical Wound In Emergency Laparotomies: A Randomized Control Trial Anum Anwar, Hina Nabi Ahmed, Lala Rukh Bangash, Farah Arshad, Sahira Nawaz	8
Acidosis Frequency in Children of Pediatric Acute Diarrhea Muhammad Zain ul Abadin, Arif Zaheer, Shahla Tariq, Muhammad Ans, Kashif Mehmood, Moazzam Farooq	14
Frequency of Vesicoureteral Reflux in Children having Recurrent Urinary Tract Infections Irum Aslam, Muhammad Asif Siddiqui, Fatima Zia, Hafsa Qamar	18
Self-Reported Treatment Adherence in Patients of Diabetes Mellitus Type 2: A Cross-Sectional Study in Lahore, Pakistan Sarah Rahman, Areej Asif, Mehwish Iftikhar, Amna Rizvi, Azhar Hussain	22
Frequency and Severity of Premenstrual Syndrome Among Undergraduate Medical Students Saira Yunus, Bushra Bano, Ayesha Farooq, Amtullah Zarreen	29
Diagnostic Accuracy of Gene Xpert on Bronchoscopy Washings in Patients with Suspected Pulmonary Tuberculosis Waseem A. Khan, Nayyar Manzoor, Asad Javaid, M. Saqib Musharaf, Nausheen Sohail, Nighat Majeed	33
Comparing the Efficacy of Hyaluronic Acid and Platelet Rich Plasma Treatment by using Visual analogu Scale in the Patients of Knee Osteoarthritis Muhammad Ali, M. Mudassar Azam, Maimoona Zaheer, Fahad Shah, Amjad Shah, Faisal Masood	ie 37
Efficacy of Autologous Platelet Rich Plasma in the Treatment of Male Androgenetic Alopecia Nadia Naeem, Saadiya Siddiqui, Atif Shehzad, Kehkshan Tahir, Marrium Manzoor	41
Comparison Between Tidal Volume and Vital Capacity Breathing Techniques of Preoxygenation in Patients with Ineffective Facemask Seal Farah Arshad, Hina Nabi, Fareeda Sohail, Anum Anwar	46
Clinical Audit of Obstetrical Hysterectomies for a Period of One Year in A Tertiary Care Hospital Farzana Latif, Sadia Ilyas, Saeed Mehmood, Hammad Arif, Nuzhat Parveen Khawaja, Zoobia Jawad	50
Comparison of Ovulation Induction with Letrozole with Metformin Versus Letrozole Alone in Females Presenting with Polycystic Ovarian Syndrome Zubda Aiman, Amna Khanam, Mahliqa Maqsood, Mehwish ayyaz, Alia, Tayyaba Kanwal	54
Protective Effect of Enterococcus Faecium Sf68 and Saccharomyces Boulardii in Acute Severe Diarrhea in Infants: Randomized Controlled Trial Fariha Ahmad Khan, Muhammad Zeeshan Khan, Abdul Mudabbir Rehan, Zoobia Irum, Fouzia Perveen, Sadia Chiragh	59
Various Histomorphologic Patterns of Urothelial Carcinoma in TURBT Specimen Hira Kareem, Amna Jahan, Iram Nadeem, Samra Sameen, Rajia Liaqat, Tahira Liaquat	66
Single-Stage Combined Surgery for Treating Neglected Bilateral Developmental Hip Dysplasia after Walking Age Abdul Latif Shahid, Zulqarnain Butt, Islam Hussain, Farhad Alam, Naila Asad, Muhammad Nazir Awan, Hana Khurshid	70

3

TABLE OF CONTENTS	
Mode of Delivery in Pregnant Females with Fibroid Uterus Presenting in Spontaneous Labour Uzma Aziz, Madiha Afzal, Hadia Shabbir	74
Comparison of R-CHOP with CHOP in Patients of Diffuse Large B Cell Lymphoma Faiza Rehman Lodhi, Amjad Zafar, Muhammad Abbas Khokhar, Ali Waheed Goraya, Sonia Ashraf, Sobia Yaqub	79
Assessment of Knowledge About Autism Spectrum Disorder Among Paediatricians Fatima Zia, Hafsa Qamar, Irum Aslam, Muhammad Asif Siddiqui	83
Histological Changes in Proximal and Distal Convoluted Tubules of Kidney of Albino Rats after Exposure to Mosquito Coil Smoke Inhalation Nazia Siddique, Masooma Ahmed, Maria Ilyas, Rukhsana Jabeen, Abdul Hannan Jawad, Zafar Iqbal	87
Pattern of Anemia among Primigravida Attending the Antenatal Clinic of Tertiary Care Hospital Natasha Bushra, Ahmad Zunair Wasim, Jamshid Feroze, Maria Masood	92
Association of Antidiabetic Treatment with the Type of Obesity in Type 2 Diabetic Patients Jawariea Ali, Sheikh Sajjad Ali, Muhammad Imran, Tuba Tariq, Umair Mahmood, Junaid Iqbal	97
A Comparison between Bupivacaine Alone and Bupivacaine with Tramadol in Epidural Block for Postoperative Pain Management Saadia Khaleeq, Azib Ali, Sahir Shafiq, Muhammad Muazzam Butt, Mudassar Aslam, Muhammad Usman Jehangir	101
Association of Vitamin-D levels with Sleep Disturbances Samina Fida, Saba Saif, Hala Mansoor, Javed Iqbal	105
Frequency of Weight Gain and its Impact in Adults during Lockdown: A Cross-Sectional Study Uswah Bokhar, Uswah Shoaib, Sana Tariq, Sehar Khauteja Khan, Fatima Syed, Bushra Amin, Farhat Ijaz, Rana Khurram Aftab	110
Shoulder Tip Pain in Laparoscopic Cholecystectomy with Active vs Passive Evacuation of Pneumoperitoneum Anum Arif, Sabih Nofal, Muhammad Atif Khan, Abdul Waheed Khan, Ahsin M Bhatti, Syed Haider Ishaq	116
Perception	
COVID-19: Myths and Facts	120

Sofia Manzoor, Saima Chaudhary, Sara Humayun, Naheed Akhtar, Shamsa Humayun

Guest Editorial

Teaching During Covid-19

Prof Majeed Ch.

Introduction

he recent outbreak of COVID-19 has enor-I mously affected every aspect of global arrangements with its fast and lethal reach. Originating from Wuhan, a Chinese city, this highly infectious virus has forced to impose nationwide closures in many countries impacting onsite educational systems to shut down. Considering the safety of students and following the steps taken by many infected countries, the Pakistan government initially closed all the educational institutions and later allowed partial opening of schools where 30 -50 % of students were allowed to attend classes in a cyclic manner. The direct and most immediate impact of this decision was an untimely break and loss of learning opportunities for all students. In order to continue with teaching and learning, Higher education commission, developed online tea-ching guidelines with the instructions to resume tea-ching, by following these guidelines. The guidelines included development and implementation of both online and hybrid curricula. Online teaching-learning is based on application of information technology tools to ensure access to learning resources for all students in the absence of face to face classes. It is conducted in the form of asynchronous or synchronous communication where- in asynchronous system tools like e-mail, discussion boards, learning newsgroups are used. For synchro-nous system webcasting, live chat and audio/video technologies are used for real-time class.

Hybrid learning can be defined as a learning approach that combines both remote learning and in-person learning to improve student experience and ensure learning continuity. One of the biggest advantage of both remote learning and later hybrid learning conducted by institutions following Covid-19 pandemic was resumption of educational activities. However, this advantage was associated with many challenges. A few of the cha-llenges are as follows

Difficulties with Student Engagement - One of the main challenge of hybrid learning is the concept of

student engagement. Ii is a challenge to keep both the students who are physically present in the classroom and the students who are learning remotely as engaged as each other, in order to deliver an equal learning experience.

Technical Issues - Another possible problem that can lead to disruption of learning experience is the emergence of technical issues. These can take many different forms, but if members of a class or a course do experience difficulties in this area, it can not only disrupt their own learning, but also the learning of other students. Remote learners could have a range of different technical issues, from sound problems or difficulties connecting to a live stream, through to more complex issues with their computers or an inability to use software that is critical to the course. Depending on the severity, such issues can negatively affect the learning experience. Problems Facilitating Collaboration - In traditional classroom settings, learners can be physically placed into groups, but this is not viable when some students are learning remotely or in a hybrid setting thus making course delivery difficult. Challenge to Teachers - Many teachers have a fear of technology and often see a move to hybrid or online learning as a move to replace them as teachers and as a way to diminish the learning experience for students. Student attendance issues -In an online session teacher can never know how focused/attentive a student is during a session. Or even if the student is there even. Assessment issues -Lack of training of teachers to develop reliable and valid assessments and lack of student preparation to use the application correctly.

Monetary issues – online or hybrid learning is dependent on information technology tools. It requires investment in effective and latest IT tools and computers.

Various Suggestions to Overcome these Issues are;

Creating a formal faculty development program for teaching hybrid courses. Allocating the necessary time for instructors to redesign traditional courses into hybrids . Preparing students to learn IT skills so they can learn effectively in hybrid courses. Allocation of funds for upgradation of IT facilitie. Developing effective communication between students and teachers.

The organizers need to make faculty overcoming the idea that blended learning is not as effective as traditional face-to-face learning. Redefining the role of the facilitator. Managing and monitoring participant progress.

In this challenging world both faculty and students have to learn to be conversant with the modern gadgets.

Prof. Abdul Majeed Ch.

Principal Lahore Medical & Dental College, Lahore prof.abdulmajeedch@hotmail.com

Morphological Pattern of Endometrial Biopsy in Women with Clinical Diagnosis of Abnormal Uterine Bleeding

Nosheen Khurram, Nasim Aslam Ghumman, Noshin Wasim Yusuf

Abstract

Objectives: This study was carried out to determine the underlying gynecological pathology with help of morphological pattern of the endometrial histology in women of different age groups with clinical diagnosis of abnormal uterine bleeding.

Material and Methods: This is a retrospective study of a series of one hundred and twenty cases of women with presenting complaint of abnormal uterine bleeding. This study was done in the Department of Pathology, Rashid Latif Medical College, in collaboration with Gynecology departments of Arif Memorial Hospital and Hameed Latif Hospital over period of one year. (July2018 to June 2019).

One hundred and twenty cases of endometrial curettage, with clinical impression of abnormal uterine bleeding were analyzed and reported by two histopathologists. Patients with complications of pregnancy were excluded from present study.

Results: Histopathological examination of endometrial curetting revealed spectrum of morphology from physiological changes to malignancy. Endometrium with normal cyclical changes were seen in 64 (53.33%) cases, followed by endometrial polyp 18 (15%) cases, endometrial hyperplasia 15 (12.5%), and disordered proliferative of endometrium 10 (8.33%) cases. Malignancy was noticed in 3 (2.5%) cases. Malignancy was diagnosed mostly in the postmenopausal age group.

Conclusion: The present study proves that on routine basis endometrial histopathological evaluation is a useful diagnostic measure to determine the underlying cause of abnormal uterine bleeding which ultimately help in accurate treatment.

Keywords: Abnormal uterine bleeding, polyp, hyperplasia, disordered proliferation, malignancy

Introduction

The term abnormal uterine bleeding is related to any irregularity in the menstrual cycle including volume of blood flow, duration, or frequency. An average menstrual cycle is of 24 to 38 days and bleeding lasts 7 to 9 days.¹ Endometrial tissue sampling is not requirement of all women with presenting complaint of AUB but should be done on women who at risk of developing hyperplasia and malignancy. An endometrial biopsy is thought to be the preferred test in women with AUB who are above the age of 45 years. Endometrial biopsy should also be done in

1. Nosheen Khurram

3. Noshin Wasim Yusuf

1-3. Department of Pathology, Rashid Latif Medical College Lahore

2. Nasim Aslam Ghumman

Correspondence:

Dr. Nosheen Khurram, M.B.B.S, M. Phil Histopathology E-Mail: nosheenkhurram@gmail.com

 Submission Date:
 07-11-2020

 1st Revision Date:
 26-11-2020

 Acceptance Date:
 13-12-2020

women of 45 years of age or even younger with unopposed estrogen exposure, obesity, diagnosed cases of polycystic ovarian syndrome (PCOS), and in cases of treatment failure or persistent bleeding.² Internationally, the women of reproductive age group show the prevalence of abnormal uterine bleeding from 3% to 30% of cases, with a higher occurrence at time of menarche and perimenopause. Results of many studies are confined to heavy menstrual bleeding (HMB), but when irregular and intermenstrual bleeding are also incorporated, the prevalence even rises up to 35% or even greater.³Overall prognosis of abnormal uterine bleeding is good, but it varies with the underlying pathology. The core purpose of endometrial evaluation and treatment of chronic AUB is to exclude malignancy and to improve the patient's quality of life along with perso-nalized current and future fertility goals. Prognosis also varies and it is established on bases of medical versus surgical treatment. Medical treatment with antifibrinolytic and non-steroidal anti-inflammatory

medicine has shown very good results to reduce blood loss during menstruation.⁴ In surgical options dilatation and curettage of the endometrial tissue is extremely helpful to determine various forms of AUB and exclusion of any organic pathology.⁵

Methods

This is a retrospective study of all cases of endometrial biopsies with clinical impression of abnormal uterine bleeding received during period of one year from July 2018 to June 2019 at Department of pathology, Rashid Latif Medical College, Lahore. Ages of the patients were from 20 to 70 years. Those patients who were either on hormonal therapy, had bleeding due to complications of pregnancy or having cervical pathology were excluded from present study. Endometrial tissue was sampled by dilatation and curettage (D&C). Fixation was done with 10% formalin and sent to pathology laboratory for assessment. The gross morphology was noted, and the total tissue submitted was further processed in automated processor overnight. Paraffin block were prepared, and tissue section $(4-6\mu)$ were prepared. The sections were stained with hematoxylin and eosin stain (H&E) and microscopic examination was carried out by the pathologist.6 The histopathological results by microscopy were noted and causes of AUB were grouped into func-tional and organic reasons. Normal menstrual phases (proliferative and secretory) of the endometrium and other physiological variations in the endometrium related to disturbance in hormonal level (atrophic endometrium and disordered proliferative endomet-rium) were included in functional causes while endo-metrial polyp, chronic endometritis, hyperplasia, and endometrial carcinoma were part of organic causes. Results were calculated by using SPSS 25.

Results

The age of the patients ranged from 20 to 70 years. Maximum number of patients were in the age group of 41 to 50 years, 45 cases (37%) followed by 31 to 40 years, 38 cases (32%). Only 14 cases (12%) were above the age of 50 years. Out of 120 cases, 112 (93.33%) were premenopausal whereas 8 (6.66%) were post- menopausal. (Figure 1). The predominant pattern of bleeding was menorr-hagia 44 cases (36.66%) followed by metrorrhagia 38 cases (31.66%), polymenorrhea 30 cases (25%) and postmenopausal bleeding 8 cases (6.66%). (Table 1)Histological examination showed proliferative endo-metrium (Figure 2) as the predominant finding 34 cases (28.33%) followed by secretory

endometrium 30 cases (25%), endometrial polyp 18 cases (15%), hyperplasia 15 cases (12.5%), disordered prolifera-tion 10 cases (8.33%), endometritis 6 cases (5%) and atrophic endometrium 4 cases (3.33%). Malignant lesions comprised of 3 (2.5%) of the cases. (Table 2). In women 30 years or under, out of 23 cases, prolife-rative endometrium (47.82%) was main morpholo-gical pattern while in women 31 to 40 years, out of 38 cases secretory endometrium (34.21%) is the fore-most pattern on histopathology. Out of 18 cases of endometrial polyp (Figure 3), 13 cases were found in patients of up to 40 years of age and out of 15 cases of endometrial hyperplasia (Figure 4), 9 cases were between age group of 41 to 50 years. All 3 cases of malignancy (Figure 5) were seen in patients of 60 years of age or above and all of them presented with postmenopausal bleeding. There was statistically significant age difference of females with malignancy as underlying cause of blee-ding from females with Proliferative endometrium (p-value 0.008), Secretory endometrium (p-value 0.009), Polyp (p-value 0.018), Hyperplasia (p-value) and Disordered proliferation (p-value 0.010) whereas age difference of female with malignancy was not statistically significantly different from atrophic endometrium (p-value 0810). This showed that atrophic endometrium and malignancy is the main reason of abnormal uterine bleeding in older women with peri and post-menopausal period of their life.



Figure 1: *Distribution of Cases According to Various Age Groups*



Figure 2: Showing Proliferative Endometrium (H&E, 10X)



Figure 3: Showing Endometrial Polyp (H&E, 10X)



Figure 4: *Showing Endometrial Hyperplasia (H&E, 10X)*



Figure 5: Showing Endometrial Carcinoma (H&E, 10X)





Table 2: Distribution of Cases According toEndometrial Biopsy Findings



Discussion

Abnormal uterine bleeding is one of the commonly faced problem in gynecology department of our hospitals. It needs to be treated properly as it intervenes significantly with the quality of life in otherwise healthy women because of troubling symptoms like menorrhagia, metrorrhagia and polymenorrhea⁷.

AUB incorporates both dysfunctional uterine bleeding (DUB) and bleeding from operationally treatable causes like endometrial polyps, hyperplasia, fibroids and malignancy. But in most of the cases dysfunctional uterine bleeding is manifestation of anovulatory-cycle of menstruation.8

In present study, the commonly affected age group who presented with abnormal uterine bleeding was 41 to 50 years of age. This observation is comparable with many studies.^{7,9,10,11,12,13} An increase in number of cases in this age group reveals that as women reach near their menopause age, the sum of ovarian follicles decreases and gonadotrophic hormone resistance increases which ultimately leads to low level of estrogen which is basic requirement of normal endometrial cycle⁷. Lowest number of patients belonged to age group of 61 to 70 years.

In current study most common presenting complaint was menorrhagia (36.66%). It is compatible with many other studies done worldwide, 51%,⁷ 42%,⁹ 28%¹⁰ and 55.8%.¹⁴

Histopathological diagnosis showed wide range of patterns, ranging from physiological to pathological lesions of endometrium. In this study commonest histological pattern seen was proliferative (28.33%) and secretory (25%) phase of endometrium. Many studies showed the presence of predominantly these two patterns.^{7,9,12,15} The cause of bleeding in the proliferative phase of endometrium is due to anovulatory cycles while bleeding in secretory phase is due to defect in the process related to regulation of menstrual breakdown of the endometrium.

Endometrial polyp was reported in 15% of cases. Literature showed quiet variability in its incidence. Few studies revealed 9.9%¹⁶ to 17.64%¹⁷ of cases as underlying cause of abnormal uterine bleeding while others showed only 0.6%,¹⁵ 1.24%¹² and 2.46%¹¹ of the cases. Endometrial polyp was found more common below age of 40 years of age. This finding can be related to excessive use of hormones in this age for management of infertility.¹⁶

In present study incidence of endometrial hyperplasia (12.5%) was second common underlying pathology and this finding is comparable with another study done in Pakistan $(12.6\%)^{15}$ and India (10.91%).¹² The possible reason could be that in our part of world most of the patients belong to poor socio-economic status and risk factors like diabetes, obesity and sedentary lifestyle is low. Other studies showed higher incidence, 16%, ⁷ 16.47%, ¹⁷ 18.03%, ¹¹ 22.6%, ⁹ 26.7%. ¹⁰

Results of cases with disordered proliferation of endometrium (8.3%) and chronic endometritis (5%) are like study done by Bhatta S and Sinha AK, 6.56%

each. Endometrial atrophy is a consequence of absence of either exogenous or endogenous estrogen which is necessary for endometrial stimulation that leads to abnormal uterine bleeding whenever there is minor injury to thin atrophic endometrium. In present study atrophic endometrium was seen in 3.33% of cases. Many other studies showed almost same percentage.^{10,12,14}

Endometrial biopsy is one of the significant requirements to ensure the presence of malignant and premalignant conditions. In present study incidence of endometrial carcinoma was 2.5%. This finding is almost the same as study done by Vaidya et al; $(2.45\%)^{12}$. In other studies, their finding were 0.4%,¹⁵ 1.6%,⁷ 3.3%,¹⁰ 4.4%,¹³ 5.74%,¹¹ and 5.88%.¹⁷

The prevalence of endometrial hyperplasia and endometrial cancer were more commonly present in the perimenopausal and post-menopausal females. Therefore, histopathological assessment of endometrium is especially advised in women of 40 to 50 years of age presenting with abnormal uterine bleeding to rule out any possibility of premalignant or malignant condition.¹⁸ The sensitivity of endometrial biopsy for detection of endometrial abnormality is very high.¹⁹

A good clinic-radiological correlation is required in cases of abnormal uterine bleeding however histopathology remains the cornerstone to reach the actual underlying cause behind clinical diagnosis.²⁰

Conclusion

Endometrial evaluation should generously be advised in females of perimenopausal and postmenopausal age groups with presentation of AUB, to exclude possibility of any preneoplastic condition or malignancy as it is more common in women of 40 years or above and it is considered gold standard for ultimately deciding treatment plans.

Acknowledgment

The authors are grateful to laboratory staff from pathology department for their assistance

Authors Contribution

KN: Concept, Writing, Data Analysis **GAN:** Data Compliation YWN: Article Writing

References

- 1. Davis E, Sparzak PB. Abnormal Uterine Bleeding (Dysfunctional Uterine Bleeding). Treasure Island, FL: StatPearls Publishing; 2019–2020. https:// www. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/30422508.
- American College of Obstetricians and Gynecologists. ACOG committee opinion no. 557: Management of acute abnormal uterine bleeding in nonpregnant reproductive-aged women. Obstet Gynecol. 2013 Apr;121(4):891-6.
- 3. Munro MG, Critchley HOD, Fraser IS., FIGO Menstrual Disorders Committee. The two FIGO systems for normal and abnormal uterine bleeding symptoms and classification of causes of abnormal uterine bleeding in the reproductive years: 2018 revisions. Int J Gynaecol Obstet. 2018 Dec;143(3):393-408
- 4. Cheong Y, Cameron IT, Critchley HO. Abnormal uterine bleeding. British Medical Bulletin. 2017 Sep;123(1):103-14.
- 5. Sajitha K, Padma SK, Shetty KJ, KishanPrasad HL, Permi HS, Hegde P. Study of histopathological patterns of endometrium in abnormal uterine bleeding. CHRISMED journal of health and Research. 2014 Apr;1(2):76.
- 6. Suvarna KS, Layton C, Bancroft JD. Bancroft's theory and practice of histological techniques E-Book. Elsevier Health Sciences; 2018 Feb
- Bindroo S, Garg M, Kaur T. Histopathological spectrum of endometrium in abnormal uterine bleeding. Int J Reprod Contracept Obstet Gynaecol. 2018; 7: 3633.
- 8. Ely JW, Kennedy CM, Clark EC, Bowdler NC. Abnormal uterine bleeding: a management algorithm. The Journal of the American Board of Family Medicine. 2006 Nov;19(6):590-602.
- 9. Singh A, Bai PR. Study of histopathological pattern of endometrium in abnormal uterine bleeding and its management. Int J Reprod Contracept Obstet Gynecol. 2016 Dec;5(2):432-36.
- 10. Chauhan S, Radhakrishnan K. Clinical profile of endometrial histopathological patterns in Abnormal Uterine Bleeding. NJOG. 2020 Jun;15(1):50-4.

- 11. Bhatta S, Sinha AK. Histopathological study of endometrium in abnormal uterine bleeding. Journal of pathology of Nepal. 2012 Sep;2(4):297-300.
- 12. Vaidya S, Lakhey M, Vaidya S, Sharma PK, Hirachand S, Lama S, KC S. Histopathological pattern of abnormal uterine bleeding in endometrial biopsies. Nepal Med Coll J. 2013 Mar;15(1):74-7.
- Doraiswami S, Johnson T, Rao S, Rajkumar A, Vijayaraghavan J, Panicker VK. Study of endometrial pathology in abnormal uterine bleeding. The journal of Obstetrics and Gynecology of India. 2011 Aug; 61(4):426.
- 14. Khan R, Sherwani RK, Rana S, Hakim S, Jairajpuri ZS. Clinco-pathological patterns in women with dys-functional uterine bleeding. Iranian journal of pathology. 2016;11(1):20.
- 15. Khan S, Hameed S, Umber A. Histopathological pattern of endometrium on diagnostic D & C in patients with abnormal uterine bleeding. Annals of King Edward Medical University. 2011;17(2):166-.
- Asuzu IM, Olaofe OO. Histological Pattern of Endometrial Biopsies in Women with Abnormal Uterine Bleeding in a Hospital in North Central Nigeria. International Journal of Reproductive Medicine. 2018 Nov;2018.
- 17. Hassan FF. The Frequency of Histopathological Patterns in Endometriam Obtained from a Sample of Iraqi Women with Abnormal Uterine Bleeding. Karbala Journal of Medicine. 2017;10(3):3846-56.
- Whitaker L, Critchley HO. Abnormal uterine bleeding. Best Practice & Research Clinical Obstetrics & Gynaecology. 2016 Jul;34:54-65.
- 19. Litta P, Merlin F, Saccardi C, Pozzan C, Sacco G, Fracas M, et al. Role of hysteroscopy with endometrial biopsy to rule out endometrial cancer in postmenopausal women with abnormal uterine bleeding. Maturitas. 2005 Feb;50(2):117-23.
- 20. Singh K, Agarwal C, Pujani M, Raychaudhuri S, Sharma N, Chauhan V, et al. A clinicopathological correlation of international federation of gynecology and obstetrics's PALM–COEIN classification of abnormal uterine bleeding: Indian scenario. Journal of mid-life health. 2019 Jul;10(3):147.

Comparison of Analgesic Efficacy of Transversus Abdominis Plane Block Versus Infiltration of Local Anaesthetic into Surgical Wound In Emergency Laparotomies: A Randomized Control Trial

Anum Anwar,¹ Hina Nabi Ahmed,² Lala Rukh Bangash,³ Farah Arshad,⁴ Sahira Nawaz,⁵ Farida Sohail⁶

Abstract

Objective

To compare mean pain score of bilateral TAP block versus infiltration of local anaesthetic into surgical wound on for emergency laparotomies.

Method: Randomized control trial. Emergency Operation Theatre in Department of Anaesthesiology at Mayo Hospital, Lahore from 1st April 2016 to 31st October 2016. laparotomy 150 patients were arbitrarily allocated two groups Group T (receiving bilateral TAP block) and Group L (local infiltration) by random number table method after informed consent. TAP block was administered bilaterally by using 20 ml of 0.25% bupivacaine in group T using a 21-gauge needle with the help of "Double Pop Technique" at midaxillary point at height of umbilicus. While in group L surgical incision site was injected with 20 ml of 0.25% bupivacaine immediately after closure of skin. Pain was evaluated by Visual analogue scale (VAS) at 6-hour interval postoperatively. Results were statistically analysed using SPSS version 20.0 and t-test was applied to compare mean pain score of two groups.

Results: Mean pain score in patients receiving bilateral TAP block 3.000 ± 0.717 were significantly reduced (p value 0.003) versus mean scores in patients receiving infiltration of local anaesthetic into surgical wound in emergency laparotomies 6.08 ± 1.171 .

Conclusion: Bilateral TAP block reduced post-operative pain significantly in patients undergone emergency laparotomy.

Key Words: Emergency laparotomy, TAP block, local anaesthetic, bupivacaine, post-operative pain, analgesia.

Introduction

E ffective pain relief is required in patients who have undergone exploratory laparotomy since pain has many adverse effects on various systems of the body.¹ Respiratory complications are much more common due to inadequate post-operative analgesia after major abdominal surgery leading to inadequate respiratory effort that results in basal atelectasis and retention of secretions.^{11,12} Post-operative pain if not addressed properly it may lead to delayed ambulation

1.	Anum Anwar	2. Hina Nabi Ahmed	2.	
3.	Lala Rukh Bangash	4. Farah Arshad	4.	
-	G 1 1 3 7	C T 11 0 1 11		

5.	Sahira Nawaz		Farida Sohail
1 /	1 (5 D ()	CA J · /ICII	T. 1 TT . 1

1,2,4,5. Department of Anaesthesia/I.C.U, Jinnah Hospital, Lahore 3,6. Department of Anaesthesiology, Burn and Reconstructive Centre, Jinnah

Hospital, Lahore.

Correspondence:

Dr. Anum Anwar, Department of Anaesthesia/I.C.U, Jinnah Hospital, Lahore, E-mail: anumanwar25@gmail.com

09-11-2020
13-11-2020
30-11-2020

resulting in increased chances of deep venous thromboembolism.² Anxiety and distress related to pain affect quality of life of patient. Prolong hospital stays due to inadequate post-operative analgesia leads to financial burdens.¹³ Thus, adequate post-operative analgesia leads to prompt ambulation, increases comfort level of the patient and helps him to return to regular routine of life earlier.¹⁴

Multimodal analgesia is considered as an efficient way to cater post-surgical pain and in reducing adverse effects associated with heavy doses of opioids and NSAID's.³ With recent advancement in technology regional nerve blocks are gaining popularity. As component of multimodal analgesia, they reduce dosage requirements of analgesic drugs and many untoward side effects associated with them.¹⁵ Along with peripheral nerve blocks administration of local anaesthetic into surgical wound is an ancient technique that is still in use by numerous surgeons and

anaesthetists. There are various peripheral nerve blocks that have been used to reduce pain post operatively but TAP block has been found very effective in mitigating pain after major abdominal surgeries.^{10,17} The anterior abdominal wall is supplied by dermatomes from T6 to L1 and TAP block numbs those nerves. This block was originally elaborated in the "lumbar triangle of Petit" in 2001 by Rafi by using conventional landmarks. Local anaesthetic is inoculated in the fascial plane that exists between two muscles transverse abdominis muscle and internal oblique muscle through which these sensory nerves pass. TAP block is an efficient analgesic method with additional benefit of intact motor and autonomic control in all abdominal procedures and permits early mobilization.^{4,16,18} Parasa et al piloted an analysis in which efficiency of TAP block was evaluated post operatively after open abdominal surgeries. They found pain was less intense in patients receiving TAP block (48.07 \pm 6.76) in comparison to those patients who don't get block (62.63 ± 6.66). They also concluded that this results in 36% reduction in entire tramadol intake in TAP block group. Thus, TAP block being a component of multi-modal analgesia has effective part in reducing post-surgical pain and doses of other analgesic drugs.^{5,19} Though there were multiple studies available that prove pain-relieving efficacy⁹ of TAP block but there were no studies available for comparison of mean pain score of transversus abdominis plane block versus infiltration of local anaesthetic into surgical wound in emergency laparotomies. So in this trial we compared effectiveness of bilateral TAP block with infiltration of local anaesthetic into surgical wound in emergency laparotomies. This study would provide baseline data for local population and would help to mitigate postoperative pain in patients undergoing emergency laparotomies.

Methods

After endorsement from Ethical committee, randomized control trial was performed at Emergency department of Mayo Hospital, Lahore. Patients were included with non-probability consecutive sampling. Patients of either gender between 20 to 80 years, ASA I,II,III scheduled for emergency laparotomy for viscous perforation were included. Sample size of 150 cases (75 in each group) was calculated with 95%

confidence interval, 80% power of test and taking expected mean \pm standard deviation of mean pain scores in both groups at 6 hour post-operatively with 3.33 ± 1.51 in TAP block group versus 5.67 ± 1.31 in control group in patients undergoing emergency laparotomies.⁵ Patients with established allergy to the study drug, with past account of opioid use or intolerance, obese (BMI>40), known bleeding disorder or renal or hepatic disease, known psychiatric disorder, infection at site of injection were excluded from the study. Informed consent was obtained. Brief history was taken and related physical examination was perfor-med. Investigations (complete blood count, platelet count, coagulation screening, and renal and liver function tests) were analysed. Patients were allocated randomly to Group T (receiving bilateral TAP block group) or Group L (local infiltration group) by using random number table in accordance with division ratio of 1:1. After shifting the patient to operating table, monitoring devices that includes pulse oximetry, electro-cardiographic monitoring and non-invasive blood pressure (NIBP) were attached and base line readings were obtained. Two large intravenous line were secured. Anaesthesia was induced with rapid sequence induction technique using injection propofol (2-3 mg/ kg) and injection succinylcholine (1.5mg/kg). For analgesia injection nalbuphine (0.1 mg/kg) was given just before incision. Anaesthesia was continued with isoflurane and 50% nitrous oxide in concentration of 50% in oxygen according to need of the patient.

After completion of surgery for patients with viscous perforation, just before extubation, TAP block is performed with blunted 21-gauge needle in group T using "double pop technique" in supine position of patient by single administrator experienced in blind technique of TAP block. In above mentioned technique the skin and subcutaneous tissue was penetrated in midaxillary plane at the height of umbilicus at right angle to the skin till resistance is felt. The needle was forced slightly through this resistance till it penetrated the external oblique aponeurosis. With slight further penetration second loss of resistance could be appreciated as needle passed through aponeurosis of internal oblique. To check the desired plane 1 ml of drug was injected after careful aspiration. The feeling of considerable resistance on injecting drug indicated misplaced needle tip obviating the need to reposition

it. After readjustment 20 ml of 0.25% bupivacaine was infiltrated. The same method was used to administer block on other side. While in group L surgical incision site was injected with 20 ml of 0.5% bupivacaine before skin closure by surgeon. In both groups dose did not exceed more than 1mg/kg/side of 0.5% bupivacaine.

All patients were extubated and transferred to the postoperative ward. Patients were shown and instructed about VAS in the preoperative period. One end of which was marked as '0' representing no pain and the other one as '10' signifying severe most pain. Patients were requested to highlight the value that best contemplated their pain. Postoperative pain was measured by VAS at 6-hour interim post-operatively and pain scores were collected. Inj Tramadol 50 mg was administered as rescue analgesia if VAS was more than 5 at 6 hour interval postoperatively. Designated proforma was used to collect all data.

All statistical data was recorded and analysed in SPSS version 20.0. Data was stratified for age, gender, ASA grading and mean pain score 6 hour post-operatively to deal with effect modifiers. Post-stratification t-test was applied.

Results

In this study 150 patients that underwent emergency laparotomies were studies. There were no patients that were excluded from study. There were 10 ASA II patients, 134 ASA III and 6 ASA IV patients. (Table 2) Out of these 110 were males and 40 were females. (table 3)

Mean age in TAP block group patients was $56.85\pm$ 8.725 and mean age in patients receiving local anaesthetic infiltration into surgical wound was $57.71\pm$ 10.686. Mean pain score in TAP block group was 3.00 \pm 0.717 and mean pain score in patients getting local anaes-thetic infiltration into surgical wound was 6.08 \pm 1.171. This difference in mean pain score was signi-ficant as p-value is 0.003(p-value<0.005).

Discussion

The result of our study shows there is considerable reduction in mean pain scores in TAP block group in comparison to patients receiving infiltration of local anaesthetics. Mean pain scores in patients with TAP block were 3.000 ± 0.717 as compared to group of patients receiving local anaesthetic infiltration $6.08\pm$

1.171 with p value 0.003. Thus, TAP block causes more reduction in pain scores on VAS scale when compared to infiltration of local anaesthetic into surgical wound in emergency laparotomies. Paras et al. conducted a randomized control trial they include 60 patients from ASA state I to III that under-went emergency laparotomy. They administer TAP block before surgery in lumbar triangle of "Petit". They divided patients into two groups; one received 25ml of 0.25% bupivacaine and other got normal saline administered bilaterally. For post-operative pain tramadol was used along with intramuscular diclofenac sodium. Tramadol was administered with PCA (patient controlled analgesic) pump while dose of diclofenac sodium adjusted 12-hourly. The tramadol requirement at 2 hour and total given in 24 hours was measured along with assessment of pain and side effects of opioids. They found that TAP block group

Frequency Distribution of Asa Grading

ASA	Frequency	Percent
ASA II	10	6.7%
ASA III	134	89.3%
ASA IV	6	4.0%
Total	150	100.0%

had mean pain scores 48.07 ± 6.76 with total tramadol intake in 24 hours 281.33 ± 69.66 mg when compared

Frequency Distribution of Gender Between Both Groups

	Countl	Study gro	oups	
Gender	Count/	Local	TAP	Total
	percentage	Infiltration	Block	
Male	Count	56	54	110
	%	51%	49%	
Female	Count	19	21	40
	%	47.5%	52.5%	

to the control group having mean scores for pain 62.63 ± 6.66 and tramadol intake 439 ± 68.59 mg. Thus, our study is in consistency with the fact that TAP block significantly reduces mean pain scores

Mean Ag	e of The	Patients	with Stand	ard Deviation

Study groups	Ν	Mean	Std. Deviation
LOCAL INFILTRATION	75	57.71	10.686
TAP BLOCK	75	56.85	8.725

but, in our study, comparison is made between TAP block and local anaesthetic infiltration.

Similarly Vijayalakshmi et al. conducted study in patients undergoing gynaecological procedures in which open abdominal surgical approach used.⁶ He

Comparison of Mean Pain Scores of The Patient					
Study groups	N	Mean	Std. Deviation	P - value	
LOCAL INFILTRATION	75	6.08	1.171	0.002	
TAP BLOCK	75	3.00	0.717	0.003	
There was statistically significant difference between MEAN PAIN SCORES of two study groups					

randomly allocated patients into group receiving TAP block and other group receiving local anaesthesia into surgical site. He administered 0.25% bupivacaine at dose of 0.6ml/kg bilaterally at height of umbilicus in triangle of "petit" after completion of surgery while other group got infiltration of local anaesthetic into surgical lesion just before extubation after placement of skin sutures .They recorded time at which patient demanded rescue analgesia and monitored intensity of pain at that moment by using VAS scale. They used morphine as rescue analgesia at dose of 0.1mg/kg and it was continuously administered thereafter with PCA pump for 24 hours. Total amount of morphine consumed in period of 24 hours post operatively calculated. They concluded that In Group T patients demanded foremost dosage of morphine considerably later and at that moment pain was not much intense as compared to other group (P = 0.001 and 0.003 respectively). Total intake of morphine in group receiving local anaesthetic was more as compared to TAP block group so the side effects of morphine also predominated in this group. Thus conclusion of their study was that transversus abdominis plane block is an effective modality to reduce pain with few adverse effects and their results are in line with our conclusion but we have done comparative study in patients undergoing exploratory laparotomy. Likewise, Priya et al conducted study in 60 patients who underwent major abdominal operations. They calculated doses of tramadol required post opera-tively at 24 hour time interval and at 48 hour time interval. According to their study, total amount of tramadol consumed in patients in TAP block in 24 hour time duration $(210.05 \pm 20.5 \text{ vs.} 320.05 \pm 10.6; P < 0.01)$ and at 48 hour interval (508.25 \pm 20.6 vs. 550.25 \pm 20.6; P < 0.01). They also concluded that time at which patient demanded first dose of analgesic drug was more as compared to other group $(178.5 \pm 45.6 \text{ vs. } 23.5 \pm 3.8;$ P < 0.001). Pain intensity measured at different intervals in 24 hours period post operatively. Pain scores were significantly less in TAP block group contrary to other group.⁷ Thus, TAP block is very

effective modality with crucial role in mitigation of pain post operatively. The results of our study add significance to above mentioned study and prove it to be more effective as compared to ancient technique of wound infiltration with local anaes-thetic. Ejas et al. performed randomized control trial in patients who underwent single incision laparoscopic cholecystectomy.⁸ They performed TAP block under USG guidance with ropivacaine in concenteration of 0.375% bilaterally in mid axillary plane in one group while other group received local anaesthetic infiltration at site of insertion of ports. They calculated amount of morphine required post operatively in 24 hours. Morphine requirement in group receiving TAP block was 34.57 + 14.67 mg as compared to other group in which values were 32.76+14.34 mg. They found TAP block did not cause significant reduction in post-operative analgesic requirement as compared to conventional methods. This is contrary to our result in which we found TAP block more effective. There are certain limitations of our study that it does not measure time of administration of first dose of analgesia, total dosage requirements of analgesia 24 hour post-operatively and incidence of nausea and vomiting.

Limitations

TAP block has more efficacy if it is performed under ultrasound guidance but unfortunately due to resources limitation we don't have access to ultrasound.

Recommendations

The study can be expanded to include dosage requirements of analgesia in 12 hours of post-operative period and occurrence of post-operative nausea and vomiting.

Conclusion

Outcome of our study shows substantial reduction in mean pain scores after bilateral TAP block infiltration in patients with emergency laparotomy. Mean pain scores remain less than 4 on VAS pain scale in patients with TAP block. Hence it is concluded that TAP block significantly reduces pains score on VAS scale as compared to surgical wound infiltration with local anaesthetic in patients with emergency laparotomies. TAP block is better modality as part of multimodal analgesia to reduce post-operative pain as compared to surgical wound infiltration with local anaesthetic.

Author's Contribution

AA: Concept, Conduction of study, manuscript preparation and editing, literature review

HNA: Manuscript preparation, proof reading and critically reviewed the article

LRB: Statistical analysis of the data

SNK: Data collection

FA: Data collection

References

- Dal Moro F, Pavarin P, Mangano A, Aiello L, Valotto C, Zattoni F. Mp47-01 Ultrasound-Guided Transversus Abdominis Plane (Tap) Block For Robot-Assisted Radical Prostatectomy. The Journal of Urology. 2017 Apr 1; 197(4):e628 doi: 10.1007/s11701-018-0858-6.
- Gao T, Zhang JJ, Xi FC, Shi JL, Lu Y, Tan SJ, Yu WK. Evaluation of transversus abdominis plane (TAP) block in hernia surgery: a meta-analysis. The Clinical journal of pain. 2017 Apr 1;33(4):369-75. doi: 10. 1097/AJP.000000000000412.
- 3. Komatsu S, Fujiwara Y. Transversus abdominis plane block in laparoscopic colorectal surgery. Annals of Laparoscopic and Endoscopic Surgery. 2017 Mar 17;2(1) doi: 10.21037/ales.2017.03.08
- 4. Walter CJ, Maxwell-Armstrong C, Pinkney TD, Conaghan PJ, Bedforth N, Gornall CB, Acheson AG. A randomised controlled trial of the efficacy of ultrasound-guided transversus abdominis plane (TAP) block in laparoscopic colorectal surgery. Surg Endosc 2013;27:2366-72 doi: 10.1007/s00464-013-2791-0.
- Mrunalini P, Rama NVR, Nath VN, Saheb SM. Efficacy of transversus abdominis plane block in patients undergoing emergency laparotomies. Anesth Essays Res 2014;8:377-82. DOI: 10.4103/0259-1162.143153
- Sivapurapu V, Vasudevan A, Gupta S, Badhe AS. Comparison of analgesic efficacy of transversus abdominis plane block with direct infiltration of local anesthetic into surgical incision in lower abdominal gynecological surgeries. J Anaesthesiol Clin Pharmacol 2013;29:71-5 DOI: 10.4103/0970-9185.105807.
- Saxena A, Bansal R, Mittal A, Shrivastava U, Sharma P, Chand T. Evaluation Of Postoperative Analgesic Efficacy Of Transversus Abdominis Plane Block After Abdominal Surgery: A Comparative Study. Journal of Natural Science, Biology and Medicine 2013; 4(1):177. DOI: 10.4103/0976-9668.107286
- 8. Bava EP, Ramachandran R, Rewari V. Analgesic efficacy of ultrasound guided transversus abdominis plane block versus local anesthetic infiltration in

adult patients undergoing single incision laparoscopic cholecystectomy: A randomized controlled trial. Anesthesia, essays and researches. 2016 Sep; 10(3): 561. doi: 10.4103/0259-1162.186620

- Dai C, Zhang K, Huang J. The Efficacy of Transversus Abdominis Plane Block for Abdominal Hysterectomy Post-operative Analgesia. Cureus. 2018; 10(8): e3131 http://doi:10.7759/cureus.3131
- Peltrini, R., Cantoni, V., Green, R. et al. Efficacy of transversus abdominis plane (TAP) block in colorectal surgery: a systematic review and meta-analysis. Tech Coloproctol 24, 787–802 (2020). https:// doi. org/10.1007/s10151-020-02206-
- 11. Patch III RK, Eldrige JS, Moeschler SM, Pingree MJ. Dexmedetomidine as part of a multimodal analgesic treatment regimen for opioid induced hyperalgesia in a patient with significant opioid tolerance. Case Reports in Anesthesiology. 2017 Jan 1;2017. https:// doi.org/10.1155/2017/9876306
- 12. Babu S, Gupta BK, Gautam GK. A comparative study for post operative analgesia in the emergency laparotomies: Thoracic epidural ropivacaine with nalbuphine and ropivacaine with butorphanol. Anesthesia, essays and researches. 2017 Jan;11(1):155. https:// dx. doi.org/10.4103%2F0259-1162.186593
- Martin LD, Adams TL, Duling LC, Grigg EB, Bosenberg A, Onchiri F, Jimenez N. Comparison between epidural and opioid analgesia for infants undergoing major abdominal surgery. Pediatric Anesthesia. 2019 Aug;29(8):835-42. https://doi.org/ 10.1111/pan.13672
- Toro MM, John S, Faruqui AR. Pattern of use of analgesics in post-operative pain management in adults undergoing laparotomy surgery: a prospective observational study. International Surgery Journal. 2018 Jan 25;5(2):662-7. https://dx.doi.org/10.18203/ 2349-2902.isj20180372
- Bang S, Chung J, Kwon W, Yoo S, Soh H, Lee SM. Erector spinae plane block for multimodal analgesia after wide midline laparotomy: A case report. Medicine. 2019 May;98(20). https://dx.doi.org/10.1097% 2FMD.000000000015654
- Baytar Ç, Yılmaz C, Karasu D, Topal S. Comparison of ultrasound-guided subcostal transversus abdominis plane block and quadratus lumborum block in laparoscopic cholecystectomy: a prospective, randomized, controlled clinical study. Pain Research and Management. 2019 Feb 3;2019. https://doi.org/10. 1155/2019/2815301
- 17. Yoshida T, Furutani K, Watanabe Y, Ohashi N, Baba H. Analgesic efficacy of bilateral continuous transversus abdominis plane blocks using an oblique sub-

costal approach in patients undergoing laparotomy for gynaecological cancer: a prospective, randomized, triple-blind, placebo-controlled study. BJA: British Journal of Anaesthesia. 2016 Dec 12;117(6):812-20. https://doi.org/10.1093/bja/aew339

 Chang H, Rimel BJ, Li AJ, Cass I, Karlan BY, Walsh C. Ultrasound guided transversus abdominis plane (TAP) block utilization in multimodal pain management after open gynecologic surgery. Gynecologic oncology reports. 2018 Nov 1;26:75-7. https:// doi. org/ 10.1016/j.gore.2018.10.007

19. ARAFA AS, ALSHAL SM, MOHAMED AA, MANSOUR MA, TURKI DA. Ultrasound Guided Transversus Abdominis Plane Block Combined with Transversalis Fascia Plane Block Versus Ultrasound Guided Transversus Abdominis Plane Block Alone for Pain Relief in Patients Undergoing Laparotomy.

Acidosis Frequency in Children of Pediatric Acute Diarrhea

Muhammad Zain Ul Abadin,¹ Arif Zaheer,² Shahla Tariq,³ Muhammad Ans,⁴ Kashif Mehmood,⁵ Moazzam Farooq⁶

Abstract

Objectives: To Found out the frequency of aidosis in patients of paediatric accute diarrhea.

Methods: Two hundred and eighty children fulfilling the inclusion/exclusion criteria admitted in Department of Paediatrics, Services Hospital, Lahore was taken. Informed consent of the parents of children was obtained to include their data in the study. Every children with acute diarrhea was followed through 1-2cc arterial sample sent to the hospital laboratory of the hospital.

Results: out of the total 280 patients, 83(29.5%) had acid base abnormality and 197(70.5%) had normal acid base imbalance. Out of 83(29.5%) patients who had acid base abnormality 50(17.5%) males and 22(8%) females had acidosis while only 8(3%) males and 3(1%) females had alkalosis.

Conclusion: Acidosis is the most common abnormalities. Its incidence increase with increase in duration of diarrhea.

Key Words: Acidosis, paediatric acute diarrhea

Introduction

In developing countries, Diarrhea still plays key role in both morbidity and death among under-5 children and accounts for 9% of 5.9 million global under-5 deaths.¹ Children with diarrhea often present with respiratory difficulties with or without dehydration, and this is mainly due to the presence of metabolic acidosis² resulting mainly from a loss of bicarbonate in feces.³ Dehydration is the most frequent and dangerous complication and is the main reason for metabolic acidosis in such children.⁴

The gastrointestinal tract (GIT) helps to regulate acid-base homeostasis. Large amounts of H^+ and HCO_3 cross the specialized epithelia of the various components of the gut every day, but under normal

1.	Muhammad Zain Ul Abadin	2.	Arif Zaheer
3.	Shahla Tariq	4.	Muhammad Ans
5.	Kashif Mehmood	6.	Moazzam Farooq
1.	Mayo Hospital, Lahore		1
2.	Department of Pediatrics, Postgraduate med	dical	institute/Ameer-ud-Din
	Medical college/Lahore General Hospital		
3.	Department of Paediatric Medicine, Service	es Ha	ospital, Lahore,
4.	4. Department of Paediatric Medicine, Children Hospital, Lahore		
5.	5. Department of Pediatric medicine, Mayo Hospital Lahore		
6.	Social Security Hospital, Kotlakhpat Lahor	e	
Co Dr. <i>Me</i>	rrespondence: Muhammad Zain Ul Abadin, Department dical Institute/Ameer-ud-Din Medical College	of Pe e/Lah	ediatrics, Postgraduate pore General Hospital
	Submission Date: 00	00.2	020

 Submission Date:
 09-09-2020

 1st Revision Date:
 27-10-2020

 Acceptance Date:
 23-11-2020

conditions, only a small amount of alkali (approximately 30 to 40 mmol) is lost in the stool.⁵ The small amount of alkali lost as a byproduct of these transport events is easily regenerated by renal net acid excretion, which is regulated by the kidney to maintain body alkali stores. Disruption of normal gut function, however, uncovers its power to overwhelm acid-base homeostasis. Acid-base disorders can vary from severe acidosis to severe alkalosis, depending on the site along the gastrointestinal tract affected and the nature of the losses that ensue.⁶ These disruptions in acid base equilibrium are associated with disorders of either potassium imbalance or sodium imbalance.⁷

The type of diarrhea depends on which part of the GIT has been targeted and the causative agent.⁸ Commonly observed acid base disturbances in diarrhea are hyperchloremic metabolic acidosis and metabolic alkalosis occurs in very few types.⁹ In secretory diarrhea, like caused by Vibrio Cholera, there is hyperchloremic metabolic acidosis. Lactic acidosis may supervene as a result of tissue hypoperfusion.¹⁰ In inflammatory diarrhea, there is no acid base disturbance initially as kidney is compensating for the loss, however, in severe cases, volume depletion and hyperchloremic metabolic acidosis may occur. In case of autoimmune diarrhea, incidence of metabolic alkalosis is more.¹¹ A study was conducted in Bangladesh reported higher incidence of morbidity

and mortality in children who developed metabolic acidosis and suggested that early recognition of features of acidosis may help clinicians to have prompt management that may further help reduce mortality in such children. ¹² As it is a common cause of morbidity and mortality in Pakistan, and limited literature is available in refe-rence to acid base imbalance and there is no research done on this important issue in my center. Young children die of this simple problem, so my rationale is to highlight the major cause which lead to death from this simple problem.

Methods

It was a cross sectional study which includes 280 cases. Sampling was done by Non probability consecutive sampling technique. Our inclusion criteria was children between 3 months to 5 years of age and children with acute diarrhea (Passage of loose or watery stools at least 3 times in 24 hours, for less than 14 days). Children having any chronic GI illness like celiac disease and congenital adrenal hyperplasia and children having other systemic disease like renal (urea> 20mg/l, creatinine > 1.3mg/dl), gastrointestinal and metabolic diseases were excluded from the study because these cases will act as effect modifiers and if included in the study will introduce bias in the result. The collected data was entered and analyzed using SPSS version 16. The frequency and percentage of children with acid base imbalance whether acidosis or alkalosis were noted. Data was stratified for age, acid base imbalance, gender, duration of diarrhea to address the effect of modifiers. Chi-square test was used to compare qualitative data. p < 0.05 was considered as significant.

Results

We found out that, out of 280 cases 140(50%) were in the age range of 3-12 months. When they were divided according to gender, 148(53%) were male and 132(47%) were females. When acid base balance was checked. Out of the total 280 patients, 83(29.5%) had acid base abnormality and 197(70.5%) had normal acid base balance. Out of 83(29.5%) patients who had acid base abnormality, 50(17.5%) males and 22(8%) females had acidosis while only 8(3%) males and 3(1%) females had alka-losis as shown in Table-1. Data was than stratified with age, number of diarrhea episodes and severity of dehydration using chi-square test as shown in Table-2.

Table 1: Distribution of Acid Base Imbalance (n=280).

Acid Base Imbalance	Male	Female	Total	p- value
Acidosis pH <7.35	50(17.5%)	22(8%)	72(25.5%)	0.005
Alkalosis pH >7.45	8(3%)	3(1%)	11(4%)	0.001
Normal pH 7.35-7.45	109(39%)	88(31.5%)	197(70.5%)	0.054

Discussion

Acidosis is the most common acid base imbalance in

Table 2: Stratification of Acid Base Imbalance with Regard to Age Range,	Number of Diarrheal Episodes and Severity
of Dehydration ($n=280$).	

Stratification of frequency acid base imbalance	Age Range			
with regard to age range	3 - 12 months (n=140)	13 - 24 months (n=81)	25 months - 5 years (n=59)	
Acidosis	51(36.4%)	20 (31%)	6 (10%)	0.025
Alkalosis	6 (4.5%)	2(4.6%)	0 (0%)	0.300
Normal	90 (64.2%)	62 (69%)	53 (90%)	0.001
Stratification of frequency acid base imbalance		Number of ep	isodes	
with regard to number of episodes	1-3	4-5	24	
	(n=146)	(n=78)	(1456)	
Acidosis <7.35	21(25.5%)	26 (28%)	25 (38%)	0.001
Alkalosis >7.45	4(4%)	2 (2%)	5 (7.6%)	0.025
Normal 7.35-7.45	57(70%)	65 (70%)	25 (38%)	0.005
Stratification of frequency acid base imbalance	Severity of Dehydration			
with regard to severity of dehydration	No dehydration	No dehydration	No dehydration	
Acidosis <7.35	11 (20%)	30(18.3%)	31(47%)	0.001
Alkalosis>7.45	3(5%)	2(1.9%)	6(9%)	0.025
Normal 7.35- 7.45	31(86%)	87 (73%)	26(40%)	0.005

our study population. 25.5% who presented with diarrhea also had acidosis. In a study conducted by Sharifuzzaaman et al in 2017 in Bangladesh they reported acidosis in 96% of the children who presented with watery diarrhea.¹² These results are very higher than ours it may be due the fact that they have included patient only with complain of acute watery diarrhea whereas we included cases of diarrhea with any cause of origin. In a study conducted in Kathmandu, Nepal 94% children who presented with diarrhea had acidosis whereas only one 6% had alkalosis.¹³ Similar results have been reported by Habib Ullah¹⁴. Narchi reported that there is no significant difference between the serum bicarbonate concentrations in relation to the degree of dehydration in diarrhea patients¹⁵. Shah reported that increase incidence of acidosis in diarrhea is due to more loss of bicarbonate from gastrointestinal tract¹³. When frequency of acidosis is stratified with age range, it is found that acidosis is more frequent in the 3-12 months age group. Similarly, in a study conducted by Eke C Bet al in Nigeria they reported Children less than 12 months of age were three times more likely to have acidosis (odds ratio = 3.098) than those above 12 months. This may be related to the high body surface area in the younger infants, thereby predisposing them to greater loss of fluid and electrolytes.¹⁶ Acidosis is also more common in the group with diarrhea of more than 6 days (44.4% in the third group). This is due to the fact that as duration of diarrhea prolongs increase faecal losses of sodium, potassium and bicarbonate leads to more loss which are not being replaced properly due to the improper rehydration methods and lack of awareness about continuation of breastfeeding during diarrhea in Pakistani mothers, according to Bello DA.¹⁷ This also suggest that early presentation and prompt correction of this derangement may reduce the duration of diarrhea and by extension associated mortality as corroborated by other studies.18,19 Acidosis is present in the group with no dehydration The reason is that in these patients, loss of water was replaced by hypotonic solutions but the loss of electrolytes were not properly compensated. However, its incidence is much higher in the group with severe dehydration. Loss of more bicarbonate as compare to Hydrogen leads to increase incidence of acidosis in severely dehydrated patients.²⁰

Conclusion

Acidosis is the most common acid base abnormality in children with acute watery diarrhea. Children less than 2 years of age are most affected. Frequency of acidosis increases with an increase in duration of diarrhea and occur more frequently in patients who are severely dehydrated .All children especially less than 2 years of age must be properly dehydrated. ORS should be started immediately and in proper amounts once diarrhea starts.

Limitations of the Study

The limitations of the study are we were unable to correlate it with blood urea and creatinine level as we didn't took blood samples of all the study population for these levels due to financial constraints. In addition, serum electrolytes of all the population was not collected due to kit constraints.

Author's Contribution

AZM: Sampling, introduction & results ZA: Critical review & hypothesis development TS: Sampling & discussion AM: Sampling & introduction MK: Sampling & results FM: Sampling & statistical analysis

References

- UNICEF. Committing to child survival: a promise renewed. Progress report 2015. http://www.apromiserenewed.org/wp-content/uploads/ 2015/09/ APR_ 2015_8_Sep_15.pdf. Published September 2015. Accessed October 16, 2017.
- 2. Saha D, Ronan A, Khan WA, Salam MA. Diagnosis of pneumonia in children with dehydrating diarrhoea. J Health Popul Nutr. 2014; 32:14-18.
- Chisti MJ, Salam MA, Bardhan PK, et al. Influences of dehydration on clinical features of radiological pneumonia in children attending an urban diarrhoeatreatment centre in Bangladesh. Ann Trop Paediatr. 2010;30:311-316.
- 4. Okposio MM, Onyiriuka AN, Abhulimhen-Iyoha BI.Point-of-admission serum electrolyte profile of children less than five years old with dehydration due to acute diarrhoea. Trop Med Health. 2015;43:247-252.
- 5. Stumpff F. A look at the smelly side of physiology: transport of short chain fatty acids. Pflügers Archiv-European Journal of Physiology. 2018 Apr 1; 470(4): 571-98.
- 6. Orban JC, Ichai C. Alkalosis: Diagnosis and Treatment. InMetabolic Disorders and Critically Ill Patients 2018 (pp. 195-214). Springer, Cham.

- Kaptein E, Sreeramoju D, Kaptein J, Kaptein M. A systematic literature search and review of sodium concentrations of body fluids. Clinical nephrology. 2016 Oct 1;86(4):203
- Berend K, de Vries AP, Gans RO. Physiological approach to assessment of acid–base disturbances. New England Journal of Medicine. 2014 Oct 9; 371 (15): 1434-45.
- 9. Abdallah MS, Warodi FA, Gambo RM. Antibacterial Activity of Leaf Extract (Cassia Mimosoides Linn) on some Bacterial isolates from diarrhoeal samples of infant. Imperial Journal of Interdisciplinary Research. 2017;3(1).
- Reddi AS. Acid–Base Disorders in Gastrointestinal Diseases. In Acid-Base Disorders 2020 (pp. 157-170). Springer, Cham.
- 11. Steffer KJ, Santa Ana CA, Cole JA, Fordtran JS. The practicalvalue of comprehensive stool analysis in detecting the cause ofidiopathic chronic diarrhea. Gastroenterol. Clin. North Am. 2012; 41: 539–60.
- Sharifuzzaman, Sarmin M, Ahmed T, Alam T, Islam SB, Islam MM, Chisti MJ. Determinants and outcome of metabolic acidosis in diarrheal children under 5 years of age in an urban critical care ward in Bangladesh. Global Pediatric Health. 2017 Nov 3;4: 2333794X17740223.
- Shah GS, Das BK. Acid base and electrolyte disturbances in diarrhea. Kathmundu Univ Med J 2007; 5: 60-2.
- 14. Habibullah B, Sanaullah, Muhammad R. Serum

Electrolyte Disturbances in Acute Diarrhoea among Children Less Than 5 Years of Age. P J M H S 2016; 10: 1231-3.

- Narchi H. Serum bicarbonate and dehydration severity in gastroenteritis. Arch Dis Child 1998; 78: 70–71.
- Eke CB, Ndu IK, Edelu BO, Uleanya ND, Ekwochi U, Chinawa JM, Nwokoye IC, Ikefuna AN. Clinical profile and electrolyte abnormalities in hospitalized under-five children with acute gastroenteritis in a tertiary health facility. Nigerian Journal of Medicine. 2020 1;29(2):295.
- Bello DA, Afolaranmi TO, Hassan ZI, Ogbonna FC, Inedu PG, Ejiga C, Chirdan OO. Knowledge and use of oral rehydration solution in the home management of diarrhea among mothers of under-fives in Jos, Plateau State. 2017
- Al-Abbas AK. Etiology of bacterial diarrhea in children under five years in Kerbala Province, Iraq. Iraqi Journal of Public Health. 2018 May 4;2(1):2-6.
- Shahrin L, Chisti MJ, Huq S, Nishath T, Christy MD, Hannan A, et al. Clinical manifestations of hyponatraemia and hypernatraemia in under-five diarrhoeal children in a diarrhoeal hospital. J Trop Pediatr 2016; 62:206-12.
- 20. Ahmad TM, Mehmood A, Malik TM, Aamir M. Pattern of acid base abnormalities in critically ill patients. Pakistan Armed Forces Medical Journal. 2015 Feb 28;65(1):99-104.

Frequency of Vesicoureteral Reflux in Children having Recurrent Urinary Tract Infections

Irum Aslam,¹ Muhammad Asif Siddiqui,² Fatima Zia,³ Hafsa Qamar⁴

Abstract

Objective: Repeated urinary tract infections are significantly related to anatomical abnormalities of urinary tract. Vesicoureteral reflux is quite common, under diagnosed anatomical abnormality, leads to renal scarring and chronic kidney disease. The objective of the study was to determine the frequency of vesicoureteral reflux in children having repeated urinary tract infections.

Methods: It is cross sectional survey conducted in department of Pediatric Medicine, The Children's Hospital & Institute of Child Health, Lahore, spanning from 20-5-2014 to 19-11-2014, using non-probability purposive sampling, a total of 140 patients included. Each child was screened and followed with repeated urinary tract infections for frequency of vesicoureteral reflux by detailed clinical examination and relevant investigation as defined in operational definition. To avoid any controversy, all the findings of UTI & vesicoureteral reflux was assessed by a single consultant. Data was managed using SPSS version 20.

Results: In this study the mean age of all patients was 5.64 ± 2.35 years. There were 42 (30%) males and 98(70%) females in this study with male to female ration 1:233. The mean number of episodes of urinary tract infections was 5.82 ± 1.95 per years. Frequency of vesicoureteral reflux in these patients was seen in 35(25%) of the patients. When we stratified the data over age, gender and number of episodes of urinary tract infection we found significant association of vesicoureteral reflux with age groups only (p-value < 0.05) while no association between vesicoureteral reflux versus gender and number of episodes of urinary tract infection (p-value > 0.05).

Conclusion: We found significant correlation between vesicoureteral reflux and repeated urinary tract infections. Cases with repeated urinary tract infections should be investigated thoroughly to address underlying cause, in order to prevent renal damage and long-term complications.

Key Words: Paediatric, Urinary tract infections, hydronephrosis, Vesicoureteral reflux

Introduction

In paediatric population, urinary tract infections (UTI) are commonly seen. Symptoms for UTI include anorexia for fever, lethargy, urinary complaints and vomiting. 5% of children with repeated UTI are at risk of renal damage.² Children with UTI can present with pyelonephritis, urethritis or cystitis.³ There are different organisms responsible for UTI, Escherichia coli in almost 80% of total cases.⁴ Other

1.	Irum Aslam	2.	Muhammad Asif Siddiqui
----	------------	----	------------------------

3. Fatima Zia 4. Hafsa Qamar

1-4: PGR, Children's Hospital & ICH.

Correspondence:

Dr Muhammad Asif Siddiqui, Assistant Prof. Paediatric Medicine Unit-II, Services Hospital, Lahore. Email: drmasifrmc@gmail.com

Submission Date:	23-08-2020
1st Revision Date:	14-11-2020
Acceptance Date:	14-12-2020

include klebsiella, pseudomonas aeroginosa, enterobacter, and proteus.⁵ UTIs and some congenital abnormalities may cause renal scarring.⁶ Vesicoureteral reflux (VUR) is one of the common congenital anomalies, in which there is backward flow of urine from bladder towards kidneys. VUR is seen in 30 to 50% of children that are diagnosed with infections of urinary tract.⁷ VUR causes hydronephrosis, increase risk of UTI and in presence of bacterial infection causes pyelonephritis. Kids suffering from hydronephrosis may require daily dose of antibiotic for prevention of UTI or surgical correction.⁷

VUR prevalence is between 22.7% to 26.4% in children, suffering from UTI.⁸ Urine tract related congenital abnormalities should be suspected and diagnosed promptly in order to prevent irreversible renal damage. Renal ultrasonography, voiding cys-

tourethrography (VCUG), Tc-99m Diethylene- triamine-penta-acetic acid (DTPA) Scan, Dimercaptosuccinic acid Scan (DMSA) are used to diagnose urinary tract congenital abnormalities and extent of renal damage.³ Purpose of this study was to see frequency of vesicou-reteral reflux in children with recurrent UTI. Whereas, Urinary tract infection was defined as pure growth of micro-organisms of >105 organisms/ml on urine culture. Recurrent urinary tract infection was defined as urinary tract infection twice in 6 months or \ge 3 times in 1 year on urine culture. Vesicoureteral reflux was characterized by the retrograde flow of urine from the bladder into ureters or kidneys and was assessed by voiding cystourethrogram (VCUG) in terms of whether being present or not.

Inclusion Criteria

- 1. Patients fulfilling operational definition of recurrent urine tract infections.
- 2. Age between 2 to 10 years
- 3. Both genders

Exclusion Criteria

1. Children with known congenital anomalies of the kidney/urinary tract or having multiple anomalies like syndromic patients e.g. Down's syndrome

Methods

This was cross sectional survey conducted in Department of Pediatric Medicine, The Children's Hospital & Institute of Child Health, Lahore with duration of Six months spanning from 20-5-2014 to 19-11-2014. Sampling technique was non probability, purposive with estimated sample size, calculated with 95% confidence level, 7% margin of error with an expected VUR frequency of 22%, is 140 children.⁸ After an informed consent, patients fulfilling the inclusion criteria were enrolled. Collected data was entered and analyzed using statistical software SPSS version 20. Mean and \pm SD was calculated for quantitative variables like age, number of episodes of urinary tract infections. Frequency tabulation and percentage was done for qualitative variables like vesicoureteral reflux in recurrent urinary tract infections. Data was stratified for age, gender and number of episodes of urinary tract infection. Chi-square test was applied post stratification with p-value ≤ 0.05 considered as significant.

Results

In this study the mean age of all patients (n=140) in this study was 5.64 ± 2.35 with age range of 8 years (minimum age=2 and maximum age =10 years). The mean number of episodes of urinary tract infection was 5.82±1.95 with minimum and maximum number of urinary tract infection per years. (Table 1). When we stratified the data over age, gender and number of episodes of urinary tract infection we found that, among 35 patients with vesicoureteral reflux, there were 12 (343%) patients who were 2-5 years of age and 23(65.7%) patients were 6-10 years of age. There was significant association between vesicoureteral reflux and age groups of the patients, p-value 0.004. There was no significant association between vesicoureteral reflux and gender, p-value = 0.523. Likewise, there was no statistical association between vesicoureteral reflux and number of episo-des of urinary tract infection, p-value = 0.481.

Discussion

If urinary tract abnormalities like vesicourethral reflux is diagnosed earlier in patients with repeated UTI the damage in kidney can be prevented either

Table 1: Descriptive Statistics of Age (Years) andNumber of Episodes of Urinary Tract Infection

	Mean	Std. Deviation	Range	Min.	Max.
Age (years)	5.64	±2.35	8	2	10
Number of episodes	5.82	± 1.95	6	3	9
of urinary tract					
infection					

Table 2: Frequency and Comparison of VesicoureteralReflux with Respect to Age (Years), Gender and Numberof UTI Episodes Frequency Distribution of VesicoureteralReflux in Recurrent UTI Patients

Yes	No			
35 (25%)			105 (75%)	
Comparison of Ves	icourete	ral Reflux v	vith Respect	to Age
(Years), Geno	ler and I	Number of I	U TI Episod e	s
		Vesicouret	eral reflux	p-value
		Yes	No	
Age groups (years)	2-5	12(34.3%)	65(61.9%)	0.004
	6-10	23(65.7%)	40(38.1%)	
Gender	Male	12(34.3%)	30(28.6%)	0.523
	Female	23(65.7%)	75(71.4%)	
Number of episodes	3-6	20(57.1%)	67(63.8%)	0.481
of urinary tract infection	7-9	15(42.9%)	38(36.2%)	

with prophylactic antibiotics or with corrective surgery.⁹ Symptoms for UTI in older children can be of urinary origin but in younger kids symptoms are usually nonspecific and sometime in infants they are difficult to observe. Urine dipstick analysis is important for ruling out of UTI in patients having low level of clinical suspicion. Although Urine culture is gold standard for diagnosis of UTI in children having high suspicion clinically, cloudy urine, positive leukocyte esterase or positive nitrate activity in case of urine dipstick analysis.¹⁰

For diagnosis of repeated UTIs related morbidities, we need detailed history, physical examination, renal as well as bladder sonography urine analysis and culture and contrast cystography, beside assessing other risk factors like bacterial virulence, antibiotic resistance."

3% of girls in prepuberty phase and 1% of boys in prepuberty phase are diagnosed with UTI. The incidence for urine infection in childhood and infancy is high and also influenced by gender and age.¹² Average age for subjects was 27.15 ± 20.72 months.¹³ 80(81.8 %) males along with 18(18.2%) females were included. Most subjects were of age 01.00 to 24.66 months in one study.¹³ In our study average age of subjects was 5.64 ± 2.35 yrs. There were 42 (30%) males and 98(70%) females in this study with male to female proportion 1:2.33.

Risk of recurrent UTI is high in children anomalies like vesicoureteral reflex and neurogenic bladder or with poor hygiene habits.¹⁴ In this study average number for episodes of UTI was 5.82 ± 1.95 with maximum and minimum number of UTI per years.

Primary vesicoureteral reflux is congenital with normal functioning of lower urinary tract, on other hand secondary vesicoureteral reflux is due to obstructive cause like posterior ureteral valve or neurogenic bladder.¹⁵ Precise frequency for vesicoureteral reflux is not known because several children are asymptomatic but vesicoureteral reflux frequency is much higher in children suffering from repeated UTI 15-70%.^{13,15,16,17}

In this study stratification of data was done for gender, age and episodes of UTI, we observed that in 35 patients suffering from vesicoureteral reflux 12(34 %) patients are with age group (2 to 5 years), whereas

23(65.7%) of are with age group (6 to 10 years). There is strong relationship between to the age and vesicoureteral reflux (p-value 0.004). There is no statistically significant relationship between gender, number of urine tract infections with vesicoureteral reflux.

We made conclusion from our study that congenital abnormalities of urine tract must be looked for in any age group of children presenting with repeated UTI, irrespective of gender and number of urine tract infections. Vesicoureteral reflux should be promptly suspected and treated accordingly, in order to prevent renal scarring.¹⁸

Conclusion

We found significant correlation between vesicoureteral reflux and repeated urinary tract infections. Children with repeated urinary tract infections should be investigated thoroughly to address underlying cause, in order to prevent irreversible renal damage and long-term complications.

Author's Contribution

AI, SAM, ZF, QH : Concept design, interpretation of data, :

:References

- 1. Korbel L, Howell M, Spencer JD. The clinical diagnosis and management of urinary tract infections in children and adolescents. Paediatrics and international child health. 2017 Oct 2;37(4):273-9.
- Williams G, Craig JC. Long-term antibiotics for preventing recurrent urinary tract infection in children. Vol. 2019, Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews. John Wiley and Sons Ltd; 2019.
- 3. Elder JS. Urinary Tract Infections. Nelson Textbook of Pediatrics. 21st ed. Philadelphia: Elsevier 2019; p. 10943-10967.
- 4. Nelson CP, Hoberman A, Shaikh N, Keren R, Mathews R, Greenfield SP, et al. Antimicrobial resistance and urinary tract infection recurrence. Pediatrics. 2016 Apr 1;137(4).
- Lee JN, Byeon KH, Woo MJ, Baek HS, Cho MH, Jeong SY, et al. Susceptibility of the index urinary tract infection to prophylactic antibiotics is a predictive factor of breakthrough urinary tract infection in children with primary vesicoureteral reflux receiving continuous antibiotic prophylaxis. J Korean Med Sci. 2019 Jun 1;34(21).
- 6. Kariyappa P, Reddy SC, Mavinahalli AS, Rao US. Urinary tract abnormalities in children with first uri-

nary tract infection. Indian Journal of Child Health. 2020 Aug 24;7(8):337-9.

- 7. Storme O, Tiran Saucedo J, Garcia-Mora A, Dehesa-Dávila M, Naber KG. Risk factors and predisposing conditions for urinary tract infection. Therapeutic advances in urology. 2019 Mar;11: 1756287218814382
- Doğan ÇS, Koyun NS, Aksoy GK, Çekiç B, Savaş M, Çomak E. Delayed diagnosis of primary vesicoureteral reflux in children with recurrent urinary tract infections: Diagnostic approach and renal outcomes. Turkish journal of urology. 2018 Nov;44(6):498.
- 9. Williams G, Craig JC. Long-term antibiotics for preventing recurrent urinary tract infection in children. Cochrane database of systematic reviews. 2019(4).
- Okarska-Napierała M, Wasilewska A, Kuchar E. Urinary tract infection in children: Diagnosis, treatment, imaging–Comparison of current guidelines. Journal of pediatric urology. 2017 Dec 1;13(6):567-73.
- Leung AK, Wong AH, Leung AA, Hon KL. Urinary tract infection in children. Recent Patents on inflammation & allergy drug discovery. 2019 May 1; 13(1): 2-18.
- 12. Lee RK, Pradere B. A new paradigm in treating urinary infections?. Current Opinion in Urology.

2020 Nov 1;30(6):832.

- 13. Lal S, Abbasi A, Shaikh AG. Vesicoureteral reflux in children up to 5 years of age with treated urinary tract infections in a tertiary care hospital. Medical Channel. 2013;19(3):31-4.
- 14. Doern CD, Richardson SE. Diagnosis of urinary tract infections in children. Journal of clinical microbiology. 2016 Sep 1;54(9):2233-42.
- Nelson C. Pediatric Vesicoureteral Reflux. Medscape. [Online avaiable from]: http:// emedicine. medscape. com/article/1016439-overview#a5. Accessed on June 2015.
- Larcombe J. Urinary tract infection in children. Clinical evidence. 2006:[Online avaiable from]: http://europepmc.org/abstract/med/19454098. Accessed June 2015.
- 17. Williams G, Hodson EM, Craig JC. Interventions for primary vesicoureteric reflux. Cochrane database Syst Rev. 2019 Feb 20;2:CD001532.
- Shaikh N, Mattoo TK, Keren R, Ivanova A, Cui G, Moxey-Mims M, Majd M, Ziessman HA, Hoberman A. Early antibiotic treatment for pediatric febrile urinary tract infection and renal scarring. JAMA pediatrics. 2016 Sep 1;170(9):848-54.

Self-Reported Treatment Adherence in Patients of Diabetes Mellitus Type 2: A **Cross-Sectional Study in Lahore, Pakistan**

Sarah Rahman,¹ Areej Asif,² Mehwish Iftikhar,³ Amna Rizvi,⁴ Azhar Hussain⁵

Abstract

Objectives: Suboptimal adherence to therapy due to neglected self-care behavior in chronic diseases is a global crisis. The aim of this research was to gauge the prevalence of adherence and to assess the effect of age, sex, education level and socioeconomic status on adherence to self-care strategies.

Methodology: A cross-sectional study was conducted at Diabetes Management Centre, Services Hospital Lahore. 357 patients were administered a standardized questionnaire, the Diabetes Self-Management Questionnaire. A cut off value of 7 on a 0-10 scale was labeled as good adherence. The influence of age, sex, education and income on adherence was examined by multiple logistic regression analysis.

Results: The mean age of the sample was 49.76±12.5 years, 64.52% were female, 37% had no formal education, and 47.39% had monthly household income > Rs. 45000. The prevalence of good adherence as a marker of good self-care behavior was 42%. The mean Sum Scale scores were 6.63 ± 1.48 . Glucose Management subscale showed the highest mean score i.e. 6.65 ± 2.07 while Physical Activity subscale showed mean lowest score i.e. 5.26 ± 2.75 . The sociodemographic factors being measured did not influence adherence significantly.

Conclusion: This study provides insight into the self-care behaviors of diabetic patients. This research highlights the immediate need to take steps to improve adherence among individuals. The sociodemographic factors were not found to influence adherence to self-care activities significantly in this sample. Further research is required to explore other factors that may increase the risk of suboptimal adherence among diabetics.

Keywords: Diabetes mellitus, adherence, factors, Pakistan

Introduction

ver last few decades, diabetes has emerged as a pandemic. From developed to developing nations, its prevalence is increasing rapidly, with approximately 463 million cases reported globally in 2019 and a projected rise to 700.2 million cases till 2045. In 2019 alone, it claimed 4.2 million lives.¹

In recent years burden of diabetes has rapidly increased in both developed and developing countries. In 2019, there were a dismal 19.4 million cases of diabetes and 159,000 diabetes related deaths in

1.	Sarah Rahman	2.	Areej Asif
3.	Mehwish Iftikhar	4.	Amna Rizvi

3. Mehwish Iftikhar Azhar Hussain.

1-5: Services Institute of Medical Sciences, Lahore/Services Hospital Lahore

Correspondence:

Dr. Sarah Rahman, 4th Year, MBBS, Services Institute of Medical Sciences, Lahore/Services Hospital Lahore. E-mail: sarah.rahman594@gmail.com

Submission Date:	03-07-2020
1st Revision Date:	20-07-2020
Acceptance Date:	23-12-2020

Pakistan.¹

Diabetes is a chronic disease, and its management is a lifelong commitment. While a physician is responsible to draft a treatment plan, the onus of the execution is on the patients. 95% of the day-to-day management is carried out by the patient themselves,² which means that between clinic appointments there is very little a physician can do. The efficacy of the treatment relies on the personal resolve of the patients alone.

Diabetes requires a complex, multifaceted treatment including lifestyle modifications, often as a first-line defense, and pharmacotherapy. The selfcare behaviors have several domains: blood glucose measurement, dietary control, exercise, medication and keeping appointments with the physician. The primary outcome is glycemic control i.e. maintaining HbA1C at <7%.³ Adherence to therapy is a significant predictor of treatment outcomes.⁴⁻⁶ WHO defines adherence as: "The extent to which a person's behavior - taking

medication, following a diet, and/or executing lifestyle changes, corresponds with agreed recommendations from a health care provider."⁷ Several international studies have shown adherence to be suboptimal.⁸⁻¹¹ Regional research on this topic is limited, however non-adherence appears to plague patients in Pakistan as well. Studies conduc-ted in Karachi¹² and Multan¹³, for example, found only 20% of participants fully adherent. Non adherence leads to poor glycemic control^{6,14} and greater morbidity¹⁵. According to UKPDS 35, 1 percent decrease in HbA1c decreased risk of microvascular complications by 37%.¹⁶ Predictors of non-adherence are classified as modi-fiable and unmodifiable factors. The latter include sociodemographic factors, including age, sex, educa-tion and socioeconomic status.⁷ Literature provides conflicting reports on association of these factors with non-adherence, both national^{12,17,18} and interna-tional.^{11,19,20} These demographic characteristics can help physi-cians to forecast non-adherence in individuals. This can enable physicians to provide better attention to patients at risk of non-adherence and create personalized treatment plans for ideal outcomes. Local research on adherence is deficient, and to draw conclusions or comparisons a larger pool of data is required. In the present research, we attempted to determine the level of adherence in a local diabetic population sample and the effect of sociodemographic factors on adherence.

Methods

A cross-sectional questionnaire-based study was conducted at an urban government tertiary care institution, over a period of 1 month, from 1st to 30th of September 2019. Participants included in this study were older than 30 years, with a diagnosis of Diabetes Mellitus Type 2 for a duration of at least 1 year, who had received a full treatment plan from their health provider. Patients taking oral medication only, insulin only as well as combination therapy as a part of their treatment were included. Participants were chosen by convenience sampling and each gave informed consent to take part in the study. Exclusion criteria included the inability to understand Urdu, mental incapacitation and type I or gestational diabetes. The sample size selected for this study was 357, for a confidence level of 95% and margin of error $\pm 5\%$. The research involved the collection of two sets of

data: the demographic characteristics of the population (Table 1), and the assessment of adherence. The demographic characteristics that were measured included age, sex, education and income as shown in Table 1. These were reported by the patient in a preliminary face-to-face interview. Treatment adherence was measured by a pre-valida-ted and reliable questionnaire (Cronbach's $\alpha = 0.96$), the Urdu-version of Diabetes Self-Management Questionnaire (DSMQ) made by Schmitt²¹ et al and translated by Bukhsh et al.²² It was comprised of 4 sub-scales, namely Glucose Management, Dietary Control, Physical Activity and Health-care Use.²¹ There was one additional question relating to overall selfcare. Patients rated their adherence using a Likert scale of 0-3 to, where 0 was 'does not apply to me' and 3 was 'applies to me very much'. The sub-scale scores and sum scale scores were compiled separately and each was converted to a 0-10 scale. Adherence was considered as a dichotomous variable; a score of 7 or above was considered "good adherence". The DSMQ was administered in paper form and as an interviewer-assisted questionnaire. In the latter case, it was read out to the illiterate participants verbatim and no further description was provided, to ensure validity. Data was analyzed using SPSS 25.0. Prevalence of non-adherence in the population was calculated and represented as a percentage of the total population. Data was analyzed by multiple logistics regression analysis to forecast the trends and predict the association between the independent variables i.e. the demographic characteristics, and the dependent variable i.e. adherence. The results were adjusted for employment status, duration of diabetes, type of treatment and presence of comorbidities. Value of p less than 0.05 was considered significant.

The purpose and components of the research were explained to each participant and informed consent was obtained. Ethical approval was obtained from the institution's ethical review board, Ref. No IRB/ 2019/ 570/SIMS.

Results

In September 2019, 357 patients were administered the DSQM at the Diabetes Management Center, SHL. The mean age of respondents was 49.76 ± 12.5 years. 231 (64.5%) were female and majority i.e. 133 (37.3%) of the respondents had no education. 168 (47.3%) respondents had income > Rs. 45000 while 91 (25.49 %) had income between Rs. 35001 to Rs. 45000. The demographic and clinical characteristics of the population are summarized in Table 1.

Good adherence to therapy (sum scale score \geq 7) was seen in 150 (42%) participants. The mean sum scale score was 6.63 ±1.48. Table 2 shows the mean scores for the individual sub-scales and sum scale; it also records the scores corresponding to the demographic variables. Sum scale scores were highest for 60-70 years age group followed by > 70 years; 51-60 age group showed lowest scores. Females had higher scores than males, i.e. 6.67 ± 1.26 and 6.56 ± 1.82 respectively. There was an overall increase in the scores with an increase in the level of education. The lower income groups obtained higher sum scale scores.

Glucose management, Dietary and Health-Care Use sub scales showed increased adherence with increasing age. Physical activity sub scale showed the opposite. Males demonstrated better glucose management and health care use but poorer physical activity and dietary management scores. Higher education showed an overall better glucose management and physical activity scores. Those with middle school education showed highest health care use scores. Lowest dietary control and physical activity scores were observed in the FSc./Class¹¹⁻¹² category. Better physical activity scores were seen in higher income groups. In contrast there was a decrease in dietary control and health care use scores with an increase in income level. Glucose management was highest in lower income groups. Dietary control and physical activity were poor across all variables. Socio demographic factors affecting adherence are reported in Table 3. Good adherence was highest in 41-50 and 51-60 age groups. More males were adherent than females. 34.67% of the adherent indi-viduals had no formal education. Good adherence was highest in highest income group. A multiple logistic regression model was used to predict the influence of the demographic characteristics on the dependent variable i.e. adherence. The p values for all variables were greater than 0.05 and hence the varia-bles were insignificant. The p values are reported in Table 3.

Discussion

Two out of five patients were found to have good adherence. This is a concerning statistic, as poor adherence is a major factor that contributes to poor glycemic control⁸ and, consequently, complications²⁴ and mortality. Suboptimal adherence is pervasive in previous litera-ture. A study conducted in Islamabad in 2015 reported 62% non-adherence in patients.¹⁷ The ENTRED study in France found suboptimal adherence to prescribed medications in almost 60% of the 3637 participants.²⁵ A study in Kerala, India found 74% of the rural population to be non-

Table 3: Demographic Profile of the Sample

Domographia	Engarter	Domosite
Demographic	Frequency	rercentage
$\Delta ge (vears) 49.76+12.5$	(11)	(70)
31-40	59	16 53
41-50	132	36.97
51-60	117	32.77
60-70	35	9.8
>70	14	3.9
Gender		
Male	126	35.29
Female	231	64.52
Education		
No formal education	133	37.25
Primary school/class 1 -5	52	14.57
Middle school/class 6-8	41	11.48
Matric/class 9-10	81	22.69
FSc/class 11-12	23	6.4
undergraduate	27	7.56
Monthly household income		
(Rs.)		0.20
< 5000	1	0.28
5000-15000	19	5.32
15000-25000	39	10.92
25000-35000	38	10.64
35000-45000	91	25.49
>45000 Employment	169	47.39
Employed	117	32 77
Unemployed	240	67.23
Locality	240	07.25
Urban	242	67 79
Rural	115	32.21
Duration of diagnosis	110	52.21
(years):	7.58 ± 6	
Type of treatment		
Oral hypoglycemics	166	46.50
Insulin	125	35.01
Combination	66	18.49
Co-morbidities		
Yes	240	67.23
No	117	32.77

adherent.²⁶ Out of 257 patients in Karachi, 79.4% were reported to have low adherence.¹² A mere 20% of the population was found to be adherent at Nishtar Hospital, Multan.¹³ 45.4% of the sample at the rural health training center of Tamil Nadu showed low adherence, which is lower than that observed in our

Table 2: Mean Scores and Standard Deviation of the Sub-scales and Sum Scale Across the Categories of Sociodemographic Variables. Mean Score of the Sample in each Subscale and Sum Scale is also Shown

	Glucose	Dietary	Physical	Health-Care	Sum
Demographics	Management	Control Sub-	Activity Sub-	Use Sub-	Scale
	Sub-Scale	Scale	Scale	Scale	State
Age					
31-40	6.88 ± 1.75	5.63 ± 1.05	5.44 ± 2.64	6.16 ± 1.96	6.75 ± 1.26
41-50	6.47 ± 1.97	5.45 ± 1.16	5.35 ± 2.48	5.85 ± 1.84	6.54 ± 1.40
51-60	6.56 ± 2.27	5.41 ± 1.35	5.00 ± 2.92	6.02 ± 2.29	6.50 ± 1.62
60-70	7.07 ± 2.34	5.91 ±1.23	5.75 ± 3.04	6.48 ± 2.40	7.10 ± 1.47
>70	7.19 ± 1.85	5.82 ± 1.39	4.44 ± 3.51	7.30 ± 2.34	6.98 ± 1.66
Gender					
Male	6.69 ± 1.92	5.47 ±1.51	4.90 ± 3.10	6.61 ±2.73	6.56 ± 1.82
Female	6.63 ± 2.33	5.56 ± 1.05	5.45 ± 2.53	5.78 ± 1.60	6.67 ± 1.26
Education					
No Formal Education	6.46 ± 2.23	5.44 ± 1.25	5.05 ± 2.67	5.91 ± 2.04	6.53 ± 1.50
Primary School/Class 1 -5	6.72 ± 1.75	5.62 ± 0.91	5.34 ± 2.58	6.11 ± 1.70	6.74 ± 1.10
Middle School/Class 6-8	6.59 ± 2.01	5.51 ± 1.14	5.34 ± 2.91	6.61 ± 2.34	6.61 ± 1.37
Matric/Class 9-10	6.88 ± 2.03	5.69 ± 1.20	5.57 ± 2.92	6.27 ± 2.31	6.83 ± 1.44
FSc./Class 11-12	6.87 ± 2.42	5.19 ± 1.66	4.78 ± 2.10	5.46 ± 2.04	6.23 ± 1.99
Undergraduate	6.74 ± 1.87	5.56 ± 1.46	5.43 ± 3.27	5.97 ±2.12	6.67 ± 1.75
Monthly Household Income (Rs.)					
< 5000	8.33 ± 0.47	6.77 ± 0.49	5.00 ± 2.56	10.00 ± 0.40	8.13 ± 0.59
5000-15000	7.47 ±2.11	5.77 ±1.57	4.85 ± 3.94	8.01 ± 2.61	6.92 ± 1.88
15000-25000	7.47 ± 2.25	5.76 ± 1.57	5.13 ± 3.48	7.29 ± 2.84	6.92 ± 1.89
25000-35000	6.19 ± 2.03	5.32 ± 1.34	5.32 ± 2.74	6.11 ±2.14	6.39 ± 1.62
35000-45000	6.27 ± 2.12	5.34 ± 1.12	5.08 ± 2.50	5.54 ± 1.83	6.41 ± 1.35
>45000	6.68 ± 1.96	5.57 ± 1.12	5.42 ± 2.54	5.81 ± 1.70	6.69 ± 1.34
Mean Score of the sample	6.65 ± 2.07	6.39 ± 1.71	5.26 ±2.75	6.08 ± 2.10	6.63 ± 1.48

Table 3: Distribution of Frequency of Good Adherence Across the Categories of each Variable and Multiple Logistic Regression Significance Values. Comparison of Frequency of Good vs Poor Adherence in each Category is also shown.

Demographics	Good Adherence (n)	p Value	Poor Adherence (n)
Age		.962	
31-40	25		34
41-50	50		82
51-60	49		68
60-70	19		16
>70	7		7
Gender		.674	
Male	97		73
Female	53		134
Education		.720	
No Formal Education	52		81
Primary School/Class 1 -5	23		29
Middle School/Class 6-8	19		22
Matric/Class 9-10	35		46
Fsc./Class 11-12	8		15
Undergraduate	13		13
Monthly Household Income (Rs.)		.684	
< 5000	2		0
5000-15000	11		8
15000-25000	19		20
25000-35000	15		23
35000-45000	36		55
>45000	67		101

sample.²³ Similarly, 42.3% were non-compliant in a study at Kolkata.²⁷ However, most of these studies measured adherence using instruments different from that used in the present research, hence, comparison is difficult to make.

Lowest adherence was reported for physical activity, which is an observation reported frequently in literature.^{27–29} The sample population showed better glucose management. Among the self-care behaviors measured glucose management, dietary control and health care use were found to be better in older individuals, which could be explained by the availability of family support as well as time. There was a decrease in the adherence to physical activity with increasing age, probably due to comorbidities which limit mobility. However, in the multiple logistic regression model, age was not a significant factor (p >0.05). Surveys at Islamabad¹⁷, Tamil Nadu, India²³ and France²⁵ all demonstrated the effect of age on adherence to be insignificant. A positive relationship has, however, been found in others.^{11,13,24,30}

In this sample population males had better adherence to therapy; 64.71% of the adherent individuals were males. Males showed better health-care use but poo-

rer physical exercise levels, confirming the results of a Saudi Arabian study.³¹ Sex did not significantly modify adherence in our regression model. There have been mixed reports in the past regarding the association of sex with adherence. Some local^{13,17} and global studies^{20,32,33} have shown similar results to ours. Others have commonly shown males to have better adherence.11,30,34 37.25% of the sample had no education, corres-ponding to the literacy statistics of Pakistan.³⁵ This population scored lower in all selfcare activities. 34% of the adherent population had no formal education. The number of adherent vs nonadherent patients improved as the education level increased, however, there was no significant relationship found between the two variables. Researches at Aga Khan University Hospital, Karachi²⁸ and Rawal Institute of Health Sciences, Islamabad¹⁷ demonstrated a neutral relationship. This was observed in Kenya⁸ and Tamil Nadu, India²³ as well. Many regional surveys have found a positive relationship between education level and adherence, including studies at Quetta city¹⁸, Islamabad¹⁷ and Dhaka city²⁹, Bangladesh. The adherence for < 5000income group was seen to be unusually high, which could be due to the very small sample. 44.64% of the adherent patients earned Rs. 45000 or more, however this result could be influenced by the fact that almost half the patients belonged to this income group. The adherent and non-adherent patients in each income bracket, other than < 5000, were approximately the same, indicating that income had no effect on adherence. Multiple logistic regression also confirmed this finding. Increase in adherence with better socioeconomic status has been overwhelming in past research.^{11,13,25,27,36} A neutral relationship has been observed as well, for example in Quetta city¹⁸ and Turkey,³³ which agrees with the findings of this study. This study presented local data regarding adherence in patients of Diabetes Mellitus. It showed that over-all adherence is sub-optimal among patients, high-lighting the necessity to address this issue. The non-modifiable demographic factors were not predictors of adherence. There is an urgent need for further research to explore other factors that could impede adherence, so that targeted treatment strategies can be developed to combat non-adherence and improve glycemic control and treatment outcomes. The instrument was a self-reported questionnaire, which could lend a recall and social

desirability bias, leading to underestimation of poor adherence³⁷. How-ever, self-reported questionnaires have been shown to be a reliable and convenient method to measure adherence related to clinical outcomes.³⁸ Our results have been derived from a sample chosen by convenience sampling. This could impart some level of sampling bias to our results. However, our results agree with several regional and global which contributes to its credibility. This study was conduc-ted in a central government tertiary care hospital, however, as the sample was chosen from only one institution, it may not be suitable to generalize these results to the national population.

Conclusion

This study provides insight into the self-care behaviors of diabetic patients. Patients were most diligent about glucose management. Adherence to physical activity was seen to be the lowest. The sociodemographic factors were not found to influence adherence significantly in this population sample. There is a strong need to carry out further research on the barriers to adherence to therapy in order to improve compliance, self-care behaviors and treatment strategies.

Authors Contribution

RS: Methodology, Literature Review, Data Collection, Article Writing
AA: Data Collection
IF: Supervision, Methodology
RA: Drafting Revising, Analysis
HA: Methodology and Statistics

Reference

- 1. Internation Diabetes Federation. IDF Diabetes Atlas, Ninth edition 2019. Dunia : IDF. 2019. 168 p.
- 2. Funnell MM, Anderson RM. The Problem With Compliance in Diabetes. JAMA. 2000 Oct 4; 284(13):1709.
- 3. ADA. Diabetes Care American diabetes association standard of medical care in diabetes 2018. J cinical Appl Res Educ. 2018;1(January):94.
- 4. Cramer JA, Benedict A, Muszbek N, Keskinaslan A, Khan ZM. The significance of compliance and persistence in the treatment of diabetes, hypertension and dyslipidaemia: a review. Int J Clin Pract. 2008 Jan; 62(1):76–87.
- 5. Dimatteo MR, Giordani PJ, Lepper HS, Croghan TW. Patient Adherence and Medical Treatment Outcomes. Med Care. 2015 Sep;40(9):794–811.
- 6. Dalewitz J, Khan N, Hershey CO. Barriers to Control

of Blood Glucose in Diabetes Mellitus. Am J Med Qual. 2000 Jan 3;15(1):16–25.

- 7. Sabaté E. Adherence to Long-Term Therapies. Evidence for Action. Geneva; 2003.
- 8. Waari G, Mutai J, Gikunju J. Medication adherence and factors associated with poor adherence among type 2 diabetes mellitus patients on follow-up at Kenyatta National Hospital, Kenya. Pan Afr Med J. 2018 ;29.
- Iglay K, Cartier SE, Rosen VM, Zarotsky V, Rajpathak SN, Radican L, et al. Meta-analysis of studies examining medication adherence, persistence, and discontinuation of oral antihyperglycemic agents in type 2 diabetes. Curr Med Res Opin. 2015 Jul 3; 31(7): 1283–96.
- Farr AM, Sheehan JJ, Curkendall SM, Smith DM, Johnston SS, Kalsekar I. Retrospective Analysis of Long-Term Adherence to and Persistence with DPP-4 Inhibitors in US Adults with Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus. Adv Ther. 2014 Dec 12;31(12):1287–305.
- Kirkman MS, Rowan-Martin MT, Levin R, Fonseca VA, Schmittdiel JA, Herman WH, et al. Determinants of adherence to diabetes medications: Findings from a large pharmacy claims database. Diabetes Care. 2015 Jan 8;38(4):604–9.
- 12. Abbas A, Kachela B, Muhammad Arif J, Tahir KB, Shoukat N, Barkat Ali N. Assessment of medication adherence and knowledge regarding the disease among ambulatory patients with diabetes mellitus in Karachi, Pakistan. J Young Pharm. 2015;7(4): 328– 40.
- Imtiaz S, Ullah H, Rasool MF, Hashmat F, Saleem M, Khan N, et al. Assessment of Compliance of Diabetic Patients At Nishtar Hospital Multan, Pakistan. 2014; 12(2):84–8.
- Krapek K, King K, Warren SS, George KG, Caputo DA, Mihelich K, et al. Medication adherence and associated hemoglobin A 1c in type 2 diabetes. Ann Pharmacother. 2004;38(9):1357–62.
- 15. Balkrishnan R, Rajagopalan R, Camacho FT, Huston SA, Murray FT, Anderson RT. Predictors of medication adherence and associated health care costs in an older population with type 2 diabetes mellitus: a longitudinal cohort study. Clin Ther. 2003 Nov; 25(11): 2958–71.
- Stratton IM, Adler AI, Neil HA, Matthews DR, Manley SE, Cull CA, et al. Association of glycaemia with macrovascular and microvascular complications of type 2 diabetes (UKPDS 35): prospective observational study. BMJ. 2000 Aug 12; 321(7258): 405–12.
- 17. Shams N, Amjad S, Ahmed W. Drug Non-Adherence

in Type 2 Diabetes Mellitus; Predictors and Associations. J Ayub. 2016;28(2):302–7.

- Iqbal Q, Bashir S, Iqbal J, Iftikhar S, Godman B. Assessment of medication adherence among type 2 diabetic patients in Quetta city, Pakistan. Postgrad Med. 2017 Aug 18;129(6):637–43.
- Senior V, Marteau TM, Weinman J, Genetic Risk Assessment for FH Trial (GRAFT) Study Group. Self-Reported Adherence to Cholesterol-Lowering Medication in Patients with Familial Hypercholesterolaemia: The Role of Illness Perceptions. Cardiovasc Drugs Ther. 2004 Nov;18(6):475–81.
- 20. Nau DP, Aikens JE, Pacholski AM. Effects of gender and depression on oral medication adherence in persons with type 2 diabetes mellitus. Gend Med. 2007;4(3):205–13.
- 21. Schmitt A, Gahr A, Hermanns N, Kulzer B, Huber J, Haak T. The Diabetes Self-Management Questionnaire (DSMQ): Development and evaluation of an instrument to assess diabetes self-care activities associated with glycaemic control. Health Qual Life Outcomes. 2013 Aug 13;11(1):138.
- 22. Bukhsh A, Lee SWH, Pusparajah P, Schmitt A, Khan TM. Psychometric properties of the Diabetes Self-Management Questionnaire (DSMQ) in Urdu. Health Qual Life Outcomes. 2017;15(1):1–9.
- 23. Venkatesan M, Dongre A, Ganapathy K. A community-based study on diabetes medication non-adherence and its risk factors in rural Tamil Nadu. Indian J Community Med. 2018;43(2):72–6.
- 24. Jaam M, Mohamed Ibrahim MI, Kheir N, Hadi MA, Diab MI, Awaisu A. Assessing prevalence of and barriers to medication adherence in patients with uncontrolled diabetes attending primary healthcare clinics in Qatar. Prim Care Diabetes. 2018; 12(2): 116–25.
- 25. Tiv M, Viel JF, Mauny F, Eschwège E, Weill A, Fournier C, et al. Medication adherence in type 2 diabetes: The ENTRED study 2007, a French population-based study. PLoS One. 2012;7(3).
- Sankar U V., Lipska K, Mini GK, Sarma PS, Thankappan KR. The adherence to medications in diabetic patients in rural Kerala, India. Asia-Pacific J Public Heal. 2015;27(2):NP513–23.
- Mukherjee S, Sarkar BS, Das KK, Bhattacharyya A, Deb A. Original articlecompliance to anti-diabetic drugs: Observations from the diabetic clinic of a medical college in Kolkata, India. J Clin Diagnostic Res. 2013;7(4):661–5.
- 28. Malik S, Basit R, Naz S, Mawani M, Masood MQ, Akhter J. Adherence to Lifestyle Advice and Treatments in Pakistani Patients with Type 2 Diabetes

Mellitus. J Diabetes Mellit. 2016;06(01): 49–57.

- 29. Mumu S, Saleh F, Ara F, Afnan F, Ali L. Nonadherence to life-style modification and its factors among type 2 diabetic patients. Indian J Public Health. 2014;58(1):40.
- Curkendall SM, Thomas N, Bell KF, Juneau PL, Weiss AJ. Predictors of medication adherence in patients with type 2 diabetes mellitus. Curr Med Res Opin. 2013;29(10):1275–86.
- Abdul Salam M, Farheen Siddiqui A. Sociodemographic determinants of compliance among type 2 diabetic patients in Abha, Saudi Arabia. J Clin Diagnostic Res. 2013 Dec;7(12):2810–3.
- 32. Bonafede MM, Kalsekar A, Pawaskar M, Ruiz KM, Torres AM, Kelly KR, et al. Insulin use and persistence in patients with type 2 diabetes adding mealtime insulin to a basal regimen: A retrospective database analysis. BMC Endocr Disord. 2011; 11(1): 3.
- 33. Serap T, Bayram Ş. Factors Influencing Adherence to Diabetes Medication in Turkey. Sch J Appl Med Sci Sch J App Med Sci. 2015;3(2A):602–7.

- 34. Hertz RP, Unger AN, Lustik MB. Adherence with pharmacotherapy for type 2 diabetes: a retrospective cohort study of adults with employer-sponsored health insurance. Clin Ther. 2005 Jul 1;27(7): 1064–73.
- 35. Government P. Pakistan Economy Survey 2015-2016. Education. 2015;169:192.
- Kassahun A, Gashe F, Mulisa E, Rike WA. Nonadherence and factors affecting adherence of diabetic patients to anti-diabetic medication in Assela General Hospital, Oromia Region, Ethiopia. J Pharm Bioallied Sci. 2016;8(2):124–9.
- Stirratt MJ, Dunbar-Jacob J, Crane HM, Simoni JM, Czajkowski S, Hilliard ME, et al. Self-report measures of medication adherence behavior: recommendations on optimal use. Transl Behav Med. 2015 Dec;5(4):470–82.
- Nguyen T-M-U, La Caze A, Cottrell N. What are validated self-report adherence scales really measuring?: a systematic review. Br J Clin Pharmacol. 2014 Mar;77(3):427–45.

Frequency and Severity of Premenstrual Syndrome Among Undergraduate **Medical Students**

Saira Yunus,¹ Bushra Bano,² Ayesha Farooq,³ Amtullah Zarreen⁴

Abstract

Objective: To find out the frequency and to assess the degree of severity of premenstrual syndrome among undergraduate medical students

Methods: Cross-Sectional Study conducted at Obstetrics and Gynecology department, Jinnah Hospital, Lahore in six months from June 2019-Nov 2019. Study was conducted in 161 female Students, aged 18-25 years from Allama Iqbal Medical College of 1st year to final year who had regular periods (28-35 days) for last 3 months before start of study, and voluntarily consented for participation. Female using hormonal contraception, any medication or having any organic pathology (Fibroid, Endometriosis) were excluded. PMS was diagnosed on the basis of a modified DRSP scale. A Questionnaire was designed on the basis of existing available literature. It was based on a list of symptoms and their severity during the 5 days before her periods. Female who fulfilled the following criteria were labeled as having PMS:

- A score of > 50 on Daily record of severity problems scale (DRSP), 1.
- 2. History that the symptoms end within 4 days after her period starts

Severity of PMS: It was diagnosed on the basis of DRSP scale.

- Mild: if the score on DRSP is 50-85 Moderate: if the score on DRSP is 86-120 _
- Severe: if the score on DRSP is >120

Data was analyzed by SPSS version 23. Frequency, percentage charting was expressed for variables like presence of PMS and severity of PMS. Quantitative variables like age and BMI were expressed by Mean ±S.D. Data was stratified for age, BMI, year of study, living status and marital status to deal with effect modifiers. Test of significance was applied i.e chi-square. A p-value ≤ 0.05 was considered significant.

Results: Subjects ranged between 18-25 years with mean age of 19.9±2.1 years. Majority of the students were between 18-20 years. Mean BMI was 19.9±1.9 kg/m2. Mean year of study was 2.4±1.3 year. Out of 161 subjects, 53 (32.9%) were living with parents while remaining 108 (67.1%) were far from parents. Married students were 10 (6.2%). Premenstrual syndrome was found to be in 31 females (19.2%), mild 4.3%, moderate 8.1% and severe 6.8%, and severity was more in 4-5 years students, p-value was found significant with variable years of study (p-value=0.095).

Conclusion: PMS was found in 19.2% of undergraduate medical students. Early recognition and timely management can improve the quality of performance among undergraduates.

Key Words: DRSP scale, Premenstrual syndrome, Undergraduates

1.	Saira Yunus	2.	Bushra Bano
3.	Ayesha Farooq	4.	Amtullah Zarreen

- 1. Department of OBGY Jinnah hospital Lahore.
- 2,3. Allama Iqbal Medical college
- 4. Postgraduate Trainee Jinnah Hospital Lahore
- 5. HOD Allama Iqbal Medical College

Correspondence:

Dr Saira Yunus, Assistant Professor, Email: sairaymian @ gmail.com

Submission Date:	20-09-2020
1st Revision Date:	30-09-2020
2nd Revision Date:	04-11-2020
Acceptance Date:	16-12-2020

Introduction

efinition of PMS varies over the years because of its unknown etiology and its related symptoms complex. Globally Physicians are having different opinions about this malady.¹ Reproductive age women often experience repeated psychological, physical and behavioral complexities occurring in second half of cycle and vanish by the end of menstruation.² These symptoms really interfere with household, social, and workplace activities, inter personal and even the sexual functioning of a woman, which are not related to any organic or functional

ailment.³ Some degrees of premenstrual problems are expe-rienced by even younger girls in initial years follo-wing menarche. Many Studies depicts that around 80% of women may experience some of premenstrual symptoms in their reproductive age.⁴ When it is very severe, premenstrual syndrome is called as premens-trual dysphoric disorder (PMDD). The psychological symptoms are anger, frustration, emotional liability, depression and apprehension. Physical symptoms include weight gain, swelling, breast pain, headache, dizziness, and tingling sensations, so that psychiatric and endocrinal disorders must be checked before labelling a women PMS. Symptomatology which is triggered by ovulation, appears about one week before the start of periods and vanishes immediately after the start of periods.⁵ Due to the severity of symptoms and its prolonged history it is associated with long term effects on the emotional health, relationships and impairment in work. Women suffering PMS report significant family disharmony, inability to perform at workplace along with frequent absence from work, school, or college. Very few Data is available on PMDD in young girls.⁶ In a study, it was concluded that, the prevalence of premenstrual syndrome was 39.6%. The distribution of severity of symptoms was minimal 2.5%, mild 27.5%, moderate 42.5%, severe 25% and extreme 2.5%.⁷ 1n another study, prevalence of PMS was found around 18.4% and moderate to severe PMS was found in 14.7%.⁸

Results

Subjects ranged between 18-25 years with mean age of 19.9 ± 2.1 years. Majority of the students were between 18-20 years. Mean BMI was 19.9 ± 1.9 kg/m².

Mean year of study was 2.4 ± 1.3 year. Out of 161 subjects, 53(32.9%) were living with parents while remaining 108 (67.1%) were far from parents. Married students were (6.2%) n=10. (Table -1) Premenstrual syndrome was found in 31 females (19.2%), mild 4.3%, moderate 8.1% and severe 6.8% (Table-2). Stratification for age, BMI, year of study and marital status was also done (Table-2) and p-value was found significant in 4-5 years of study (p-value= 0.095).out of total 125 students of 1-3 years PMS was found I 23 students (18.4%) and out of 36 students of 4-5 years it was found in 8 students (22.2%). Out of those 8 students In 4-5 years 5 had severe and 3 had moderate PMS. (table-2)

Discussion

Many women in their reproductive age may experience physical or emotional symptoms before the start of periods. Amongst these, some are so badly affected that it impairs their mental and physical health, relationships, and quality education.⁹ It is also observed that premenstrual syndrome (PMS) exists more among single women, between 35-44 years, and in women of low income groups living in deprived areas.^{10,11} Multiple risk factors are revealed with PMS in several studies, including age, stress, marital status and body mass index. These risk factors were found to worsen the manifestations.¹² A significant number of women in Pakistan expe-rience PMS but they don't come up with this idea of suffering a disorder.¹³ In our

Table 1: Demographic Profile of Subjects

N	Variables n = 161	Frequency	Percentage %	
Age Mean	18 - 20	109	67.7	
$= 19.9 \pm 2.1$	21—25	52	32.3	
BMI Mean	≤ 18	26	16.1	
$= 19.9 \pm 1.9$	≥18. 1	135	83.9	
Year of study	1-3 Years	125	77.6	
	4-5 Years	36	22.4	
Living Status	Parental House	53	32.9	
	Independent/Boarding	108	67.1	
Marital Status	Single	151	93.8	
	Married	10	6.2	
Pre Menstrual	Yes	31	19.2	
Syndrome	No	130	80.8	
Severity of Pre Menstrual Syndrome	Normal	130	80.8	
	Mild	7	4.3	
	Moderate	13	8.1	
	Severe	11	6.8	

Table 2: Pre Menstrual Syndrome & IndependentVariables Cross Tabulation

Variables		Pre Menstrual Syndrome		Tatal	Р	
		Mild	Moderate	Severe	Total	Value
Age	18-20	6	8	6	20	0.206
	21-25	1	5	5	11	0.380
	Total	7	13	11	31	-
BMI (Kg/m ²)	≤18	1	1	1	3	0 000
	≥18.1	6	12	10	28	0.890
	Total	7	13	11	31	-
Year Of Study	1-3	7	10	6	23	0.005*
	4-5	0	3	5	8	0.095
	Total	7	13	11	31	-
Marital Status	Single	7	10	11	28	1.00
	Married	0	3	0	3	1.00
	Total	7	13	11	31	-

country, menstruation and related feminine issues are taken as taboos and women are forced to accept that PMS is not a signi-ficant issue to be talked about or to seek advice for, even if it adversely affect their lives.¹³ PMS is a symptom complex of physical and psycho-logical symptoms appearing prior to the onset of periods and resolves with the onset of menstruation or within few days of menstruation.¹⁴ Our sample is comparable with past similar studies, and the mean age of all participants is 19.9±1.6 years and the majority of them are urban resident and single. The participants from previous studies were also from similar age group college students, had urban residence, and were unmarried. ^{15, 16, 17, 18} In current study, the frequency of PMS is 19.2% (14.9% for moderate to severe PMS and 4.3% for mild) among undergraduate medical students. It is in agreement with the study done by Rapkin and Mikacich¹⁹ and other studies from Asian countries among this population.²⁰ This finding is also consis-tent with two other studies BY lentz & parry.^{21,22} The prevalence of severe and mild PMS in this study is not in agreement with the study by Steiner et al who reported 21.3% and 8.3%, respectively, and also differs from study by Chayachinda et al²³ who reported 25.1% PMS among Thai nurses. The lower preva-lence in our study can be explained by influence of cultural norms, social factors, peer experiences, local practices and life stresses about menstruation in Pakistani context which affects both experiencing and reporting of the premenstrual symptoms.

In present study no statistically significant relationship was established amongst subjects in relation to age, BMI, marital status and living conditions, which is in consistent with study of Nour Bkhashani et al,¹⁶ except age which showed higher prevalence in younger 18-20 years, which may be because in present study sample size smaller for that study.

Conclusion

In conclusion, PMS was found in 19.2% of undergraduate medical students of government medical college of Pakistan. Frequency and severity of PMS was more in 4rth and final year students. Worldwide it is a common problem and awareness about the existence of this medical problem and early recognition along with timely management, among undergraduates the quality of their performance can be improved.

Limitations and Challenges

This study only reflects one medical institute and such more studies should be conducted in other educational systems to better understand the true picture of existing data for this disorder and to establish the triggering factors and available management options. Another limitation of present study is use of subject's self-reported data due to which there is possibility of higher expression of disorder amongst subjects.

Recommendations

- There is an immense need to create Adolescent awareness programs in colleges for better understanding of PMS, changing attitudes towards existence of disorder and knowledge about available pharmacological & non pharmacological therapies.
- Premenstrual calendars, diaries and questionnaires can be used as a tool to label PMS/PMDD.
- Lifestyle changes, behavioral therapies, and physical fitness workouts aerobic exercises should be adopted and gymnasiums must be there in colleges.
- Students should be evaluated for their eating behaviors. Eating well throughout the month is a better approach to PMS than tweaking your diet while suffering the symptoms.

Authors Contribution

YS: Data Compilation, Writing BB: Data Analysis FA: Data Collection ZA: Expert Advice

References

- 1. Attar K. Epidemiology of Premenstrual Syndrome, a Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis Study. J Clin Diag Res 2014; 8:106-9.
- 2. Biggs WS, Demuth M. Premenstrual syndrome and premenstrual dysphoric disorder. Am Fam Phys 2011; 84:918.
- 3. Subhash B Thakre, Sushama S Thakre, Suresh Ughade, Amol D Thakre. Urban-rural differences in menstrual problems and practices of girl students in Nagpur, India. Indian Pediatrics 2012; 49:733-6.
- 4. Ramya S, Rupavani K, Bupathy A. Effect of educational program on premenstrual syndrome in adolescent school girls. Int J Reprod Contracept Obstet Gynecol 2014; 3:168-71.
- 5. Sarkar A, Mandal R, Ghorai S. Premenstrual syndrome among adolescent girl students in a rural school
of West Bengal, India. Int J Med Sci Public Health. 2015; 1.

- 6. Tacani P, de Oliveira Ribeiro D, Banos Guimaraes B, Perez Machado A, Tacani R. Characterization of symptoms and edema distribution in premenstrual syndrome. Int J Women's Health 2015; 7:297-303.
- Badkur D, Wanjpe A, Singh S, Chouhan DS, Sinha A. Premenstrual syndrome among female students of colleges in Ujjain City, Madhya Pradesh. Int J Comm Med 2016; 7:878-81.
- Raval CM, Panchal BN, Tiwari DS, Vala AU, Bhatt RB. Prevalence of premenstrual syndrome and premenstrual dysphoric disorder among college students of Bhavnagar, Gujarat. Ind J Psy 2016; 58:164.
- 9. Quintana-Zinn FA, Whitcomb BW, Ronnenberg AG. Premenstrual symptom patterns and behavioral risk factors in young women: a cross-sectional study. J Womens Health (Larchmt) 2017; 26:1099–1105.
- 10. Cheng SH, Sun ZG, Lee IH. Perception of premenstrual syndrome and attitude of evaluations of work performance among incoming university female students. Biomed J 2015; 38:167–72.
- 11. Shershah S, Morrison JJ, Jafarey S. Prevalence of premenstrual syndrome in Pakistani women. Pak MedAssoc 1991;41:101–3.
- Hamaideh SH, Al-Ashram SA, Al-Modallal H. Premenstrual syndrome and premenstrual dysphoric disorder among Jordanian women. J Psychiatr Ment Health Nurs 2014; 21:60–6.
- 13. Pal SA, Dennerstein L, Lehert P. Pakistan Medical Association; 2011. Premenstrual symptoms in Pakistani women and their effect on activities of daily life. J Pak Med Assoc 2011; 61:763-8.
- 14. Silva CM, Gigante DP, Carret ML, Fassa AG. Population study of premenstrual syndrome. Rev Saude Publica 2006; 40:47–56.
- 15. Steiner M, Peer M, Palova E, Freeman EW, Macdougall M, Soares CN. The premenstrual symptoms

screening tool revised for adolescents (PSST-A): Prevalence of severe PMS and premenstrual dysphoric disorder in adolescents. Arch Women Ment Health 2011; 14:77–81.

- Bakhshani NM, Mousavi MN, Khodabandeh G. Prevalence and severity of premenstrual symptoms among Iranian female university students. J Pak Med Assoc 2009; 59:205–8.
- Issa BA, Yussuf AD, Olatinwo AW, Ighodalo M. Premenstrual dysphoric disorder among medical students of a Nigerian university. Ann Afr Med 2010; 9:118–22.
- Singh P, Kumar S, Kaur H, Swami M, Soni A, Shah R, et al. Cross sectional identification of premenstrual syndrome and premenstrual dysphoric disorder among college students: A preliminary study. Indian J Priv Psychiatry 2015; 9:21–7.
- 19. Rapkin AJ, Mikacich JA. Premenstrual syndrome and premenstrual dysphoric disorder in adolescents. Curr Opin Obstet Gynecol 2008; 20:455–63.
- 20. Nourjah P. Premenstrual syndrome among teacher training university students in Iran. J Obstet Gynecol India 2008; 58:49–52.
- Lentz GM. Primary and secondary dysmenorrhea, premenstrual syndrome, and premenstrual dysphoric disorder-etiology, diagnosis, management. In: Lentz GM, Lobo RA, Gershenson DM, Katz VL, editors. Comprehensive Gynecology. Part V. 6th ed. Philadelphia: Elsevier, Mosby; 2012. pp. 791–802.
- Parry BL, Berga SL. Premenstrual dysphoric disorder. In: Sadock BJ, Sadock VA, editors.Kaplan & Sadock's Comprehensive Textbook of Psychiatry. 8th ed. Vol. II. Baltimore: Lippincott Williams & Wilkins; 2005. p. 2316–23.
- Chayachinda C, Rattanachaiyanont M, Phattharayuttawat S, Kooptiwoot S. Premenstrual syndrome in Thai nurses. J Psychosom Obstet Gynaecol. 2008; 29: 199–205.

Diagnostic Accuracy of Gene Xpert on Bronchoscopy Washings in Patients with **Suspected Pulmonary Tuberculosis**

Waseem A. Khan,¹ Nayyar Manzoor,² Asad Javaid,³ M. Saqib Musharaf,⁴ Nausheen Sohail,⁵ Nighat Majeed⁶

Abstract

Objective: The objective of this study was to determine the diagnostic accuracy of GeneXpert assay of bronchial washing in detecting pulmonary tuberculosis in suspected TB patients with no sputum production taking culture of bronchial washing as gold standard.

Methods: This is cross sectional study. Data was collected through structured questionnaire. Patients had bronchoscopy according to standard protocol. Their bronchial washings were sent for culture and GeneXpert assay for Mycobacterium Tuberculosis. Data analysis was done using SPSS 20 version.

Results: From one hundred and seventy patients the age was observed as 16-60 years. AFB was detected by GeneXpert assay in 45.3% patients. AFB was detected by culture report in 47.6% patients. The sensitivity of GeneXpert was observed as 87.65 %, specificity was 93.26 %, and diagnostic accuracy was calculated as 90.59%.

By using chi-square t-test, there was significant association found between GeneXpert and Culture report in both gender in all age groups with any duration of symptoms with p-value = 0.000.

Conclusion: The GeneXpert assay was highly effective for detecting pulmonary tuberculosis in suspected TB patients who do not have sputum production.

Key words: GeneXpert Assay, Culture Report, Bronchial Washing, Pulmonary Tuberculosis

Introduction

uberculosis is caused by Mycobacterium spe-L cies. The most common species is Mycobacterium Tuberculosis which usually infects humans in most cases. But other species can also infect humans like Mycobacterium bovis, Mycobacterium africanum, Mycobacterium microti and Mycobacterium canettii.¹ Tuberculosis is an air born infection and infectious droplets remain in environment when infected person speaks, sneezes and coughs.¹ All individuals who are exposed do not get infection. Whether the infection will spread to other individual

1.	Waseem A. Khan	2.	Nayyar Manzoor					
3.	Asad Javaid	4.	M. Saqib Musharaf					
5.	Nausheen Sohail	6.	Nighat Majeed					
1,2	Department of Medicine, Amna In	ayat						
3.	Gulab Devi Hospital Lahore	2						
4.	4. Department of Medicine, Gulab Devi Hospital Lahore							
5.	Department of Medicine, Amna Inc	ivat	1					
6.	Department of Medicine, Services	Hos	pital Lahore					
Co	rrespondence:							
Dr.	Waseem A. Khan. Department of M	Iedic	cine. Amna Inavat					
E-1	nail: drwaseem77@gmail.com							
	00							
	Submission Date:	12-	11-2020					
	1st Revision Date:	14-	11-2020					
	Acceptance Date:	25-	11-2020					

Acceptance Date:

duration of exposure and infectiveness of the source.¹ It is the immunity of the individual which contain the infection and does not allow its spread. In about 5% individual infection is not controlled and individual develops active TB within 1-2 years.² This is called primary tuberculosis. In other 5% individuals the immune system contain infection to localized site but mycobacterium remains in dormant stage and reactivate later on when the immunity of individual becomes weak⁽²⁾. This category is named as postprimary or reactivation of tuberculosis. The remaining 90% of the individuals will harbor mycobacterium in tissue but will be asymptomatic and this category is called as latent tuberculosis. Tuberculosis infects one third of world population³ and causes significant morbidity and mortality. It is major public health problem because it spreads through droplet infection.³ Millions of people get infected and a million people die each year because of this infectious disease.¹ Pakistan belongs to the countries which has highest burden of the disease in the world. Pakistan is 4th among the twelve countries with high number of missing TB cases.⁶ Major diagnostic procedures

depend on certain factors like immunity of individual,

employed for diagnosing pulmonary tuberculosis are sputum smear, culture for detection of Acid-Fast bacilli (AFB) and chest radiography. In those patients who are highly suspected of tuberculosis based on history and radiology it is pertinent to demonstrate presence of AFB through sputum smear to avoid unnecessary empiric therapy.

Active disease may manifest with minimal symptoms initially but as the disease progresses over months then overt symptoms develop.⁴ Active tuberculosis manifests with symptoms of fever, productive cough, night sweats weight loss and fatigue. Sometimes patient may present with hemoptysis with typical symptoms.⁴ The clinician should have high index of suspicion since the disease has insidious onset and nonspecific symptoms.

Extrapulmonary tuberculosis results from hematogenous spreads to different organs of body like pleura, lymph nodes and larynx. Most extrapulmonary disease is not contagious, but laryngeal tuberculosis is exception. Chest x-ray may be normal in cases of extrapulmonary TB. Miliary tuberculosis results from hematogenous route and can cause numerous tiny lesions throughout the lung field measuring 1-3mm and it can disseminate to other organs of body like central nervous system, eye and liver.

In postprimary TB patient, upper zones are involved usually.^{5,7} The radiological features of postprimary TB includes patchy consolidation, dense consolidation and cavitation involving apical and posterior segments of upper lobes and superior segments of lower lobes.⁵ In 5% of postprimary TB patients only lung bases are involved.² Cavitation is common finding seen in 20%-45% cases. CT scan chest may be used when chest x-ray is not diagnostic but CT is not routinely required for diagnosing TB.⁸

Not all patients expectorate adequate sputum and it's minimal in amount some time that cannot be collected. In those cases where there is radiological evidence of lesion but no sputum production making diagnosis is a challenge. Patients who have smear negative tuberculosis they are less infectious than sputum smear positive patients.^{9,10} However patients who are smear negative but culture positive tuberculosis they can spread mycobacterium tuberculosis.^{11,12} In those cases where there is scanty sputum or

no sputum production bronchoscopy can be helpful in making diagnosis. Bronchial washings can be taken and GeneXpert and culture can be done on sample. In previous study GeneXpert was done on bronchial washings and showed encouraging results. Out of 120 patients, 83(69.2%) patients were detected having active pulmonary tuberculosis on bronchial washings in sputum scarce TB patients.¹³

Methods

This crossectional study was conducted in the department of pulmonology of Jinnah Hospital lahore. Suspected pulmonary tuberculosis patient of either sex having ages 16 to 60 years with fever and cough for more than 6 months but no sputum production were enrolled after approval from ethical committee of research at Jinnah Hospital. Patients who were diagnosed of pulmonary TB and received anti-tuberculosis medication for 2 weeks and those patients who fall in the definition of category-2 patients were excluded. Informed consent was taken and data was collected through questionnaire. Patients had bronchoscopy procedure according to the protocol. Their bronchial washings were sent for culture for Mycobacterium Tuberculosis, and GeneXpert assay for presence of AFB immediately to pathology laboratory of Allama Iqbal Medical College. Results of both GeneXpert assay and culture were collected. Pulmonary tuberculosis was diagnosed by both GeneXpert and positive culture for Mycobacterium Tuberculosis. Sensitivity, specificity and diagnostic accuracy of GeneXpert assay was calculated using culture as gold standard. Data analysis was done by using SPSS version 20.

Results

From 170 patients the minimum age was observed as 16 years and maximum age was 60 years with Mean \pm SD as 39.08 \pm 13.74 years. The minimum duration of symptoms was observed as 6 months and maximum duration of symptoms was 18 months with Mean \pm SD as 11.32 \pm 3.24 months. AFB was detected by GeneXpert assay in 77 (45.3%) and by culture report in 81 (47.6%) patients. The sen-sitivity of GeneXpert was observed as 87.65 %, speci-ficity was 93.26 %, positive predicted value was 92.21%, negative predicted value was 89.25% and diagnostic accuracy was calculated as 90.59%. By using chi-square t-test, there was significant asso-ciation found between GeneXpert and Culture report in less than 40 years of

age group with p-value = 0.000. In more than 40 years of age group, there was significant association found between GeneXpert and Culture report with p-value = 0.000. There was signi-ficant association found between GeneXpert and Culture report in male with p-value=0.000. In female, there was significant association found between GeneXpert and Culture report with p-value = 0.000. There was significant association found between GeneXpert and Culture report in less than one year duration of symptoms

Table 1: Diagr	ostic Accuracy o	of GeneXpert	on Broncho-
scopy Washing	S		

ConoVnort	Cultu	Total	
Genezpert	AFB Detected	AFB not Detected	Total
AFB detected	TP=71	FP=6	77
AFB not detected	FN=10	TN=83	93
Total	81	89	170

Table 2: Stratification with respect to Age (n = 170)

		Culture		P-	
Age	GeneXpert	AFB	AFB not	Total	value
		Detected	Detected		
< 40	AFB detected	27	3	30	0.000
year	AFB not detected	10	35	45	
	Total	37	38	75	
<u>></u> 40	AFB detected	44	3	47	0.000
year	AFB not detected	0	48	48	
	Total	44	51	95	

Table 3: 3 Stratification with respect to Duration of Symptoms (n = 170)

Duration		Culture	I	р	
of	GeneXpert	AFB	AFB not	Fota	r- value
Symptoms		Detected	Detected Detected		
<1 year	AFB detected	34	3	37	0.000
	AFB not detected	5	41	46	
	Total	39	44	83	
<u>></u> 1 year	AFB detected	37	3	40	0.000
	AFB not detected	5	42	47	
	Total	42	45	87	

group with p-value = 0.000. In more than one year duration of symptoms group, there was significant association found between GeneXpert and Culture report with p-value = 0.000.

Discussion

The objective of this research is to determine the diagnostic efficacy of GeneXpert assay of bronchial

washing in detecting pulmonary tuberculosis in suspected patients with no sputum production. In our study there was significant association found between GeneXpert and Culture report in both gender in all age groups with any duration of symptoms with p-value = 0.000.

Mostly pulmonary tuberculosis is diagnosed on clinical grounds and with radiology in patients when there is typical history. The diagnostic accuracy of different modalites have been studied before like clinical assessment, radiology and sputum microscopy. In previous study, out of 364 TB patients, 35.1% were diagnosed on clinical grounds and radiology, 20.8% on radiological, and 17.58% on the basis of clinical evaluation. Sputum smear examination for Mycobacterium tuberculosis was done in 85.6% patients, of these 31.9% were positive⁽¹⁴⁾.

Previous studies have evaluated the efficacy of GeneXpert assay on pulmonary and extrapulmonary samples and results are very encouraging. For pulmonary samples the sensitivity and specificity were 90.6 % and 94.3%. For extrapulmonary samples they were 100% and 91.6%. For sputum smear negative samples the sensitivity, specificity, positive predictive value and negative predictive values were 86.3%, 93%, 79%, and 95.6%⁽¹⁵⁾. Our study has comparable results with previous study. In our study The sensitivity of GeneXpert was observed as 87.65%, specificity was 93.26 %, positive predicted value was 92.21%, negative predicted value was 89.25%.

In cases where there is no sputum production but high suspicion of tuberculosis, sputum induction and bronchoscopy can be done to collect sample. Bronchoscopy is accepted modality for diagnosis when saline induction is not helpful⁽¹⁶⁾. In one study where sputum was not produced but x-ray was showing active disease, flexible fiberoptic bronchoscope was used in making diagnosis. In that study, two hundred and seventy five suspected TB patients based on chest radiology, fiberoptic bronchoscopy was done and bronchial brushings and transbronchial biopsy samples collected. 89(32.4%) were diagnosed as active pulmonary TB. In 60(67.4%) of these patients the diagnosis was made by bronchoscopy⁽¹⁷⁾. There are very few studies who have used bronchial washings and GeneXpert and using culture as gold standard in sputum scarce TB patients. In previous local study bronchoscopy was done to collect bronchial washing sample and GeneXpert done⁽¹³⁾. Out of 120 patients eighty three patients were diagnosed as active pulmonary TB by this approach. Our study is unique in a way that it not only determines the role of GeneXpert on bronchial washing sample but also determine the efficacy of culture as well on same patient.

Conclusion

The GeneXpert assay has high diagnostic accuracy for detecting pulmonary TB in suspected patients where x-ray is suggestive of active disease but there is no sputum production.

Author's Contribution

KAW: Conceived Idea, study draft JA, MN: Data Collection MSM: Statistical analysis, interpretation SN: Crtically reviewed manuscript MN: Final review

References

- cdc.gov [internet]. Centers for disease control and prevention, Inc; Self-study modules on tuberculosis. Updated May 11, 2016; Accessed June 14, 2016. Available from: http:// www.cdc.gov/ tb/ education/ ssmodules/.
- 2. Leung AN. Pulmonary tuberculosis: the essentials. Radiology. 1999 Feb;210(2):307-22.
- Loennroth K, Raviglione M. Global epidemiology of tuberculosis: prospects for control. InSeminars in respiratory and critical care Medicine 2008 Oct (Vol. 29, No.05, pp.481-491).©Thieme Medical Publishers.
- Arango L, Brewin AW, Murray JF. The spectrum of tuberculosis as currently seen in a metropolitan hospital. American Review of Respiratory Disease. 1973 Oct;108(4):805-12.
- 5. Curvo-Semedo L, Teixeira L, Caseiro-Alves F. Tuberculosis of the chest. European journal of radio-logy. 2005 Aug 1;55(2):158-72.
- Baig S, Qayyum S, Saifullah N, Ahmed N. Detection of TB by smear microscopy and GeneXpert MTB/ RIF assay in non expectorating pulmonary TB suspects and pleural TB in high prevalent low income setting. European Respiratory Journal. 2014 Sep 1; 44(Suppl 58).
- 7. Goodwin RA, Des Prez RM. Apical localization of pulmonary tuberculosis, chronic pulmonary histo-plasmosis, and progressive massive fibrosis of the

lung. Chest. 1983 May 1;83(5):801-5.

- Lee SW, Jang YS, Park CM, Kang HY, Koh WJ, Yim JJ, Jeon K. The role of chest CT scanning in TB outbreak investigation. Chest. 2010 May 1;137(5): 1057-64.
- Tostmann A, Kik SV, Kalisvaart NA, Sebek MM, Verver S, Boeree MJ, van Soolingen D. Tuberculosis transmission by patients with smear-negative pulmonary tuberculosis in a large cohort in the Netherlands. Clinical Infectious Diseases. 2008 Nov 1;47(9):1135 - 42.
- Tostmann A, Kik SV, Kalisvaart NA, Sebek MM, Verver S, Boeree MJ, van Soolingen D. Tuberculosis transmission by patients with smear-negative pulmonary tuberculosis in a large cohort in the Netherlands. Clinical Infectious Diseases. 2008 Nov 1;47(9): 1135 -42.
- Behr MA, Warren SA, Salamon H, Hopewell PC, De Leon AP, Daley CL, Small PM. Transmission of Mycobacterium tuberculosis from patients smearnegative for acid-fast bacilli. The Lancet. 1999 Feb 6; 353(9151):444-9.
- Hernandez-Garduno E, Cook V, Kunimoto D, Elwood RK, Black WA, FitzGerald JM. Transmission of tuberculosis from smear negative patients: a molecular epidemiology study. Thorax. 2004 Apr 1; 59(4): 286-90.
- 13. Zuberi FF, Hussain S, Hameed S, Zuberi BF. Role of Bronchial Washing Gene Xpert in Sputum-Scarce Cases of Suspected Pulmonary Tuberculosis. Pakistan Journal of Medical Sciences. 2019 Jan;35(1):211.
- Khurram M. Pulmonary tuberculosis diagnosis practices. Journal of Rawalpindi Medical College. 2014 Jun 30;18(1):13-5.
- 15. Ioannidis P, Papaventsis D, Karabela S, Nikolaou S, Panagi M, Raftopoulou E, Konstantinidou E, Marinou I, Kanavaki S. Cepheid GeneXpert MTB/RIF assay for Mycobacterium tuberculosis detection and rifampin resistance identification in patients with substantial clinical indications of tuberculosis and smear-negative microscopy results. Journal of clinical microbiology. 2011 Aug 1;49(8):3068-70.
- Beatrice M, Nedelcu R, Ulmeanu R, Ciolan G, Tanasescu M, Popescu M, Marica C. Diagnostic role of fiberoptic bronchoscopy in suspected smear negative pulmonary tuberculosis.
- Willcox PA, Benatar SR, Potgieter PD. Use of the flexible fibreoptic bronchoscope in diagnosis of sputum-negative pulmonary tuberculosis. Thorax. 1982Aug 1;37(8):598-601.

Comparing the Efficacy of Hyaluronic Acid and Platelet Rich Plasma Treatment by using Visual analogue Scale in the Patients of Knee Osteoarthritis

Muhammad Ali,¹ M. Mudassar Azam,² Maimoona Zaheer,³ Fahad Wali Shah Khagha,⁴ Amjad Waseem Shah,⁵ Faisal Masood⁶

Abstract

Objective: To compare the efficacy of Hyaluronic acid (HA) and Platelet rich plasma (PRP) for treatment of Knee osteoarthritis.

Methods: A randomized controlled trial done at department of Orthopedics Unit-I, Mayo Hospital Lahore. 130 cases fulfilling inclusion criteria were enrolled. All patients were divided into two groups. In group-A, cases were treated with HA (1% sodium Hyaluronate mixed in a phosphate buffered saline). In group-B, cases were treated with 10ml of PRP extracted from 100ml of their blood. Before and after procedure pain and efficacy was recorded.

Results: The frequency of pain reduction \ge 50% was statistically higher in PRP group as compared to HA group, p-value < 0.05.

Conclusion: Through the findings of this study we conclude that the efficacy of efficacy of PRP was high than HA for treatment of Knee osteoarthritis.

Key Words: Osteoarthritis, platelet-rich plasma, efficacy, hyaluronic acid.

Introduction

rthritis is of the most prevalent chronic conditions in cases with advanced age. The most commonest joint to be effected is the knee joint with a prevalence up to 41%, compared to the prevalence of 30% in hands and 19% in hips.¹ Kellgren-Lawrence (K/L) along with x-rays is utilized to diagnose and grade the severity of disease. Its overall score ranges from 0–4 with confirmed diagnosis of knee osteoarthritis at Grade 2.^{2,3} There is an evidence of repairing cartilage by stimulation method and there are many other methods to reduce cartilage damage that is by inhibiting catabolic enzymes or

1. Muhammad Ali

- Demonstrator, Deptt. Of Physiology, KEMU, Lahore 4. Fahad Wali Shah Khagha
- Medical Officer, Deptl. Of Orthopaedic Surgery, KEMU, Lahore 5. Amjad Waseem Shah
- Consultant, Deptt. Of Orthopaedic Surgery, KEMU, Lahore 6. Faisal Masood
- Associate Professor, Deptt. Of Orthopaedic Surgery, KEMU, Lahore

Correspondence:

л.	Iviuna	шша	u An				
	64-A	Eder	ı lane	villas-1	near	LÌ	DA avenue raiwind road Lahore.
	Cell.	No:	0331-	-222141	4	;	E-mail.: alibhidwal7272@gmail.com

Submission Date:	15-10-2020
1st Revision Date:	15-11-2020
Acceptance Date:	25-11-2020

supressing genes, use of growth factors or by artificial replacement of cartilage.⁴ PRP injections is a platelet concentration above base line have a great acceptance in orthopaedics.^{5,6,7}

According to a recent systematic review, short and long duration follow ups have shown that the treatment guidelines of injecting PRP inside the knee synovial cavity, is found to be more efficacious then only injecting injections of saline Hyaluronic acid, placebos, ozone and steroids.^{8,9,10} Many physician do agree that by incorporating HA (viscosupplementation) into synovial cavity, it magically restore the physiological viscoelastic qualities of pathological synovial fluid.^{11,12} Platelet contains growth factors: platelet-derived growth factors (a, b), transforming growth factor (TGF)- β , vascular endothelial growth factor, epidermal growth factor, fibroblast growth factor.^{5,12}

A team of scientist have found that the severity of visual analogue score of 15 subjects (55.5%) falls to the half of their previous score at their third month of treatment with PRP and 8 patients who were treated with HA, also showed a significant decrease in VAS with p-value = 0.227.⁴

The rationale of this study is to compare HA and PRP

Medical Officer, Deptt. Of Orthopaedic Surgery, KEMU, Lahore 2. M. Mudassar Azam

Medical Officer, Deptt. Of basic health unit, KEMU, Lahore 3. Maimoona Zaheer

for treatment of knee osteoarthritis in our local patients. We found no local study and global study reported high rate of reduction (<50%) in pain from baseline but on comparing with HA the difference was insignificant. On the basis of findings of this study we want to see its role in our local population so that in future PRP can be utilized to gain quick recovery of the cases if found to be more effective.

Data Collection Procedure

It was a randomized controlled trial comprising 130 patients selected though non-probability consecutive sampling. 65 cases in each group were taken using percentage of < 50% decrease in VAS at 3 months. We used 80% power of study and 95% confidence level. Cases of age 30-80 years of either gender with diagnosis of knee osteoarthritis (duration of symptoms more than 2 weeks) were included. Subjects having Hb <11 mg/dL, history of previous knee surgery (on clinical record), blood disorders like hemophilia, etc, Systemic disorders (diabetes mellitus; BSR >120), Rheumatoid arthritis {on clinical signs and symptoms and digital -rays (stage III & IV)}, history of severe cardiovascular diseases, infections, history of immunosuppressive drugs, patients receiving anticoagulants, use of non-steroidal antiinflammatory drugs in the last 5 days before blood donation, were excluded.

All patients were divided into 2 equal groups. In group-A, cases were treated with HA in which a very clear solution of sterile 1% sodium Hyaluronate in a phosphate buffered saline. In group-B, a total of 100 mL of blood through venous was taken and PRP was extracted in a 10-mL syringe. Patients were called again after the duration of 3 months. Before and after procedure, pain and efficacy was recorded. All related information was recorded on attached proforma.

Data analysis procedure:

All collected data was entered and analysed using SPSS version 22. Categorical data like gender and <50% reduction in pain was presen-ted in form of Frequency (%). Quantitative data (age, duration of pain, pain before and after 4 months) was presented as mean \pm S.D. Chi-square test was applied to compare efficacy of procedure in both groups. P-value ≤ 0.05 was considered as significant.

Results

The mean age of cases in PRP and HA group was 48.26 ± 13.32 and 46.71 ± 11.09 years respectively, there were 84(64.6%) male and 46(35.4%) female cases in whole sample, moreover there were 53(81.5 %) male and 12(18.5%) female in PRP group while in HA group there were 31(47.7%) male and 34(52.3%)female cases respectively. The mean duration of disease in PRP group was 10.74 ± 4.59 weeks and in HA group was 10.75 ± 4.93 weeks. In PRP group \geq 50% reduction in pain was seen in 38(58.5%) cases and < 50% reduction seen in 27(41.5%) cases whereas in other group \geq 50% reduction seen in 19(29.2%) cases and < 50% in 46(70.8%) cases. The frequency of pain reduction \geq 50% was statistically higher in PRP group as compared to HA group, p-value < 0.05. Results of all demographic features (age, gender and obesity) showed that efficacy of PRP was higher than HA with p-value < 0.05.

Table 1: Descriptive Statistics of pain at baseline and at3rd months after treatment in both groups.

	Study groups	Mean	S.D	Min.	Max.
Pain before	PRP (n=65)	5.97	1.86	4	10
	HA (n=65)	7.57	2.07	4	10
	Total (n=130)	6.77	2.12	4	10
Pain after 3	PRP (n=65)	3.32	1.52	2	6
months	HA (n=65)	4.71	1.75	2	7
	Total (n=130)	4.02	1.77	2	7

Table 2: : Comparison of efficacy of treatments in bothgroups with respect to duration (weeks) and VAS.

			Effi-	Study (Groups	Chi-	p-
			cacy	PRP	HA	square	value
I	(< 12	Yes	22(59.5%)	10(29.4%)	6.462	0.011
tioı	eks	weeks	No	15(40.5%)	24(70.6%)		
ura	we	12 weeks	Yes	16(57.1%)	9(29.0%)		
ā		or more	No	12(42.9%)	22(71.0%)	4.761	0.029
		4-6	Yes	28(66.7%)	15(57.7%)	0.556	0.456
.u	ore		No	14(33.3%)	11(42.3%)		
Pa	bef		Yes	10(43.5%)	4(10.3%)		
	_	7-10	No	13(56.5%)	35(89.7%)	9.134	0.003

Discussion

Any joint of the body is susceptible to OA but the most common joints on the hit list of this disease are Knee, hip, spine, hand and foot. In 2011, the prevalence of osteoarthritis was 28% n Pakistani population.¹³ A study complied few studies on (739 patients, 817 knees, 39% males, mean age of 59.9 years, with 38 weeks average follow-up) were

analyzed.¹⁴ We in current study found that 84(64.6%) male and 46 (35.4%). Kohsiban and his fellow colleague conducted a study and found out that all those subjects who were treated with PRP showed more pain improvement that the subject who were injected with HA.¹⁵ Meheux and his fellows did a systemic review in year 2015 and con-cluded that management of knee OA disease with PRP injection is far better than HA. Our research study had the results in line with the results of above mentioned worldwide studies.¹⁴ Mendia et al. did a research study on patients of knee OA and findings favoured the treatment with PRP rather than with any placebo or steroids. Similar results were drawn out from a systemic review of six-teen studies done by Chang et al.^{16,17} Kon E. & Bennell conducted the study on vounger patients effected with cartilage lesions and extracted the same results from their studies as mentioned above.18,19

However, Filardo and his fellow colleagues used PRP and HA as treatment regime and found out that both are of equal importance in reducing OA symptom and severity with a significant p-value of <0.0005 and both drugs have shown similar trend for all clinical scores used.²⁰

A study reported 50% decrease in VAS at 3 months in 15 (55.5%) treated with PRP and 8(30.7%) patients treated with HA with insignificant difference, p-value = 0.227.4 We in current study also found that in PRP group there were 38(58.5%) cases in which $\ge 50\%$ reduction in pain was seen while in 27(41.5%) cases the reduction of pain was < 50%.

Conclusion

Through the findings of this study we conclude that the efficacy of efficacy of PRP was high than HA for treatment of Knee osteoarthritis. In future PRP can be utilized to reduce the symptom, pain and to improve better functions of knee.

Authors Contribution

AM: Concept, Data Analysis
AMM: Discussion Writing
ZM: Initial Drafting
SF, SA: Data Collection
MF: References writing and final proof reading

References

1. Wood AM, Brock TM, Heil K, Holmes R, Weusten A.

A review on the management of hip and knee osteoarthritis. Int j chron disease 2013; 2013(1):1-10.

- 2. Zhang Y, Jordan JM. Epidemiology of Osteoarthritis. Clinic Geriatric Med 2010;26(3):355-69.
- 3. Hoorntje A, Witjes S, Koenraadt KL, Aarts R, de Weert T, van Geenen RC. More severe preoperative Kellgren–Lawrence grades of knee osteoarthritis were partially associated with better postoperative patient-reported outcomes in TKA patients. J knee surg. 2019 Mar; 32(03):211-7.
- 4. Montañez-Heredia E, Irízar S, Huertas PJ, Otero E, del Valle M, Prat I, et al. Intra-articular injections of platelet-rich plasma versus hyaluronic acid in the treatment of osteoarthritic knee pain: a randomized clinical trial in the context of the Spanish National Health Care System. Int J Molecul Sci 2016; 17(7): 1064-76.
- 5. Seleem N, Elshereef E, Elhosary A, Salama N. Intraarticular injections of platelet-rich plasma combined with hyaluronic acid versus hyaluronic acid alone in treatment of knee osteoarthritis. Europ J Pharm Med Res 2017;4(4):608-15.
- 6. Mlynarek RA, Kuhn AW, Bedi A. Platelet-rich plasma (PRP) in orthopedic sports medicine. Am J Orthop. 2016 May; 45(5):290-326.
- Hussain N, Johal H, Bhandari M. An evidence-based evaluation on the use of platelet rich plasma in orthopedics–a review of the literature. Sicot-j. 2017;3 (57).1-7.
- Duymus TM, Mutlu S, Dernek B, Komur B, Aydogmus S, Kesiktas FN. Choice of intraarticular injection in treatment of knee osteoarthritis: platelet-rich plasma, hyaluronic acid or ozone options. Knee Surg, Sports Traumatol, Arthroscop 2016:doi: 10.1007/ s00167-016-4110-5.
- 9. Lopes de Jesus CC, dos Santos FC, de Jesus LM, Monteiro I, Sant'Ana MS, Trevisani VF. Comparison between intra-articular ozone and placebo in the treatment of knee osteoarthritis: A randomized, double-blinded, placebo-controlled study. PloS one. 2017 Jul;12(7):e0179185.
- 10. Smith PA. Intra-articular autologous conditioned plasma injections provide safe and efficacious treatment for knee osteoarthritis: an FDA-sanctioned, randomized, double-blind, placebo-controlled clinical trial. Am j sports med. 2016 Apr; 44(4):884-91.
- 11. Shen L, Yuan T, Chen S, Xie X, Zhang C. The temporal effect of platelet-rich plasma on pain and physical function in the treatment of knee osteoarthritis: systematic review and meta-analysis of randomized controlled trials. J Orthop Surg Res 2017;12(1):16.
- 12. Navani A, Li G, Chrystal J. Platelet Rich Plasma in

Musculoskeletal Pathology: A Necessary Rescue or a Lost Cause? Pain physician 2017;20(3):345-56.

- 13. Iqbal MN, Haidri FR, Motiani B, Mannan A. Frequency of factors associated with knee osteoarthritis. J Pak Med Assoc. 2011 Aug; 61(8):786-2.
- Meheux CJ, McCulloch PC, Lintner DM, Varner KE, Harris JD. Efficacy of Intra-articular Platelet-Rich Plasma Injections in Knee Osteoarthritis: A Systematic Review. Arthroscopy 2016;32(3):495-505.
- 15. Khoshbin A, Leroux T, Wasserstein D, Marks P, Theodoropoulos J, Ogilvie-Harris D, et al. The efficacy of platelet-rich plasma in the treatment of symptomatic knee osteoarthritis: a systematic review with quantitative synthesis. Arthroscopy 2013; 29(12): 2037-48.
- 16. Chang KV, Hung CY, Aliwarga F, Wang TG, Han DS, Chen WS. Comparative effectiveness of platelet-rich plasma injections for treating knee joint cartilage degenerative pathology: a systematic review and meta-analysis. Arch Phys Med Rehabil 2014; 95(3): 562-75.
- 17. Simental-Mendía M, Vílchez-Cavazos JF, Peña-

Martínez VM, Said-Fernández S, Lara-Arias J, Martínez-Rodríguez HG. Leukocyte-poor plateletrich plasma is more effective than the conventional therapy with acetaminophen for the treatment of early knee osteoarthritis. Arch orthop traum su. 2016 Dec; 136(12):1723-32.

- Kon E, Mandelbaum B, Buda R, Filardo G, Delcogliano M, Timoncini A, et al. Platelet-rich plasma intra-articular injection versus hyaluronic acid viscosupplementation as treatments for cartilage pathology: from early degeneration to osteoarthritis. Arthroscopy 2011;27(11):1490-501.
- 19. Bennell KL, Hunter DJ, Paterson KL. Platelet-rich plasma for the management of hip and knee osteoarthritis. Curr rheumatol rep. 2017 May; 19(5): 24.
- 20. Filardo.... Di Martino A, Di Matteo B, Papio T, Tentoni F, Selleri F, Cenacchi A, Kon E, Filardo G. Platelet-rich plasma versus hyaluronic acid injections for the treatment of knee osteoarthritis: results at 5 years of a double-blind, randomized controlled trial. Amj sports med.2019 Feb;47 (2):347-54.

Original Article

Efficacy of Autologous Platelet Rich Plasma in the Treatment of Male Androgenetic Alopecia

Nadia Naeem,¹ Saadiya Siddiqui,² Atif Shehzad,³ Kehkshan Tahir,⁴ Marrium Manzoor⁵

Abstract

Objective: To assess the outcome of autologous platelet rich plasma(PRP) for the treatment of androgenetic alopecia in male patients.

Methods: A total of 61 male patients from Department of Dermatology, Lahore General Hospital Lahore with ages between 18-60 years were included in the study during a period of 6 months. PRP was prepared by double spin method and CaCl2 was used to activate platelets. PRP was injected, with a 30-G needle using Nappage technique. This descriptive case series study was carefully monitored. Protocol included three treatment sessions with an interval of four weeks. Number of hairs, and hair strength was assessed by dermoscopy and hair pull test. SPSS Version-21 was used for data entry and analysis.

Results: The mean age of patients was 42.67±8.63 years. Mean number of hair was 21.50±4.57 per dermatoscopic field, Post treatment number of hair was 78.10±16.24. mean duration of disease was 10.25±3.52 months. Majority of patients were in stage iv 19(31.1%) and in stage ii 16(26.2%). There was significant difference in number of hair before and after treatment.

Conclusion: PRP is an effective method to treat the patients with androgen alopecia.

Key words: Autologus platelet rich plasma, Androgen alopecia.

Introduction

ndrogens have a great effect on scalp and body Lhair. Scalp hair grows without effect of androgens while body hair growth is dependent on androgen presence. Androgens dependent hair fall is termed as androgenetic alopecia also referred as Male pattern hair loss (MPHL).¹ Alopecia is a dermatological disorder which is andro-gen dependent and with genetic predisposition. It generally starts by 20 years of age and effect up to 50 percent of men when they reach by their 50 years of life.² Alopecia involves an ongoing loss and thinning of scalp hair in a specific pattern causing a significant psychological effect on one's mental health and make it difficult for a person to cope up with his selfesteem. The two factors, testosterone metabolite di-

1.	Nadia Naeem	

2 Saadiya Siddiqui

- 3. Atif Shehzad
- 4. Kehkshan Tahir
- Marrium Manzoor
- 1,4. Department of Dermatology, Lahore General Hospital ,Lahore

2. Department of Dermatology, Services Hospital, Lahore 3. Department of Dermatology, Jinnah Hospital, Lahore

- **Correspondence:**

Dr. Nadia Naeem, Department of Dermatology, Lahore General Hospital ,Lahore, Email: dr.nadianaeem@yahoo.com

Submission Date:	16-11-2020
1st Revision Date:	20-11-2020
Acceptance Date:	30-11-2020

hydrotesterone and a receptor named as hair folliclerelated androgen receptor challenging world's dermatologist, as these two are modulating this androgen-dependent disorder, whereas few studies have also found genetic involvement in this pathology.³ Few treatment option available including minoxidil, 5-alpha-reductase inhibitors and hair transplantation but these modalities have many aftereffect including excessive body hair growth, birth defects, decreased libido and prolonged impotence.⁴ The use of PRP methodology in the skin care and aesthetic medicine may prove as a revolutionary step of dermatological treatment in the near future. How-ever, the available published data is low in count to support this evidence.⁵ Injection of PRP is easy, pocket friendly and convenient mode of method for treating this alopecia which is ensuring great patient overall satisfaction with few documented side-effects.6 Rationale of this study is to assess the outcome of autologous PRP for the treatment of androgenetic alopecia in male patients in local population. This will improve the way of doing our practice and will also help to update the local management guidelines.

Objective

To assess the outcome of autologous platelet rich plasma for managing the male patients of androgenetic alopecia.

Methods

This study was conducted at department of dermatology, Lahore general hospital, Lahore. 61 subjects were segregated from outpatient department on the basis of inclusion and exclusion criterion and enrolled in the study after informing them and getting their written consent forms. Name, age and duration of Androgenetic Alopecia of each patient was recorded on properly formulated proforma. Calculation of the sample size was done by consi-dering 95% confidence level, 12% margin of error and the estimated percentage of hair pulled out reduc-tion as 65% on hair pull test⁷. Study Design was Descriptive case series. Duration was 6 months (16-08-2017 to 17-02-2018) and non probability conse-cutive sampling Technique was used.

Inclusion criteria listed as patients of male gender between ages 18-60 years with mild to moderate androgenetic alopecia with Hmilton-Norwood score 1-5. Exclusion criteria as laid as; any patient not ensuring for follow check-ups, on the topical treatment (minoxidil, prostaglandin analogues, retinoids, and corticosteroid) or systemic treatments for Androgenetic Alopecia (such as finasteride, dutasteride, and antiandrogens) since last two months, patients with supressed immunity (malignancy, chemotherapy, steroid therapy), other dermatological disorders involving hair and skin of head, autoimmune disorders, hematologic disorders, platelet dysfunction syndrome and subjects under anticoagulation therapy (on medical record), active infection involving scalp and receiving drugs causing hair loss (retinoids, antidepressants, oral contraceptives, anticoagulants, lipid lowering drugs, B-blockers, ACE inhibitors) were excluded from study. PRP was carefully prepared by method of double spin and CaCl, poured to mixture in order to stimulate platelets. Affected area of scalp was sterilized with pyodine solution and anaesthetic agent was applied to the specified area which was going to be treated. PRP ($0.5-01 \text{ ml/cm}^2$) was shifted to a one ml sterilized syringe with a thirty gauge needle and administered into the selected areas of the scalp using Nappage technique in a depth of 1.5-2.5mm of skin. Our proto-col included 3 treatment sittings after every 4 weeks. At each visit the number of hair monitored by derma-toscope (3Gen DermLite) using maximum magnifi-cation(10x) as standard and by

gross photographs. Hair number in one dermatoscopic field using maxi-mum magnification was counted at each visit. Stren-gth of hair was assessed using hair pull test with more than 10% of hairs removed in a plucked bunch of hair considered positive. SPSS Version-21 was used to analyse data. The quan-titative variables i.e. age, number of hair and duration of androgenetic alopecia was presented as Mean and Standard deviation. Data was stratified for age, dura-tion of Androgenetic Alopecia and stage of alopecia to address the effect modifiers. In order to check the study significance, post stratification Independent t-Test was applied taking P-value ≤ 0.05 as significant.

Results

The mean age of patients was 42.67±8.63 years. Mean number of hair before treatment was 21.50± 4.57 per dermatoscopic field at maximum magnification and it was 78.10±16.24 post treatment (P-value <0.05) (Table 1). Mean duration of disease was 10.01 \pm 3.46 months. Majority of patients were in stage ii, iii, and stage iv i.e. 16(26.2%) 15(24.6%) and 19(31.1 %) respectively. In stage i and v there were 1(1.6%)and 10(16.4%) patients respectively (Graph#1). Post treatment Hair pull test was negative in majority of the cases 48(78.7%) and mean hair pull score was significantly different pre (90.57) and post treatment (78.45) with p-value < 0.05 (Table#1). When data was stratified for the age it was noted that 19(76%)patients were in the age groups of 18-40 years and 29(80.6%) in 41-60 years age groups was having negative hair pull test after treatment. There was no significant impact of the duration of the disease for the negative hair pull test and stages of androgen alopecia (Table2). Figure#1 shows pre and post treatment dermatoscopic and gross photographs of few patients.

Tabl	e1: Descrip	tive statistics	of	Mean	number	of k	hair
per c	lermatoscop	ic field(DF),	Hai	r Pull	Test sta	tus d	and
Mear	n Hair Pull S	core					

	Number Of Hairs/DF	Hair Pull Test		
Pre Treatment	Mean	Freque	ency(%)	Mean Score (sd)
		Positive	Negative	
	21.50±4.57	38(62%)	23(38%)	90.57(6.11)
Post Treatment	78.10±16.2	13(21%)	48(78%)	78.45(5.32)
	P.V	alue= 0.00/	1	

Table 2: Stratification of the Hair Pull Test with Respect

 to different Baselines Parameters

		Hair Pull Test		P-
		Positive	Negative	value
Age	18-40 year	6(24%)	19(76%)	0.75
	41-60 year	7(19.4%)	29(80.6%)	
Duration of	1-6 Month	1(8.3%)	11(91.7%)	0.43
Disease	>6 month	12(24.5%)	37(75.5%)	
Group of Androgen	I-iii	7(21.9%)	25(78.1%)	0.98
Alopecia	> iii	6(20.7%)	23(79.3%)	



Graph#1: Presentation of the Stages of the Androgen Alopecia in the Study Subjects



Figure 1# Dermatoscopic and Gross photoghraphs of study population

Discussion

Platelet-rich plasma (PRP) is considered as a novelty in the field of biotechnology. It is a combination of cell-based therapy and tissue engineering. This therapy outlines an autologous preparation of plasma with distilled platelets. This mixture of platelet has a magical power to regenerate and repair the damaged body sites as it contain numerous factors of growth and cytokines. ⁸ Many medical specialities are getting benefits from this new technique including periodontal therapy, maxillofacial surgery,



orthopedics and sports medi-cine. For few recent years, dermatologist are laying their hands on this new modularity, particularly in relieving acne scars, fat grafting, wound healing and hair regrowth.⁹ Researches has explored many beneficial outcomes of PRP in adipose precursor cell proliferation, wound healing, differentiation of cell and forming new blood vessels. A normal blood sample contains a proportion of around 93% red blood cells, 6% platelets and 1% white blood cells. However, what scientist do while preparing PRP, the reverse this proportion i.e. a 94% concentration of platelets and a 5% concentration of RBCs by centrifugation and it's the principal for making this incredible mixture. The exceptional high concentration of useful growth factors and cytokines in PRP basically make this mixture the most suitable selection for facilitating tissue rejuvenation and healing. The concentration of platelets with tissue reparative efficacy is found to be nearly 1 million platelets/ μ l, which is ~5 times the normal concentration of plate-lets.¹⁰ Losing a body part, of any proportion, does have a negative impact on one's mind but especially losing hair means losing a chunk of your integrated perso-nality and it does have a great impact on one's psy-chological health. Unfortunate is that, this androgen dependent hair loss have very few treatment option including topical minoxidil and oral fenasteride (appoved by FDA) having many side effects,¹¹ making it more challenging for dermatologists to treat it.

PRP has already succeeded in drawing attention of many physicians and surgeons all around the world such as in plastic surgery, orthopaedic surgery and cardiac surgery because of its potential use in skin rejuvenating effects, rapid healing, reduced infection rate and decreased chance of hypertrophic keloids and scars.^(12,13)

Certain growth factors are found to activate the proliferative phase and trans-differentiation of hair and stem cells and produce new follicular units. Papilla cells get proliferated under the influence of basic fibroblast growth factor (bFGF) in vitro and thereby

plays a key role in elongating hair shaft.¹⁴Our research work has reported that after performing three sessions of PRP the hair pull test becomes negative. This outcome is similar to the outcome of a study done by Bestiet al.¹⁵ Who also have observed improvement in hair volume and coverage but according to our study, only mode-rate improvement in hair volume and coverage was observed by using dermatoscope to monitor it. In the previous studies, One of the studies show that baseline mean hair count 89.6±20.9 and at 3 months mean hair count was 123.2 ± 33.7 .⁽¹⁶⁾ We have a little variation in the results of this study as compared to the previous study due to generalizability of the study population. A specific population which was studied previously had a pattern of alopecia while in our study it was advantage that we have to deal with the general population. Another study done by V.cervellietal showed baseline mean hair count 103.6±30.7 and at end of 3 months a mean increase was $121.6\pm34.1^{(7)}$. One study showed 100% positive hair pull test before treatment and pull test was negative in 81.81% at end of treatment and There is a marked increase of usual number of 71 hair follicles to 93 hair follicle units.^{2,6} As sample size is an important factor for the validity of the results so the sample size in this study was high as compared to the previous studies.^{6,7,16} Previously most of the studies were conducted on a sample size of less than 30 cases but in our study the sample size was 61 cases that is the advantage of this study. These findings of our are further supported by the results of a case-control study which states that there's a notable increase in hair number per cm² after treating subjects with PRP injection as compared to their controls (mean difference [MD] 14.38, 95% confidence interval [CI] 6.38–22.38, P<0.001). Likewise, a crucial growth of hair thickness cross section per $10-4 \text{ mm}^2$ (MD 0.22, 95% CI 0.07–0.38, P = 0.005) added another plus point to PRP treated group. However study concluded that there isn't significant positive effect of PRP injection on under-study subjects, in terms of getting benefits in increase hair number (MD 18.79%, 95% CI = 8.50 - 46.08, P = 0.18), neither with hair thickness (MD 32.63%, 95% CI - 16.23-81.48, P=0.19) which favours the results of current study.⁽¹⁷⁾ In previous study lesser time was given and a booster dose was administered at the last injection which has led to biasness and changed results. But in our study almost same concentration of the plasma is administered so

that actual results could be obtained. There's a published study who reported that their subjects have shown good results in term of increased hair density at six weeks (154.80 ± 34.39 hairs per cm²), at three months (170.70 ± 37.81 hairs per cm²) and at six months (156.23 ± 37.75 hairs per cm²), we did not have so long follow up, but the results were similar.¹⁸ As it was a meta-analysis so it further strengthens the results of our study. Hence, on the basis of this study the PRP treatment could be a method of the choice in androgenic alopecia.

At present, we scientist have very limited published data regarding PRP's probable outcomes on hair growth. This study has added to that limited data. But still it should be conducted on a larger scale with involvement of the multiple hospitals/institutions. Moreover, in this study effects of the environment and hygienic conditions are not evaluated so further studies are needed.

Conclusion

Our study hereby concludes that treating the patients of androgenic alopecia with PRP injectable comes out to be an effortless, pocket-friendly and practicable treatment modality for hair loss and it appear to be a novel valuable adjuvant treatment option for alopecia. With adequate published data as evidence for its effectiveness, this treatment option is still rooting itself in medical sciences. Clinical trials are fewer but due to its easy going approach and availability, it's an outstanding treatment option for worldwide dermatologists.

Authors Contribution

- NN: Research, Statistics, compliation of paper, practical work
- SS: Supervisor, compliation of paper
- SA: Supervisor, arrangement of all gadgets, selection of topic
- TK: Supervisory Role

References

- 1. Kaufman KD. Androgens and alopecia. Mol Cell Endocrinol. 2002 Des 30;198(1-2):89-95.
- Singhal P, Agarwal S, Dhot PS, Sayal SK. Efficacy of platelet-rich plasma in treatment of androgenic alopecia. Asian J Transfus Sci. 2015 Jul-Dec;9(2): 159-62.
- 3. Rallis E, Falidas E, Villias C. Amyopathic dermatomyositis-associated bilateral elbow ulcers success-

fully treated with autologous platelet-rich plasma. Int J Dermatol. 2014 Jan;53(1):e50-e2.

- 4. Kang BK, Lee JH, Shin MK, Kim NI. Infraorbital rejuvenation using PRP (platelet-rich plasma): A prospective, randomized, split-face trial. J Am AcadDermatol 2013;68:SAB24.
- 5. Arshdeep, Kumaran MS. Platelet-rich plasma in dermatology: Boon or a bane? Indian J Dermatol VenereolLeprol. 2014 Jan-Feb;80(1):5-14.
- Khatu SS, More YE, Gokhale NR, Chavhan DC, Bendsure N. Platelet-rich plasma in androgenic alope-cia: myth or an effective tool. J CutanAesthet-Surg. 2014 Apr;7(2):107-10.
- Cervelli V, Garcovich S, Bielli A, Cervelli G, Curcio B, Scioli M, et al. The effect of autologous activated platelet rich plasma (AA-PRP) injection on pattern hair loss: clinical and histomorphometric evaluation. Biomed Res Int. 2014;2014.
- 8. Marwah M, Godse K, Patil S, Nadkarni N: Is there sufficient research data to use platelet-rich plasma in dermatology? Int J Trichology 2014;6:35-36.
- 9. Dhillon RS, Schwarz EM, Maloney MD: Plateletrich plasma therapy - future or trend? Arthritis Res Ther 2012;14:219.
- 10. Oh DS, Cheon YW, Jeon YR, Lew DH: Activated platelet-rich plasma improves fat graft survival in nude mice: a pilot study. DermatolSurg 2011;37:619-625.
- 11. Olsen EA, Weiner MS, Delong ER, Pinnell SR. Topical minoxidil in male pattern baldness. J Am AcadDermatol. 1985;13:185–92.
- 12. Gardner MJ, Demetrakopolous D, Klepchick PR,

Mooar PA. The efficacy of autologous platelet gel in pain control and blood loss in total knee arthroplasty. An analysis of the haemoglobin, narcotic requirement and range of motion. IntOrthop. 2007; 31: 309–13.

- 13. Glover JL, Weingarten MS, Buchbinder DS, Poucher RL, Deitrick GA, 3rd, Fylling CP. A 4-year outcome based retrospective study of wound healing and limb salvage in patients with chronic wounds. Adv Wound Care. 1997;10:33–8.
- 14. Katsuoka K, Schell H, Wessel B, Hornstein OP. Effects of epidermal growth factor, fibroblast growth factor, minoxidil and hydrocortisone on growth kinetics in human hair bulb papilla cells and root sheath fibroblasts cultured in vitro. Arch Dermatol Res. 1987; 279:247–50.
- Besti EE, Germain E, Kalbermatten DF, Tremp M, Emmenegger V. Platelet-rich plasma injection is effective and safe for the treatment of alopecia. Eur J Plast Surg. 2013;36:407–12
- Gentile P, Garcovich S, Bielli A, Scioli MG, Orlandi A, Cervelli V. The effect of platelet rich plasma in hair regrowth: A randomized placebo controlled trial. Stem Cells Transl Med. 2015 Nov;4(11):1317-1323
- Giordano S, Romeo M, Di Summa P. A meta-analysis on evidence of platelet-rich plasma for androgenetic alopecia. International journal of trichology. 2018 Jan; 10(1):1.
- GkiniMA,KouskoukisAE,Tripsianis G etal. Study of platelet-rich plasma injections in the treatment of androgenetic alopecia through an one-year period. J CutanAesthetSurg 2014;7:213–219.

Comparison Between Tidal Volume and Vital Capacity Breathing Techniques of Preoxygenation in Patients with Ineffective Facemask Seal

Farah Arshad,¹ Hina Nabi,² Fareeda Sohail,³ Anum Anwar⁴

Abstract

Objective: The purpose of this research was to compare the mean hemoglobin oxygen de-saturation time by using tidal volume breathing technique for three minutes and eight vital capacity breathing technique for pre-oxygenation in patients with ineffective face mask seal.

Methods: This study included 60 patients with beard, moustache, large nasal bridge, facial anomalies, nasogastric tube and edentulous patients. They were randomized into 2 groups after achieving documented informed consent. Group-A was preoxygenated with TV breathing technique for three minutes at an oxygen flow of 10 litres per minute. Whereas, Group-B was preoxygenated with eight VC breaths for one minute at an oxygen flow of 10 litres per minute.

Results: The age of the participants varied from 22 years to 65 years with an average of 44.63 ± 10.03 years. There were 29 (48.3%) male and 31 (51.7%) female patients in the research group. Both the groups were comparable in respect of mean age (p=0.839) and gender distribution (p = 0.796). The mean hemoglobin oxygen desaturation time was considerably longer in VC breathing group (6.77±1.10 vs. $3.43\pm.50$ minutes; p=0.000) in contrast to TV breathing group regardless of age and gender of patients.

Conclusion: The mean hemoglobin oxygen desaturation time was substancially longer in vital capacity breathing group $(6.77 \pm 1.10 \text{ vs. } 3.43 \pm .50 \text{ minutes}; p = 0.000)$ in contrast to tidal volume breathing group regardless of patient's age and gender in patients with ineffective face mask seal undergoing elective surgery. **Key Words:** Ineffective Face Mask Seal, Preoxygenation Breathing Techniques, Vital Capacity, Tidal Volume, Mean Hemoglobin Oxygen Desaturation Time

Introduction

Preoxygenation with 100% oxygren is accomplished prior to general anesthesia is induced. The purpose is to enhance oxygen reserves through displacement of nitrogen from functional residual capacity of lungs, thus preventing arterial oxygen desaturation and hypoxemia. Inadequate face mask seal causes a leak that leads to inflow of atmospheric air into the circuit. The frequently performed methods for preoxygenation are inhalation of 100% oxygen at normal tidal volume (TV) for three to five minutes or eight full deep vital capacity (VC) breaths in one

1. Farah Arshad

Hina Nabi
 Anum Anwar

Fareeda Sohail
 Zulgarnain Butt

1,2,4. Anesthesia, Dept. Jinnah Hospital, Lahore

Correspondence:

Dr Farah Arshad, Email: faraharshad77@gmail.com

Submission Date:	05-11-2020
1st Revision Date:	27-11-2020
Acceptance Date:	05-12-2020

minute. The available literature declares VC technique to be preferable to TV technique of preoxygenation in terms of mean hemoglobin oxygen desaturation time. However, not enough evidence is published locally. So TV technique for 3 min will be compared with 8 VC breathing technique for 1 min at an oxygen flow of upto 10 L/min and the measuring parameter for both techniques would be de-saturation time.

Methods

The sample size was approximated as 60 cases by using 95% confidence level, 80% power of test with an expected mean time for haemoglobin oxygen desaturation as 3.73 ± 0.76 minutes in TV group and 5.21 ± 0.96 minutes in VC group11. Non-Probability, Purposive Sampling technique was used for selection of 60 patients belonging to either gender, between 18 to 65 years of age, ASA I or II, with Mallampatti class of I or II, scheduled for elective surgery with ineffective face mask seal in patients with beard, moustaches, facial anomalies, nasogastric tube, large nasal bridge and edentulous patients. But the patients who

^{3.} Anesthesia, Dept. Jinnah Burn and Reconstructive Surgery Centre/ AIMC

^{5.} Anesthesia, Dept. Avecenna, Medical College, Lahore

had cardiac disease, pulmonary disease, obesity, smoking history, pregnancy and who denied written informed consent were not incorporated in this research.

After endorsement from the local ethical committee all 60 participants were randomly catagorized into two groups by using random number table. Patients in group A were advised to breath normally for three minutes and the patients in group B were directed to take 8 deep breaths for 1 minute. All the patients were given anxiolytics with intravenous nalbuphine (0.1 mg/kg) and midazolam (2mg) prior to induction. Monitoring of peripheral oxygen saturation was done by pulse oximetry. After either technique of preoxygenation, induction for general anesthesia was initiated by injecting propofol (2mg/kg) and succinylcholine (1.5mg/kg) intravenously. Oxygenation via face mask was carried on until spontaneous breathing was ceased within 30 seconds after the injection of succinylcholine. The endotracheal tube was placed in trachea under direct vision and then initial end of the ETT was left open to room air. The time taken by hemoglobin oxygen saturation to fall from 100% to 95% was noted and then at this point ETT was attached to ventilator for positive pressure ventilation after the tube position was confirmed.

The entire statistical numbers and figures were recorded and scrutinized by using SPSS version 20.

- Numerical variables i.e age and time of desaturation have been presented by mean \pm SD. Independent sample t-test been used to compare mean time of desaturation between the two groups taking p \leq 0.05 as significant.
- Categorical variables i.e. sex has been presented as frequency and percentage.
- Data has been stratified for age and sex to deal with effect modifiers. Post-stratification independent sample t-test has been used taking $p \le 0.05$ as significant.

Results

The age of the participants varied between 22 to 65 years with an average of 44.63 ± 10.03 years. There were twenty nine (48.3%) male and thirty one (51.7%) female patients in these research groups as demonstrated in Table 1. The two groups were

comparable in respect of mean age (p = 0.839) and sex distribution (p = 0.796), illustrated in Table 2.

The mean hemoglobin oxygen desaturation time was considerably longer in VC breathing group (6.77 \pm 1.10 vs 3.43 \pm 0.50 minutes; p = 0.000) as compared to TV breathing group. This difference was appreciated across all age and sex groups as depicted in Table 3.

Discussion

Inadequate face mask seal is the most frequent reason of not attaining a greatest alveolar oxygen concentration during preoxygenation prior to induction of general anesthesia that leads to inflow of atmospheric air into the circuit and decreases the concentration of

Table 1: Baseline features of Study Population

Features	Participants
	n=60
Age (years)	44.63±10.03
	(22 - 65)
Sex	
• Male	29 (48.3%)
Female	31 (51.7%)

Table 2: Comparison of Baseline Features of Study

 Groups

Features	TVB (n=30)	VCB (n=30)	P value
Age (years)	44.37±10.12	44.90 ± 10.10	0.839
Sex			
• Male	14 (46.7%)	15 (50.0%)	
• Female			0.796
	16 (53.3%)	15 (50.0%)	
T 1 1 4	1		

Independent sample t-test, Chi-square test, p>0.05 TVB: Tidal Volume Breathing VCB: Vital Capacity Breathing

Table 3: Comparison of Mean Hemoglobin OxygenDesaturation Time (minutes) between Study Groups

Features		TVB	VCB	P value
		(n=30)	(n=30)	
Over	all	3.43 ± 0.50	6.77±1.10	0.000*
Age (Groups			
•	22-35 years	3.40 ± 0.55	6.80 ± 0.84	0.000*
•	36-50 years	3.44 ± 0.51	6.76±1.20	0.000*
•	51-65 years	3.43 ± 0.54	6.75±1.17	0.000*
Sex				
•	Male	3.43 ± 0.51	6.73±1.16	0.000*
•	Female	3.44±0.51	6.80±1.08	0.000*

Independent sample t-test

* observed difference were statistically significant TVB: Tidal Volume Breathing

VCB: Vital Capacity Breathing

oxygen present. The frequently performed methods for preoxygenation are inhalation of 100% oxygen at normal tidal volume (TV) for three to five minutes and eight full deep vital capacity (VC) breaths in one minute. The available literature declares VC technique to be preferable to TV technique of preoxygenation in terms of mean hemoglobin oxygen desaturation time. However, not enough evidence was available in locally published research. The aim of this research was to compare the mean time for hemoglobin oxygen desaturation by using tidal volume (TV) breathing technique for three minutes and 8 vital capacity (VC) breathing technique for pre-oxygenation in patients with ineffective face mask seal. A randomized controlled trial was carried out at Department of Anesthesiology and Intensive Care, Sir Ganga Ram Hospital, Lahore, six months after the acceptance of synopsis from 14th October, 2014 to 13th April, 2015. This study included 60 patients belonging to both genders of age between 18 to 65 years scheduled for elective surgery with inadequate face mask seal randomly divided in group A and group B. Group - A was preoxygenated by tidal volume (TV) breathing technique for three minutes at an oxygen flow of 10 litres per minute. However, Group B was preoxygenated with eight vital capacity (VC) breaths for 1 minute with oxygen flow of 10 litres per minute. A documented informed consent was achieved from every participant. The age of the participants varied between 22 to 65 years with an average of 44.63±10.03 years. An equivalent mean age has been stated previously by Rajan et al. in 2015 $(47.90\pm12.17 \text{ years})^{102}$, Kundra et al. in 2013 (40.40 ± 12.40 years)², Ramkumar et al. in 2011 (46.20 \pm $13.20 \text{ years})^5$, Kang et al. in 2010 (42.20 \pm 2.30 years)³, Delay et al. in 2008 $(42.90 \pm 11.60 \text{ years})^8$ and Singh et al. in 2006 (41.40±7.39 years)¹⁰³. However, a much lower mean age of 29±5 years has also been noted by Taha et al. in 20094. There were twenty nine (48.3%) male and thirty one (51.7%) female participants in these research groups. A same female preponderance has also been pointed out by Kang et al. in 2010 (46.67% vs 53.33%)³ and Delay et al. in 2008 (21.43 % vs 78.57%)⁸. However, an equal gender distribution has been noticed by Taha et al. in 2009 (50.0% vs $50.0\%)^4$. Moreover, a male prevalance was observed by Ramkumar et al. in 2011 $(53.33\% \text{ vs } 46.67\%)^5$. The two groups were comparable in respect of mean age (p = 0.839) and sex distribution (p = 0.796). Thus

there was no inherent bias among the research groups. The mean hemoglobin oxygen desaturation time was remarkably greater in vital capacity (VC) breathing group $(6.77 \pm 1.10 \text{ vs } 3.43 \pm 0.50 \text{ minutes}; p = 0.000)$ in comparison with tidal volume (TV) breathing group. This variation was appreciated among all age and sex groups. Our outcome is close to that of Rajan et al. in 2015 (6.87 ± 1.78 vs 3.47 ± 0.38 minutes; p <0.001)¹⁰². A similar considerably longer mean hemoglobin oxygen desaturation time has also been documented in vital capacity (VC) breathing by Singh et al. in 2006 (4.70 \pm 0.27 vs 3.70 \pm 0.44 minutes; p $(0.005)^{103}$ and Baraka et al. in 1999 $(5.21 \pm 0.96 \text{ vs})$ 3.73 ± 0.76 minutes; $p \le 0.05$)¹¹ in contrast to tidal volume (TV) breathing technique. This research is the initial and earliest of its kind in local population and has noted that vital capacity (VC) breathing technique of preoxygenation is preferable to tidal volume (TV) breathing in respect of considerably longer mean hemoglobin oxygen desaturation time (6.77 \pm $1.10 \text{ vs } 3.43 \pm 0.50 \text{ minutes; } p = 0.000 \text{) regardless of}$ patient's age and gender in patients with inadequate face mask seal scheduled for elective surgery. The findings of this study thus recommend and encourage the use of Vital Capacity breathing technique for preoxygenation in patients with ineffective face mask seal going through elective surgery as it provides remarkably longer mean hemoglobin oxygen desaturation time deferring the occurence of arterial oxygen desaturation and hypoxemia during the apneic period after the general anesthesia is induced.

Conclusion

The mean hemoglobin oxygen desaturation time was considerably longer in vital capacity (VC) breathing group ($6.77 \pm 1.10 \text{ vs } 3.43 \pm 0.50 \text{ minutes}$; p = 0.000) in comparison to tidal volume (TV) breathing group regardless of patient's age and gender in patients with ineffective face mask seal going through elective surgery.

Authors Contribution

AF: Concept, Conduct of study, Manuscript preparation, editing, Literature review **NH:** Manuscript Preparation, Proof Reading,

Critical Review SF: Statistical Analysis of Data

AA, BZ: Data Collection

References

- 1. Lavanya K,Chandra Sekhar T,Padmaja R.A randomized control study comparing the efficacy of 2 techniques of preoxygenation-tidal volume breathing for one min and 8 deep breaths in one minute.Indian Journal of Clinical Anaesthesia 2019;6(1):71-76
- Patel PK,Kandi S,Soren D,Nayak S.Comparison of two methods of preoxygenation in elderly patients undergoing surgery under general anesthesia.JMCR 2020;v8i1.118.
- 3. Khandrani J, Modak A, Pachpande B, Walsinge G, Ghosh A. Study of effects of varying durations of pre-oxygenation. Int J Anesthesiol 2008;20(1).
- 4. Kundra P, Stephen S, Vinayagam S. Techniques of preoxygenation in patients with ineffective facemask seal Indian J Anaesth 2013:57:175-9.
- 5. Kang H, Park HJ, Baek SK, Choi J, Park SJ. Effect of preoxygenation with the three minutes tidal volume breathing technique in the elderly. Korean J Anesthesiol 2010;58(4):369-73.
- Taha SK, El-Khatib MF, Siddik-Sayyid SM, Abdallah FW, Dagher CM, Chehade JM, et al. Preoxygenation by 8 deep breaths in 60 seconds using the Mapleson A (Magill), the circle system, or the Mapleson D system. J Clin Anesth 2009;21(8):574-8.
- Ramkumar V, Umesh G, Philip F. A Preoxygenation with 20 degrees head up tilt provides longer duration of non-hypoxic apnea than conventional preoxygenation in non —obese healthy adults. J Anesth 2011; 25(2):189-94.
- Thomas MC, Waberski BH, Jonathan C. Extending the Preoxygenation period from 4 to 8 mins in critically ill patients undergoing emergency intubation. Official Journal of the Society of Critical Care Medicine: Lippincott Williams & Wilkins. 2009;37(1):68-71.
- 9. Solis A, Baillard C. [Effectiveness of preoxygenation using the head-up position and noninvasive ventilation to reduce hypoxaemia during intubation]. Ann Fr Anesth Reanim 2008;27(6):490-4.

- Delay JM, Sebbane M, Jung B, Nocca D, Verzilli D, Pouzeratte Y, et al. The effectiveness of noninvasive positive pressure ventilation to enhance preoxygenation in morbidly obese patients: a randomized controlled study. Anesth Analg 2008;107(5):1707-13.
- 11. Taha S, El-Khatib M, Siddik-Sayyid S, Dagher C, Chehade JM, Baraka A. Preoxygenation with the Mapleson D system requires higher oxygen flows than Mapleson A or circle systems. Can J Anaesth 2007;54(2):141-5.
- 12. Nimmagadda U, Salem MR, Joseph NJ, Miko I. Efficacy of preoxygenation using tidal volume and deep breathing techniques with and without prior maximal exhalation. Can J Anaesth 2007;54(6):448-52.
- 13. Baraka AS, Taha SK, Aouad MT, El-Khatib MF, Kawkabani NI. Preoxygenation: comparison of maximal breathing and tidal volume breathing techniques. Anesthesiology 1999;91(3):612-6.
- 14. Eriksson LI. The effects of residual neuromuscular blockade and volatile anesthetics on the control of ventilation. Anesth Analg 2004;89:243-51.
- 15. Baraka A. Safe reversal (2) atropine-neostigmine mixture: An electrocardiographic study. Br J Anaesth 2008;40:30-6.
- 16. Szreter T. [Preoxygenation--safety of induction]. Anestezjol Intens Ter 2008;40:188-91.
- 17. Pehbock D, Wenzel V, Voelckel W, Jonsson K, Herff H, Mittlböck M, et al. Effects of preoxygenation on desaturation time during hemorrhagic shock in pigs. Anesthesiology 2010;113:593-9.
- Rajan S, Mohan P, Paul J, Cherian A. Comparison of margin of safety following two different techniques of preoxygenation. J Anaesthesiol Clin Pharmacol 2015;31:165-8.
- 19. Singh B, Afzal L, Kaur B, Osahan NK. Comparison of pre-oxygenation by maximal breathing and tidal volume breathing techniques. Indian J Anaesth 2006;50:209-13.

Original Article

Clinical Audit of Obstetrical Hysterectomies for a Period of One Year in A Tertiary Care Hospital

Farzana Latif,¹ Sadia Ilyas,² Saeed Mehmood,³ Hammad Arif,⁴ Nuzhat Parveen Khawaja,⁵ Zoobia Jawad⁶

Abstract

Objectives: To audit the obstetric hysterectomies in a tertiary care hospital during one year.

Methods: It was an observational retrospective study design, where all the pregnant women were assessed for feto-maternal outcomes, indications and complications for peripartum hysterectomy. The records were retrieved from Jan 2015 to Dec 2015 by using hospital record system. The study duration was of one year. The venue of the study was Lahore General hospital, Lahore. The exclusion criteria included all unmarried women, women with chronic kidney disease or renal failure, past surgical history of heart disease, whereas all the women who delivered in hospital, private clinic or at home after atleast 28 weeks of gestational age and experience hysterectomy at the time of delivery or after delivery in the puerperium, were included in the study.

Results: The data over 32 women were retrieved from the hospital record system. The mean age of the women was 30.34+2.23 with range 26-34. The average number of parity was 3 of all females. The range of parity was 2 to 7. The average gestational age was 36.18 weeks. All the deliveries were done by cesarean section whereas 4 (12.5%) were elective and 28 (87.5%) were with emergency indications. 13 (40.6%) of the deliveries were in private clinic, 9 (28.1%) were done by LHV/mid wife, 5(15.6%) were in private hospitals, 4(12.5%) were in LGH and only 1(3.1%) was at home. 18(56.3%) of the women were having at least one abortion in previous history.

Conclusion: We concluded that emergency peripartum hysterectomy is very vital procedure that saves lives and manage life threatening obstetrical hemorrhage when other methods failed to control it. The major indications for emergency peripartum hysterectomy were placental abruption, placenta praevia/accrete, uterine atony and ruptured uterus.

Key Words: Uterine artery embolization, Emergency peripartum hysterectomy, maternal morbidity and mortality, healthcare providers

Introduction

'L'he surgical removal of the uterus either at the time of cesarean section or subsequent vaginal deli-very, or within the puerperium period is known as Emergency peripartum hysterectomy. Mainly it is performed due to insistent and life threatening

1.	Farzana Latif	2.	Sadia Ilyas
3.	Saeed Mehmood	4.	Hammad Arif
5.	Nuzhat Parveen Khawaja	6.	Zoobia Jawad
1,3,6. Department of Gynae & Obst. PGMI/AMDC/LGH, Lahore,			
2 Department of Course & Obst IMDC Labour			

- 2. Department of Gynae & Obst. LMDC, Lahore,
- 4. Department of Peads, LGH, Lahore,
- 5. Department of Gynae & Obst. PGMI/AMDC, Lahore,

Correspondence:

Dr. Farzana Latif, Associate Professor, PGMI/AMDC/LGH, Lahore Email:farzanahammad1@gmail.com

Submission Date:	24-08-2020
1st Revision Date:	30-09-2020
Acceptance Date:	03-12-2020

obstetric hemorrhage. Emergency peripartum hysterectomy can be rightly categorized as a near miss event. This is very vital to highlight the events as it explains the standards of healthcare providers and also assist to reduce the maternal morbidity and mortality. In 1876, the first cesarean hysterectomy was termed by Eduardo Porro of Milan for PPH resulting live baby and mother.¹ The leading cause is uterine atony (UA) in developing countries and abnormal placentation in developed countries. It is published and observed a change of trend in epidemiology in several studies.² Previously uterine atony and rupture were major indications of emergency peripartum hysterectomy which are now replaced by abnormal placentation that is caused by high cesarean section rate all over the world. Community based use of oxytocin, misoprostol, condom

catheter balloon, and non-inflatable anti-shock garments for the hypovolemic shock management, Blynch sutures, uterine artery and internal iliac artey ligation which termed as conservative medical and surgical methods has been supported effectively to control and manage the obstetric hemorrhage.³ An option of uterine artery embolization was possible due to innovation in interventional radiology.⁴ An increased risk of abnormal placentation and emergency peripartum hysterectomy was connected in various studies with previous uterine scar.² Literature review showed that the incidence of emergency peripartum hysterectomy ranges between 0.24 to 5.09 per thousand deliveries worldwide.⁵ In comparison to non-obstetric morbidity and mortality, peripartum hysterectomy being an unplanned and emergency is associated with significant high rates.⁶ The perfection in traditional methos of postpartum hemorrhage (PPH) and blood transfusion facilities has improved the outcome.⁴ The main aim of study was to audit the obstetric hysterectomies in a tertiary care hospital during one year of time.

Methods

It is an observational retrospective study design, where all the pregnant women were assessed for fetomaternal outcomes, indications and complications for peripartum hysterectomy. The records were retrieved from Jan 2015 to Dec 2015 by using hospital record system. The study duration was of one year. The venue of the study was Lahore General hospital,Lahore. The exclusion criteria include all unmarried women, women with chronic kidney disease or renal failure, past surgical history of heart disease whereas all the women who delivered in hospital, private clinic or at home after at-least 28 weeks of gestational age and experienced hysterectomy at time of delivery or afterwards within the defined period of puerperium, were included in the study. The retrieved information contained demographics along with diagnostic history of all the pregnant women. Ethical Committee of the hospital approved the study.

Statistical analysis: The collected data was electronically stored & analyzed by using SPSS version 20. Descriptive statistics were applied to calculate mean and standard deviation. Frequency distribution and percentages were calculated for qualitative variables like indication of caesarean section etc . A P- values less than 0.05 was considered statistically significant.

Results

The data of 32 women were retrieved from the hospital record system. The mean age of the women was 30.34+2.23 with range 26-34. The average number of parity was 3 of all females. The range of parity was 2 to 7. The average gestational age was 36.18 weeks. All deliveries were done by cesarean section whereas 4 (12.5%) were elective and 28 (87.5%) were with emergency indications. The detailed summary for previous scar uterus is given below in figure.



Figure : Summary of Previous Scar Uterus

13 (40.6%) of the deliveries were in private clinic, 9 (28.1%) were done by LHV/ mid wife, 5(15.6%) were in private hospitals, 4(12.5%) were in LGH and only 1(3.1%) was at home. 18(56.3%) of the women were having at least one abortion in previous history.

The complications observed in all mothers were summarized in table 1.

Discussion

The study was planned to audit the obstetrical hysterectomies at a tertiary health care level. We not only report baseline characteristic for the patients but also the indication for hysterectomies along with its complications arisen as well. Inspite of advancement in surgery and medicine fields, PPH remains the prominent reason of maternal morbidity and mortality. To treat the life threatening obstetric hemorrhage, emergency peripartum hysterectomy is performed, because controlling with conventional methods

Table 1: Summary of the complications.

Complications	5
Hemorrhage	29(90.6%)
DIC	8(25.0%)
Bladder Injury	11(34.4%)
Intestinal Injury	1(3.1%)
Ureteric Injury	1(3.1%)
Maternal Injury	1(3.1%)
DVT	1(3.1%)
Maternal death	3(9.4%)
Hemorrhage	6(18.8%)
Reopening due to hemorrhage	1(3.1%)
Wound infection/ sepsis	16(50.0%)
Pelvic Abscess	1(3.1%)

is difficult. The reported incidence of emergency peripartum hysterectomy ranges between 0.24 and 5.09 per 1000 deliveries.^[5] The incidence reported in our study is supported by the above literature and other published studies.^[7-8] We observed in our study that majority of the cases were with poor access to the healthcare. We also reported in our study the major indications of emergency peripartum hysterectomy which were abnormal placental localization, uterine atony and uterine rupture. We also observed in our findings the cases with adherent placentation; the percentages were supported by other published studies^[8-9]. Due to previous history of cesarean section, adherent placentation become among one of the commonest indications. The study held by Kwee et al.,testified that both previous cesarean section and cesarean section in key pregnancy were associated with significant increased risk of emergency peripartum hysterectomy.² The effort to discrete the adhe-rent placenta can bring a massive hemorrhage. A timely decision to go with hysterectomy can lead to improved outcomes.² We reported in our study the majority of the cases with multipara who underwent emergency peripartum hysterectomy. This finding is supported with other previously published studies.¹⁰⁻¹¹ Among hysterectomy performed the majority of type was subtotal hysterectomy. The percentages available in literature ranges among 53-80%.¹¹ It is presumed that this type of hysterectomy involved with less blood loss, lessening the operative time and less complication in comparison to other types. Our study reported the risk factors like multiparity, placenta previa, previous cesarean section, and cesarean in index pregnancy. Other published studies available with similar risk factors.^{2,12} We also have observed three maternal deaths in our study as a complication. Other

emergency peripartum hysterectomy complications including mortality were studied and analyzed by Machado LS et al,¹ Contrary to our study he claimed the maternal morbidity ranging between 26 to 31% and the commonest was blood transfusion requirement and urinary tract injury.

Conclusion

We concluded that emergency peripartum hysterectomy is very vital procedure that saves lives and manage life threatening obstetrical hemorrhage when other methods failed to control. The major indications for emergency peripartum hysterectomy were the abnormal placental localization, uterine atony and uterine injury or rupture.

Author's Contribution

LF: Data analysis, computing, writing IS, AH: Data collection MS: Computing, interpretation of data JZ: Data collection

References

- Parro E. Dell amputazione utero-ovarica come complement di tagliocescareo. Ann lenivMedchir. 1876: 237-289. (cited by Durfee RB: evolution of cesarean hysterectomy. ClinObstetGynecol 1969; 12(3): 575-589.
- 2. A. Kwee, M. L. Bots, G. H. A. Visser, and H. W. Bruinse, "Emergency peripartum hysterectomy: a prospective study in the Netherlands," European Journal of ObstetriCesarean section Gynecology and Reproductive Biology, vol 124, no 2, pp. 187–192, 2006.
- 3. Miller S, Lester F, Hensleigh P. Prevention and treatment of postpartum hemorrhage: new advances for low-resource settings. J Midwifery Womens Health 2004 JulAug;49(4):283-292.
- Singhal S, Singh A, Raghunandan C, Gupta U, Dutt S. Uterine artery embolization: exploring new dimensions in obstetric emergencies. Oman Med J 2014 May;29(3):217-219.
- Zeteroglu, Y. Ustun, Y. Engin-Ustun, G. Sahin, and M. Kamaci, "Peripartum hysterectomy in a teaching hospital in the eastern region of Turkey," European Journal of ObstetriCesarean section Gynecology and Reproductive Biology, vol. 120, no. 1, pp. 57–62, 2005.
- 6. Wright JD, Devine P, Shah M, Levin SN et al. Morbidity and mortality of peripartumhysterectomy. Obstet Gynecol. 2010;115:1187.

- Sahu L, Chakravertty B, Panda S. Hysterectomy for obstetric emergencies. J ObstetGyneco India 2004; 54:34–6.
- 8. Kastner ES, Garry D, Maulik D. Emergency peripartum: experience at a community teaching hospital. ObstetGynaecol, 2002; 99:971-975.
- 9. Basket TF Emergency obstetric hysterectomy. Obstet Gynaecol 2003;23:353-5.
- S. N. Amad and I. H. Mir, "Emergency peripartum hysterectomy: experience at Apex Hospital of Kashmir Valley," Internet Journal of Gynecology & Obstetric, vol. 8, no. 2, 2007
- 11. Christopoulos P, HassiakosssD, Tsitoura A et al. Obstetric hysterectomy. A review of cases over 16 years. J Obstet Gynecol.2011;31(2):139-141.
- 12. Machado LS.Emergencyperipartum hysterectomy: incidence,risk factor. And outcome. N Am J Med Sci.2011;3(8):358-61.13.
- 13. Chawla J, Arora CD, Paul M, Ajmani SN. Emergency obstetric hysterectomy:a retrospective study from a teaching hospital in north india over eight years. Oman Med J. 2015;30(3):181–86.
- Cho GJ, Kim LY, Hong H-R, Lee CE, Hong S-C, Oh M-J, et al. Trends in the rates of peripartum hysterectomy and uterine artery embolization. PLoS ONE.

2013; 8(4):e60512

- 15. Nawal R, Nooren M. Obstetric hysterectomy: A life saving emergency. Indian J Med Sci. 2013;67(5):99
- Chen J, Cui H, Na Q, Li Q, Liu C. Analysis of emergency obstetric hysterectomy: the change of indications and the application of intraoperative interventions. Zhonghua Fu Chan Ke Za Zhi. 2015; 50(3): 177–82.
- 17. Colmorn LB, Petersen KB, Jakobsson M, Lindqvist PG, Klungsoyr K, Källen K, et al. The nordic obstetric surveillance study:a study of complete uterine rupture, abnormally invasive placenta, peripartum hysterectomy, and severe blood loss at delivery. Acta Obstet Gynecol Scand. 2015;94(7):734–44.
- Ferreira Carvalho J, Cubal A, Torres S, Costa F, Carmo O do. Emergency peripartum hysterectomy:A 10-Year Review. ISRN Emerg Med. 2012:01–07.
- Knight M, Kurinczuk JJ, Spark P, Brocklehurst P. Committee UKOSSS others Cesarean delivery and peripartum hysterectomy. Obstet Gynecol. 2008; 111(1):97–105.
- 20. Korejo R, Nasir A, Yasmin H, Bhutta S. Emergency obstetric hysterectomy. JPMA. 2012;62:1322.

Comparison of Ovulation Induction with Letrozole with Metformin Versus Letrozole Alone in Females Presenting with Polycystic Ovarian Syndrome

Zubda Aiman,¹ Amna Khanam,² Mahliqa Maqsood,³ Mehwish ayyaz,⁴ Alia,⁵ Tayyaba Kanwal⁶

Abstract

Objective: To compare the frequency of Ovulation Induction after administration of Letrozole with metformin versus Letrozole alone in females presenting with Polycystic Ovarian Syndrome

Methods: This Randomized Controlled Trial was done in unit 5 of Lady Aitchison Hospital Lahore for 6 months. Total 200 females fulfilling the inclusion criteria were recruited from OPD. Lottery method was used for randomization of study subjects. Females in group A were given Letrozole 2.5mg once a day for five days (from third to seventh day) of the cycle for three consecutive months and metformin 1500mg (500mg 3 times a day) daily for three months, while females in group B were given Letrozole 2.5mg once a day for five days (from third to seventh day) le for three consecutive months. Then they were followed up in OPD for 3 cycles. In all 3 cycles TVS was done on day 12 to access the number of follicles and to measure the size of largest follicle, and on day 21 of cycle progesterone level will be assessed for confirmation of ovulation induction. The data was entered and analyzed through SPSS version 20. Mean and standard deviation was calculated for age and BMI. Frequency and percentage was calculated for Ovulation induction. Both groups were compared by using chi-square test taking p-value<0.05 as significant. Data was stratified for BMI (Normal, overweight and Obese). After stratification chi-square test was applied keeping a p value <0.05 as significant.

Results: In Group-A mean age of women was 28.18±6.58 years. In Group-B mean age of women was 27.08±5.15 years. In Group-A ovulation induction rate was much higher as compared to that of Group-B women. i.e. (89% vs. 60%). p-value=0.000. Ovulation induction rate was significantly higher with Letrozole+ Metformin in women who were having normal BMI, overweight & obese as compared to that of Letrozole alone.

Conclusion: Letrozole with metformin is more effective for the ovulation Induction females presenting with polycystic ovarian Syndrome as compared to letrozole alone.()

Key Words: Polycystic Ovarian Syndrome, Management, Ovulation Induction, Letrozole, Metformin

Introduction

PCO is commonest hormonal disorder of females in reproductive age group and it has very high prevalence.¹ PCOS is the leading cause of anovulatory subfertility and it accounts for 70% of subfertility cases related to ovulatory disorder. 5-10% women of reproductive age group are affected

1.	Zubda Aiman	

Amna Khanam
 Mehwish ayyaz

Tayyaba Kanwal

5. Alia

6.

1-6. Department of Obstetrics & Gynecology, King Edward Medical University/Lady Aitchison Hospital, Lahore.

Correspondence:

Dr.Zubda Aiman, Senior Registrar, Department of Obstetrics & Gynaecology, King Edward Medical University/Lady Aitchison Hospital, Lahore, Pakistan. Email: zubdaiman@gmail.com

Submission Date:	16-11-2020
1st Revision Date:	20-11-2020
Acceptance Date:	12-12-2020

by PCOS.⁴

The cause of this multifactorial condition is not comp-letely known and its phenotype expression varies. Clomiphene citrate (CC) is frequently used drug for ovulation induction. But one fourth of women do not give adequate response to this drug .These resistant cases are typically treated with administration of gonadotrophins but there are more chances of multi-fetal gestations and hyperstimulation of ovaries.⁵

Recently it has been found that Letrozole makes endometrium more receptive for implantation in addition to increasing ovulation rate therefore chances of success-ful pregnancy have increased in women presenting with this disorder.⁶ Additional benefits of Letrozole are decreased number of multifetal gestations and less androgenic side effects and decreased cases of ovarian hyperstimulation so less frequent monitoring is requi-red as compared to gonadotrophins.⁷

PCOS is heterogenous disorder involving genetic, hormonal and environmental factors. No definitive treatment is available for this condition. Weight reduction and lifestyle modification is mainstay of the treatment.⁸ First case of PCOS was recognised in 1721 in Italy.

Studies in different countries show prevalence of PCOS using Rotterdam criteria as follows, 6.3% in Srilanka, 2% in south China,5% in Thailand, 8% in UK and 4% in USA(there is no difference among black and white women).²

Literature has reported that letrozole is effective in ovulation induction but there are conflicting results reported in literature. Moreover, there are no study conducted which compares letrozole in combination with metformin and letrozole alone and local magnitudes are also missing. Through this study we wanted to get local magnitudes and results which can be applicable and on the basis of which we can implement the use of letrozole with metformin for management of PCO instead of letrozole alone. Objective of this study is to compare the frequency of Ovulation Induction after administration of Letrozole with metformin versus Letrozole alone in females presenting with Polycystic Ovarian Syndrome. Hypothesis of the study was that there is some difference in frequency of Ovulation Induction with Letrozole with metformin versus letrozole alone in females presenting with Polycystic Ovarian Syndrome.

Methods

This randomized controlled trial was done in Unit 5 of Lady Aitchison Hospital in 6 months time. Total of 200 cases (100 cases in each group was calculated with 80% power of test, 5% level of significance and taking expected percentage of ovulation induction i.e. 90.57% with Letrozole with metformin and 60.78% with Letrozole alone in females presenting with PCOs) were enrolled by Non-Probability, consecutive Sampling. Women age 18-39 years, BMI <35, Infertility due to anovulation, Polycystic Ovarian Syndrome (fulfilling two of the following three criteria atleast:Oligomenorrhea / amenorrhea, Hyper androgenaemia (testosterone≥2.5nmol/l) or free androgen index \geq 5 or clinical evidence (acne/hirsutism), Ultrasound evidence of Polycystic Ovarian Syndrome (either \geq 12 follicle measuring 2-9mm in dia meter or ovarian volume > 10ml)), Normal husband semen analysis (sperm count 20 million/ml, 60% are motile and 30% have normal morphology), Patency of both fallopian tubes by hysteroscopy and laproscopy, and No recent treatment within six months for induction of ovulation on history were included. Ovulation induction was measured as production of follicles confirmed on Ultrasonographic findings (follicles size >18mm at 12 day of menstruation) and day 21 progestrone level>3ng/dl for three cycles, if these findings were achieved then labelled as ovulation induction. Women with Uterine pathology by ultrasound, Hyperprolactinemia (<500 mIU/l), Hyperthyroidism (TSH<0.5Uu/ml)/Hypothyroidism (TSH>6Uu/ml), FSH>9mIU/mn (during early follicular phase), Previous surgery related to genital tract, Impaired hepatic (serum bilirubin level>2mg/dl)/ impaired renal functions (serum creatinine>1mg/dl), Diabetes Miletus / BSR > 140mg/dl were excluded.

After taking permission from instituitional review board/head of department, 200 females who are fit in the inclusion criteria were recruited from Outpatient department of Lady Aitchison Hospital Lahore. Informed consent and personal information (name, age, BMI and contact) was obtained. Lottery method was used for randomization. Females of both groups were counseled about dietary modification and encouraged to do brisk walk for 30 min twice a day. Females in group A were given Letrozole 2.5mg once a day for five days (from third to seventh day)of cycle for three months and metformin 1500mg (500mg 3 times a day) daily for three months, while females in group B were given Letrozole 2.5mg once a day for five days (from third to seventh day of cycle) for three consecutive months. Then they were followed up in OPD for 3 cycles. In all 3 cycles TVS was done on day 12 to access the number of follicles and to measure the size of largest follicle, and on day 21 of cycle progesterone level will be assessed for confirmation of ovulation induction. All the data was collected according to predesigned proforma. The data was entered and analyzed through SPSS version 20. Mean and standard deviation was calcu-lated for age and BMI. Frequency and percentage was calculated for Ovulation induction. Both groups were compared by using chi-square test taking p-value <0.05 as significant. Data was stratified for BMI (Normal, overweight and Obese). After stratification chisquare test was applied keeping a p value ≤ 0.05 as significant.

Results

In Group-A mean age of women was 28.18 ± 6.58 years. In Group-B mean age of women was 27.08 ± 5.15 years. In Group-A minimum and maximum age of women was 18 and 39 years while in Group-B this was 18 and 37 years respectively. (Table-1)

In Group-A mean BMI of women was 28.05 ± 2.82 . In Group-B mean BMI of women was 27.54 ± 2.54 Kg/m². In Group-A minimum and maximum BMI of women was 23 and 32 while in Group-B this was 23 and 31.9 respectively. As per body mass index criteria in Group-A 20(20%) women were having normal BMI, 44(44%) were overweight and 36(36%) were obese. In Group-B 20 (20%) women were having normal weight, 59(59%) were overweight and 21(21%) were obese. In Group-A ovulation induction rate was much higher as compared to that of Group-B women. i.e. (89% vs. 60%). p-value=0.000(Table-2)

Ovulation induction rate was much higher with Letrozzole+ Metformin in women who were having normal BMI, overweight & obese as compared to that of Letrozzole alone i.e. Group-A (Ovulation induction Rate): Normal BMI Women: 95% vs. Group-B: 65% (pvalue = 0.018), Over Weight Women: Group-A:86.4% vs.55.9% (p-value=0.001)& Obese women: Group-A: 88.9% vs. Group-B:66.7% (p-value= 0.040). (Table-3)

Discussion

PCOS is responsible for 75% cases of ovulatory disorders.⁽⁹⁾ PCOS-related subfertility is treated appropriately by ovulation induction. Many treatment modalities including medical and surgical options have been employed to treat PCOS linked infertility. Medical options include Metformin, Clomiphene citrate, Letrozole and gonadotrophins.¹⁰ Surgical options include ovarian drilling and wedge resection. Resistant cases to both medical and surgical treatments are offered Intrauterine insemination with stimulated cycle and In-vitro fertilization.¹¹

Table 1: Age Distribution Of Patients

	Group-A	Group-B
n	100	100
Mean	28.18	27.08
SD	6.585	5.154
Minimum	18	18
Maximum	39	37
G + T + 1		

Group-A= Letrozole + Metformin Group-B= Letrozole

Table 2: Ovulation Induction In Study Groups

Ovulation Induction	Group-A	Group-B	Total
Yes	89(89%)	60(60%)	149
No	11(11%)	40(40%)	51
Total	100	100	200
Chi-Square Test= 22.13	p-value= 0.000		

Table 3: Ovulation Induction In Study Groups Stratified

 For Bmi

BMI	Ovulation Induction	Group-A	Group-B	p-value
Normal	Yes	19(95%)	13(65%)	0.018
	No	1(5%)	7(35%)	
Overweight	Yes	38(86.4%)	33(55.9%)	0.001
	No	6(13.6%)	26(44.1%)	
Obese	Yes	32(88.9%)	14(66.7%)	0.040
	No	4(11.1%)	7(33.3%)	

About half of all women with PCOS show some degree of insulin resistance. Hyperinsulinemia ultimately leads to the hyperandrogenism, which is responsible for the clinical manifestation of disease. 77 Metformin increases insulin sensitivity and inturn decreases the production of androgens from ovaries, also improves quality of the egg and induces ovulation. However several studies showed that the combination of metformin plus Clomiphene Citrate in the CC-resistant patients was very effective in inducing ovulation in 68.6%– 77.7% of patients.78-80.¹²

Several case reports have shown the effective role of metformin in PCOS patients by enhancing conception rate and improving the metabolic profile.¹³

Clomiphene citrate does not give equal response in all patients for ovulation induction. It acts by antagonising the effects of estrogen and thus causes raised levels of gonadotrophins from pituitary gland, this in turn will stimulate growth of ovarian follicles and ovulation.¹⁴

Letrozole inhibits actions of enzyme aromatase. It blocks the conversion of androgens to estrogens in ovarian follicles, this will result in fall in circulating level of estrogen and rise in intraovarian androgens, this decreased level of estrogen inturn causes negative effect on hypothalamic–pituitary thus raising FSH level and it will enhance ovarian follicular development.⁽¹⁵⁾ The effective role of letrozole in patients with clomiphene-resistant PCOS has been documented with the use of 2.5 mg daily doses on third to seventh day of menstrual cycle in various studies.⁽¹⁶⁾

In this study it was observed that women who were given Letrozole + Metformin among them rate of ovulation was 89% as compared to the women who were given Letrozole among them rate of ovulation induction was 60%. A statistically significant association was seen between ovulation induction with treatment groups. (p-value=0.000).¹⁷

Davar reported that with the use of Metformin+ letrozole as combination showed pregnancy rate per cycle in 8% women. Nahid L in his study reported an induction rate of 88% with the use of letrozole alone. Hatem Abu Hashim from Egypt reported rate of ovulation induction as 64.9% with the use of letrozole alone. Badawy et al. who had an ovulatory rate of 62% for letrozole cycles.⁹⁰ In other trials, Mitwally and Casper⁹¹ had ovulatory rate of 75%, Al-Omari et al. had an ovulatory rate of 87.5%, whereas Elnashar et al. reported an ovulation rate of 54.6%.

Sohrabvand et al. added either CC or letrozole initially after 6–8 weeks of treatment with metformint in CC-resistant PCOS women, they found that the combination of metformin plus letrozole leads to more pregnancies. About 15–40 % of women with PCOS have CC resistance which can be ascribed to the antiestrogenic effect of CC on endometrium and cervical mucus or by hypersecretion of luteinizing hormone.

Although administration of Letrozole for induction of ovulation varies in many studies but overall Letrozole alone is effective in PCOS women. It is widely used for many years and various studies have proved its beneficial role for ovulation induction. In addition to it, it does not have adverse effect on endometrium and cervical mucus.¹⁸

In literature only one study was found who had used combination of these both treatment in PCOS women.

Ibrahim Abd Elgafo in his study used metformin plus letrozole and reported an ovulation rate of 48.9%. To our knowledge, no studies have yet compared the effects of letrozole with combined metformin.¹⁹

This study is the first of its kind in our set up and in local literature which both these drugs have been used in combination. However different studies have used letrozole with CC.²⁰ But no such combination was adopted by studies done previously to see the efficacy of these two combination for successful outcome in women with PCOS.¹⁶

Conclusion

Letrozole with metformin is more effective for the ovulation Induction in females presenting with polycystic ovarian syndrome as compared to letrozole alone.

Authors Contribution

AZ: Concept, Design, analysis
KA: Analysis, Interpretation
MM: Interpretation
AM: Drafting Revising, Analysis
A: Analysis and Interpretation
KT: Design, Interpretation

References

- 1. Rosenfield RL, Ehrmann DA. The pathogenesis of polycystic ovary syndrome (PCOS): the hypothesis of PCOS as functional ovarian hyperandrogenism revisited. Endocrine reviews. 2016;37(5):467-520.
- 2. Sirmans SM, Pate KA. Epidemiology, diagnosis, and management of polycystic ovary syndrome. Clinical epidemiology. 2014;6:1.
- 3. Sohrabvand F, Ansari S, Bagheri M. Efficacy of combined metformin–letrozole in comparison with metformin–clomiphene citrate in clomiphene-resistant infertile women with polycystic ovarian disease. Human reproduction. 2006;21(6):1432-5.
- 4. Fauser BC, Tarlatzis BC, Rebar RW, Legro RS, Balen AH, Lobo R, et al. Consensus on women's health aspects of polycystic ovary syndrome (PCOS): the Amsterdam ESHRE/ASRM-Sponsored 3rd PCOS Consensus Workshop Group. Fertility and sterility. 2012;97(1):28-38. e25.
- Mohammad MB, Seghinsara AM. Polycystic ovary syndrome (PCOS), diagnostic criteria, and AMH. Asian Pacific journal of cancer prevention: APJCP. 2017;18(1):17.
- 6. Cortínez A, De Carvalho I, Vantman D, Gabler F, Iñiguez G, Vega M. Hormonal profile and endomet-

rial morphology in letrozole-controlled ovarian hyperstimulation in ovulatory infertile patients. Fertility and sterility. 2005;83(1):110-5.

- Rajan RK, Balaji B. Soy isoflavones exert beneficial effects on letrozole-induced rat polycystic ovary syndrome (PCOS) model through anti-androgenic mechanism. Pharmaceutical biology. 2017; 55(1): 242-51.
- Moran LJ, Hutchison SK, Norman RJ, Teede HJ. Lifestyle changes in women with polycystic ovary syndrome. Cochrane Database of Systematic Reviews. 2011(7).
- 9. Sidra S, Tariq MH, Farrukh MJ, Mohsin M. Evaluation of clinical manifestations, health risks, and quality of life among women with polycystic ovary syndrome. PloS one. 2019;14(10):e0223329.
- Arain F, Arif N, Halepota H. Frequency and outcome of treatment in polycystic ovaries related infertility. Pakistan journal of medical sciences. 2015;31(3): 694.
- 11. Group TEA-SPCW. Consensus on infertility treatment related to polycystic ovary syndrome. Human reproduction. 2008;23(3):462-77.
- 12. Diamanti-Kandarakis E, Dunaif A. Insulin resistance and the polycystic ovary syndrome revisited: an update on mechanisms and implications. Endocrine reviews. 2012;33(6):981-1030.
- 13. Glueck CJ, Wang P, Goldenberg N, Sieve-Smith L. Pregnancy outcomes among women with polycystic ovary syndrome treated with metformin. Human Reproduction. 2002;17(11):2858-64.
- 14. Palomba S, Pasquali R, Orio Jr F, Nestler JE. Clomi-

phene citrate, metformin or both as first-step approach in treating anovulatory infertility in patients with polycystic ovary syndrome (PCOS): a systematic review of head-to-head randomized controlled studies and meta-analysis.Clinical endocrinology. 2009; 70(2):311-21.

- 15. Casper RF, MITWALLY MF. Use of the aromatase inhibitor letrozole for ovulation induction in women with polycystic ovarian syndrome. Clinical obstetrics and gynecology. 2011;54(4):685-95.
- 16. He D, Jiang F. Meta-analysis of letrozole versus clomiphene citrate in polycystic ovary syndrome. Reproductive biomedicine online. 2011;23(1):91-6.
- Kim J, Lim W, Kim E-K, Kim M-K, Paik N-S, Jeong S-S, et al. Phase II randomized trial of neoadjuvant metformin plus letrozole versus placebo plus letrozole for estrogen receptor positive postmenopausal breast cancer (METEOR). BMC cancer. 2014; 14(1): 1-5.
- 18. Kelley ST, Skarra DV, Rivera AJ, Thackray VG. The gut microbiome is altered in a letrozole-induced mouse model of polycystic ovary syndrome. PloS one. 2016;11(1):e0146509.
- 19. Badawy A, Aal IA, Abulatta M. Clomiphene citrate or letrozole for ovulation induction in women with polycystic ovarian syndrome: a prospective randomized trial. Fertility and sterility. 2009;92(3):849-52.
- 20. Roque M, Tostes AC, Valle M, Sampaio M, Geber S. Letrozole versus clomiphene citrate in polycystic ovary syndrome: systematic review and meta-analysis. Gynecological Endocrinology. 2015;31(12):917-21.

Protective Effect of Enterococcus faecium SF68 and Saccharomyces boulardii in Acute Severe Diarrhea in Infants: Randomized Controlled Trial

Fariha Ahmad Khan,¹ Muhammad Zeeshan Khan,² Abdul Mudabbir Rehan,³ Zoobia Irum,⁴ Fouzia Perveen,⁵ Sadia Chiragh⁶

Abstract

Objectives: This study was done to observe the effect of Enterococcus faecium SF68 and Saccharomyces boulardii in acute severe diarrhea in infants.

Methods: It was a single blind, randomized controlled clinical trial done in Children Hospital, Lahore. The infants were selected between 6 months to 12 months of age. All the infants were suffering from acute diarrhea with severe dehydration. Total 105 infants were selected and randomly divided into three groups having 35 infants in each group. Infants in group A received standard treatment of diarrhea. Infants in group B and C received Enterococcus faecium SF68 and Saccharomyces boulardii respectively twice daily for five days along with standard treatment of diarrhea. All the infants were monitored for five days. The treatment response was observed in terms of frequency of diarrhea, duration of diarrhea, stool consistency and length of hospital stay.

Results: The frequency of diarrhea, duration of diarrhea and length of hospital stay were significantly reduced in both group B and C as compared to group A.

Conclusion: Enterococcus faecium SF68 and Saccharomyces boulardii helped to reduce the stool frequency, duration of diarrhea, length of hospital stay and also improved the stool consistency in acute severe diarrhea in infants.

Key Words: Probiotics, Enterococcus faecium SF68, Saccharomyces boulardii, Acute severe Diarrhoea

Introduction

Diarrhea is defined as "the passage of 3 or more loose or liquid stools per day or more frequently than is normal for the individual."In acute diarrhea, there is sudden onset of excessively loose stools > 10ml/kg/day in children less than 1 year of age and >200 g/24 hours in older children, which lasts less than 14 days.¹ The data of World Health Organization (WHO) reveal that there are 2 billion cases of diarrhea throughout the world each year and 1.9 million children under the age of 5 years perish

1.	Fariha Ahmad Khan	2.	Muhammad Zeeshan Khan
•			

- 3. Abdul Mudabbir Rehan4. Zoobia Irum
- 5. Fouzia Perveen 6. Sadia Chiragh
- 1. Pharmacology/ Akhtar Saeed Medical & Dental College, Lahore
- The Children Hospital & Institute of Child Health, Lahore
 Pharmacology, DG Khan Medical College, Dera Ghazi Khai
- Pharmacology, DG Khan Medical College, Dera Ghazi Khan
 Pharmacology/ CMH Institute of Medical Sciences, Bahawalpur
- Pharmacology/ CMH Institute of Medical Sciences
 Sharif Medical & Dental College, Lahore
- 6. Pharmacology/ Al-Aleem Medical College, Lahore

Correspondence:

Dr. Abdul Mudabbir Rehan, Assistant Professor, Pharmacology/ D.G. Khan Medical College, Dera Ghazi Khan. Email: abdulmudabbir@yahoo.com

Submission Date:	14-10-2020
1st Revision Date:	27-10-2020
Acceptance Date:	19-11-2020

from diarrhea every year, commonly in developing countries. The fluid and electrolyte replacement is primary treatment of diarrhea. Zinc supplements are recommended along with oral rehydrating salt (ORS) in diarrhea as they decrease the duration of diarrhea. The antibiotic treatment is controversial in the treatment of diarrhea, but there are certain infections for which treatment is mandatory.²

Probiotics are live microorganisms, which maintain a balance between the immune system and gastrointestinal tract. They are available in different forms as tablets, powders and capsules. They have antimicrobial activity against pathogenic bacteria and produce compounds which kill the pathogenic bacteria.³ Enterococci are part of the microflora of intestine of animals and humans. Enterococcus faecium SF68 is the probiotic strain that can be used in the treatment of diarrhea. Saccharomyces boulardii is

included in the yeast familyand it is the principal

probiotic yeast. The S. boulardii can be used in the management of acute diarrhea as well as antibiotic associated diarrhea.⁴ The future studies should be done to put emphasis on best dosage of S. boulardii in diarrhea from different causes as some studies did not specify the dose of S. boulardii in diarrhea from various causes.⁵ Trials with probiotic Entercoccus faecium SF68 in humans are limited and results show variations.

Few studies have been conducted in developing countries regarding the use of probiotics in diarrhea and most of the studies have not provided Zn as part of the treatment. Therefore well designed (randomized controlled trial) RCTs should be done in developing countries to compare the recommended treatment of diarrhea i.e. ORS, Zn supplements and continued feeding, with and without adding probiotics.⁶ Most of the studies which have been done on probiotics included only mild to moderate diarrhea when there is no dehydration or some dehydration and the studies which were done on severe diarrhea showed no beneficial effect.⁷ There is a need to study the efficacy of probiotics in severe diarrhea in developing countries. In this study the effect of two different probiotics i.e. Enterococcus faecium SF68 and S. boulardii have been evaluated in acute severe diarrhea in infants.

Methods

It was a prospective, single blind, randomized controlled clinical trial. The trial was conducted in Children Hospital, Lahore from July 2016 to November 2016 after being reviewed and approved by Ethical Committee. The sample was calculated by using 90% power of study and 5% level of significance. It was calculated by taking mean ± SD of number of stools/day with standard treatment versus standard treatment with probiotic in children.⁸ According to this formula sample size was 32. We included 35 infants in each group. The infants with age range of 6 months to 12 months suffering from acute diarrhea with severe dehydration were included in the study. Dehydration was severe (more than 10%) when there was rapid or weak pulse, low blood pressure, sunken eyes and lack of urine output. The exclusion criteria were; infants with any chronic disease, typhoid fever, blood in stools, infant having severe malnutrition and who have been given probiotics within last 10 days. Non-probability, purposive sampling was done for

selec-tion of patients. An independent person not affiliated with this study randomized 105 infants into three groups of 35 infant in each group through simple randomisation by using random number list genera-ted by computer. The person who randomised the infants also prepared the envelopes in which treatment plan of the infants was present. The parents received sealed and packed envelopes according to randomisation list. The serial number of the infants with name and age was mentioned on the envelopes. The envelopes were opened, and the infants were put in their specific groups. In this way treatment plan was concealed from the researcher until intervention started. The parents of the infants were kept blind and they did not know in which group infants were put. After enrollment, baseline lab investigations i.e. complete blood count, serum electrolytes and renal functions tests were done for all infants. In group A, which was a control group, infants were given only standard treatment of diarrhea, i.e., ORS, IV fluids and Zn supplements. Antimicrobial treatment was only given when needed.² Infants in group B were given standard treatment as well as probiotic Enterococcus faecium SF 68, one capsule every 12 hours for five days. Contents of capsule were mixed in 20 ml water for administration.⁹ Infants in group C were given standard treatment of diarrhea as well as probiotic S. boulardii, one capsule of 250 mg every 12 hours for five days. Contents of capsule were mixed in 20 ml water for administration.¹⁰ The probiotics were given to the infants as soon as the infants were able to take orally. The following parameters were observed: Frequency of diarrhea, Duration of diarrhea, Stool consistency, Length of hospital stay. Infant was defined as recovered from diarrhea when 8 hours had passed after passage of stool with normal consistency or infant had been discharged.⁸ Stool consistency was classified as normally formed stool, soft stool, semi liquid and liquid and was graded according to classification as 1, 2, 3, 4 respectively.¹¹ Infant was discharged when he or she was recovered from diarr-hea. If diarrhea was prolonged, infant was discharged after five days as we had monitored parameters for five days, but total duration of diarrhea was noted for which infants were inquired telephonically daily.

The data collected was processed by using Statistical Package for Social Sciences. The data was checked for normal distribution by Shaprio Wilk test. The data was normally distributed. Quantitative variables were presented in mean and SD. ANOVA was used to analyze the significance between three groups and post hoc Tukey's test was used for pairwise comparison between the groups. Qualitative variables were presented as frequencies and proportions. Chi square test was applied for qualitative variables. p value <0.05 was considered significant.

Results

The Table. 1 summarizes the mean \pm standard deviation of various demographic parameters of all study groups. The infants were included with age range 6 to 12 months. Mean weight of the patients was in between 15th to 50th percentile

The Table. 2 summarizes the mean \pm standard deviation of frequency of diarrhea and other associated symptoms in all study group at the time of admission. Almost all of the patients had more than ten episodes of diarrhea per day. The 100 % of patients had stool with liquid consistency.

Figure. 1 illustrates the post-treatment comparison of mean \pm standard deviation of change in pattern of number of stools in all study groups over a period of 5 consecutive days.

The comparison of means of all groups by ANOVA revealed a significant difference between the group

Demographic data	Group A (Control)	Group B (SF68)	Group C (S. boulardii)
Age (months) (mean ± SD)	8.64 ± 2.37	8.64 ± 2.18	9.3 ± 2.4
Weight (kg) (mean ± SD)	7.4 ± 0.93	7.41 ± 0.94	7.67 ± 0.85
Male n (%)	24 (68.6 %)	21 (60 %)	18 (51.4 %)
Female n (%)	11 (31.4 %)	14 (40 %)	17 (48.6 %)
Rural Areaw n (%)	14 (40 %)	7 (20 %)	6 (17.1 %)
Urban Area n (%)	21 (60 %)	28 (80 %)	29 (83 %)

means with a p value of < 0.001.

The number of stools passed by the infants in group A was much higher as compared to infants in group B and group C. The difference was significant between group A and group B from day 1 (after 24 hrs) to day 5. The difference was not significant between group A

Table 2: History of diarrhea and associated symptoms at the time of admission

ite time of demission							
History of patients	Group A (Control)	Group B (SF68)	Group C (<i>S. boulardii)</i>				
No. of stool before treatment of diarrhea (mean ± SD)	12.71±3.25	11.28±3.01	11.25 ± 2.91				
Fever n (%)	17 (48.6 %)	12 (34.3 %)	19 (54.3 %)				
Vomiting n (%)	29 (82.9 %)	27 (77 %)	31 (88.6 %)				

and group C on day 1 (after 24 hrs) but difference was significant between group A and group C from day 2 to day 5.

Figure. 1: No. of Stools After Treatment



Table. 3 summarizes the post-treatment comparison of mean \pm standard deviation of stool consistencies in all study groups over a period of 5 consecutive days.

There was significant difference in improvement of stool consistency among groups. Patients in group B and group C started passing normal stools earlier as compared to patients in group A. At day 5, 80 % of patients had normal stool in group B while 60 % of patients had normal stool in group C as compared to 23% in group A.

Table. 4 summarizes the post-treatment comparison of mean \pm standard deviation of duration of diarrhea in all study groups. The duration of diarrhea was higher in group A as compared to group B and group C. There was no significant difference between group

Table 3: Number (%) of patients with different stool consistencies

	Stool Consistency	Day1	Day2	Day3	Day4	Day5
Group A (control)	Normal				3(8.6%)	8(22.9%)
	Soft			5(14.3%)	6(17.1%)	9(25.7%)
	Semi Liquid	1(2.9%)	7(20%)	5(14.3%)	15(42.9%)	16(45.7)
	Liquid	34(97.1)	28(80%)	25(71.4%)	11(31.4%)	2(5.7%)
Group B	Normal				19(54.3%)	28(80%)
(SF68)	Soft		15(42.9)	23(65.7%)	11(31.4%)	3(8.6%)
	Semi Liquid	14(40%)	10(28.6%)	8(22.9%)	2(5.7%)	3(8.6%)
	Liquid	21(60%)	10(28.6%)	4(11.4%)	3(8.6%)	1(2.9%)
Group C	Normal			1(2.9%)	10(28.6%)	21(60%)
(S. boulardii)	(S. boulardii) Soft		7(20%)	17(48.6%)	13(37.1%)	8(22.9%)
	Semi Liquid	7(20%)	9(25.7%)	10(28.6%)	8(22.9%)	5(14.3%)
	Liquid	28(80%)	19(54.3%)	7(20%)	4(11.4%)	1(2.9%)
<i>p</i> value of Ch	ni square test	0.001	< 0.001	< 0.001	< 0.001	< 0.001

B and group C in terms of duration of diarrhea.

Table. 5 summarizes the post-treatment comparison of mean \pm standard deviation of length of hospital stay in all study groups. The length of hospital stay was higher in group A as compared to group B and group C. There was no significant difference between group B and group C in terms of length of hospital stay.

Figure. 2 illustrates the post-treatment comparison of mean \pm standard deviation of episodes of vomiting in all study groups over a period of 5 consecutive days. The comparison of means of all groups by ANOVA revealed a significant difference between the group

Table 4: Duration of diarrhea (hours)

Groups	Ν	Mean	Standard Deviation	<i>p</i> value
Group A (Control)	35	130.37	63.11	
Group B <i>(SF68)</i>	35	54.26	56.36	< 0.001
Group C (S. boulardii)	35	71.71	53.32	

means with a p value of < 0.001. The patients in group B had less episodes of vomiting as compared to patients in group C at day 1 and at day 2 only.

Figure. 2: Episodes of vomiting after treatment

Group	N	Mean	Standard Deviation	<i>p</i> value
Group A (Control)	35	4.16	1.14	
Group B (SF 68)	35	2.18	1.38	< 0.001
Group C (S. boulardii)	35	2.9	1.42	



Figure. 3 illustrates the post-treatment comparison of mean \pm standard deviation of body temperature in all study groups over a period of 5 consecutive days. The comparison of means of all groups by ANOVA revealed a significant difference between the group means with a p value of <0.001. Body temperature difference was significant only at day 2 after treatment when the patients in group A had high fever as compared patients in group B and group C while the difference was not significant between group B and group C.



Figure. 3: Body Temperature in Study Groups After Treatment

Discussion

This study was a single blind randomized controlled clinical trial carried out in Children Hospital, Lahore. Protective effects of two different probiotics in acute severe diarrhea in infants were compared with standard treatment of diarrhea as well as with each other. Total 105 patients were selected, and each group had 35 patients. The age of patients was between 6 to 12 months. This age group was selected as hospitalization associated with diarrhea is common in this age group.^{12,13} The patients were having severe dehydration at the time of admission and needed IV fluids. All the patients were followed for a period of five days. All the patients received complete intervention. No patient was dropped from the study after selection. The patients in group A received only standard treatment of diarrhea and it was a control group. The patients in group B received standard treatment of diarrhea as well as probiotic Enterococcus faecium SF68 and patients in group C received standard treatment of diarrhea as well as probiotic S. boulardii.

Randomized controlled trials have been done on the effect of S. boulardii in diarrhea and most of these trials showed positive results in decreasing the duration of diarrhea.^{14,15,16,17} Another study was done in Turkey to compare the effect of two probiotics i.e., S. boulardii and Bifidobacterium lactis in acute diarrhea in addition to standard treatment of diarrhea in children. However, in this study, there was no

significant difference in duration of diarrhea and vomiting in control group and the group in which S. boulardii was given.¹⁸ In present study, S. boulardii was given to patients of group C. There was significant difference in stool frequency between group A and group C as stool frequency was reduced in a group receiving S. boulardii. The mechanism by which S. boulardii decrease the duration of diarrhea depends upon the stimulatory effects on the mucosa of intestine, protective action against inflammation and inhibitory action of bacterial toxins.^{19,20} Studies on effect of probiotic Entero-cccus Faecium SF68 in diarrhea in children are limited. One study was done in Switzerland to evaluate the efficacy of Enterococcus faecium SF68 in diarrhea and it showed a decrease in duration of diarrhea in children.²¹ Another study was done in Italy to assess the efficacy of five probiotic preparations iin children suffering from.' Patients were randomly assigned to receive one of five interventions. The control group received only ORS. The other four groups were randomly assigned to receive one of four probiotic preparations in addition to standard treatment of diarrhea. However there was no significant difference in parameters between control group and the groups receiving S. boulardii and Enterococcus faecium SF68. This is contradictory to results of present study. Mechanism of action of Enterococcus faecium SF68 may depend upon the immune system of the body as one study done on animals showed that this probiotic stimulated the immune functions of the host as the group of animals which received the probiotic showed increased fecal IgG and IgA as compared to the animals in the control group.²² In this study, Enterococcus faecium SF68 was given to group B. There was significant difference in stool frequency between control group and the group receiving Enterococcus faecium SF68 as stool frequency was reduced in a group receiving Enterococcus faecium SF68. In present study both probiotics i.e., S. boulardii and Entero-coccus faecium SF68 decreased the stool output, duration of diarrhea and length of hospital stay in infants in acute severe diarrhea. There was no significant difference in stool frequency, duration of diarr-hea and length of hospital stay between group B and group C. Both probiotics also improved the stool consistency and the percentage of infants forming normally formed stool was higher in a group receiving Enterococcus faecium SF68 as compared to

infants receiving S. boulardii. At day 5, 80% of patients formed normal stool in group B while 60% of patients formed normal stool in group C. There was also significant difference in vomiting between group B and group C. The episodes of vomiting at day 1 and at day 2 were less in a group receiving Enterococcus faecium SF68 as compared to group receiving S. boulardii. There are many advantages of this study like the concealment of allocation of infants into specific groups removed the bias. Some infants were discharged early from hospital, but the direct and continuous contact with physician maintained the quality and integrity of results. Like the advantages, there were some limiting factors of the study; the nutritional status and body weight of infants varied because the majority of patients reporting to government hospi-tals belong to low socioeconomic status and general health of infants is very important in terms of immunity. Moreover, the type of diarrhea (infective/ non infective) was not taken into account while selecting infants for study group.

Conclusion

This is the first study which made the comparison of the effects of S. boulardii and Enterococcus faecium SF68 in acute severe diarrhea in infants. In developing countries, the people have less exposure about the benefits of probiotics. As the children in develo-ping countries are malnourished having decreased immunity, adding specific probiotics in acute diarr-hea will help in early recovery leading to socio-economic benefits.

Authors Contribution

KAF: Concept, Design, Data Acquisition, Interpretation, Literature search, Manuscript writing
KZM: Literature search, Data Interpretation, Manuscript writing
RMA: Critical revision, Manuscript formatting
IZ: Literature search, Statistical Analysis
PF: Data Collection & Analysis
CS: Critical revision, Proof Reading

References

- 1. Guandalini S. Diarrhea. [online] Available at: <http:// emedicine.medscape.com/article/928598-overview #showall>[Accessed 16 October 2015].
- Farthing M, Salam MA, Lindberg G, Dite P, Khalif I, Salazar-Lindo E, Ramakrishna BS, Goh KL, Thomson A, Khan AG, Krabshuis J, LeMair A; WGO. Acute diarrhea in adults and children: a global

perspective. J Clin Gastroenterol. 2013;47(1):12-20.

- 3. Nahaisi MH, Ravisankar S, Noratto GD. Probiotics as a strategy to improve overall human health in developing countries. J Prob Health. 2014;2(1):1-9.
- 4. Phad A. Probiotics: Biotherapeutic agents in the human health. JADD. Jan 2014 3;1(1):929.
- 5. Feizizadeh S, Salehi-Abargouei A, Akbari V. Efficacy and safety of Saccharomyces boulardii for Acute Diarrhea. Pediatrics. 2014;134(1):176-191.
- 6. Applegate JA, Walker CLF, Ambikapathi R, Black RE. Systematic review of probiotics for the treatment of community-acquired acute diarrhea in children. BMC Public Health 2013;13(3): 1-8.
- Michail S, Harb R, Botros AM. An Update on Probiotic Safety and Efficacy. Ann Pediatr Child Health. 2015;3(2):1042.
- Hatta M, Supriatmo, Ali M, Sinuhaji AB, Hasibuan B, Nasution FL. Comparison of zinc-probiotic combination therapy to zinc therapy alone in reducing the severity of acute diarrhea. Paediatr Indones. 2011; 51(1): 1-6.
- 9. Canani RB, Cirillo P, Terrin G, Cesarano L, Spagnuolo MI, De Vincenzo A, Albano F, Passariello A, De Marco G, Manquso F, Guarino A. Probiotics for treatment of acute diarrhoea in children: randomised clinical trial of five different preparations. BMJ. 2007 ;335(7615):340-342.
- 10. Khan A, Javed T, Chishti A L. Clinical efficacy of use of probiotic "Saccharomyces boulardii" in children with acute watery diarrhea. Pak Paed J. 2012; 36(3): 122-127.
- 11. Grandy G, Medina M, Soria R, Terán CG, Araya M. Probiotics in the treatment of acute rotavirus diarrhoea: A randomized, double-blind, controlled trial using two different probiotic preparations in Bolivian children. BMC Infect Dis. 2010;10(1):253-259.
- Kosek M, Bern C, Guerrant RL. The global burden of diarrhoeal disease, as estimated from studies published between 1992 and 2000. Bull World Health Organ. 2003;81(3):197-204.
- lker CL, Aryee MJ, Boschi-Pinto C, Black RE. Estimating diarrhea mortality among young children in low and middle income countries. PLoS One. 2012; 7(1):1-7.
- Burande MA, Burande AR. Efficacy of Saccharomyces boulardii strain in acute diarrhea in children : An Indian Perspective. Int.J. Recent Trends Sci. Technol. 2012; 4(1):41-44.
- 15. Hotiana NA, Raza MH, Ayub R. Efficacy of Saccharomyces boulardii Vs Zinc Supplementation in the Management of Acute Childhood Diarrhoea.

PJMHS. 2015; 9(4):1334-1337.

- 16. Shaikh F, Bhand SA, Kumar P, Nizamani MA. Acute diarrhea; role of Saccharomyces boulardii in the treatment. Professional Med J. 2015;22(3):281-286.
- Azim K. Efficacy of Probiotics (Saccharomyces boulardii) in Acute Watery Diarrhea in Children. JRMC. 2014;18(2):216-218
- 18. Erdogan O, Tanyeri B, Torun E, Gonullu E, Arslan H, Erenberk U, Oktem F. The comparition of the efficacy of two different probiotics in Rotavirus gastroentiritis in children. J Trop Med. 2012;(2012):1-5.
- 19. Vandenplas Y, Brunser O, Szajewska H. Saccharomyces boulardii in childhood. Eur J Pediatr. 2009;

168(3):253-265.

- 20. Williams NT. Probiotics. Am J Health Syst Pharm. 2010; 67(6): 449-458.
- D'Apuzzo V, Salzberg R. 1982. [Treatment of acute diarrhoea with Streptococcus faecium in paedtiatrics: results of a double blind study]. Ther Umsch. 1982; 39(12):10331035.
- Benyacoub J, Czarnecki-Maulden GL, Cavadini C, Sauthier T, Anderson RE, Schiffrin EJ, von der Weid T. Supplementation of food with Enterococcus faecium (SF68) stimulates immune functions in young dogs. J Nutr. 2003;133(4):1158-62.

Various Histomorphologic Patterns of Urothelial Carcinoma in TURBT Specimen

Hira Kareem,¹ Amna Jahan,² Iram Nadeem,³ Samra Sameen,⁴ Rajia Liaqat,⁵ Tahira Liaquat⁶

Abstract

Objective. To evaluate the various morphologic patterns of urothelial carcinoma in transurethral resection specimen of urinary bladder.

Method: One hundred ninty three biopsies of transurethral resection of bladder from different age groups without exception of sex and race were included in this study from year 2013-2019 in services hospital Lahore.

Result: Eighty-eight cases from 193 biopsies from services hospital Lahore in 2013 to 2019 were reported as high-grade urothelial carcinoma. While 52out of 193 cases were diagnosed as nested variant of urothelial carcinoma.03 cases neuroendocrine differentiation of urothelial carcinoma is identified and 21 cases having squamous and 12 cases with sarcomatoid differentiation of urothelial carcinoma is reported.

Conclusion: Urothelial carcinoma has many histological variants each having different prognosis and clinical implications. So accurate subtyping of the tumor is important for patient's better management.

Introduction

Definition of histological variants is idiosyncratically dissimilar histomorphologic phenotypes of a particular neoplasm.¹

Urothelial carcinomas are one of those tumors which demonstrate the numerous histological variants. Some of these variants have good prognosis and some are clinically aggressive. Almost 90% of bladder carcinomas are originate from the urothelium. While little proportion 7% of urothelial carcinomas represent as primary squamous cell carcinoma and another 2% represent as primary adenocarcinoma of the bladder.¹ As per literature out of 90% urothelial carcinomas 33% display some constituent of the deviating differentiation. This deviating differentiation includes squamous, glandular, small cell, rhabdoid differentiation and even rarely trophoblastic and Mullerian features. According to 2016 WHO categorization,

1.	Hira Kareem	2.	Amna Jahan	
3.	Iram Nadeem	4.	Samra Sameen	
5.	Rajia Liaqat	6.	Tahira Liaquat	
1.	Demonstration, SIMS/ Sahiwal			
2-4	,6: SIMS/ Sahiwal			
5.	Al-Aleem Medical College			
6.	SIMS/ Sahiwal			
Co	rrespondence:			
Dr.	Hira Kareem. Pathology Departme	ent. SIMS	/ Sahiwal	
Em	ail: amnaiahangir16@gmail.com	,		
	~			
	Submission Date:	27-	10-2020	
	1st Revision Date:	13-	11-2020	

27-11-2020

Acceptance Date:

urothelial carcinoma is reported with its ten histological variants so far. It includes nested, microcytic, micro papillary, lymphoepithelioma like, plasmacytoid, sarcomatoid, giant cell, poorly differentiated, lipid rich and clear cell.⁸

Some of the histomorphologic patterns of urothelial carcinoma are associated with poor prognosis more clinical aggressive as well as poor response to therapy.

Presence of various histology within the same tumor lesion can affect the diagnosis, management and prognosis of the patient. Therefore, it is critically significant to diagnose precisely the various morphological patterns of urothelial carcinoma. To notify the majority of these histomorphologic patterns co-exist with the conventional urothelial carcinoma and do not usually arise in pure form is necessary. Here we discuss some of the histomorphologic patterns of urothelial carcinoma are commonly found in our biopsies.

Nested/Solid histomorphologic pattern of urothelial carcinoma is low grade and rare variant, it has deceivingly bland appearance of tumor cells with mild cytological atypia and mild pleomorphic and occasional prominent nucleoli arranged in small and large nests.⁵ However this innocent morphology has a definitive malignant behavior and can be presented as locally advanced or metastatic disease in a patient due

to delay in diagnosis therefore 3 nested variant of urothelial carcinoma is at an advanced stage at the time of clinical presentation.¹⁸ Diagnosis is not confirmed until muscle invasion is present. Nested/Solid pattern of urothelial carcinoma has good prognosis but the optimal treatment has not yet been resolute because of a rare histomorphologic pattern. Further research is required to define the effective approach.¹⁸

Next is the sarcomatoid pattern of urothelial carcinoma. It is high grade, display both epithelial and sarcomatoid morphology^{2, 17}. Malignant spindle cells leiomyosarcoma-like or another nonspecific heterologous component such as osteosarcoma or chondrosarcoma demonstrate in the sarcomatoid component of this tumor.¹⁷ and the epithelial component is the most commonly of conventional urothelial carcinoma. In some cases, malignant spindle cell component tends to occupy more than fifty percent of the tumor it is possible to lack any epithelial component, that will complicate the diagnosis. This pattern is rare and patients with sarcomatoid carcinoma usually presents with advanced stage and have worse prognosis as compared to conventional urothelial carcinoma. There is no optimal treatment option for this histomorphologic pattern of urothelial carcinoma because many patients develop metastasis after surgery.¹⁴

Now we discussed the neuroendocrine differentiation in the urothelial carcinoma. It is high grade variant of urothelial carcinoma. It includes small cell, large cell neuroendocrine carcinoma, well differentiated neuroendocrine carcinoma and paraganglioma. Small cell and large cell carcinoma arise from urothelial carcinoma and admixed either with the conventional carcinoma or any other morphologic pattern. Morphologically small cell carcinoma exhibits small cells with high nuclear to cytoplasmic ratio, nuclear molding abundant mitotic figures with necrosis and large cell carcinoma has larger cells with evident cytoplasm, finely stippled chromatin and prominent nucleoli. Overall survival rate is poor. Chemotherapy is the only established therapeutic regimen for treated neuroendocrine carcinomas.8

Quite a reasonable case of urothelial carcinoma is observed with definitive areas of squamous and glandular differentiation in high grade urothelial carcinoma and it should be distinguished from primary squamous cell carcinoma and primary adenocarcino-

ma.⁹ The presence of in situ component of urothelial carcinoma indicated the exclusion criteria of primary squamous cell carcinoma or primary adenocarcinoma. As in the absence of any conventional urothelial carcinoma component, primary squamous cell carcinoma or adenocarcinoma should be considered. This pattern presented with worse prognosis and the only treatment option is new adjuvant therapy.¹⁵ Various histomorphologic pattern along with the divergent histology is common in urothelial carcinoma and must be recognized quantified and reported accurately. There are still more fields of research regarding the biological predictive prognostic and treatment implications of urothelial carcinoma with histological variants. Proper recognition and consistent reporting of histomorphologic pattern in urothelial carcinoma is essential. For better defined treatment strategies as well as biomarkers of different variants of urothelial carcinoma more dedicated prospective clinical trials with definitive criteria, tumor registries data base recordings and biopsies are mandatory.

Cystoscopically resection remains the best treatment choice in noninvasive urothelial carcinoma and in some variants of urothelial carcinoma particularly in micro papillary, squamous, plasmacytoid and sarcomatoid. Neo adjuvant chemotherapy is in the chemo sensitive variants particularly in neuroendocrine and lymphoepithelioma like variants of urothelial carcinoma.

Recent research suggested that molecular composition of these urothelial carcinoma could be related to the expression of specific histomorphologic patterns and new subtypes could be identified with further investigation.

Methods

This study is descriptive study held in Pathology Department of Services Institute of Medical Sciences Lahore. We assessed the urothelial carcinoma in 193 cases comes from patients who underwent transurethral resection of bladder in 2013 to 2019 (07 years data). The specimen was retrieved from the files of the Histopathology Department of Services Institute of Medical Sciences. The cases were chosen to represent urothelial carcinoma along with its various variants to be assessed. Good presentation of morphology is the only criteria of selection. Cauterized and quantitatively inadequate material was excluded
from the study. There were not consecutive cases. No patients reported a history of previous treatment. The tumors were diagnosed and reported along with their histological variants' counterpart.

Results

we examined different histological variants of urothelial carcinoma obtained from transurethral resection of bladder from 193 patients in the year of 2013 to 2019 in services hospital Lahore (see Fig. 1). In that study eighty-eight (45.0%) cases were reported as urothelial carcinoma high grade and the remaining cases are represented as histomorphologic patterns of urothelial carcinoma. Fifty-two (49%) cases were nested; three (2.8%) cases were urothelial carcinoma with neuroendocrine differentiation. Twelve cases (11.4%) were reported as sarcomatoid differentiation of urothelial carcinoma and twenty-one cases (20.1%) were reported as urothelial carcinoma with squamous differentiation. Despite in apparent and recent rise in the incidence of variants of urothelial carcinoma the real epidemiology presentation and prognostic values are still not well established. 14So the aim of our study is to better understand the increase in the load of various variants of urothelial carcinoma.



Figure 1: Depiction of the Data through Histogram

Discussion

To choose the better treatment modalities and improvement in the cases of urothelial carcinoma, we should identify and report of the various histomorphologic patterns accurately and it is crucial to identify precise risk stratification of patients with bladder cancer. The presence of some morphological variants such as sarcomatoid differentiation, plasmacytoid and nested in bladder carcinomas are more aggressive and at the time of presentation and often are in advanced stage of disease.



Figure 2: Depiction of the Data through Pie Chart

A single series of large cases has documented that many histomorphologic patterns are common in high grade urothelial carcinoma and that comprised forty percent of the cases in the series by Perez-Montiel D, 2006.²¹ According to this study after squamous and glandular differentiation, sarcomatoid (7%) and micro papillary (3.7%) pattern were the common. Similarly, in our study 40% are of high-grade urothelial carcinoma and 11.4% is sarcomatoid variant but in contrast to this study nested variant is more common in our cases (49%) might be due to increase in incidence of this variants in our population as well as fail to collect data of reporting of micro papillary variant in subsequent other biopsies. Frequency of the various histomorphologic variants with respect to the conventional urothelial carcinoma is guite unavailable. Squamous differentiation is the second most common variant is seen in our cases (20%). The prognostic significance of squamous differentiation is unclear, although some studies of Budia Alba A in 1999, Zhai QJ in 2007 have suggested an adverse outcome.^{2,17} Another study reveals that 60 to 70% cases were of nested variant of urothelial carcinoma^{5,6,19,20,21} as in our study 49% nested variant. It is sufficiently clear that urothelial carcinoma has the ability for the divergent differentiation so for surgical pathologist it is important to be aware of this potential for multidirectional differentiation, as the correct characterization of tumors may have diagnostic, therapeutic or prognostic implications significantly impacting on the management of the patient.

Conclusion

Upgrading in TURP procedures, devoted genitourinary pathologists and emerging genomic techniques for sub typing will lead to a better definition of each histomorphologic patterns of urothelial carcinoma along with related prognosis and treatment strategies.

Author's Contribution

KH: Interpretation, compiling & article writing JA, LT: Interpretation, compiling of data NI, SS: Interpretation, review of data LR: Review of data

References

- 1. Amin MB. Histological variants of urothelial carcinoma: diagnostic, therapeutic and prognostic implications. Modern Pathology. 2009;22(2):S96-S118.
- 2. Budia Alba A, Queipo Zaragoza JA, Perez Ebri ML, et al. Comparative study of pure epidermoid carcinoma of the bladder and transitional cell carcinoma with squamous or mixed differentiated foci. Actas Urol Esp 1999;23:111–118.
- Cheng L, Zhang S, Alexander R, MacLennan GT, Hodges KB, Harrison BT, et al. Sarcomatoid Carcinoma of the Urinary Bladder: The Final Common Pathway of Urothelial Carcinoma Dedifferentiation. The American Journal Of Surgical Pathology. 2011; 35(5):e34-e46.
- 4. Cox R, Epstein JI. Large Nested Variant of Urothelial Carcinoma: 23 Cases Mimicking von Brunn Nests and Inverted Growth Pattern of Noninvasive Papillary Urothelial Carcinoma. The American Journal of Surgical Pathology. 2011;35(9):1337-42
- 5. Dhall D, Al-Ahmadie H, Olgac S. Nested Variant of Urothelial Carcinoma. Archives of Pathology & Laboratory Medicine. 2007;131(11):1725-7.
- 6. Drew PA, Furman J, Civantos F, et al. The nested variant of transitional cell carcinoma: an aggressive neoplasm with innocuous histology. Mod Pathol 1996;9:989–994.
- Horn L, Mansfield AS, Szcz, esna A, Havel L, Krzakowski M, Hochmair MJ, et al. First-Line Atezolizumab plus Chemotherapy in Extensive-Stage Small-Cell Lung Cancer. New England Journal of Medicine. 2018;379(23):2220-9.
- 8. Holmang S, Johansson SL. The nested variant of transitional cell carcinoma—a rare neoplasm with poor prognosis. Scand J Urol Nephrol 2001;35: 102–105
- Humphrey PA, Moch H, Cubilla AL, Ulbright TM, Reuter VE. The 2016 WHO Classification of Tumours of the Urinary System and Male Genital Organs-Part B: Prostate and Bladder Tumours. Eur

Urol. 2016;70(1):106-19.

- Lopez-Beltran A, Cheng L. Histologic variants of urothelial carcinoma: differential diagnosis and clinical implications. Human Pathology. 2006; 37(11): 1371-88.
- 11. Lin O, Cardillo M, Dalbagni G, et al. Nested variant of urothelial carcinoma: a clinicopathologic and immunohistochemical study of 12 cases. Mod Pathol 2003; 16:1289–1298.
- Moch H, Cubilla AL, Humphrey PA, Reuter VE, Ulbright TM. The 2016 WHO Classification of Tumours of the Urinary System and Male Genital Organs 2014;Part A: Renal, Penile, and Testicular Tumours. European Urology. 2016;70(1):93-105.
- 13. Murphy WM, Deana DG. The nested variant of transitional cell carcinoma: a neoplasm resembling proliferation of Brunn's nests. Mod Pathol 1992;5: 240–243.
- 14. Nese N, Kandiloglu AR, Atesci YZ. Nested variant of transitional cell carcinoma with osseous metaplasia of the urinary bladder: a case report and review of published reports. Int J Urol 2007;14:365–367.
- Sanfrancesco J, McKenney JK, Leivo MZ, Gupta S,b Elson P, Hansel DE. Sarcomatoid Urothelial Carcinoma of the Bladder: Analysis of 28 Cases With Emphasis on Clinicopathologic Features and Markers of Epithelialto- Mesenchymal Transition. Archives of Pathology & Laboratory Medicine. 2016;140(6): 543-51.
- 16. Scosyrev E, Ely BW, Messing EM, Speights VO, Grossman HB, Wood DP, et al. Do mixed histological features affect survival benefit from neoadjuvant platinum based combination chemotherapy in patients with locally advanced bladder cancer? A secondary analysis of Southwest Oncology Group-Directed Intergroup Study (S8710).
- 17. Torenbeek R, Blomjous CE, de Bruin PC, Newling DW, Meijer CJ. Sarcomatoid carcinoma of the urinary bladder. Clinicopathologic analysis of 18 cases with immunohistochemical and electron microscopic findings. Am J Surg Pathol. 1994;18(3):241-9.
- Tania Processali, Alberto Diminutto, Maria Angela Cerruto, Alessandro Antonelli The impact of histological variants on bladder cancer outcomes
- 19. Venyo AK-G. Nested Variant of Urothelial Carcinoma. Advances in Urology. 2014;2014:24.
- 20. Perez-Montiel D, Hes O, Michal M, et al. Micropapillary urothelial carcinoma of the upper urinary tract: clinicopathologic study of five cases. Am J Clin Pathol 2006;126:86–92.
- 21. Zhai QJ, Black J, Ayala AG, et al. Histologic variants of infiltrating urothelial carcinoma. Arch Pathol Lab Med 2007;131:1244–1256

Original Article

Single-Stage Combined Surgery for Treating Neglected Bilateral Developmental Hip Dysplasia after Walking Age

Abdul Latif Shahid,¹ Zulqarnain Butt,² Islam Hussain,³ Farhad Alam,⁴ Naila Asad,⁵ Muhammad Nazir Awan,⁶ Hana Khurshid⁷

Abstract

Objectives: To determine outcome in Single Stage Surgery of Both Hips in Bilateral Developmental Dysplasia of Hip in Children after walking age.

Methods: This was a retrospective review of 20 hips in 10 patients (7 females and 3 males), operated at the children's hospital and the institute of child health, Lahore between 2014 and 2016. The age of patients was between 2 and 5 years. There were 10 hips in grade IV, 6 in grade III and 4 in grade II according to Tonnis classification. Both hips were operated in single stage. Open reduction of hip joint was done by anterolateral approach in all children. Salter osteotomy was done in every child while femoral shortening was needed in 10 hips. Outcome of single stage surgery was assessed by radiological assessment of Severin's scoring system and functional assessment of MacKay's scoring system at final followup after 2 years of suegery.

Results: There was no effect of age, gender, malnutrition, body mass index on outcome. According to Severin's scoring system, 14 hips (70%) were in grade I while 6(30%) in grade II. Outcome was excellent in 6 hips (30%), good in 13 (60%) and fair in 1 (5%) by applying MacKay's scoring system. Hip spica of one child was changed after one month due to wetting with urine. There was no hip dislocation or subluxation in any case.

Conclusion: Single stage surgery of both hips can be done safely in bilateral developmental dysplasia of hip by anterolateral approach in late presented children.

Key Words: Developmental dysplasia of hip, Single stage surgery.

Introduction

Developmental dysplasia of the hip (DDH) is a broad term having many aspects depending on patient's age at diagnosis and can lead to no problem in future and sometimes permanent disability.¹

- 1. Abdul Latif Shahid
- Zulqarnain Butt

Islam Hussain
 Naila Asad

4. Farhad Alam

2

- 6. Muhammad Nazir Awan
- Hana Khurshid
 Pediatric Orthopedics, The Children's Hospital and the Institute of child Health, Lahore
- 2. Avicenna Medical College and hospital, Lahore
- 3. Pediatric Orthopedics, The Children's Hospital and the Institute of Child Health, Lahore.
- 4. Pediatric Orthopedics, The Children's Hospital and the Institute of Child Health, Lahore.
- 5. Anaesthesia, Services Institute of Medical Sciences/Services Hospital Lahore
- 6. Islamic International Medical College, Rawalpindi
- 7. Avicenna Medical College and hospital, Lahore.

Correspondence:

Dr. Abdul Latif Shahid, Email: abdullatifshahid01@gmail.com

Submission Date:	22-08-2020
1st Revision Date:	30-09-2020
Acceptance Date:	24-11-2020

The overall incidence worldwide ranges from 1 to 34 cases per 1000 births.² Hip screening of neonates by physical examination should be done for proper diagnosis. In younger children, ultrasonography is the best while radiographs should be diagnostic modality in older children². The reason for late presentation of cases is delayed or missed diagnosis and failure in conservative or operative treatment.³ The incidence of late presentation is high in developing countries like Pakistan due to lack of awareness and negligence of family. Significant changes occur in joint with time such as dysplasia of the acetabulum, constriction of the acetabular capsule, fixation of the inversion of the limbus, thickened round ligament, infiltration of the acetabulum by fibrous tissue and femoral anteversion. If the problem is not treated in time, it will lead to early onset osteoarthritis and significant morbidities.⁴ Age of late presentation is different in different countries like after three months in Australia.⁵

Bracing, Traction, Closed reduction, Open reduction of hip with capsulorraphy and Pelvic or/and Femoral osteotomies are commonly used to treat DDH after walking age.⁶ The purpose of the DDH treatment is to achieve a stable hip joint by providing concentric reduction. This will stimulate normal development of femoral head and acetabulum.^{7,8} Children older than three years usually require open reduction combined with pelvic and femoral osteotomy.⁷ The main objective of treatment is to provide ideal environment of both femoral head and acetabulum for their development⁷. Most popular surgical technique to correct the deformity is combined open reduction with femoral shortening." Multiple studies have shown improved outcome in combination of open reduction, femoral shortening and pelvic osteotomies in single stage." There is no conclusive evidence in the literature to support pre-treatment traction methods.⁸ The rationale of my study is to determine outcome of single stage surgery of both hips in bilateral developmental dysplasia of hip in children after walking age. The result of this study will allow us to change our previous concepts regarding management of bilateral developmental dysplasia of hip in children after walking age.

Methods

After approval from the ethical review committee of our hospital, this retrospective case series study was done. 10 patients with 20 hips who came in outpatient department of pediatric orthopedics of the Children Hospital and the Institute of Child Health, Lahore during 2014 and 2016 and fulfill the inclusion criteria were enrolled for this study. Our selection criteria were all patients aged 2-5 years with bilateral DDH. Children with age less than two years, who had taken initial treatment, paralytic, pathological, teratologic or traumatic dislocations and neuromuscular disease were excluded from the study. Informed consent and demographic profile (name, age, sex, and contact) was obtained. The procedure details, benefits and complications explained to parents. Preoperatively radiograph of pelvis including both hips anteroposterior view was taken and acetabular index was measured. Clinical data of all the patients like pain symptoms, range of hip joint motion, status of Trendelenburg sign and gait pattern were recorded for all the patients. The degree of dislocation of the femoral head was assessed by Tonnis classification system. A

single surgical team carried out all procedures uniformly to reduce bias. Open reduction of both hip joints was done using anterolateral approach. Right side was operated first and then left side. Bilateral adductor tenotomy was done. Psoas tenotomy was done and intraarticular obstacles like pulvinar, ligamentum teres and transverse acetabular ligament were removed. Capsulotomy was done and femoral head was located within acetabulum. Decision about femoral shortening was made intraoperatively in case of difficulty in femoral head reduction. Salter osteotomy was performed if femoral head coverage was deficient. Capsulorrhaphy was done on both sides in all patients. After right side, left side was operated similarly. Bilateral hip spica was applied for a period of ten weeks. All data was collected on single proforma. Follow up period was 2 years. After ten weeks, hip spica and wires were removed under general anaesthesia. Union was assessed radiologically on every visit for 3-6months. Now full weight bearing was allowed and physiotherapy started assessing with radiological union. Dynamic compression plate used for femoral shortening was removed after one year under general anaesthesia. With evidence of occurrence of union on X-Ray, walking was advised. The outcome was assessed postoperatively by modified MacKay's criteria (table 1) and Severin's scoring system (table 2) at final follow up visit after 2 years.

Results

A total of 10 patients (20 hips) were operated for bilateral DDH. There were seven females (70%) and 3(30%) males. 10(50%) hips were in grade IV, 6(30%) hips in grade III and 4 (20%) hips in grade II according to Tönnis classification. Mean preoperative acetabular index angles were 38.6° for right hips and 38.2° for left hips. After surgery, mean acetabular index angles were19.6° for right hips and 20.2° for left hips. According to Severin's scoring system, 14 hips (70%) were in grade I while 6 hips (30%) in grade II. No patients were seen with Severin's Grade III, IV and V. The clinical outcome was excellent in 6 hips (30%), good in 13 hips (65%) and fair in 1 hip (5%) by applying MacKay's scoring system. Hip spica of one child had to be changed after one month due to wetting with urine. There was no hip dislocation or subluxation in any case.

Discussion

DDH is unilateral in 80% cases (60% on left side

while 20% on right side) and bilateral in 20% cases⁷. In unilateral cases, initial treatment is Pavlik harness, then closed reduction and hip spica if brace treatment fails. Open reduction of hip with capsulorrhaphy combined with femoral and pelvic osteotomies(triple procedure) is treatment of choice in children after walking age.¹⁰ The results of our study found 70% hips in grade I and 30% in grade II of Severin scoring system. According to Mackay scoring 30% hips were in excellent condition, 60% good and 5% in fair condition. In our study no patient required subsequent operation for redislocation and subluxation. There was 50% reduction in mean acetabular index angles postoperatively. Several research works have evaluated the functional and radiographic outcomes of surgical reconstruction for DDH. Mansoor et al found excellent and good radiological and clinical results in the one-stage pro-cedure (open reduction and proximal femoral derota-tion osteotomy) in 15 patients with DDH. Compar-able to our study results he found 66.6% in Grade I and 26.6% Grade II of Severin scores in his patients. The difference was seen in Mackay scoring where his results showed excellent condition of hips in 40% vs 30% in our study, good condition in 40% vs 60 %.¹¹Similar to our study Qadir I et al found single stage procedure of open reduction, femoral shortening and pelvic osteotomy for treatment of DDH in older children with good to excellent functional and radio-logical outcomes. The results of his retrospective analysis was 28.6% in excellent condition vs 30% in our results, 44 (57.1%) in good condition vs 60% of our study results. The only difference was that they found 9 (11.7%) hips in fair condition whereas we had 5% hips that were in fair condition and also we did not find any hip in poor condition while they had 2(2.6%)in poor condition.9 Contrasting results with 90% success rate have been documented by various researchers. In a case series study by Saqib et al, variation from our results was concluded. 34.8% of patients achieved grade I (excellent) of McKay's classification and 39.1% grade II (good) in single stage triple procedure of open reduction, femoral and pelvic osteotomy.⁴ The disparity was also shown in Severin grading as they found 95.7% below grade III whereas none of the patients in our study were in grade III. This difference could be due to the follow up period of one year. Kashif et al studied the outcome of one stage correc-tion of developmental dysplasia

of hip (DDH) in children older than three years of age. They reported 14% hips were in Severin grade III, 21% in grade II and 50% in grade I. According to Modified Mackay's scoring system clinical outcome of 50% hips were excellent (stable hips with pain free full range of motion, no limp and negative Trendelenburg sign), 32% hips were good, 11% hips were fair and 7% hips were poor.⁷ The difference in their results from our study could be due to the time of clinical evaluation postoperatively as we had followed up for 24 months in contrast to their 12 month evaluation. Hung NN and Duc HH compared Outcome between Salter Innominate Osteotomy and Zigzag Osteotomy Combined Fibular Allograft for Developmental Dysplasia of the Hip in Children. Their results with Salter Innominate Osteotomy according to Modified Mackay's scoring system were excellent hips in 73.9%, good in 18.3%, Fair in 5.3% and poor in 2.5%. Radiologically 77.1% were in Severin grade I, 14.8% in grade II, 4.9% in grade III and 2.5% in grade IV⁶. Their results were different than our study which could be due to different preoperative management techniques used.

Baki et al treated 32 hips (22 patients) with developmental dysplasia by a single-stage open reduction through Ferguson's medial approach and Pemberton acetabuloplasty. The clinical results were excellent in 30 hips (93.8%) and good in two (6.2%) as per Mackay scoring. Radiological assessment showed that 29 hips (90.6%) were rated as class I and three hips (9.4%) were class II by Severin classification¹². This difference in results from our study could be due to difference in methodology of the operation as they operated via a medial approach. Hosny MM evaluate the clinical as well as the radio-graphic results of management of bilateral DDH cases with Salter and Dega osteotomy. The final clinical outcome results with Salter technique were excellent in 30% hips, good in 40%, fair in 25% and poor in 10%.¹³ The advantage of choosing single stage operation was short hospital stay with no need of repeated immobilization and decreased joint stiffness. Also changes in the sacroiliac joint and pubic regions are limited in the single stage operation, and there is less damage to the pelvic inlet, birth canal, sciatic nerve and vessels.¹⁴ The limitations of the present study comprise its retrospective nature and the limited number of children. Also it only represents the experience of a single institution without a comparative study. Future studies can be done to compare different techniques and also with different institutions.

Conclusion

The results conclude that single stage surgery of both hips can be done safely in bilateral developmental

Table 1: Modified McKay Criteria

Excellent	Stable, painless hip, no limp, negative Trendelenburg sign, and a full range of movement
Good	Stable, painless hip, slight limp, negative Trendelenburg sign, and a slight decrease in range of movement
Fair	Stable, painless hip, limp, positive Trendelenburg sign, and limitation of movement
Poor	Unstable or painful hip, or both; positive Trendelenburg sign

Table 2: Severin's Scoring System

Grade I	Normal appearance			
Grade II	Mild deformity of the femoral head and neck or the acetabulum			
Grade III	Moderate deformity of the femoral head and neck or the acetabulum or both			
Grade IV	Subluxation of the femoral head			
Grade V	Articulation of the femoral head with a false acetabulum			
Grade VI	Redislocation			

dysplasia of hip by anterolateral approach in children after walking age.

Authors Contribution

SLA: Manuscript Writing NZ: Study Concept andDesign HI, AF: Data Acquisition AN: Statistical Analysis AANM: Data Interpretation KH: Manuscript Review

References

- Wilkinson A.G., Wilkinson S. Neonatal hip dysplasia: a new perspective. Neo Reviwes. 2010; 11(7): e349–e362.Nguyen Ngoc Hung and Hoang Hai Duc. "Comparative Outcome between Salter Innominate Osteotomy and Zigzag Osteotomy Combined Fibular Allograft for Developmental Dysplasia of the Hip in Children". EC Orthopaedics 9.4 (2018): 187-210.
- 2. Al-Essa RS, Aljahdali FH, Alkhilaiwi RM, Philip W, Jawadi AH, Khoshhal KI. Diagnosis and treatment of developmental dysplasia of the hip: a current practice

of paediatric orthopaedic surgeons. J Orthop Surg (Hong Kong) 2017;25 (2): 2309499017717197

- 3. Li H, Ye W, Xu L, Li L, Zhu W, Zheng Z. Sequential one-stage combined procedure for treating bilateral developmental hip dysplasia after walking age. J Int Med Res. 2019;47(7):2901-2909.
- 4. Saqib M, Salman M,Hayat S, Khan MA, Shakirulla. Developmental dysplasia of the hip in older children; prospects of functional and radiological outcome following a single stage triple procedure. Ayub Med CollAbbottabad 2019;31(3):427-31.
- 5. Studer K, Williams N, Antoniou G, et al. Increase in late diagnosed developmental dysplasia of the hip in South Australia: risk factors, proposed solutions. Med J Aust 2016;204:240.
- 6. Hung NN and Duc HH. Comparative Outcome between Salter Innominate Osteotomy and Zigzag Osteotomy Combined Fibular Allograft for Developmental Dysplasia of the Hip in Children. EC Orthopaedics 2018; 9.4: 187-210.
- 7. Kashif S, Khan BA, Sana ullah, Ihsan ullah. Outcome of one Stage Surgical Correction of Developmental Dysplasia of Hip (DDH) in Children Older than three years of age. PJMHS 2016; 10(1): 258-261.
- 8. Çiçekli O and Doğan M. Evaluation of surgical outcome in advanced age patients with developmental hip dysplasia. International Journal of Surgery 2018;52:44–49.
- 9. Qadir I, Ahmad S, Zaman A, Khan CM, Ahmad S, Aziz A. One-stage Hip Reconstruction for Developmental Hip Dysplasia in Children over 8 Years of Age. Hip Pelvis 2018;30(4): 260-268.
- 10. Agarwal A, Gupta N. Risk factors and diagnosis of developmental dysplasia of hip in children. J Clin Orthop Trauma. 2012;3(1):10-14.
- 11. Mansoor AK, Kraidi B, Al-Naser LM. Simultaneous versus two stages surgical treatment of developmental dislocation of the hip with excessive femoral anteversion in children under the age of three years. Journal of Ideas in Health 2018;1(2):34-41
- 12. Baki ME, Baki C, Bünyamin HA1 and Özcan M. Single-stage medial open reduction and Pemberton acetabuloplasty in developmental dysplasia of the hip
- 13. Hosny MM, Issa KH. Bilateral developmental dysplasia of the hip: setting an upper age limit for open reduction. Egypt Orthop J 2015;50:259-62.
- Ezirmik N, Yildiz K. Advantages of Single-stage Surgical Treatment with Salter Innominate Osteotomy and Pemberton Pericapsular Osteotomy for Developmental Dysplasia of Both Hips. JIMR 2012; 40:748-755.

Mode of Delivery in Pregnant Females with Fibroid Uterus Presenting in Spontaneous Labour

Uzma Aziz,¹ Madiha Afzal,² Hadia Shabbir³

Abstract

Objectives: 1) To determine the mode of delivery of obstetric population with uterine fibroids presenting in spontaneous labor. 2) To determine the various indications for emergency cesarean section in pregnancies with uterine fibroids.

Methods: It was a Descriptive cross sectional study done at Obstetric unit of Arif Memorial teaching Hospital, from June 2019 to May 2020. 50 pregnant patients with uterine fibroids in spontaneous labor were included in the study with 95% confidence level and 5% margin of error.

Results: In our study, 62 % (n=31) patients were between 20-30 years of age with 38 % (n=19) between 31-40 years with Mean age and SD 25.63 ±2.89 years. 68% (n=32) patients were between 34-36 weeks of gestation whereas 32% (n=18) were between 37-39 weeks with Mean gestational age and SD 29.66 ±1.59. 66 % (n=33) patients were Primigravida to Gravida 3 and 34% (n=17) were Gravida4 to Gravida 5. The frequency of emergency caesarean section in patients with uterine fibroids was 58% (n=29) whereas 42 % (n=21) cases with uterine fibroids had normal vaginal delivery. The most frequent indication for emergency cesarean section was labor dystocia i.e. (41.37%).

Conclusion: The frequency of emergency caesarean section amongst patients with uterine fibroids presenting in spontaneous labor is high particularly due to labor arrest. The number of fibroids has an impact on mode of delivery in these patients. Therefore each obstetric patient with uterine fibroids, must be evaluated thoroughly for the appropriate mode of delivery in prenatal period.

Key Words: Pregnancy, uterine fibroids, mode of delivery, cesarean section, spontaneous vaginal delivery

Introduction

The fibroids are the benign tumors of smooth muscle cells of the uterus. They are the most frequent benign tumors found in females in their reproductive age.

The incidence of the uterine fibroids increases to 40%-60% by 35 years of age and rises to 70%-80% at 50 years of age but still the etiology of uterine fibroids is not exactly understood.¹ The incidence of preg-

1.	Uzma Aziz
3.	Hadia Shabbir

2. Madiha Afzal

3. Medical Office, BHU Gujrat

Correspondence:

Dr. Uzma Aziz, Assistant Professor, Department of Obst. And Gynae, Arif Memorial Teaching Hospital / Rashid Latif, Medical College, Lahore E-mail: uzmaazizjaved@gmail.com

Submission Date:	11-10-2020
1st Revision Date:	05-11-2020
Acceptance Date:	24-11-2020

nancy with fibroids is about 0.5% to 4%.² The prevalence of fibroids in pregnancy in Pakistan is 0.87%.³ The frequency of uterine fibroid with pregnancy is increasing because of couple's tendency to delay first pregnancy till the age of 30. Due to increase in estrogen/ progestin levels, 15% - 30% of fibroids will enlarge in pregnancy. However most of the fibroids shrink in size during puerperium.⁴ Less than 3cm Intramural and sub serosal fibroids are not clinically significant. Pregnancies associated with uterine fibroids are labelled as high risk pregnancies. Most of these pregnancies with fibroid uterus are usually uneventful but sometimes, serious complications can occur during the course of pregnancy, depending upon the size, site and location of the fibroid.⁵ About 10%-30% of females with uterine fibroids face obstetric complications during pregnancy.¹The recent evidence reports a higher rate of cesarean delivery particularly in women with large uterine fibroids when compared with normal vaginal deli-very rate i.e. 48.8% vs. 13.3% and the most common cause for

^{1.} Department of Obst. And Gynae, Arif Memorial Teaching Hospital / Rashid Latif, Medical College, Lahore

^{2.} Department of Obst. And Gynae, Arif Memorial Teaching Hospital / Rashid Latif, Medical College, Lahore

emergency caesarean section was dysfunc-tional labor while malpresentation was the commo-nest indication for elective caesarean section in these patients.⁶⁰ Women with uterine fibroid have increased caesarean section rate due to distortion of uterine cavity or other obstetric reasons.⁴ In such pregnancies caesarean section rate, postpartum hemorrhage and prolong hospital stay is found to be high and needs specific follow up.⁷⁻⁹Conversely, Vergani et al. reported a high vaginal delivery rate amongst laboring women with fibroids and concluded that pregnant women with fibroids should be counseled for the trial of labor.¹⁰Ciavattini et al. found high rate of emergency caesa-rean section in patients with multiple uterine fibroids as compared to pregnant females with single or no fibroids delivering vaginally.¹¹ The size, number and location of uterine fibroids have significant impact on the mode of delivery. So prior information is useful in assigning risk category of a pregnant female with fibroids.¹²Our study was aimed to determine the mode of deli-very in pregnant obstetric population with fibroid uterus presenting in spontaneous labour. In our study the mode of delivery of pregnancy with uterine fibroid was dependent on the size, number of fibroids that was comparable to the study of Poovathi and Ramalingam.¹³ The inconsistent available data in the literature about the preferred mode of delivery in pregnancies with uterine fibroids provides the reason to carry out this research. As pregnant females with uterine fibroids have greater concerns to know about their mode of delivery, our study will be a good addition in previous available literature to determine the mode of delivery in these patients thus making counseling of these patients to be done appropriately regarding mode of delivery.

Methods

It was Descriptive cross-sectional study which was conducted at Obstetric unit of Arif memorial teaching Hospital, Lahore from June 2019 to, May 2020 after taking approval from ethical committee of RLMC. 50 pregnant females with uterine fibroids having spontaneous labor were selected with a 95% Confidence level and 5 % margin of error with non-probability purposive sampling technique after fulfilling the inclusion criteria. Written informed consent was taken from the patients to use their data for this study. The collected data was analyzed by using SPSS version 17.

Inclusion Criteria

- 20-40 years of age
- PG to Gravida 5
- with a Gestational age 34 weeks 39 weeks
- single or multiple uterine fibroids > 3 cm
- having spontaneous labor

Exclusion Criteria

- Pregnancy with maternal medical disorders
- Previous caesarean section
- Fetal malpresentation
- Placenta previa
- Cervical fibroids
- Inadequate pelvis
- Lower segment uterine fibroid of >8 cm were excluded from the study.

All patients were given a trial of labor and followed till their delivery. Their progress of labor was monitored with partogram and fetal condition was assessed by continuous fetal heart rate monitoring with cardiotocography.

Results

A total of 50 cases fulfilling the study criteria were included to assess the rate of caesarean section in pregnant patients with uterine fibroids.

Age distribution of the patients showed that 62% (n=31) were between 20-30 years whereas 38%% (n=19) were between 31-40 years of age with mean and standard deviation of the patient's age as 25.63 ± 2.89 years. (Table No. 1)

68% (n=32) patients were between 34+0-36+6 weeks of gestation whereas 32% (n=18) were between 37+0-39+6 weeks while the mean and standard deviation for the gestation age was determined as 29.66±1.59. (Table No. 1)

66 % (n=33) patients were between Primigravida to Gravida3 and 34% (n=17) were between Gravida4 to Gravida5. (Table No. 1)

The frequency of caesarean section in patients with uterine fibroids was 58% (n=29) whereas 42% (n=21) cases with uterine fibroids had spontaneous vagi-

nal delivery. (Table No. 2)

The most frequent indication for emergency caesarean section was labor dystocia 12 (41.37%) followed by fetal distress 10 (34.50%), PROM with poor bishop score 4 (13.79%), cord prolapse 2 (6.89%), and placental abruption 1 (3.44%) being the least common indication for abdominal delivery. (Table 3)

Table 1: Distribution of Age. Parity and Gestation Age

5	8, 2	0
Age(in years)	No. of patients	Percentage
20-30	31	62 %
31-40	19	38 %
Total	50	100 %
Mean ±SD	25.63±2.89	
Gestational Age in week	(5	
$34^{+0} - 36^{+6}$	34	68 %
$37^{+0} - 39^{+6}$	16	32 %
Total	50	100 %
Mean± SD	29.66 ± 1.59	
Parity		
Primigravida-Gravida ³	33	66 %
Gravida ⁴ -Gravida ⁵	17	34
Total	50	100 %

Figure-I shows that 25 (86.20%) patients with multiple fibroids having trial of labor ended up in emergency caesarean section as compared to 4 (13.80%) patients with single fibroid who had caesarean

Table 2: Mode of delivery in patients with uterine fibroids

MOD	No. of patients	Percentage
Caesarean section	29	58 %
Spontaneous vaginal delivery	21	42 %
Total	50	100 %

section.

Figure-II shows that 15 (71.4%) patients with single fibroid delivered vaginally when compared to 6 (28.6%) patients with multiple fibroids delivering vaginally.

Table 3: Indication for	emergency	Caesarean	section	in
patients with fibroids				

Indication	No. of Patients	Percentage
Labor Dystocia	12	41.37 %
Fetal Distress	10	34.50 %
PROM with poor bishop score	4	13.79 %
Cord Prolapse	2	6.89 %
Placental Abruption	1	3.44 %
Total	29	100 %



Discussion

Uterine fibroids are the commonest benign tumors of the female genital tract. They occur in 30-70% females in their reproductive ages.¹⁴ These tumors have been implicated as a risk factor for increased caesarean section in pregnant women. The frequency of fibroids increases with the advancing age of the females and is generally most common among African American females.¹⁵ The prevalence of uterine fibroid in pregnancy is 0.1%–10.7%.^{16,17} Presence of fibroids in pregnancy increases the likelihood of obstetric complication by 10%–30% while increasing the frequency of caesarean section up to 70%.¹⁸ Past studies on delivery outcomes in females with uterine fibroids have shown disparities and inconsistent results. These studies show that in such pregnancies, the incidence of operative delivery increases.^{19, 20} In our study, 62 % (n=31) of the patients were bet-ween 20-30 years of age. This finding is in compa-rison to the study of Javed M who concluded that 59% of the pregnant females with fibroid uterus presented at a younger age i.e. between 20-30 years of age.⁵ The increased incidence of uterine fibroids in young pregnant obstetric population can be justified by quoting that estrogen and progesterone which stimulate the uterine lining during menstrual cycle in preparation for pregnancy appear to promote the growth of fibroids which contain more estrogen and progesterone receptors than normal uterine muscles do. In our study, 66 % (n=33) patients were between para 1 to para 3 and 34% (n=17) were between para 4 to para 5.

The fibroids are usually associated with nulli-parity. The relative risk of fibroids decreases with increasing parity and each additional term pregnancy, the risk is reduced to one fifth with five term preg-nancies compared with nulliparous females.⁽²¹⁾ This is similar to the findings in nulliparous black females in whom there is a nine-fold increase in the incidence of fibroids. Females with uterine fibroids have had fewer term pregnancies and are generally of lower parity than the females without this problem.²² The frequency of caesarean section in our patients with uterine fibroids was 58 % (n=29) and 42% (n=21) patients with uterine fibroids had a normal vagi-nal birth. The results of the current research are in concurrence with the study done by Javed M indicating that the caesarean delivery rate was 63.5% in pregnancies with fibroid uterus.⁵ One research shows that there is the strong associa-tion between the uterine fibroids and an increased risk of caesarean section, particularly with large size fibroid. Another study by Youssef A, recorded the caesarean section in 47.8% of the pregnant patients with fibroids which is less than that of our results.²³ The increased rate of emergency caesarean section in our study was noticed because of increased incidence of dysfunctional labor due to distorted uterine anato-my leading to failure to progress and large tumor volume. Also the most common indication for emergency caesarean section in our patients was labor dystocia i.e. 12 patients (41.37%), followed by fetal distress i.e. 10 (34.5%)patients, PROM with poor BISHOP score i.e. 4 (13.7%) patients, Cord prolapse i.e. 2 (6.8%) patients and placental abruption i.e. 1 (3.5%) patients. This finding of our study was comparable with the research done by NOOR S showing that failure to progress (39%) and fetal distress(38%), PROM (14%) were the most common indications and placental abruption(3.3%) the least common indication for emergency caesarean delivery.²⁴ Although previous literature and our study reports that uterine fibroids are associated with an increased rate of emergency caesarean section in patients having trial of labor.^{25,26} We also determined the association between the number of fibroids and its impact on mode of delivery thus observing that our study population having multiple fibroids ended up more in emergency caesarean section than those having single fibroid who successfully ended in having vaginal delivery i.e. (86% vs. 71%). This finding is in comparison to the study of Zhao R who concluded that SVD rate is high in patients with single fibroids than patients with multiple fibroids.¹² However Valerie I et al didn't find difference in the mode of delivery (Normal vaginal Delivery and caesarean

section) in females with multiple fibroids compared with those having single or no fibroids.²⁷ This finding was also supported by Stout et al in which females with single fibroid 5 < cm didn't have an increased risk of a caesarean delivery when contrasted with females with multiple fibroids >5 cm.²⁸ The limitation of our study was that we didn't consider the location of the fibroids (subserosal, intramural or submucosal) to see the impact on mode of delivery.

Conclusions

We concluded from our study that the rate of emergency caesarean section is higher among patients with uterine fibroids with labor dystocia the most common indication of emergency caesarean section. So it is recommended that

- 1. Each patient who presents with uterine fibroids, must be assessed at consultant level at term to determine the suitable mode of delivery.
- 2. Promote obstetric practice that multiple/ large fibroids are not absolute contraindication for trial of labor provided prior assessment of patient has been done in antenatal period to be eligible for trial of labor.

These strategies will help to reduce the frequency of caesarean section in pregnant patients with fibroid uterus thus increasing chances of normal vaginal delivery.

Conflict of interest and Funding

The authors declared that they have no conflict of interest and did not received any funding.

Authors Contribution

AU: Literature Search, Study Concept & Design AM: Data Collection

SH: Data Collection and Analysis

References

- 1. Lee HJ, Norwitz ER, Shaw J. Contemporary management of fibroids in pregnancy. Reviews in Obstetrics and Gynecology. 2010;3(1):20.
- Tchente NC, Fogaing A, Tejiokem M, Nana NP, Mbu R, Leke R. Pregnancy outcome in a group of Cameroonian women with uterine fibroids. Journal de gynecologie, obstetrique et biologie de la reproduction. 2009;38(6):493.
- 3. Egbe TO, Badjang TG, Tchounzou R, Egbe E-N, Ngowe MN. Uterine fibroids in pregnancy: prevalence, clinical presentation, associated factors and outcomes at the Limbe and Buea Regional Hospitals, Cameroon: a cross-sectional study. BMC research notes. 2018;11(1):889.
- 4. Ortiz FM, Romero BP, García EE, Barraza JB, Castro EQ, Garay FdJP. Uterine leiomyomas during pregnancy and its impact on obstetric outcome. Gineco-

logia y obstetricia de Mexico. 2011;79(08):467-73.

- 5. JAVED M, TARIQ R, RASHID M. Effect of Uterine Fibroid on Pregnancy Outcome. Pain (Abdominal pain).PJMHS.2010;4(4):476-478.
- 6. Qidwai GI, Caughey AB, Jacoby AF. Obstetric outcomes in women with sonographically identified uterine leiomyomata. Obstetrics & Gynecology. 2006; 107(2): 376-82.
- Klatsky PC, Tran ND, Caughey AB, Fujimoto VY. Fibroids and reproductive outcomes: a systematic literature review from conception to delivery. American journal of obstetrics and gynecology. 2008; 198(4): 357-66.
- 8. Lam S-J, Best S, Kumar S. The impact of fibroid characteristics on pregnancy outcome. American journal of obstetrics and gynecology. 2014; 211(4): 395. e1-. e5.
- 9. Sunkara SK, Khairy M, El-Toukhy T, Khalaf Y, Coomarasamy A. The effect of intramural fibroids without uterine cavity involvement on the outcome of IVF treatment: a systematic review and meta-analysis. Human Reproduction. 2010;25(2):418-29.
- Vergani P, Locatelli A, Ghidini A, Andreani M, Sala F, Pezzullo JC. Large uterine leiomyomata and risk of cesarean delivery. Obstetrics & Gynecology. 2007; 109(2): 410-4.
- 11. Ciavattini A, Clemente N, Delli Carpini G, Di Giuseppe J, Giannubilo SR, Tranquilli AL. Number and size of uterine fibroids and obstetric outcomes. The journal of maternal-fetal & neonatal medicine. 2015;28(4):484-8.
- 12. Zhao R, Wang X, Zou L, Li G, Chen Y, Li C, et al. Adverse obstetric outcomes in pregnant women with uterine fibroids in China: A multicenter survey involving 112,403 deliveries. Plos one. 2017; 12(11): e0187821.
- 13. Poovathi M, Ramalingam R. Maternal and Fetal Outcome in Pregnancy with Fibroids: A Prosp ective Study. International Journal of Scientific Study. 2016; 3(11):169-72.
- 14. Okolo S. Incidence, aetiology and epidemiology of uterine fibroids. Best practice & research Clinical obstetrics & gynaecology. 2008;22(4):571-88.
- 15. Marshall LM, Spiegelman D, Barbieri RL, Goldman MB, Manson JE, Colditz GA, et al. Variation in the incidence of uterine leiomyoma among premenopausal women by age and race. Obstetrics & Gynecology. 1997;90(6):967-73.
- 16. Hasan F, Arumugam K, Sivanesaratnam V. Uterine leiomyomata in pregnancy. International Journal of

Gynecology & Obstetrics. 1991;34(1):45-8.

- Laughlin SK, Baird DD, Savitz DA, Herring AH, Hartmann KE. Prevalence of uterine leiomyomas in the first trimester of pregnancy: an ultrasound screening study. Obstetrics and gynecology. 2009; 113(3): 630.
- 18. Katz VL, Dotters DJ, Droegemeuller W. Complications of uterine leiomyomas in pregnancy. Obstetrics and gynecology. 1989;73(4):593-6.
- 19. Coronado GD, Marshall LM, Schwartz SM. Complications in pregnancy, labor, and delivery with uterine leiomyomas: a population-based study. Obstetrics & Gynecology. 2000;95(5):764-9.
- 20. Michels KA, Edwards DRV, Baird DD, Savitz DA, Hartmann KE. Uterine leiomyomata and cesarean birth risk: a prospective cohort with standardized imaging. Annals of epidemiology. 2014;24(2):122-6.
- 21. Vollenhoven B, Lawrence A, Healy D. Uterine fibroids: a clinical review. BJOG: An International Journal of Obstetrics & Gynaecology. 1990;97(4):285-98.
- 22. JAVED M, SHAHID A, TARIQ S. EFFECT OF UTERINE FIBROID ON MODE OF DELIVERY. Pakistan Postgraduate Medical Journal. 2016; 27(2): 40-3.
- 23. Youssef A, Aissia B, Gara M. Association fibromyoma and pregnancy. About 23 cases. La Tunisie Medicale. 2005;83(4):194-7.
- 24. Noor S, Fawwad A, Sultana R, Bashir R, Jalil H, Suleman N, et al. Pregnancy with fibroids and its obstetric complications. Journal of Ayub Medical College Abbottabad. 2009;21(4):37-40.
- 25. Rice JP, Kay HH, Mahony BS. The clinical significance of uterine leiomyomas in pregnancy. American journal of obstetrics and gynecology. 1989; 160(5): 1212-6.
- 26. Sheiner E, Bashiri A, Levy A, Hershkovits R, Katz M, Mazor M. Obstetric characteristics and perinatal outcome of pregnancies with uterine leiomyomas. Obstetrical & gynecological survey. 2004;59(9):647-8.
- 27. Shavell VI, Thakur M, Sawant A, Kruger ML, Jones TB, Singh M, et al. Adverse obstetric outcomes associated with sonographically identified large uterine fibroids. Fertility and sterility. 2012;97(1):107-10.
- 28. Stout MJ, Odibo AO, Graseck AS, Macones GA, Crane JP, Cahill AG. Leiomyomas at routine secondtrimester ultrasound examination and adverse obstetric outcomes. Obstetrics & Gynecology. 2010; 116 (5): 1056-63.

Comparison of R-CHOP with CHOP in Patients of Diffuse Large B Cell Lymphoma

Faiza Rehman Lodhi,¹ Amjad Zafar,² Muhammad Abbas Khokhar,³ Ali Waheed Goraya,⁴ Sonia Ashraf,⁵ Sobia Yaqub⁶

Abstract

Objective: Diffuse large B cell lymphoma (DLBCL) is a lymphoid B cells neoplasm with a diffuse pattern and high proliferation rate. Cyclophosphamide, doxorubicin, vincristine and prednisolone (CHOP) was considered effective as other complicated regimens with more toxicity profile. Rituximab is a monoclonal antibody directed against CD20 positive B cell. It has good activity therapeutically in patients of DLBCL. It increases response rates and survivals when added to CHOP chemotherapy. Although R-CHOP is more effective but due to high cost of Rituximab it is usually not incorporated with chemotherapy in most of our patients and CHOP is still used extensively. Due to heterogeneity of disease and difference in ethnicity, there may be difference in outcomes of two regimens. This study will help us in tailoring our management plan that will result in better outcome of patients.

MethodS: 70 patients aged between 20-65 years having DLBCL were taken in this study. We rando-mized patients by lottery method into two groups. Group I received CHOP with dose of Cyclophosphamide 750mg/m2, Doxorubicin 50mg/m2, Vincristine 1.4 mg/m2 and prednisolone 40mg/m2.Chemotherapy was given on Day-1 while prednisolone was given for 5 days from Day-1 of chemotherapy. Group II received R-CHOP which includes same chemotherapy with same dosage. Rituximab was included in Group II with dose of Rituximab 375 mg/m2. Each cycle was given at three weeks interval. Response in terms of CR (Complete Response), PR (Partial Response), SD (Stable Disease) or PD (Progressive Disease) was evaluated as per leukemia network after 4 cycles of chemotherapy. The quantitative variables were calculated by taking mean and standard deviation. The response was assessed in percentage and frequencies and compared by applying chi square test.

Results: Group I had 37.1% while Group II had 68.6% complete response with p value of 0.019. Partial response was 48.6% in Group I while 20.0% in Group II. 14.3% in Group I and 8.6% in Group II either had stable disease or progressive disease.

Conclusions: R-CHOP has superior response rates as compared to CHOP, therefore, whenever possible Rituximab should be added as target therapy in chemotherapy.

Key Words: Diffuse large B cell lymphoma, CHOP, R-CHOP

Introduction

A mong non-Hodgkin's lymphomas, DLBCL is most common type present approximately 25 % in the developed countries¹. Based on morphology of lymphoid tissue and immunophenotyping patholo-

1. Faiza Rehman Lodhi	2.	Amjad Zafar
3. Muhammad Abbas Khokhar	4.	Ali Waheed Goraya
5. Sonia Ashraf	6.	Sobia Yaqub
1-4: Department of Oncology, KEMU, La	ahore	_
5. Department of Pathology, KEMU		
6. Department of Oncology		
Correspondence:		
Dr. Faiza Rehman Lodhi, Senior Registre	ar, Once	ology Department KEMU
Email: Faizarehman@hotmail.com		

Submission Date:05-11-20201st Revision Date:10-11-2020Acceptance Date:05-12-2020

gical diagnosis of DLBCL can be made. CHOP was considered effective as other complicated regimens with more toxicity profile based on number of serial clinical investigations². DLBCL is a heterogeneous variety of tumors having large B cells that are transformed and having prominent nucleoli. Cells of DLBCL have basophilic cytoplasm, diffuse pattern of growth and high proliferation rate. Tumor cells in DLBCL expresses B cell antigens (CD19, CD20, CD22 and CD79a). Rituximab is monoclonal antibody directed against CD20 positive B cells. It has good activity therapeutically in patients of DLBCL. R-CHOP which includes Rituximab with CHOP chemotherapy is more effective therapy and has better responses and survivals³. Rituximab when incorporated with chemotherapy showed survival benefit in the GELA Trial. It also increase survival in British Columbia trial when added to CHOP chemotherapy^{4,5}. There was no difference in response rate between R-CHOP and CHOP in another study but there was a significant difference in relapse rates between these groups⁵. This was in contrast to result of another study conducted on elderly patients, where the response rate was also increased with R-CHOP³. In a study, Li X et al analyzed retrospectively 437 patients of DLBCL who were newly diagnosed. In six university hospitals they received CHOP or R-CHOP therapy and followed up for assessment of response after treatment. Between R-CHOP and CHOP, significant differences in overall survival and progressionfree survival were present. Median follow up was of 86 month in this study. Overall survival was 84.1% in R-CHOP group and 70.2% in CHOP group with p value of 0.018. While progression free survival was 81.5% in R-CHOP group and 66.7% in CHOP group with p value of 0.015. In this study, elderly patients with age greater than 60 years received higher overall survival as compared to younger population. Median follow up was 66 months in elderly population with overall survival 80.7% in R-CHOP group and 53.0% in CHOP group with p value of 0.011. Chemotherapy with rituximab did not showed significant effect on overall survival that is 85.5% in R-CHOP and 79.4% in CHOP group with p value of 0.428⁶. In another study by Afzar M et al showed CR for CHOP Group as 44.4% and for R-CHOP group as 48.2% while PR as 11.1% for CHOP group and 7.1% for R-CHOP 7 . Although R-CHOP is more effective but due to high cost of Rituximab it is usually not incorporated with chemotherapy in most of our patients and CHOP is still used extensively. There may be difference in outcomes of two regimens due to heterogeneity of disease and difference in ethnicity. This study will help us in in better outcome of patients by tailoring our management plan.

Methods

After taking approval from hospital ethical committee, patients who fulfilled the selection criteria were enrolled and written informed consent was taken from them before commencement of treatment. Patients were randomized by lottery method into two groups. Group I received CHOP with dose of Cyclophosphamide 750mg/m², Doxorubicin 50mg/m², Vincristine 1.4 mg/m² and prednisolone 40mg/m². Chemotherapy was given on Day-1 while prednisolone was given for 5 days from Day-1 of chemotherapy. Group II received R-CHOP which includes same chemotherapy with same dosage. Rituximab was included in Group II with dose of Rituximab 375 mg/ m². Each cycle was given at three weeks interval. Response in terms of CR (Complete Response), PR (Partial Response), SD (Stable Disease) or PD (Progressive Disease) is evaluated as per Lugano criteria with CT scan after four cycles of chemotherapy. We ensured follow up by taking patient's contact number. All the information was recorded on Performa by me. Data was entered on SPSS (Statistical Package of Social Sciences), version-10 software after being collected on Performa. Quantitative variables (age) were presented as mean and standard deviation. Qualitative variables (stage and disease response) were presented as frequency and percentage. Comparison between groups was made by applying chisquare test. We stratified the data for age, gender and stage of disease to describe effect modifiers. Chisquare test was used after stratification to assess significance with p < .05 as statistical significance.

Results

70 subjects were randomly divided into Group I (CHOP n=35) and Group II (RCHOP n=35). Mean age of subjects was 45.24 years, SD 13.31 with minimum age of 20 years and maximum age of 78 years. 57.1% in Group I and 48.6% in Group II were of age 20 - 50 years and 49.2% in Group I and 51.4% in Group II were of age 51 - 80 years. 31.4% were females and 68.6% were male in Group I, 42.8% were females and 57.2% were male in Group II. 11.4% in Group I and 17.1% in Group II were in stage-1.11.4% in Group I and 22.9% in Group II were in stage-2. 37.1% in Group I and 17.1% in Group II were in stage-3. 40.0% in Group I and 42.9% in Group II were in stage-4. 42.9% in Group I and 20.0% in Group II have no extra nodal involvement, 42.9% % in Group I and 62.9% in Group II had one extra nodal involvement and 8.6% in Group I and 17.1% in Group II had 2 extra nodal involvements. 37.1% in Group I and 42.9% in Group II had low risk (0-1), 28.6% % in Group I and 17.1% in Group II were having low intermediate risk, 22.9% % in Group I and 17.1% in Group II were having high interme-diate risk (=3) and 11.4% in Group I and 22.9% in Group II were having high risk (4-5). 28.6% in Group I and 51.4% in Group II had comorbidities. Final outcome was compared among groups, 37.1% in group I and 68.6% in Group II had complete res-ponse with P<.019 which was statistically significant. 48.6% in group I and 20.0% in Group II had partial response, 5.7% in group I and 0.0% in Group II had a stable response, and 8.6% in both groups had prog-ressive disease.



Figure #1: Final Outcome of Treatment Among Groups

Table 1:	Demographic	Data	of Patients	included	in	the
study.						

	Groups		
AGE (Years)	Group I	Group II	
Mean Age	46.6	49.6	
Median Age	47.00	52.00	
Std. Deviation	14.485	11.950	
Minimum	21	22	
Maximum	70	72	
A - ADDOD STACINC	Gro	oups	
AII ARBOR STAGING	Group I	Group II	
STAGE1	4 (11.4%)	6 (17.1%)	
STAGE2	4 (11.4%)	8 (22.9%)	
STAGE 3	13 (37.1%)	6 (17.1%)	
STAGE4	14 (40.0%)	15 (42.9%)	
EVTDANODAL SITE	Groups		
EXTRANODAL SITE	Group I	Group II	
\leq 1 SITE INVOLVEMENT	30 (85.8%)	29 (82.9%)	
\geq 2 SITE INVOLVEMENT	5 (14.2%)	6 (17.1%)	
IBLSCODE	Groups		
IFISCORE	Group I	Group II	
0-2 LOW & LOW	23 (65.7%)	21 (60%)	
INTERMEDIATE RISK			
3 – 5 HIGH & HIGH	12 (34.3%)	14 (40%)	
INTERMEDIATE RISK			
COMORBIDITIES	Gro	oups	
	Group I	Group II	
No	25 (71.4)%	17 (48.6%)	
Yes	10 (28.6%)	18 (51.4%)	

Discussion

DLBCL is the commonest variety of non-Hodgkin's lymphoma. It is clinically very heterogeneous lymphoma. Only 40% patients show good responses to current therapy and have survival benefit, whereas others don't respond well. This clinical heterogeneity and difference in natural history is due to molecular heterogeneity among tumors. CHOP is standard chemotherapy for patients with DLBCL. Rituximab is monoclonal antibody directed against CD20 positive B cells. It has good activity therapeutically in patients of DLBCL. We conducted a randomized trial and compared responses of R-CHOP with CHOP in patients of DLBCL.

Rituximab when added to CHOP chemotherapy increases complete responses and survival of patients in older patients with diagnosis of DLBCL as per study by Coffier et al. There was no significant increase in toxicity seen with addition of Rituximab.³

Most of patients of DLBCL are of greater than sixty years⁸. Only half of patients responded with CHOP chemotherapy which was considered standard for years for all age groups of DLBCL.¹⁰ Multiple attempts were made by adding other chemotherapy agents to increase the efficacy of therapy but it did not succeed. Regimens with increase doses of chemotherapy imp-rove responses only in younger patients who have bad prognosis.¹¹ These intensified therapies were not tolerated by elderly population of patients. CHOP is also sometimes not tolerated by elderly patients. For this purpose easily tolerated chemotherapy regimens were designed for old patients, but these are less beneficial as compared to CHOP.¹⁰

Rituximab is a monoclonal antibody directed against CD20 positive B cells, it was first given on relapse and refractory low grade lymphomas. It was then found to have activity in relapse and refractory DLBCL.¹² CD20 is surface protein on lymphoid cells that is present only on mature B cells. The antibody is a chimeric because it is made up of human IgG1 portion with genetic engineered portion of mouse antibody which has CD20-binding site on it. Studies were conducted in which rituximab combined with CHOP chemotherapy showed 90 percent responses in all lymphomas.¹³The Groupe d'Etude des Lymphomes de l'Adulte (GELA) group studied and compared R-CHOP with CHOP in elderly population of patients

with DLBCL. This was a randomized trial comparing both the effectiveness and safety of rituximab when combined with CHOP with CHOP alone in patients of DLBCL. Higher responses rates and survivals were found among patients of DLBCL treated with R-CHOP. Patients treated with R-CHOP had fewer relapses after complete response and less rate of progression of disease that is why having longer survival. R-CHOP was tolerated well and no serious side effect was observed. In conclusion, R-CHOP chemotherapy when we give to elderly population of patients with newly diagno-sed DLBCL increases responses to therapy, decreases failures with treatment and relapse of disease. It also improves survivals when compared with CHOP che-motherapy alone. There was no significant gain in toxicities with this addition.

Conclusion

R-CHOP has superior response rates as compared to CHOP, therefore, whenever possible Rituximab should be added as target therapy in chemotherapy.

Authors Contribution

LRF: Article writing ZA, KAM: Data Collection GWA, AS, TS: Data analysis

References

- Kumar V AA, Fausto N, Aster J. Lymphoid neoplasms, Myeloid neoplasms. In: Shmitt W GR, editor. Pathologic Basis of Disease. 1. 8 ed. 1600 John F. Kennedy Blvd. Philadelphia, PA 19103-2899: SAUNDERS ELSEVIER; 2010. p. 589-674
- 2. Fisher RI, Gaynor ER, Dahlberg S et al. Comparison of a standard regimen (CHOP) With three intensive chemotherapy regimens for advanced non-Hodgkin's lymphoma. N Engl J Med 1993;328:1002-6.
- 3. Coiffier B, Lepage E, Briere J, Herrecht R, Tilly H, Bouabdallah R et al. CHOP chemotherapy plus rituximab compared with CHOP alone in elderly patients with diffuse large B cell lymphoma. N Engl J Med 2002;346:235-42.
- 4. Sehn LH, Donaldson J, Chhanabhai M et al. Introduction of combined CHOP plus rituximab therapy dramatically improves outcome of diffuse large B

cell lymphoma in British Columbia .J Clin Oncol 2005; 23:5027-33.

- 5. Habermann TM, Weller EA, Morrison EA, Morrison VA et al. Rituximab-CHOP verses CHOP alone or with maintenance rituximab in older patients with diffuse large B-cell lymphoma .J Clin Oncol 2006; 24:3121-7.
- Li X1, Liu Z, Cao J, Hong X, Wang J, Chen F, et al. Rituximab in combination with CHOP chemotherapy for the treatment of diffuse large B cell lymphoma in China: a 10-year retrospective follow-up analysis of 437 cases from Shanghai Lymphoma Research Group. Ann Hematol. 2012 Jun;91(6):837-45. doi: 10.1007/s00277-011-1375-0. Epub 2011 Dec 9.
- Azfar M, Rizvi F, Siddiqui N et all. Phase II trial of CHOP vs R-CHOP chemotherapy in Pakistani Diffuse Large B cell lymphoma. Ann Pak Inst Med Sci 2010; 6(1):31-35.
- 8. The International Non-Hodgkin's Lymphoma Prognostic Factors Project. A predictive model for aggressive non-Hodgkin's lymphoma. N Engl J Med 1993; 329:987-994
- 9. Fisher RI, Gaynor ER, Dahlberg S, et al. Comparison of a standard regimen (CHOP) with three intensive chemotherapy regimens for advanced non-Hodgkin's lymphoma. N Engl J Med 1993;328:1002-1006
- 10. Sonneveld P, de Ridder M, van der Lelie H, et al. Comparison of doxorubicin and mitoxantrone in the treatment of elderly patients with advanced diffuse non-Hodgkin's lymphoma using CHOP versus CNOP chemotherapy. J Clin Oncol 1995;13:2530-2539
- Haioun C, Lepage E, Gisselbrecht C, et al. Survival benefit of high-dose therapy in poor-risk aggressive non-Hodgkin's lymphoma: final analysis of the prospective LNH87-2 protocol -- a Groupe d'Etude des Lymphomes de l'Adulte study. J Clin Oncol 2000; 18:3025-3030
- Maloney DG, Grillo-Lopez AJ, White CA, et al. IDEC-C2B8 (rituximab) anti-CD20 monoclonal antibody therapy in patients with relapsed low-grade non-Hodgkin's lymphoma. Blood 1997;90:2188-2195
- Czuczman MS, Grillo-Lopez AJ, White CA, et al. Treatment of patients with low-grade B-cell lymphoma with the combination of chimeric anti-CD20 monoclonal antibody and CHOP chemotherapy. J Clin Oncol 1999;17:268-276

Assessment of Knowledge About Autism Spectrum Disorder Among Paediatricians

Fatima Zia,¹ Hafsa Qamar,² Irum Aslam,³ Muhammad Asif Siddiqui⁴

Abstract

Objective: To evaluate the frequency of Paediatricians who have good knowledge for diagnosis of Autism Spectrum Disorder (ASD).

Methods: It is cross-sectional study conducted in department of Paediatric Medicine, Children Hospital, Lahore, Jinnah Hospital and Services Hospital Lahore, in 6 months duration, spanning from June 27, 2016 till December 27, 2016. A total of 89 doctors fulfilling the inclusion criteria were registered after informed consent. Demographic data (including age, sex, qualification and duration of clinical experience) was taken. Doctors were given a questionnaire to assess their knowledge of ASD. The questionnaire was a nineteen-item self-administered questionnaire divided into four domains namely, social interaction (Domain 1), impairment in communication (Domain 2), repetitive behavior (Domain 3), characteristics of autism as a disorder and its comorbidities (Domain 4). The KCAHW sore ≥ 15 was considered as good. Data was entered and analyzed in (SPSS) version 22.0.

Results: The mean age of subjects was 30.67 ± 2.80 years with 31(31%) physicians male and 69(69%) were females. The mean KCAHW score was 15.07 ± 3.54 with minimum and maximum score of 7 and 19. According to operational definition a total of 62(62%) subjects had good knowledge while 38(38%) physician had score < 15.

Conclusion: Though 68% of paediatricians had good knowledge about childhood autism according to our study. The physicians who had poor knowledge, must be considered for different educational activities to enhance their knowledge regarding ASD, which may help in early diagnosis and improving prognosis of children with ASD.

Keywords: Paediatricians, Autism spectrum disorder

Introduction

A utism Spectrum Disorder (ASD) constitutes several clinical disorders, ranging from mild behavior disturbances to severe disability. Abnormal social interaction as well as communication plus repetitive and restrictive pattern of activities and behaviors are important features of ASD. Normal daily functioning of child may be affected and symptoms can be noted at an early age.^{1,2} ASD incidence is increasing dramatically in children. In past it was rare, 1st case was described by Kanner in year 1943³ but now prevalence is reported to be around

1. Fatima Zia	2.	Hafsa Qamar
Irum Aslam	4.	Muhammad Asif Siddiqui
1-4. PGR, Children's Hospital &	& ICH.	•
Correspondence:		
Dr Muhammad Asif Siddiqui	Assist	Prof Paediatric Medicine Unit-II
Services Hospital Labore Emai	l· drma	sifrme@amail.com
Services Hospital, Eanore. Emai	ı. arma	siji me toginani.eom
Submission Date:		30-09-2020
1st Revision Date:		30-11-2020
Acceptance Date:		17-12-2020

62/10,000.^{4,5} Many factors are responsible for this increase like well-defined diagnostic criteria even in mild forms for autism, awareness of both parents plus physicians and increase of true preva-lence.⁶ Due to this high prevalence many pediatri-cians are now able to suspect and diagnose ASD during 18 to 36 months of life in children with abnor-mal communication, socialization or stereotypic behaviors.7 For early intervention, we need early diagnosis of the disease based on adequate know-ledge, diagnostic criteria and availability of screening tools. Age of the child at which ASD is diagnosed first time is dependent on treating physician knowledge.⁸ According to a study average age for diagnosis of ASD was 4 years and 10 months.8 In one study, out of 167 participants, 51% of participants had good knowledge, 49% had poor knowledge for Autism.⁹

In Pakistan, some of healthcare workers lack proper knowledge regarding ASD.10 Similarly other studies

suggested different levels of knowledge (causes, treatment, prognosis, cognitive profiles of autism) for people having different professions or roles (health professionals, parents, teachers) involved in diagnosis of autism. Among healthcare professionals, pediatricians are more important because they are the first point of contact where children are reporting first time with abnormal behavior. Main focus of our study is to assess the knowledge of pediatricians required for diagnosis and treatment of autistic spectrum disorder.⁹

Methods

This is a Cross-Sectional Study conducted in departments of Paediatric Medicine, Children Hospital, Lahore, Jinnah hospital and Services Hospital Lahore in 6 months durations from June 27, 2016 till December 27, 2016. 100 paediatricians was included with 95% confidence interval, 10% margin of error and taking expected percentage of good knowledge i.e. 51% of pediatricians for diagnosis of ASD, using non probability purposive sampling technique. Whereas paediatricians with age range 26-35 years of both genders, having more than 1-year clinical experience in teaching hospital were included. Doctors who are not practicing for more than 6 months or doctors who are not permanently positioned in paediatric ward were excluded. 100 doctors fulfilling the inclusion criteria after informed consent were registered for the study.

Demographic data (including age, sex, qualification and duration of clinical experience) was taken. Doctors were given a questionnaire to assess their knowledge of ASD. Knowledge about Childhood Autism among Health Workers (KCAHW) Questionnaire was used. The questionnaire was a nineteen-item selfadministered questionnaire divided into four domains namely, social interaction (Domain 1), impairment in communication (Domain 2), repetitive behavior (Domain 3), characteristics of autism as a disorder and its comorbidities (Domain 4), the total score ranges 0-19 and good score was labelled as > 15. Data was entered and analyzed in (SPSS) version 22.0. The quantitative variables age, years of experience and KCAHW score were expressed as mean and standard deviation. Frequency and percentage were calculated for qualitative data like gender and good knowledge i.e. KCAHW score \geq 15. Data will be stratified for age, gender, duration of experience (1-5, > 5 years)

and qualification to deal with effect modifiers. Post stratification Chi-square test was applied taking p-value ≤ 0.05 as significant.

Results

The mean age of subjects was 30.67 ± 2.80 years with minimum and maximum age of 26 - 35 years. There were 37(37%) subjects aged 26-29 years and 63(63 %) doctors were 30-35 years old. A total of 31(31%) physicians male and 69(69%) were females. According to duration of experience, 58(58%) subjects had 1-5 years of clinical experience and 42(42%) subjects had > 5 years of experience. There were 18(18%)students who were only graduate while 82(82%) were PG trainee as well. The mean KCAHW score was 15.07 ± 3.54 with minimum and maximum score of 7 and 19. A total of 62(62%) subjects had good knowledge while 38(38%) physician had score < 15. When data was stratified for age, gender and duration of experience, we found significant association of good score with these effect modifiers, p-value > 0.05.

Discussion

Autism spectrum disorder is one of the fastest increasing disorders in children throughout the whole world and it is lifelong disorder affecting neuronal development in children hence can be characterized by the symptoms like impaired non-verbal and verbal communication, impaired socialization and restricted behavior and interest patterns.¹¹ There are many studies in current age that are being done related to this disorder but these studies suggest different

Table 1: Descriptive Statistics of Age (years) andKCAHW Scores

	Mean	S. D	Range	Min.	Max.
Age (years)	30.67	± 2.80	9	26	35
KCAHW*	15.07	±3.54	12	7	19

*Knowledge about Childhood Autism among Health Workers (KCAHW) Questionnaire

Table 2:	Comparison	of	Good	KCAHW	Score	and	Age
Groups							

		Good kn	p-	
		Yes	No	value
Age groups	26-29	21(33.9%)	16(42.1%)	0.408
(years)	30-35	41(66.1%)	22(57.9%)	
Gender	Male	20(32.3%)	11(28.9%)	0.728
	Female	42(67.7%)	27(71.1%)	
Duration of	1-5	34(54.8%)	24(63.2%)	0.413
experience (years)	>5	28(45.2%)	14(36.8%)	

variation and levels of knowledge in healthcare workers and professionals that directly influences treatment diagnosis and prognosis of this disease.¹²



Fig-1: *Distribution of Good Score*

Variations of knowledge regarding Autism, may present in primary health care providers for example family physicians and family pediatricians and in comparison to specialist like speech therapist child psychiatrist and psychologist according to one survey done in United States.¹³ Professionals of healthcare in countries that are underdeveloped also have low levels of knowledge regarding ASD.¹⁴ Pediatricians are first point for contact, so they must have proper knowledge regarding autism spectrum disorder.¹⁵ In Pakistan healthcare professionals still have questionable assessment regarding this disorder.¹⁶

In the year 2011, one study observed baseline misconceptions and knowledge related to autism in healthcare professionals of Pakistan.¹⁰ In this study mean subjects age was 30.67 ± 2.80 yrs. with 31(31%) male and 69 (69%) physicians females. Accurate knowledge regarding DSM IV TR criteria of diagnosis regarding autism was main focus of the study but in different professionals' variations were noted related to proper use of this criteria in diagnosis of autism. Non physicians had more chances of diagnosing autism correctly than physicians. (P value <0.001).¹⁰ Similar results were seen in another study done in one of the African countries.¹⁷ Our study was done on paediatricians only with mean KCAHW score as 15.07 ± 3.54 with maximum and minimum score as 19 and 7 only. Total 62% of res-pondents had good knowledge and 38% of physicians had less than 15 score. So, our study showed 38% paediatricians had poor knowledge regarding autism spectrum disorders, which in turn may affect early diagnosis and prognosis of children with autism spectrum disorder. There is need to conduct studies on larger scale prospectively with imparting learning of autism spectrum disorder using different educa-tional activities and comparing pre- and post-educa-tional activities results regarding knowledge of autism spectrum disorder in health care workers.

Hence it is concluded that some pediatricians may need to improve their knowledge regarding autism spectrum disorder.¹⁸

Conclusion

Though 68% of paediatricians had good knowledge about childhood autism according to our study. The physicians who had poor knowledge, must be considered for different educational activities to enhance their knowledge regarding ASD, which may help in early diagnosis and improving prognosis of children with ASD.

Author's Contribution

ZF, QH, AI, SAM: Concept, design, interpretation, drafting

References

- 1. Ramaswami G, Geschwind DH. Genetics of autism spectrum disorder. In Handbook of clinical neuro-logy 2018 Jan 1 (Vol. 147, pp. 321-329). Elsevier.
- 2. Li K. The (re-) instrumentalization of the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental Disorders (DSM) in psychological publications: a citation context analysis. arXiv preprint arXiv:2010.11101.2020 Oct 21.
- 3. Muratori F, Bizzari V. AUTISM AS A DISRUPTION OF AFFECTIVE CONTACT: THE FORGOTTEN ROLE OF GEORGE FRANKL. Clinical Neuropsychiatry. 2019 Aug 1;16(4).
- Chiarotti F, Venerosi A. Epidemiology of Autism Spectrum Disorders: A Review of Worldwide Prevalence Estimates Since 2014. Brain Sciences. 2020 May; 10(5):274.
- (13) (PDF) THE GLOBAL PREVALENCE AND DIAGNOSIS OF AUTISM SPECTRUM DISOR-DER (ASD) AMONG YOUNG CHILDREN [Internet]. [cited 2020 Dec 28]. Available from: https:// www.researchgate.net/publication/336676984_THE

_GLOBAL_PREVALENCE_AND_DIAGNOSIS_ OF_AUTISM_SPECTRUM_DISORDER_ASD_A MONG_YOUNG_CHILDREN

- Manohar H, Kandasamy P, Chandrasekaran V, Rajkumar RP. Early Diagnosis and Intervention for Autism Spectrum Disorder: Need for Pediatrician-Child Psychiatrist Liaison. Indian journal of psychological medicine. 2019 Jan;41(1):87-90.
- Kliegman R, Stanton B, Schor N, St. Geme III J, Behrman R. Nelson Textbook of Pediatrics. 21st ed. Philadelphia: Elsevier 2019.
- 8. Altay MA. Family Physicians' Awareness of Autism Spectrum Disorder: Results from a Survey Study. Open access Macedonian journal of medical sciences. 2019 Mar 30;7(6):967.
- 9. Hayat AA, Meny AH, Salahuddin N, Alnemary FM, Ahuja KR, Azeem MW. Assessment of knowledge about childhood autism spectrum disorder among healthcare workers in Makkah-Saudi Arabia. Pakistan journal of medical sciences. 2019 Jul;35(4):951.
- Imran N, Chaudry MR, Azeem MW, Bhatti MR, Choudhary ZI, Cheema MA. A survey of Autism knowledge and attitudes among the healthcare professionals in Lahore, Pakistan. BMC pediatrics. 2011 Dec 1;11(1):107.
- 11. Ivanov MV, Simashkova NV, Kozlovskaya GV, Makushkin EV. The epidemiologic study of the risk of autism spectrum disorders in children of 16-24 months in Russia, 2015-2016. Zhurnal nevrologii i psikhiatrii imeni SS Korsakova. 2018;118(5. Vyp.

2):12-9.

- 12. Xu G, Strathearn L, Liu B, Bao W. Corrected prevalence of autism spectrum disorder among US children and adolescents. Jama. 2018 Feb 6;319(5):505-.
- 13. Heidgerken AD, Geffken G, Modi A, Frakey L. A survey of autism knowledge in a health care setting. J Autism Dev Disord. 2005;35(3):323-30.
- Bakare MO, Agomoh AO, Ebigbo PO, Eaton J, Okonkwo KO, Onwukwe JU, et al. Etiological explanation, treatability and preventability of childhood autism: a survey of Nigerian healthcare workers' opinion. Ann Gen Psychiatry. 2009;8(1):6.
- 15. Karande S. Autism: A review for family physicians. Indian J Med Sci. 2006;60(5):205.
- Bhat BA, Hussain A, Qadir W, Dar SA. Sociodemographic and clinical profile of children with autism spectrum disorders–An observational study from a tertiary care hospital. BLDE University Journal of Health Sciences. 2019 Jul 1;4(2):72.
- Eseigbe EE, Nuhu F, Sheikh TL, Eseigbe P, Sanni K, Olisah V. Knowledge of childhood autism and challenges of management among medical doctors in Kaduna State, Northwest Nigeria. Autism Res Treat. 2015; 2015.
- 18. Sampson WG, Sandra AE. Comparative study on knowledge about autism spectrum disorder among paediatric and psychiatric nurses in Public Hospitals in Kumasi, Ghana. Clinical practice and epidemiology in mental health: CP & EMH. 2018;14:99.

Histological Changes in Proximal and Distal Convoluted Tubules of Kidney of Albino Rats after Exposure to Mosquito Coil Smoke Inhalation

Nazia Siddique,¹ Masooma Ahmed,² Maria Ilyas,³ Rukhsana Jabeen,⁴ Abdul Hannan Jawad,⁵ Zafar Iobal⁶

Abstract

Objective: To evaluate the effects of the mosquito coil smoke (MCS) inhalation on histology of proximal (PCT) and distal (DCT) convoluted tubules of kidney in Wistar Albino rats.

Design: Experimental study, randomized control trial.

Methods: This study was approved by the Ethical Committee of PGMI, Lahore. 24 Wistar rats were selected and randomly divided into 3 groups, each containing eight animals. Group A was control; Group B and C were experimental groups and were exposed to mosquito coil smoke inhalation for 8 hours/day for two and four weeks respectively. Kidney tissue of albino rats was dissected, examined and analyzed histologically.

Results: The results of MCS inhalation in histological sections of group B and C showed marked cellular necrosis and vacuolization in PCT (proximal convoluted tubule) of the kidney as compared to the group A. protein cast was absent in PCT of all groups. DCT (distal convoluted tubules) in group B and C showed marked necrosis, vacuolization and protein cast. Necrosis was more marked in group C treated with mosquito coil smoke for 4 weeks.

Conclusion: The results indicate that pyrethroids in mosquito coil smoke though considered least toxic pesticides, are very harmful. Exposure of pyrethroids can induce adverse changes in tubules of kidney.

Key Words: MCS Mosquito Coil Smoke, Pyrethroids, PCT Proximal convoluted tubules, DCT Distal convoluted tubules.

Introduction

osquitoes are the main agent which can cause various vector-borne diseases. Most common diseases in Pakistan are Malaria and Dengue Fever. During the second decade of 21st century the Pakistan encountered the dengue epidemics. As no vaccine is available against dengue fever the only way of protection is prevention. People tend to wear long sleeved clothes with long trousers to prevent mosquito bites, sleep under bed nets, use topical repellent and burn repellent coils. As mosquito coils are cheap and easily available so it is most commonly used method to kill

1.	Nazia Siddique	2.	Masooma Ahmed
3.	Maria Ilyas	4.	Rukhsana Jabeen
5.	Abdul Hannan Jawad	6.	Zafar Iqbal
1,2.	Deprtment of Anatomy, Al-	Aleer	n Medical College, Lahore
3.	Deprtment of Anatomy, All	ama I	qbal Medical College, Lahore
4.	Deprtment of Anatomy, Ra	shid I	atif Medical College, Lahore
5.	DHQ Hospital, Lahore		
6.	Deprtment of Anatomy, Ra	i Med	ical College, Sargodha
Co	rrespondence		
Dr.	Maria Ilyas, Assistant Profes	sor, E	Deprtment of Anatomy, Allama Iqbal
Me	dical College, Lahore. E-mail:	maria	waqas0802@gmail.com
	0		1 00
	Submission Date:		20-11-2020
	1st Revision Date:		05-11-2020
	Acceptance Date:		19-12-2020

mosquitos¹. Previous studies suggested that mosquito coils containing pyretheroid as an active ingredient can help in controlling mosquito borne diseases². Mosquito coils smoke contain pyrethrin, d -transallethrin, aldehyde etc. Traditional coils are made from pyrethrum extracted from chrysanthemum cinnerariae folium plant. Pyrethrin is a natural pyrethrum and pyretheroids are synthetic derivatives of pyrethrins.³

One of previous study estimated that smoke produced by burning one mosquito coil was equivalent to smoke produced by burning approximately 75 - 137 cigarettes⁴. It was discovered that in some developing countries the use of unauthorized mosquito coils may induce human poisoning.⁵ Pyretheroid poisioning produced a defect in cardiac conduction.⁶ Vacuolar degeneration, necrosis, thrombosis and vasculitis in heart were also reported. Sore throat, nausea, vomiting and abdominal pain are acute effects of Pyretheroid ingestion.⁷

Pyretheroid based mosquito coils induce neurotoxi-

city by oxidative damage in brain.8 According to previous studies the action on voltage gated sodium channel and receptor gated ion channels are main cause of neurotoxicity.9 The decrease in motor activity was produced by Pyrethroid.⁶ Prolonged and uninterrupted exposure to mosquito coil smoke containing allethrin induces toxic changes in males testis including destruction of tubular archi-tecture, epithelial cell disruption, increase in the size of the lumen and necrotic spermatozoa.¹⁰ In female, Pyrethroid may disrupt the estrous cycle, endocrine glands may have showed increase in weight especially thyroids and adrenals.¹¹ Pyrethrin and pyrethroids enter the body by many routes including ingestion with food, inhalation via coil smoke or burning or directly in contact with the skin. These chemicals are metabolized very rapidly in human body. Nervous system is the main primary target of the pyrethroid toxicity.8 Chronic exposure of pyrethroides produce many toxic effects including skin allergy, asthma, irritation of nose, throat and damages heart, lungs, liver and kidneys.^{8,9} Pyrethroids (DTA) are prone to induce toxicity at cellular levels leading to necrosis and tissue damage. Neurotoxic effects of chemicals emitted via mosquito coil smoke are extensively reported¹⁰. Many of the studies conducted in the past have established morphological, biochemical and cellular toxicity in the gastrointestinal and especially in the inhalants respiratory system." Prolonged coil smoke exposure lead to adverse behavioral and neurological side effects in rat's offspring during prenatal and early postnatal period.¹² It decreased sperm concentration and induced liver toxicity.⁷ This study was designed to observe the toxic effects mosquito coil smoke on histology of kidney.

Methods

The animal study was conducted in the animal house of Anatomy department, PGMI, Lahore. The study protocol and procedures were approved by the Ethical Committee of PGMI, Lahore.

This was an experimental study, randomized control trial. Albino rats of Wister strain were obtained from animal house, PGMI, Lahore. Inclusion criteria were healthy animal of mix gender with average weight of 180-200 grams. Animals were weighed and examined thoroughly for any gross morbidity. They were individually kept in climate-controlled conditions of

temperature 23 ± 0.5 °C and 12 hours light / dark cycles in an undisturbed well ventilated room. They were provided with standard rat food and water ad libitum. Rats were acclimatization in their cages for 15 days.

Procedure and Histological Analysis

After acclimatization, the animals were randomly divided using Stat Trek random number generator into three groups A, B and C. Each group contained 8 rats. Group A was not exposed to mosquito coil and served as control. Group B and C were experimental group and were exposed to mosquito coil smoke.

During the experiment rats were kept in their designated cages and allowed to inhale the MCS as whole body inhalation. The mosquito coil was burnt and then placed in the center of room. The animal cages were positioned equidistant from the mosquito coil so that all rats inhale equal amount of MCS. Group A was control and was not exposed to any mosquito coil smoke. Group B and group C were experimental and were exposed to mosquito coil smoke for 8 hours/ day for two and four weeks respectively.

All animals were sacrificed under deep anesthesia 24 hours after exposure to their last dose. Kidneys (right and left) were dissected out. Weight of both kidneys was recorded carefully on electronic weighing scale. All the animals were euthanized by decapitation. Their bodies were disposed-off by burying in burial ground at PGMI, Lahore. Kidneys were washed with normal saline and fixed in 10 ml of neutral 10% buffered formalin. Tissue processing was done by using automatic tissue processor and then embedded in paraffin. $3 - 4 \mu m$ thick serial paraffin sections were obtained and stained with standard haematoxylin and eosin (H&E) reagent for the histopathological examination. Slides were examined under light microscope (ACCU-SCOPE 3000-LED Microscope) at 10X and 40X magnifications. Proximal and distal convoluted tubules were obser-ved in 5 fields of view in each kidney. The cells of proximal and distal convoluted tubules were exa-mined for the presence of cellular necrosis, cellular vacuolization and protein cast.

Statistical analysis

The observations were recorded in MS Word® and Excel® data sheet. Data was analyzed using SPSS 21.0. Qualitative analysis of parameters was carried

out by using Pearsons chi square test or/and fisher exact test, at 5 % level of significance. A p-value ≤ 0.05 was considered as statistically significant.

RESULTS

Proximal convoluted tubules were lined by simple cuboidal epithelium with prominent brush border, round nuclei with prominent nucleoli. The cell size and cell shape remain constant in PCT when three groups were compared. Necrosis of PCT was absent in group A while present in group B and C and was statistically significant when all the three groups were compared. (Table 1, figure: 1) Cytoplasmic vacuoles were observed in PCT cells in treated groups and statistically significant when compared with control (Figures 2, 3, 4). Protein cast was not significant statistically in PCT. Cellular necrosis, cytoplasmic vacuoles and luminal protein cast in PCT and DCT were absent in group A. Distal convoluted tubles were recognized by larger more clearly defined lumen, lined by simple cuboidal epithelium, closely packed nuclei and lack of brush border. The cell size and shape remain constant in all three groups. Group A showed no signs of cellular necrosis, vacuolization and protein cast. Cellular mecrosis, vaculization and protein cast were present in both group B and C and were statistically significant. (Table 2) (Figure 2,3,4)



, Figure 1: Bar Chart Showing Comparison Percentage of Necrosis, Vacuolization and Protein Cast in PCT and DCT between Groups I, II, III.

РСТ	Status	Grou	рA	Group B		Group B Group C		χ²-test
		n	%	Ν	%	Ν	%	(p-value)
Cell necrosis	Normal	8	0 %	3	62.5%	0	100%	0.000***
	Necrotic	0	_	5		8		
Protein cast	Absent	8	0 %	8	0%	7	12.5%	0.352
	Present	0		0		1		
Vacuolization	Normal	8	0 %	3	62.5%	2	75%	0.006**
	Vacuolized	0		5		6		

 Table 1: Showing Percentage of Cellular Necrosis, Protein cast and Vacuolization in PCT in Group A, B and C.

*p-value ≤ 0.05 is considered to be statistically significant.

Table 2:	Showing	Percentage of	^c Cellular Necrosis.	Protein Cast ar	ıd Vacuolizatio	n in DCT in	Group A. B and C

DCT	Status	Group A		Group B		Group C		χ²-test
DCI		n	%	n	%	Ν	%	(p-value)
Cell necrosis	Normal	8	0%	4	50%	2	75%	0.008**
	necrotic	0		4		6		
Protein cast	Absent	8	0%	3	62.5%	4	50%	0.024*
	Present	0		5		4		
Vacuolization	normal	8	0%	2	75%	4	50%	NA
	Vacuolized	0		6		4		

*p-value ≤ 0.05 is considered to be statistically significant.



Figure 2. Photomicrograph of the Kidney from the Control group A Showing PCT Lined by Cuboidal Epithelium with Brush Border (Brown Arrow) and DCT lined by cuboidal epithelium (black arrow) Renal corpusle (blue arrow) with central glomerulus (green arrow) surrounded by bowman's space (red arrow) and blood vessels are also present (yellow arrow). H&Estain 10X



Figure 3. Photomicrograph of the kidney from the group B (right) and group C (left) showing necrosis of both PCT (yellow arrow) and DCT (blue arrow). Cytoplasmic vacuoles are present (green arrow). Congested glomerulus (black arrow) and interstitial hemorrhage (brown arrow) is seen. Protein casts are present in DCT (red arrow). H&E stain.10X



Figure 4: Photomicrograph of the kidney from the group B(right) and group C (left) showing necrosis of renal tubules (blue arrow) and interstitial hemorrhage (green arrow). Cytoplasmic vacuolization of tubular epithelium (black arrow) and protein casts in DCT (green arrow) are seen H&E stain. 40X

Discussion

The current study was designed to see the effects of mosquito coil smoke exposure on kidney tissue, using rat as a model. The experimental results demonstrated

Pyrethroids (DTA) based mosquito coils are toxic in nature. Previously conducted studies have demonstrated that mosquito coil smoke inhalation shows signs of toxicity in liver and lung.⁹ many previously conducted studies proved adverse effects of prolonged inhalation mosquito coil smoke. Current study has focused on the histopathological effects on the hictoarchitecture of kidneys. 5,8,13

The histological observations on kidney from treated groups B and C showed marked toxic changes. The kidney tubules of rat treated with mosquito coil smoke inhalation showed necrosis and vacuolization. This tubular necrosis and vacuolization was due to the accumulation of phospholipids, lipids and cholesterol deposits in the cell¹³. Studies have shown that Pyrethroids act as potent inhi bitors of the mitochondrial complex I and oxygen, leading to their toxic effects on the mitochondria. The increased oxygen consumption causes an increase in the oxidative stress. It induces lipid peroxidation, protein oxidation and depletion of multiple antioxidant enzymes, which include glutathione, glutathione peroxidase, and catalase and superoxide dismutase activities14. The increased oxygen consumption increases mitochondrial oxygen usage. Pyrethroids inhibit the ATP production by the cellular mitochondria. A principle molecular mode of adverse action of the synthetic pyrethroids is alteration of sodium potassium (Na+/ K+) pump kinetics¹⁵. The sodium and water transport into cellular interior increases causing cellular fluid overload, disturbed protein synthesis and altered mechanical functions. These disturbed Na+/ K+ pump causes impairment of the oxidative phosphorylation that eventually results in hydrophilic degeneration, cellular swelling and vacuolization in the cytoplasm of renal tubular and parenchymal cells.¹⁴ Pyrethroids increase free radical formation which damages body cell. The formation of oxygen free radical is one of major factor in toxicity of pesticides¹⁵. Voltage - gated sodium channels are mainly reported to be the primary target for toxicity of these coil smoke chemicals in humans. Research studies have depicted that all types of mammalian calcium channels are targets for allethrin at concentrations almost same as that reported for interaction with sodium channels¹⁶. The micro molar concentration of both compounds inhibited glutamate and succinate sustained state 3 respirations in a concentration dependent manner. This inhibition is due to the effect of pyrethroids on mitochondrial transport system and also on the components of the respiratory chain.¹⁴ In our study we observed intraluminal cast formation

in renal tubules. The matrix from the necrotic epithelial cell is the main cause for formation of this cast.¹⁷ This cast formation further obstructs the lumen of tubules. These findings suggest that inhalation of mosquito coil smoke cause nephrotoxicity. Their continuous usage causes harmful toxic effects in kidney. As these agents are easily absorbed in the body through inhalation.

Conclusion

The observations and results of present study clearly indicate that despite of being the least toxic pesticide, pyrethroids still have harmful and necrotizing effects, as exposure to pyrethroids cause nephrotoxicity. Present study will produce an awareness of the dangers of the excessive use of mosquito coils and restriction of unlimited use of pyrethroid insecticides especially at living places.

Acknowledgement: None

Declaration of interests: We declare no conflict of interests. This study was taken from thesis.

Funding disclosure: No funds were obtained for this study from any external source.

Conflict of interest: None

Author's Contributions

- SN: Principal investigator, data collection, study design & concept
- **AM:** Literature review, data collection and interpretation of analysis.

IM: Data collection, critical evaluation, final editing of manuscript

JR: Data interpretation & tables

- JHA: Data collection & statistical analysis
- IZ: Manuscript writing

References

- 1. Agarwal AS, Yadav AK, Singh RA. Ameliorating effects of garlic oil against mosquito coil smoke induced histopathological changes in rat kidney. Int J Pharm Bio Sci. 2013;4(2):1112-6.
- 2. Msangi, S., Mwang'onde, B.J., Mahande, A.N. and Kweka, E.J., 2010. Field evaluation of the bioefficacy of three pyrethroid based coils against wild populations of anthropophilic mosquitoes in North Tanzania. Geographical medicine, 2(2): 116-120.
- 3. Zhang L, Jiang Z, Tong J, Wang Z, Han Z, Zhang J. Using charcoal as base material reduces mosquito coil emissions of toxins. Indoor air. 2010 Apr; 20(2): 176-84.
- Salvi D, Limaye S, Muralidharan V, Londhe J, Madas S, Juvekar S, Biswal S, Salvi S. Indoor particulate matter< 2.5 μm in mean aerodynamic diameter and carbon monoxide levels during the burning of mosquito coils and their association with respiratory health. Chest. 2016 Feb 1;149(2):459-66.

- 5. Rahman MM. Insecticide substitutes for DDT to control mosquitoes may be causes of several diseases. Environmental Science and Pollution Research. 2013 Apr 1;20(4):2064-9.
- 6. Bhaskar, E.M., Moorthy, S., Ganeshwala, G. and Abraham, G., 2010. Cardiac conduction disturbance due to prallethrin (pyrethroid) poisoning. J Med Toxicol., 6(1): 27-30.
- 7. Taiwo, V.O., Nwagbara, N.D., Suleiman, R., Angbashim. and Zarma, M.J., 2008. Clinical signs and organ pathology in rats exposed to graded doses of pyrethroid containing mosquito coil smoke and aerosolized insecticidal sprays. African Journal of Biomedical Research, 11:97-104.
- Vences-Mejía A, Gómez-Garduño J, Caballero-Ortega H, Dorado-González V, Nosti-Palacios R, Labra-Ruíz N, Espinosa-Aguirre JJ. Effect of mosquito mats (pyrethroid-based) vapor inhalation on rat brain cytochrome P450s. Toxicology Mechanisms and Methods. 2012 Jan 1;22(1):41-6.
- 9. Neal, A.P., Yuan, Y. and Atchison, W.D., 2010. Allethrin differentially modulates voltage-gated calcium channel subtypes in rat PC12 cells. Toxicol Sci., 116: 604-613.
- 10. Madhubabu, G. and Yenugu, S., 2012. Effect of continuous inhalation of allethrin-based mosquito coil smoke in the male reproductive tract of rats. Inhal Toxicol., 24(3): 143-52.
- 11. Sangha, G.K., Kaur, K., Khera, K.S. and Singh, B., 2011. Toxicological effects of cypermethrin on female albino rats. Toxicol Int., 18(1): 5-8.
- 12. Sinha, C., Agrawal, A.K., Islam, F., Seth, K., Chaturvedi, R.K., Shukla, S. and Seth, P.K., 2004. Mosquito repellent (pyrethroid-based) induced dysfunction of blood-brain barrier permeability in developing brain. Int J Dev Neurosci., 22(1): 31-7.
- Anusha C, Sankar R, Varunkumar K, Sivasindhuja G, Ravikumar V. Fourier transform-infrared spectroscopy as a diagnostic tool for mosquito coil smoke inhalation toxicity in Swiss Albino mice. Journal of Molecular Structure. 2017 Dec 5;1149:128-35.
- Sahar, A., Abou, E.M., Sabik, L.M.E. and Shoukry, A., 2011. Pyretheroid toxic effects on some hormonal profile and biochemical markers among workers in pyretheroid insecticides company. Life Science Journal, 8(1): 311-322.
- Somia, I., Maghraby, E., Hamdy, A., Taha and Nabila, S. and Hassan., 2010. Effect of anthum graveolens L. extract on biochemical and histopathological alteration of deltamethrin in rats. J of Bioanal & Biomed., 2(1):008-012.
- 16. Soderlund DM. Molecular mechanisms of pyrethroid insecticide neurotoxicity: recent advances. Archives of toxicology. 2012 Feb 1;86(2):165-81.
- Palm, F. and Nordquist, L., 2011. Renal tubulointerstial hypoxia: Cause and consequence of kidney dysfunction. Clinical and Experimental Pharmacology, 38(7): 474-480.

Original Article

Pattern of Anemia among Primigravida Attending the Antenatal Clinic of Tertiary Care Hospital

Natasha Bushra,¹ Ahmad Zunair Wasim,² Jamshid Feroze,³ Maria Masood⁴

Abstract

Objectives: To determine the frequency of anemia, severity, its various types and determinants among primigravida attending the antenatal clinic of tertiary care hospital.

Methods: It was cross sectional study conducted in Antenatal clinic, Gynecology and Obstetrics department, Services Hospital Lahore for duration of one year from 01-07-2017 to 30-06-2018. All primigravida presenting to antenatal clinic for their first antenatal visit uptil 24 weeks were included in study. Blood samples of the patients was sent in complete blood count vial to pathology laboratory. Patients having hemoglobin level less than 11 gm/dl were labelled as anemia and typing was done according to RBC indices, S. Ferritin and hemoglobin electrophoresis if required. Characteristics of patients anemic and nonanemic patients were compared. Severity of anemia was also noted.

Results: Total 210 primigravida were screened and 53 (25.2%) patients were found to be anemic. Iron deficiency anemia was noted in 40(75.5%) patients, beta thalassemia in 9(17.0%) patients and megaloblastic anemia in 4(1.9%) patients. Mild anemia was seen in 28(52.8%), moderate anemia in 19(35.8%) and severe anemia in 6(11.3%) primigravida. The mean age of the patients was 25.68±4.68 years in patients without anemia and 26.47±4.76 in patients with anemia. The mean gestational age at booking was 16.15±4.87 weeks for non anemic patients and 22.23±3.67 weeks for anemic patients (p<0.05). Mean hemoglobin in anemic patients was 9.2+0.8 mg/dl while 11.1+0.6mg/dl in nonanemic patients (p<0.05). Illiteracy, low socioeconomic status and no intake of iron supplementation had significant association with anemia (p<0.05).

Conclusion: The frequency of anemia among primigravida attending the antenatal clinic of tertiary care hospital was 25.2% and the most common type was iron deficiency anemia. Poverty, illiteracy, late booking and no iron and folic acid intake were significant determinants of anemia.

Key Words: Anemia, Primigravidas, Iron deficiency anemia

Introduction

Anemia affects quarter of global population with South Asia, Central and West Africa having highest anemia prevalence in the world.¹ Anemia is an important risk factor for health and development of women and children. Anemia in pregnancy constitutes a major public health problem and it is estimated that 56% of pregnant women in developing countries are anemic.² Anemia not only affects women health with

1.	Natasha Bushra	2
3.	Jamshid Feroze	4
1-3	. Gynae Unit - II, SIMS/SHL	

4. Student LMDC

Correspondence:

Dr. Natasha Bushra, Gynae Unite II

Submission Date: 1st Revision Date: Acceptance Date: 16-07-2020 15-10-2020 17-12-2020

Ahmad Zunair Wasim

Maria Masood

fatigue and decreased working capacity but anemia in pregnancy is associated with high morbidity and mortality.³ Maternal anemia is associated with fetal anemia and is important cause of perinatal mortality⁴. WHO classifies anemia into three categories i.e. mild anemia with hemoglobin 10-10.9gm/dl, moderate anemia with hemoglobin of 7-9.9gm/dl and severe anemia with hemoglobin

anemia with hemoglobin 10-10.9gm/dl, moderate anemia with hemoglobin of 7-9.9gm/dl and severe anemia with hemoglobin

great variation in different developing countries ranging from 35.1% to 76.5%.⁶⁷ Poor socioeconomic conditions and repeated pregnancy burden with depletion of iron stores is characterized as reason for development of anemia.

All of these studies shows the disease burden of anemia in pregnant population where majority of the sample size consist of multigravida females. It is generally thought that primigravida do not have anemia as they didn't experience pregnancy burden which drains maternal iron stores. They are considered a low risk group and taken to hospital late for booking. Not many studies have been published which address frequency of anemia, its types and determinants in primigravida. First pregnancy is generally the first exposure of girls to a health care facility and many ailments are diagnosed for the first time. Primigravida constitute a very important obstetric cohort which, in which thalassemia minor can be diagnosed for the first time. Moreover their anemia will have different corelates as compared to multigravida. We planned this study to determine the frequency of anemia, its types and determinants among the primi-gravida presenting to the antenatal clinic of the tertia-ry care hospital. To our knowledge this is the first local study from Pakistan which addresses anemia in primigravida patients. This would also indirectly highlight the disease burden of anemia among female population as primigravida with anemia are more likely to be having pre-existing anemia. This will be useful in formulating the guidelines for young patien-ts who are getting married regarding their screening of anemia and prophylactic iron supplementation. Moreover, this study will provide baseline data for further research to be conducted regarding the risk factors and strategies for the management of anemia with respect to its public health importance to dec-rease the morbidity and improved feto-maternal out-come.

Methods

It was a cross sectional study conducted in obstetrics department, Services Institute of Medical Sciences, Services hospital Lahore after taking approval from IRB. All primigravida presenting to antenatal clinic for their first antenatal visit uptil 24 weeks were included in study. All patients fulfilling the selection criteria was approached and an informed consent was taken from them before enrolling in the study Detailed history regarding age, education, socioeconomic status, previous ailments and dietary habits particularly intake of mutton or beef 2-3 times/week and iron plus folic acid tablets daily was taken. Family history of thalassemia was also recorded. The patients who were not willing to participate in the study and with bleeding disorders were excluded from the study. All the Information regarding their age and contact no was obtained by the researcher and noted

in the proforma. Blood samples of the patients was taken by using aseptic techniques and was sent in complete blood count vial to pathology laboratory of Services Institute of medical sciences, Lahore for measurement of hemoglobin level and RBC indices. Results were collected by the researcher next day and were labeled anemia if hemoglobin was less than 11gm/dl. Females with low hemoglobin and RBC indices showing hypochromic, microcytic anemia were offered serum Ferritin to see iron stores and Hemoglobin electrophoresis to confirm beta thalassemia. Patients were classified as Iron deficiency anemia, thalassemia and megaloblastic anemia depending on RBC indices. All patients with anemia were categorized into mild, moderate and severe anemia according to WHO criteria with mild anemia (Hemoglobin level 10-10.9g/gl), moderate anemia (Hemoglobin level 7-10g/dl) and severe anemia (Hemoglobin level less than 7gm/dl). All patients were offered management of anemia according to the standard protocol. Characteristics of patients with & without anemia was compared. Sample size of 210 cases was calculated with 95% confidence level, 4% margin of error and taking expected percentage of primigravidas with anemia as 9.6%. Data was entered into computer through SPSS version 23, and it was analyzed by descriptive statistics. Qualitative variables like presence of anemia and type of anemia was presented in the form of frequency and percentages. Data was stratified for the age, trimester of pregnancy, educational status and total family income to control the effect modifier. The comparison between qualitative variables was done by using chi square test or fisher Exact test where appropriate. Chi square was applied post stratification and p value < 0.05 was taken as statistically significant.

Results

In our study, 210 primigravida were screened out of which 53 were found to be anemic giving frequency of 25.2%. Iron deficiency anemia was noted in 40(75.5%) patients, beta thalassemia in 9(17.0%) patients and megaloblastic anemia in 4(1.9%) patients. Stratification of type of anemia done and 28(52.8%) were having mild anemia (Hemoglobin level 10-10.9g/gl), moderate anemia (Hemoglobin level 7-10g/dl) in 19(35.8%) and severe anemia (Hemoglobin level less than 7gm/dl) in 6(11.3%) primigravida were seen. (Table1)

The mean age of the patients was 25.68 ± 4.68 years in patients without anemia and 26.47 ± 4.76 in patients with anemia. The mean gestational age at booking was 16.15 ± 4.87 weeks for non anemic patients and 22.23 ± 3.67 weeks for anemic patients (p<0.05). Mean hemoglobin in anemic patients was 8.2 ± 0.8 mg/dl while 11.1 ± 0.6 mg/dl in nonanemic patients (p<0.05). Educational status showed that 36 (67.9%) of anemic patients were illiterate while 58/157 (36.9%) of nonanemic patients were having elementary or no education(p<0.05). Low socioeconomic status had significant effect on prevalence of anemia (p=0.476). Mean gestational age of delivery was 35.5 ± 1.0 weeks in anemic and 37.6 ± 1.7 weeks in nonanemic patients [p<0.05)Table II.

Discussion

The frequency of anemia among primigravidas was found to be 25.2% which is quite high considering the cohort. The prevalence of anemia in pregnant patients reported in studies from Africa ranges from 25.3% - 53.09%.⁸⁻¹¹ These studies report 19- 25% patients to

Table 1: Frequency distribution of type & severity of anemia

		Frequency	Percent
Type of	Iron deficiency Anemia	40	75.5
Anemia	Beta thalassemia	9	17.0
	Megaloblastic Anemia	4	1.9
	Total	53	100
Severity of	Mild anemia	28	52.8%
Anemia	Moderate anemia	19	35.8%
	Severe anemia	6	11.3%

 Table 2: Demographic & Maternal Characteristics

Parameters	Anemic =53	Non anemic=157	P value
Age	26.68±4.68 years	25.68 ± 4.68	0.350
Gestational Age at presentation (weeks)	21.23±3.67 weeks	16.15±4.87	0.000
Education			
Illiterate / Elementary	36 (67.9%)	58 (36.9%)	
Secondary	10 (18.8%)	65 (41.4%)	0.029
Higher secondary	7(13.3%)	34 (21.6%)	
Income/month	38(71.6%)		0.036
<rs.25,000< td=""><td></td><td>92(58.5%)</td><td></td></rs.25,000<>		92(58.5%)	
>25,000	15(28.3%)	65(41.4%)	
Iron/folic acid intake	15 (28.3%)	52(33.1%)	0.045
Intake of meat	5(9.4%)	22(14.0%)	0.574
Hemoglobin at enrolmer	nt 9.2 <u>+</u> 0.8	11.1 <u>+</u> 0.6	0.004

be primigravida but none of them have studies pro-

portion of primigravida having anemia. One study from Malaysia has reported prevalence of 19.5% anemia in primigravida which is less than our study.¹² Study from Turkey report prevalence of 20% in pregnant patients at booking.¹³ Malaysia and Turkey are developed countries with higher per capita income and less population burden from Pakistan hence better nutritional status of women. Studies from Pakistan report a high prevalence of anemia in pregnancy ranging from 74.8-93.2%.¹⁴⁻¹⁶ Iron deficiency anemia was the commonest anemia seen in patients in our study. It is the commonest anemia reported worldwide.^{8-11,14,15} Anemia in primigravida is alarming and depicts general status of women in society. Poverty with no intake of meat and protein being expensive although richest source of iron is a crucial reason. Gender bias have a role to play in low middle income countries as girls are definitely underfed.² Adequate knowledge about prenatal nutrition is also lacking among girls as is reported from study from Sindh.14



Fig#1: Frequency Distribution of Anemia

Mild anemia was seen in 52.8% of patients while 35.8% had moderate and 11.3% had severe anemia in this study. Studies from Pakistan have also reported majority of cases to be having mild to moderate anemia in women ranging from 52.5 to 69.9% with severe anemia in fewer cases.¹⁴⁻¹⁶ Studies from Ethiopia and South Africa also report mild to moderate anemia to be more prevalent in pregnant women.^{8,11} Study from Turkey reports significantly less anemia with mostly mild cases in pregnant patients at booking as most of the patients belonged to affluent socioeconomic class.¹³ Severe anemia is generally related to acute blood loss while mild to moderate anemia depicts nutritional deficiency which is prevalent in Africa and South Asia. Thalassemia was the

second commonest anemia in our study seen in 17.9% of patients. Prevalence of 4.9% is reported from Islamabad while a study from Lahore reports 7.5% prevalence.^{17,18} High prevalence in our study might be related to screening only primigravida. Screening for thalassemia should be mandatory for all young girls pre martially so that early screening can be offered to patients and prevention of major thalassemia is possible. A study by Anchang-Kimbi et al documented that 57% frequency of anemia. Moreover, it was seen that 75% of the anemic females had iron deficiency anemia while 17.3% and 5% suffered from beta thalassemia and megaloblastic anemia respectively.¹⁹

Mean gestational age at booking was significantly late for anemic women. We enrolled the study participants uptil 24 weeks as incidence of anemia increases with gestational age due to progressive hemodilution and more demand from the fetus. Early booking leads to appropriate iron supplementation and dietary counselling of patients which is evident in our study as iron and folic acid intake was significantly better in nonanemic patients. Incidence of iron deficiency anemia has progressively decreased in India over 15 years due to increasing iron intake of population along with iron fortification of salt.²⁰ This is especially important in young girls who will be mothers in near future so that they have adequate stores to start pregnancy. Knowledge about nutrition in pregnancy should be imparted to general public especially addressing myths and misconceptions about iron intake. A study from Ghana reports that patients were four times more anemic in third trimester and reason being inadequate iron supplementation due to lack of knowledge about micronutrient needs in $pregnancy^{21}$.

Poverty and illiteracy were significantly associated with anemia in our study. Both go hand in hand as poor families cannot afford education which is not provided by the State in LMIC. All studies from Africa and South Asia report illiteracy and poverty as major cause of anemia.^{6-10,14,15,16} Education empowers women to take decisions regarding diet, iron supplementation and spacing during pregnancies. Mean hemoglobin of 9.2 was too low for a primigravida in early pregnancy. Anemia in pregnancy is not only responsible for adverse maternal outcome but childhood stunting is irreversible outcome of inadequate nutrition during pregnancy. Stunting has long-term effects on individuals and societies, including: dimi-

nished cognitive and physical development, reduced productive capacity. Children born to anemic mothers have low IQ and have poor school outcomes²². WHO has set global targets to achieve 50% reduction of anemia in women of reproductive age and 40% reduction of the global number of children under five who are stunted by 2025.²³

It is recommended that government should focus on giving education regarding importance of micronutrients to all adolescent girls. Adequate nutrition, beginning in early stages of life, is crucial to ensure good physical and mental development and longterm health of our nation.

Conclusion

The frequency of anemia among primigravida attending the antenatal clinic of tertiary care hospital was 25.2%. Iron deficiency anemia was the commonest followed by beta thalassemia and megaloblast anemia. Poverty, illiteracy, late booking and no iron and folic acid intake were significant determinants of anemia.

Conflict of interest

There is no conflict of interest.

Author Contribution

NB: Conceptualized the study and wrote initial manuscript.

AZW: Data analysis.

JF: Reviewed initial manuscript and wrote final manuscript.

MM: Maintained database.

References

- 1. WHO . The global prevalence of anaemia in 2011. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2015
- Balarajan Y, Ramakrishnan U, Ozaltin E, Shankar AH, Subramanian SV. Anaemia in low-income and middle-income countries. Lancet. 2011; 378: 2123– 2135
- 3. Zhang Q, Ananth CV, Rhoads GG, Li Z. The impact of maternal anemia on perinatal mortality: a population-based, prospective cohort study in China. Ann Epidemiol. 2009;19:793–799
- 4. Black RE, Victora CG, Walker SP, Bhutta ZA, Christian P, de Onis M, et al. Maternal and child undernutrition and overweight in low-income and middleincome countries. Lancet. 2013;382:427–451. doi: 10.1016/S0140-6736(13)60937-X

- 5. World Health Organization. Geneva: WHO; 2011. [accessed on September 23, 2016]. Haemoglobin Concentrations for the Diagnosis of Anaemia and Assessment of Severity of Anaemia. Available from: http://www.who.int/vmnis/indicators/haemoglobin/ en/
- 6. Kassa GM, Muche AA, Berhe AK, Fekadu GA. Prevalence and determinants of anemia among pregnant women in Ethiopia; a systematic review and meta-analysis. BMC Hematol. 2017;17(1):1–9.
- Omote V, Ukwamedua HA, Bini N, Kashibu E, Ubandoma JR, Ranyang A. Prevalence, Severity, and Correlates of Anaemia in Pregnancy among Antenatal Attendees in Warri, South-Southern Nigeria: A Cross-Sectional and Hospital-Based Study. Anemia. 2020;2020:1–7.
- Tunkyi K, Moodley J. Prevalence of anaemia in pregnancy in a regional health facility in South Africa. S Afr Med J. 2015;106(1):101-104. Published 2015 Dec 16. doi:10.7196/SAMJ.2016.v106i1.9860
- 9. Adam I, Ibrahim Y, Elhardello O. Prevalence, types and determinants of anemia among pregnant women in Sudan: A systematic review and meta-analysis. BMC Hematol. 2018;18(1):4–11.
- Okube OT, Mirie W, Odhiambo E, Sabina W, Habtu M. Prevalence and Factors Associated with Anaemia among Pregnant Women Attending Antenatal Clinic in the Second and Third Trimesters at Pumwani Maternity Hospital, Kenya. Open J Obstet Gynecol. 2016;06(01):16–27.
- 11. Derso T, Abera Z, Tariku A. Magnitude and associated factors of anemia among pregnant women in Dera District: A cross-sectional study in northwest Ethiopia. BMC Res Notes. 2017;10(1):1–8.
- Tan ACC, Leong EWK, Chua AC, Moy FM. Racial variations in booking haemoglobin of primigravidae in Malaysia: A prospective study. BMC Res Notes. 2013;6(1).
- Öztürk M, Öztürk Ö, Ulubay M, et al. Anemia prevalence at the time of pregnancy detection. Turk J Obstet Gynecol. 2017;14(3):176-180. doi: 10. 4274/

tjod.06337

- 14. Anemia in pregnancy; a study of prevalence and risk factors in antenatal care attendees at ABSH Gujrat. Professional Med J Nov 2013;20(5):736-42.
- 15. Prevalence of Anemia in pregnancy at District Shaheed Benazir Abad, Sindh. Pak J Med Health Sci Jul - Sep 2018;12(3):1114-6.
- Khalid S, Hafeez A, Mashhadi SF. Frequency Of Anemia In Pregnancy And Its Association With Socio-Demographic Factors In Women Visiting A Tertiary Care Hospital In Rawalpindi. Pak Armed Forces Med J. 2017;67(1):19–24.
- Mustafa A, Zulfiqar M, et al. Frequency of β-Thalassemia Trait among Pregnant Women Presenting at Pakistan Institute of Medical Sciences. Natl J Heal Sci. 2018;3(4):118–21.
- 18. Iqbal K, Iqbal I, Shami N. Frequency of beta thalassemia trait in pregnant females. Pakistan J Med Heal Sci. 2018;12(3):1200–2.
- 19. Anchang-Kimbi JK, Nkweti VN, Ntonifor HN, Apinjoh TO, Chi HF, Tata RB, et al. Profile of red blood cell morphologies and causes of anemia among pregnant women at first clinic visit in the mount Cameroon area: a prospective cross sectional study. BMC research notes. 2017;10(1):645.
- 20. Kalaivani K, Ramachandran P. Time trends in prevalence of anaemia in pregnancy. Indian J Med Res. 2018;147(3):268-277.doi:10.4103/ijmr.IJMR_1730_16
- 21. Wemakor A. Prevalence and determinants of anaemia in pregnant women receiving antenatal care at a tertiary referral hospital in Northern Ghana. BMC Pregnancy Childbirth. 2019;19(1):1–11.
- 22. Drassinower D, Lavery JA, Friedman AM, Levin HI, Običan SG, Ananth C V. The effect of maternal haematocrit on offspring iq at 4 and 7 years of age: A secondary analysis. BJOG An Int J Obstet Gynaecol. 2016;123(13):2087–93.
- 23. WHO . Global nutrition targets 2025: anaemia policy brief (WHO/ NMH/ NHD/ 14.4) Geneva: World Health Organization; 2014

Association of Antidiabetic Treatment with the Type of Obesity in Type 2 Diabetic Patients

Jawariea Ali, Sheikh Sajjad Ali, Muhammad Imran, Tuba Tariq, Umair Mahmood, Junaid Iqbal

Abstract

Objective: To find association between antidiabetic treatment and the type of obesity in type 2 diabetic patients.

Methods: The study was conducted in National Institute of Diabetes & Endocrinology (NIDE), Karachi, over a period of 6 months, ie. from January to June, 2018. It was an observational analytical study, for which 59 patients were selected via non-probability sampling, as per inclusion and exclusion criteria. Data was collected through detailed history, examination. A database was developed and analyzed on SPSS 17. A p-value <0.05 was taken as statistically significant.

Results: Fifty nine patients fulfilling the inclusion criteria were included in this study. While 30 (50.8%) had generalized obesity, 29 (49.2%) were not having generalized obesity. Further it was observed that 35 (59.3%) had abdominal obesity, while 24 (40.7%) were not having abdominal obesity. A total of 39 (66.1%) were on insulin, while 20 (43.9%) were not on insulin. Finally, 41 (69.5%) were on oral hypoglycemic drugs, while 18 (30.5%) were not on oral hypoglycemic drugs. P-values were not significant for the study parameters.

Conclusion: There is no association between antidiabetic treatment and type of obesity in type 2 diabetic patients.

Key Words: diabetes, obesity, body mass index, insulin, oral hypoglycemic drugs

Introduction

Obesity is intercontinental issue.¹ In USA alone, more then 2/3rd of population is morbidly obese.² A study conducted in 2006 suggested that a quarter of the Pakistani population falls in the overweight or obese category.³ This was calculated by quantifying them according to Indo-Asian specific BMI cut off values. According to the 2016 World Health Organization (WHO) statistics, 20.8% of the population is overweight and 4.8% is obese.⁴ Studies done in Pakistan have labeled obesity as an epidemic.⁵

1.	Jawariea Ali	2.	Sheikh Sajjad Ali
3.	Muhammad Imran	4.	Tuba Tariq
5.	Umair Mahmood	6.	Junaid Iqbal
1.	Department of Medicine Jinnah Postg	radud	ate Medical Centre, Karachi
2	D		I : C. II C.M. l:

2. Department of ENT/Head & Neck Surgery. Liaquat College of Medicine and Dentistry, Karachi

3. Department of Physiology, Continental Medical College, Lahore

4. Department of Radiology, Azra Naheed Medical College, Lahore

Department of ENT, Sheih Khalifa Bin Zayed Medical Center, Quetta
 Department of Physiology, Azra Naheed

1 5 5 6

Correspondence:

Dr. Muhammad Imran, Associate Professor, Department of Physiology, Continental Medical College, Lahore

nai incarcar correge, Barrore	
Submission Date:	24-11-2020
1st Revision Date:	04-12-2020
Acceptance Date:	22-12-2020

The relationship between human fat and metabolic disorders are not completely understood, although excess body fat is linked with cardiovascular disease risk.⁶ Obesity is directly related to BMI and adiposity is amount of human fat accumulated and it represents excess load of human body fat.⁷ Body mass index is a measure for human body shape based on an individual's mass and height.8 According to the World Health Organization, normal BMI is $\leq 25.0 \text{ kg/m}^2$ and generalized obesity is defined as BMI of or more than 30. And according to a WHO expert consultation on appropriate BMI for Asian population, the range for acceptable normal or optimum BMI should be narrowed to $18.5-23 \text{ kg/m}^2$, but the criteria for obesity is still BMI 30 or more.⁹ Abdominal obesity is defined as WC of 90 cm or more for men and 80 cm or more for women according to the International Diabetes Federation for Asian populations. Abdominal obesity, also known as belly fat or clinically as central obesity, is considerable abdominal fat around the stomach and abdomen.¹⁰

Methods

The study was conducted in National Institute of

Diabetes & Endocrinology (NIDE), Karachi, over a period of 6 months, i.e. from January to June, 2018. It was an observational analytical study. A sample size of 59 was calculated using standard formula: $n = z^2$. P (1 - P) / m², where n is the sample size, z is the confidence level at 95% (standard value of 1.96), P is the prevalence of disease, and m is the margin of error at 5% (standard value of 0.05). The sample size was verified by the help of computer software PASS (Power Analysis and Sample Size) version 2015, at 90% power of the test and an alpha of 0.05. Patients, coming to OPD of NIDE, were selected via non-probability (convenient) sampling, as per following criteria:

Inclusion Criteria

Type 2 diabetes Both male and female individuals Age > 40 years Weight > 70 kg Abdominal waist > 80 cm BMI > 25 On insulin and/or oral hypoglycemic drugs for at least 10 years

Exclusion Criteria

Type 1 diabetes Gestational diabetes Hypothyroid patients Other co-morbidities (eg. CRF, CLD etc)

Data was collected through detailed history and examination (general physical, systemic examination, biometrics). Data source included the records of diabetic patients treated in NIDE, Karachi and the data was used to categorize the patients according to type of obesity and the type of anti diabetic treatment. A database was developed and analyzed on SPSS 17. Mean and SD was calculated for age. Frequency and percentages were calculated for gender, waist circumference, BMI, use of insulin and use of oral hypoglycemic drugs and outcome variable ie. generalized and abdominal obesity. Effect modifier was controlled through stratification of age, gender, insulin use and oral hypoglycemic drugs. It was done to see their effect, on outcome variables, applying chi square test. A p-value of < 0.05 was taken statistically significant.

Results

In this study, 59 diabetic patients, both males and females, fulfilling the inclusion criteria, were inclu-

ded. On analysis of demographics data it was observed that 42 (71.2%) were males while 17 (28.8%) were females. A total of 36 (61%) patients were below 60 years of age while 23 (39%) were 60 years or above of age. While 30 (50.8%) had generalized obesity, 29 (49.2%) were not having generalized obesity. Further it was observed that 35 (59.3%) had abdominal obesity, while 24 (40.7%) were not having abdominal obesity. A total of 39 (66.1%) were on insulin, while 20 (43.9%) were not on insulin. Finally, 41(69.5%) were on oral hypoglycemic drugs, while 18(30.5%) were not on oral hypoglycemic drugs. Stratification and analysis of observed data is given in Tables 1-4:

Discussion

Our study compared the type of antidiabetic treatment on the type of obesity, using 59 diabetic patients. We observed that generalized obesity was more in our patients than abdominal obesity. It was an unfortunate finding that abdominal obesity was invariably present in users of both type of treatments. Hollander in 2007 compared insulin and different oral hypoglycemic drugs in diabetics and concluded an overall weight gain in exclusive insulin users.¹¹ One important factor that has been shown to increase abdominal obesity with insulin therapy is hypoglycemia. Frequent hypoglycemia and treatment, often overtreatment, can cause weight gain.¹² There is also evidence that

Table 1: Analysis of Insulin use with Generalized Obesity

Inculin uso	Generaliz	P -	
insum use	Yes (30)	No (29)	value
Yes (39)	13	26	0.09
No (20)	17	03	

Table 2: Analysis of Oral Hypoglycemic Drugs	use with
Generalized Obesity	

Oral hypoglycemic	Generalized obesity		P -
drugs	Yes (30)	No (29)	value
Yes (41)	16	25	0.06
No (18)	14	04	

Table 3: Analysis of Insulin use with Abdominal Obesity

Inculin uso	Abdominal obesity		P -	
Insulin use	Yes (35)	No (24)	value	
Yes (39)	24	15	0.17	
No (20)	11	09	0.17	

Table 4: Analysis of Oral Hypoglycemic Drugs use withAbdominal Obesity

Oral hypoglycemic	Abdomin	P -	
drugs	Yes (35)	No (24)	value
Yes (41)	24	17	0.54
No (18)	11	07	

insulin may play a direct role in fat creation and deposition.¹³ Anderson et al. compared lispro and regular insulin at mealtimes and found no difference in weight gain between the two groups of patients with type 2 diabetes. Reduction in A1C also did not differ between the two groups.¹⁴ Cheng in 2011 considered different pharmacotherapeutic options in type 2 diabetics and proposed that the treatment of diabetes should not only focus on glycemic control as its sole intention, but it should take into consideration the effect of antidiabetic treatment on weight as well, since obesity aggravates insulin resistance, beta cell failure, and cardiovascular risk.¹⁵ Rosenstock et al. compared the efficacy of insulin analogs detemir and glargine when added to oral glucose lowering agents in insulin-naive type 2 diabetes subjects with baseline HbA1c of 8.6% in a 52-week, open-label treat-totarget trial. Treatment with insulin detemir (n = 291)and glargine (n=291) resulted in a comparable decrease in HbA1c from 8.6 to 7.2 and 7.1%, respectively. However, there were modest reductions in weight gain seen with detemir versus glargine (+3.0 kg versus +3.9 kg, P=.01).¹⁶ Holman et al. conducted an open-label multicenter trial to evaluate the efficacy of basal insulin, prandial insulin, and biphasic insulin in type 2 diabetes patients inadequately controlled (mean HbA1 ~ 8.5%) on oral hypoglycemic agents^[24]. Patients randomized to prandial insulin (n = 239) had a greater weight gain of 6.4 ± 0.5 kg compared with patients on biphasic insulin (n = 235) with weight gain of 5.7 ± 0.5 kg and basal insulin (n = 234) of $3.6 \pm$ 0.5 kg.¹⁷ Jacob et al. conducted a multicenter doubleblind, placebo-controlled study in which overweight or obese patients with type 2 diabetes (mean HbA1c ~ 8.5%; BMI~37 kg/m²) on either metformin, sulfonylurea, and/or insulin were randomized to treatment with orlistat 120 mg three times daily (n = 1279) or placebo (n = 1271). Patients treated with orlistat had a statistically significant greater decrease in body weight (-3.8 kg) than placebo-treated patients (-1.4 sc)kg) and a larger decrease in HbA1c compared with placebo (-0.74% versus -0.31%). In addition,

patients with minimal weight loss (<1% of baseline body weight) were also found to have a significant improvement in glycemic control with orlistat (HbA1c -0.29%) compared with placebo (±0.14%) suggesting that improvement of glycemic control associated with orlistat may be independent of weight loss.¹⁸ Clearly, the weight gain associated with insulin is a major drawback for treating diabetes, especially patients with type 2 diabetes mellitus.

Conclusion

There is no association between antidiabetic treatment and type of obesity in type 2 diabetic patients. Diabetics have more abdominal as well as generalized obesity, which is not related to the drug they are taking for control of diabetes.

Author's Contribution

- JA: Author; Data collection
- ASS: Conceived the article; Proof reading
- **IM:** Data analysis
- TT: Data analysis, Results compilation
- MU: Write up and formatting
- IJ: Statistical analysis

References

- 1. Bays HE. "Sick fat," metabolic disease, and atherosclerosis. Am J Med. 2009;122:S26–S37.
- 2. Flegal KM, Carroll MD, Kit BK, Ogden CL. Prevalence of obesity and trends in the distribution of body mass index among US adults, 1999-2010. JAMA. 2012;307:491–497.
- 3. Jafar TH, Chaturvedi N, Pappas G. Prevalence of overweight and obesity and their association with hypertension and diabetes mellitus in an Indo-Asian population. CMAJ 2006; 175: 1071-7.
- 4. World Health Organization 2016. [online] [cited 2016 Dec 22]. Available from: URL: http:// www. who.int/diabetes/country-profiles/pak_en.pdf?ua=1.
- Sana Tanzil TJ. Obesity, An Emerging Epidemic in Pakistan: A Review Evidence. J Ayub Med Coll Abbottabad 2016; 28: 597-600
- Bays HE. Adiposopathy: Is "sick fat" a cardiovascular disease? J Am CollCardiol. 2011; 57: 2461– 2473.
- 7. National Heart, Lung, and Blood Institute. The Practical Guide: Identification, evaluation and treatment of overweight and obesity in adults. http://www. nhlbi.nih.gov/guidelines/obesity/prctgd_c.pdf. Published Oct 2000. Accessed July 7 2012.
- 8. Benn RT. Some mathematical properties of weight-

for-height indices used as measures of adiposity. Br J Prev Soc Med. 1971; 25(1): 42–50.

- 9. Llido LO, Mirasol R: Comparison of body mass index based nutritional status using WHO criteria versus "Asian" criteria. PhilSPEN Online Journal of Parenteral and Enteral Nutrition. 2012, January issue, 1-8.
- Alberti KG, Zimmet P, Shaw J. Metabolic syndrome

 a new world-wide definition. A consensus statement from the International Diabetes Federation. Diabet Med. 2006;23:469–480.
- 11. Hollander P: Anti-Diabetes and Anti-Obesity Medications: Effects on Weight in People With Diabetes. Diabetes Spectrum 2007, 20 (3); 159-165
- 12. Strachan MW, Ewing FM, Frier BM, Harper A, Deary IJ: Food cravings during acute hypoglycaemia in adults with type 1 diabetes. Physiol Behav 80: 675–682, 2004
- Kersten KS: Mechanisms of nutritional and hormonal regulation of lipogenesis. EMBO Rep 2: 282– 286, 2001
- 14. Anderson JH Jr, Brunelle RL, Keohane P, Koivisto

VA, Trautmann ME, Vignati L, DiMarchi R: Mealtime treatment with insulin analog improves postprandial hyperglycemia and hypoglycaemia in patients with non-insulin-dependent diabetes mellitus. Arch Intern Med 157:1249–1255, 1997

- 15. Cheng V, Kashyap SR: Weight Considerations in Pharmacotherapy for Type 2 Diabetes. Journal of Obesity. Volume 2011, 1-9
- 16. Rosenstock J, Davies M, Home PD, Larsen J, Koenen C, and Schernthaner G: "A randomised, 52-week, treat-to-target trial comparing insulin detemir with insulin glargine when administered as add-on to glucose-lowering drugs in insulinnaive people with type 2 diabetes," Diabetologia, 2008; 51(3), 408–16
- Holman RR, Thorne KI, Farmer AJ et al., "Addition of biphasic, prandial, or basal insulin to oral therapy in type 2 diabetes," New England Journal of Medicine, 2007; 357(17), 1716–30
- Jacob S, Rabbia M, Meier MK, Hauptman J: "Orlistat 120 mg improves glycaemic control in type 2 diabetic patients with or without concurrent weight loss," Diabetes, Obesity and Metabolism, 2009;11(4), 361– 71

A Comparison between Bupivacaine Alone and Bupivacaine with Tramadol in Epidural Block for Postoperative Pain Management

Saadia Khaleeq, ¹ Azib Ali, ² Sahir Shafiq, ³ Muhammad Muazzam Butt, ⁴ Mudassar Aslam, ⁵ Muhammad Usman Jehangir⁶

Abstract

Objective: This study was designed to compare the mean pain score with bupivacaine versus tramadol plus bupivacaine in patients undergoing surgery under general anesthesia. Randomized Controlled Study. Anesthesia department of SIMS medical college/Services Hospital, Lahore. Duration is 13 months from 20th August2017 till 24th September 2018.

Method: 80 patients aged 20-60 years of ASA I & II status, undergoing elective surgery were selected. Patients were randomly divided into two groups (Group A and B) of 40 each, using random numbers table. An epidural catheter was placed at L3-L4 intervertebral level. Group A was given 30 ml of 0.125% bupivacaine and Group B was given 25mg Tramadol plus 0.125% bupivacaine mixture in the same volume. General anesthesia was induced with IV Propofol 2mg/kg and atracurium 0.5mg/kg. After recovery from anesthesia, patients were shifted to HDU. Post-operative pain was assessed using the 10-point VAS score. Injection nalbuphine 0.1mg/kg was given as rescue analgesic when VAS score became more than 4.

Results: The mean age of patient in Group A was 37.5 ± 9.1 years and 38.6 ± 7.0 years in Group B. Mean BMI in Group A was 33.2 ± 4.3 and 32.2 ± 4.2 in Group B. The mean pain score after 12 hours of surgery was 3.6 ± 0.8 in Group A and 1.5 ± 0.9 in Group B, p value was significant.

Conclusion: Thus, the present study concludes that epidural administration of tramadol as adjuvant with bupivacaine is more effective in postoperative pain relief as compared to bupivacaine alone. **Key Words:** Bupivacaine, Epidural, Postoperative pain, Tramadol.

Introduction

S urgical patients require effective intra operative as well as post-operative pain control. The aim of postoperative analgesia is to provide patient comfort, early ambulation and recovery of motor function.¹ Effective postoperative analgesia decreases the incidence of respiratory and cardiovascular complications, improves patient satisfaction, speeds up reco-

1.	Saadia Khaleeg	2.	Azib Ali
3.	Sahir Shafiq	4.	Muhammad Muazzam Butt
5.	Mudassar Aslam	6.	Muhammad Usman Jehangir
1.	ICU & Pain Management, S	IMS	Medical College/Services Hospital
	Lahore.		
2.	CLAPP Hospital, Lahore.		
3.	Children Hospital, Faisalabad	d	
4.	PINS, LGH		
5.	PGMI/Ameer.U.Din Medical	Colle	ge,LGH, Lahore
6.	SIMS/Services Hospital Lahor	re	

Correspondence:

Dr. Saadia Khaleeq, Assistant Professor Anesthesia, ICU & Pain Management, SIMS Medical College/Services Hospital, Lahore Email: saadia.raza64@gmail.com

Submission Date:	16-07-2020
1st Revision Date:	05-10-2020
Acceptance Date:	13-11-2020

very and discharge from hospital.^{2,3,4,5} High severity of postoperative pain increases the incidence of hospital stay duration, surgical morbidity and mortality.³

Regional analgesia with the local anesthetic drug via epidural catheter is established method of satisfactory postoperative pain management.^{1,6} Epidural block gives better control of the level of analgesia, lesser hemodynamic changes and can be used for postopera-tive pain relief by using different drugs.^{6,7} The choice of individual drug used for epidural analgesia depends upon the factors like severity of pain, pre-sence of co morbid conditions and general condition of the patient.⁴ Bupivacaine is a local anesthetic which belongs to the amide group of anesthetic agents that has been widely used for peripheral nerve blocks, spinal and epidural anesthesia. Various adjuvants have been added to the local anesthetic to minimize their side effects and prolong the duration of intra-operative and postoperative analgesia.⁷ Opioids are considered the best option as adjuvants to local anes-thetics for

postoperative analgesia because of easy availability and convenient use.⁸ Tramadol is a cen-trally acting opioid analgesic and is similar in struc-ture to morphine and codeine with both active enan-tiomers. It augments the pain transmission inhibition via neurotransmitters modulation: the (+)-enantio-mer inhibits serotonin reuptake, whereas the (-)enantiomer inhibits norepinephrine reuptake and has no neural toxicity when given intrathecal or in epidural anaesthesia.^{9,10} In addition, the (+)-enantiomer and the primary metabolite of tramadol, (+)-O-desmethyl - tramadol, both act as µ-opioid receptor agonists.¹¹ The different properties of the tramadol enantiomers create synergistic analgesic effects, which improves tolerability by decreasing various side effects common to other opioids, such as respiratory depression, constipation, and abuse potential.¹²

The rationale for managing post-operative pain is to improve the outcome of surgery along with increased patient satisfaction. Earlier studies have revealed the use of systemic and regional analgesics with minimum side effects to be effective in relieving pain. We designed this study to compare the mean pain score with bupivacaine versus tramadol plus bupivacaine in patients undergoing surgery under general anesthesia.

Study Design; Randomized, Controlled Trial.

Study Duration; 13 months from 20th August 2017 till 24th September 2018.

Venue; Anesthesia Department of SIMS Medical College/Services Hospital.

Methods

After approval from hospital ethical committee, 80 patients aged 20-60 years of ASA I & II status, undergoing elective surgery were selected through wards of Department of Surgery, Services hospital, Lahore. Written informed consent was taken. Patients with absolute contra indication for epidural block like bleeding disorder or receiving anticoagulants, allergic to study drugs, infection at the site of injection and neurological deficit were excluded from study. Patients were randomly divided into two groups (Group A and B) of 40 each using random numbers table. A 20G cannula was passed and standard monitors were applied after receiving the patient in operation theatre. Before administering general anesthesia, an epidural catheter was placed with Tuohy needle after loss of resistance technique at L3-L4 intervertebral space level. After a test dose of 3 ml xylocaine containing epinephrine (1:200,000), Group A was given 30 ml of 0.125% bupivacaine and Group B was given 25mg Tramadol plus 0.125% bupivacaine in the same volume of 30 ml. Anaesthesia was then induced with IV Propofol 2mg/kg and tracheal intubation was done with atracurium 0.5mg/kg. General anaesthesia was maintained with $50\% O_2 + 50\% N_2O$ and 1.2% isoflurane with IPPV. At completion of surgery, patients were recovered from anesthesia and shifted to high dependency unit, where they were followed-up for 12 hours. After 12 hours, post-operative pain was assessed using the 10-point VAS score. No pain-0, 1-3-mild pain, 4-7-moderate pain, and 8-10-severe pain. Injection nalbuphine 0.1mg/kg was given as rescue analgesic in patients with VAS score of more than 4.

Data Analysis

SPSS version 21 was used to enter and analyze the data. Quantitative variable like age, BMI and postoperative pain were represented by mean \pm SD. Qualitative variable like gender were presented by calculating frequency and percentage. Both groups were compared for postoperative pain by using independent sample t-test. P-value≤0.05 was considered as significant.

Results

The mean age of patient in Group A was 37.5 ± 9.1 years. In group B mean age was 38.6 ± 7.0 years. Age was comparable for both groups. Mean BMI in Group A was 33.2 ± 4.3 and 32.2 ± 4.2 in Group B. BMI distribution was equal in both groups. Table 1.

There were 38 males and 42 females making 47.5 % and 52.5 % of sampled population. Male female distribution was almost equal. (Figure:1) The mean pain score after twelve hour of surgery was 3.6 ± 0.8 in Group A and 1.5 ± 0.9 in Group B, p value was significant. Table 2.

Data stratification for age group and mean pain score was not significant. Table 3

Discussion

More than 80% of patients suffer from acute postoperative pain after surgical procedure. The severity of pain is categorized as moderate, severe or extreme by 75% of patients. Adequate pain relief has been reported in literature by less than half number of patients. Persistent postsurgical pain leads to increased risk of post-surgical complications, delay in recovery and thus quality of life will be affected with inadequate control of pain.^{13,14} The goal of modern postoperative pain management is to minimize suffering and enhance recovery and rehabilitation through blunting maladaptive reflexes.¹⁵ Many preoperative, intraoperative, and postoperative pain.^{13,14} Most common-

Table 1:				
	Group A	4	Group B	
	(Bupivacai	ine)	(Bupivacaine &Tr	amadol)
Age	37.15±9.1	11	38.65±7.04	ł
$BMI(kg/m^2)$	33.26±4.3	36	32.29±3.31	l
Table 2:				
	Group A (Bupivacaine	e) (Buj	Group B bivacaine&Tramad	p- o)) value
Pain Score	3.650±0.833		1.525±0.960	0.000
$Mean \pm SD$				
Table 3:				
Age (Group A		Group B	p-
(years) (Bu	pivacaine)	(Bupi	vacaine&Tramad	ol) value
20-35 3	.94±0.63		1.50±0.61	0.438
35-60 3	.40±0.90		1.54±1.18	0.609

ly used is epidural analgesia because of its various advantages. The major advantage is the use of lower doses of analgesic drugs with prolonged duration of action and minimal side effects.¹⁵

In our study lower VAS scores were found with combination of bupivacaine plus tramadol administered epidurally (p<0.05). Similar results were seen by Saxena D et al who also noticed lower pain scores with epidural tramadol+bupivacaine and concluded that it provided better analgesia than bupivacaine alone in patients undergoing lower limb surgeries.⁶

Comparable observations were seen by Pavithra who conducted study on pediatric population and compared bupivacaine alone versus tramadol plus bupivacaine. Duration of analgesia was maximum in combination therapy and there was less need for rescue analgesia in combination therapy group.¹⁶ Likewise, Akhtar N et al supported the tramadol-ropi-vacaine combination to be effective than ropivacaine alone in lowering the pain scores when used in supraclavicular block for upper limb surgeries.¹¹ Singh et

al. also revealed significant lower VAS scores with epidural tramadol as adjuvant to 0.2% ropivacaine in upper abdominal surgeries.¹ Consistent with our results, Imam A et al observed lower VAS pain scores in their study with tramadol via epidural route when compared to bupivacaine for postoperative analgesic effect in gyneacological surgeries.¹⁷ In agreement to our study results, Yadhuraj MK et al found lower pain scores after 12 hours. He compared tramadol with pentazocine when given epidurally for postoperative analgesia in lower abdominal surge-ries.¹⁸ Conflicting results have been seen in few studies which could be attributed to choice of local anesthetics, choice of adjuvants used and methodology. Higher VAS scores were seen by Agarwal et al with Tramadol-bupivacaine (4.4) after 4.5 hours undergoing TKR and THR surgeries under combined spinal epidural anesthesia.² Patil et al did not find mean VAS score to be lower in tramadol-bupivacaine when compared to fentanyl-bupivacaine group. This was contradictory to our study results which could be due to variation in methodology.⁴ Contrary to our study results, Deo et al also found VAS scores to be significantly higher in Tramadol group. The reason for this variation could be that comparison was done with Butorphanol-bupivacaine combination and not with bupivacaine alone.¹⁵ There were few limitations in our study like sedation score and adverse effects of Tramadal were not mea-sured in our study. Moreover, we could not compare its analgesic effects with other opioid and nonopioid adjuvants. Future studies can be done with other newer drugs to assess their efficacy for epidural analgesia.

Conclusion

Thus, the present study concludes that epidural administration of tramadol as adjuvant with bupivacaine is more effective in postoperative pain relief as compared to bupivacaine alone.

Conflict Of Interest; None.

Author's Contribution

KS: Basic design AA: Data analysis SS: Discussion writing BMM: Iterpretation & data analysis MA: Final drafting of manuscript JUM: Final approval of revision
References

- 1. Singh AP, Singh D, Singh Y, Jain G. Postoperative analgesic efficacy of epidural tramadol as adjutant to ropivacaine in adult upper abdominal surgeries. Anesth Essay Res 2015;9(3):369.
- 2. Agrawal V, Gore R, Kawade DB, Shelke P. Comparative Study of Tramadol Vs Nalbuphine as an Additive With 0.125% Bupivacaine Plain for Post-Operative Epidural Analgesia in Total Knee Replacement and Total Hip Replacement Surgeries. (IOSR-JDMS 2019;18(9): 54-58.
- 3. Shilpashri AM, et al. Postoperative Epidural Analgesia between 0.25% Ropivacaine Plus Tramadol and 0.25% Bupivacaine Plus Tramadol in Abdominal and Lower Limb Surgeries - A Comparative Study. Anaesth Critic Care Med J 2019;4(2): 000152.
- 4. Patil S, Birnale A, Patil S, Patil P. A Comparative study of epidural Fentanyl with Bupivacaine & epidural Tramadol with Bupivacaine for post operative pain relief after lower abdominal Surgery. JMSCR 2018;6(4): 1268-1275.
- Adem AO, Obsa MS, Worji TA. Assessments of health professionals knowledge towards post-operative pain management in Asella Teaching and Referral Hospital, South East Ethiopia. IJMMS 2017; 9(11):137-41.
- Saxena D, Sanwatsarkar S, Dixit A, Arya B. Comparative study of duration of analgesia with epidural bupivacaine and bupivacaine with tramadol in lower limb surgeries. Int J Res Med Sci. 2017;5(5):2003-2010
- Chatrath V, Attri JP, Bala A, et al. Epidural nalbuphine for postoperative analgesia in orthopedic surgery. Anesthesia, Essays and Researches. 2015 Sep-Dec; 9(3):326-330.
- Kim SY, Kim NK, Baik SH, Min BS, Hur H, Lee J, et al. Effects of postoperative pain management on immune function after laparoscopic resection of colorectal cancer: A randomized study. Medicine 2016;95(19).
- 9. Sekandarzad MW, van Zundert AA, Doornebal CW, Hollmann MW. Regional anesthesia and analgesia in

cancer care: is it time to break the bad news? Curr Opin Anesthesiol 2017;30(5):606-12.

- Siddiq S, Asad N, Rehman A, Ali M, Khalid U, Butt Z. A comparative study of the effect of intrathecal tramadol and buprenorphine used as adjuvants to hyperbaric bupivacaine for postoperative analgesia in infraumbilical surgeries. APICARE 2019; 23(3): 263-67.
- Akhtar N, Butt A, Nazeer T, Shah A, Zarqa. Comparison of efficacy of ropivacaine alone with tramadol ropivacaine combination in supraclavicular brachial plexus bock for upper limb surgery. Biomedica 2015; 31(4):281-85.
- 12. Wolfe AM, Kennedy LH, Na JJ, Nemzek-Hamlin JA. Efficacy of tramadol as a sole analgesic for postoperative pain in male and female mice. J Am Assoc Lab Animal Sci 2015;54(4):411-9.
- 13. Sharrock NE, Cazan MG, Hargett MJ, Williams-Russo P, Wilson PD., Jr Changes in mortality after total hip and knee arthroplasty over a ten-year period. Anesth Analg. 1995;80:242–248.
- 14. Katz J, Jackson M, Kavanagh BP, Sandler AN. Acute pain after thoracic surgery predicts long-term post-thoracotomy pain. Clin J Pain. 1996;12:50–55.
- 15. Deo GP, Shrestha SK, Shrestha IN. Epidural butorphanol for post operative analgesia in lower limb surgeries: a comparative study with epidural tramadol. JCMC 2016; 6(17): 26-32.
- 16. Pavithra V. Comparison of Caudal Bupivacaine, Bupivacaine with Fentanyl and Bupivacaine with Tramadol Administration for Post Operative Analgesia in Children. Journal of Anesthesia & Intensive Care Medicine. 2018;6(2).
- 17. Imam MA, Hasnat S. Bupivacaine versus tramadol: a clinical comparison of two anaesthetics administered via epidural route for postoperative analgesic effect in gynaecological surgeries. Int J Adv Med 2016; 3: 602-6.
- Yadhuraj MK, Somasekharam P, Vinay DM, RaoAUK. A comparative study of epidural tramadol with epidural pentazocine for postoperativeanalgesia in patients undergoing lower abdominal surgeries. Int J Basic Clin Pharmacol 2017;6:2441-5

Association of Vitamin-D levels with Sleep Disturbances

Samina Fida,¹ Saba Saif,² Hala Mansoor,³ Javed Iqbal⁴

Abstract

Objective: Vitamin-D insufficiency and sleep disturbance, both are common problems worldwide and much more common in our part of world. Two problems are associated with each other, which make the situation worse especially locally where over the counter use of even sedatives is common. Vitamin D levels and sleep quality index has been measured and association recorded in our study.

Methods: This cross-sectional analytic study was conducted in Division of Medicine, CMH Lahore from 5th April 2019 to 5th Sep 2019. A total of 106 patients presenting to medicine OPD with symptoms of Vitamin-D insufficiency& low Vitamin-D levels were included in the study. PSQI score was calculated. Post treatment follow up Vitamin-D levels and Pittsburgh Sleep Quality Index score were recorded. Data was entered and analyzed by using spss software version 20.

Results: Following 106 patients presenting to medical OPDs with Vitamin-D insufficiency, Mean Vitamin-D levels at first visit were ± 20.30 with standard deviation of ± 13.14 (CI 95%), PSQI score in first visit was 7(SD ± 2.66 , CI 95%) Mean Vitamin-D levels in second visit after treatment was 83.5(SD ± 20 , CI 95%). PSQI score mean 3.1(SD 1.8, CI 95%). Odds ratio of 3.9(95% CI: 1.20, 12.7), Chi-Square 5.62 with p value .018 was found in first visit and 8.3 (95% CI: 3.15, 22.0), Chi-Square 20.9 with p value <.001 for second visit indicating significant association of Vitamin-D deficiency with poor sleep score.

Conclusion: Sleep disturbance is associated with low Vitamin-D levels depicting as high Pittsburgh score whereas score decreases with increasing Vitamin-D levels.

Key Words: Pittsburgh Sleep Quality Index (PSQI), Vitamin D levels (Vitamin-D level), Sleep disturbances

Introduction

Vitamin-D is one of the fat-soluble vitamins and is essential for bone health. Its discovery dates back with the discovery of rickets type bone disease in 1600-1800 as the prevalence of rickets in children increased from 40-60 % in urban and crowded areas and later on in mid-1800 s it was found to be associated with poor sunlight exposure leading to cod liver oil replacement for treatment and finally to discovery of Vitamin-D.¹

Vitamin-D has 2 forms i.e. D2 (ergocalciferol) mainly from plant source and D3 (cholcalciferol) obtained from diet like deep sea fish, egg yolks, liver or from

1.	Samina Fida	2.	Saba Saif
1.	Summa i rau	2.	Suou Suii

3. Hala Mansoor 4. Javed Iqbal

1-4: Department of Medicine, CMH Lahore Medical College, Lahore.

Correspondence:

Dr. Samina Fida, Associate Professor Medicine, Department of Medicine, CMH Lahore Medical College, Lahore, Pakistan. E-mail: samm.doc@hotmail.com

 Submission Date:
 15-10-2020

 1st Revision Date:
 17-10-2020

 Acceptance Date:
 01-12-2020

synthesis in skin by Ultraviolet B light exposure to skin. Because of last two-decade insufficiency of Vitamin-D main sources are supplements and fortified foods all over the world.² Activated Vitamin-D is formed by 1,25 hydroxylation in liver and kidney and absorbs calcium and phosphate from gut. Vitamin-D status is measured by measuring 25(OH) D. Different methods of measurement were used by different investigators and till now values defined are level of 25(OH) D <10ng/ml (25nmol/l) is considered deficiency, 11-30ng/ml (26-75nmol/l) insufficient and more than 30ng/ml (75nmol/l) is considered sufficient.³⁻⁶

Vitamin-D deficiency results from poor dietary intake, inadequate sunlight exposure, dark skin, obesity, malabsorption, liver and kidney disease etc.^{7,8} It has been associated with bone pains, bone diseases like rickets in kids and osteomalacia in adults. Vitamin-D insufficiency has been found to be an added risk factor with certain extra skeletal diseases like diabetes, cardiovascular disease, and malignancies and sleep disorders.

Vitamin-D supplementation is found to reduce musculoskeletal pains, 9 risk of bone disease, fractures, obstructive sleep apnea syndrome, cardiovascular mortality, diabetes, risk of cancer, infertility, autoimmunity etc.¹⁰⁻¹² Sleep is an essential component of human life and disturbance leads to poor function of the body.¹³ Sleep problems are associated with Vit D deficiency so treating Vit D deficiency might help patients with sleep disturbances and decrease need of sedatives.¹⁴ Several different scales have measured sleeping hours and quality. Sleep -wake activity inventory (SWAI), sleep impairment index scale (SII), sleep disorder questionnaire, Wisconson sleep Questionn-aire (WSQ), Epsworth sleepiness scale, Pittsburgh sleep quality index (PSQI) etc are the common used scales.¹⁵ PSQI is good and detailed account of Patients sleep of last 1 month. Patient can fill the Performa or Questionnaire him/herself and final score from all components can be calculated. A poor sleep score is Pittsburgh score>5.¹⁶ This study was designed, as there is no local data on the association of Vit D insufficiency with sleep disturbances in Pakistan. So identification of insufficient Vit D cases and sleep problems associated might relieve burden of disease and bring good quality sleep with less use of sedatives by proper replacement.¹⁷

Methods

This study was conducted in Division of Medicine, CMH Lahore, from April 2019 to September 2019, after approval from Institutional Review Board (IRB), CMH Lahore (Ref No. 58/ERC/CMHLMC, dated June 9, 2020). A total of 106 patients were selected from outpatient department after calculating the sample size (95 % Confidence level, 10 % margin of error and taking frequency of Vitamin D deficiency as 30 % (14-59%). All these patients presenting in OPDs with muscle pains and lethargy and having low Vitamin-D levels were included. While those subjects who had symptoms because of some other medical illness like rheumatologic disease or uncontrolled diabetes mellitus, respiratory, psychiatric, neuropathic or myopathic problems, complicated liver, kidney or heart disease was excluded from the study.

Written informed consent was taken from each patient for participation in study and confidentiality was maintained. Their demographic profiles (i.e. age,

sex, occupation) were also noted using a structured questionnaire.

Vitamin-D levels were recorded and grouped according to levels i.e. Deficiency (<26 nmole/L), Insufficiency (26-75nmole/L).³⁻⁶ Co-morbid conditions and medications were recorded. All other causes which could cause sleep disturbances and any co morbid condition which was active with clinical or lab abnormalities were excluded. Patients were asked about sleep disturbances and the ones having problem were given Pittsburgh sleep quality index score questionnaire. Pittsburgh sleep quality index has seven components; Out of this first 4 components have questions about time to bed and actually sleeping hours whereas component no 5 assesses quality of sleep and awakening, component 6 marks need of medication for sleep, 7&8 measure effect of sleep problems on patients health and 9 is about overall quality of sleep .Each component is scored 0-3 according to severity. Total score more than 5 marks poor sleep. PSQI score was calculated from the answers about previous month sleep quality. Patients were treated with inj vitamin D3 20000 IU, PO monthly with vit D3 oral tablet 1000 units daily for 2 months followed up after two months. Vitamin d levels and PSQI score was calculated at in follow up visit.

All the collected information was entered into SPSS version 20.0 and analyzed. Age, Vitamin-D levels, Pittsburgh sleep quality index score of first visit and 2 months follow up visit were presented as mean and +/- standard deviation. Frequency tables were made for gender, co morbid conditions, sleep disturbances, medications; Vitamin d levels were correlated with sleep disturbances both for first visit and 2 months follow up visit using Odds ratio and Chi-Square. Confounders like co morbid conditions, age and gender were analyzed by using Logistic regression analysis and adjusted odds ratio was calculated.

P value < 0.05 was considered significant.

Results

A total of 106 patients were enrolled according to inclusion criteria having symptoms and low vitamin D levels. Out of these 29 (27.7%) patients were males whereas 77(72.6%) were females. From 106 individuals, 27 patients (25.5%) were of age group 13-30, 77(72.6%) were of age group 31-60 and 2 (1.9%)

patients were of age 61-90. Majority of patients (67.9%) had no co-morbid condition or medical illness

In first observation Vitamin-D deficiency (level less than 26 nmole/L was seen in 90 (84.9%), 16 patients (15.1%) had level between 26-75 (Vitamin-D insufficiency). Sleep recording of previous month showed that 18 patients (16%) had Pittsburgh sleep quality index score of 1-5 (mild to moderate problem) and 88(83%) had Pittsburgh sleep quality index score of >5(poor sleep, severe problem). Use of sedatives was seen in 34 whereas 51 were not using any medication. In co morbid record, 6 patients (5.7%)had Diabetes mellitus, 11(10.4%) had hypertension, 4(3.8% patients had thyroid disorder 1 patient was asthmatic of mild intermittent type, 10 patients had some rheumatologic disorders out of which 5 had osteoarthritis, 3 Fibro-myalgia, 1 of gout and 1 of rheumatoid arthritis in remission with DMARDS, Two patients had other medical illnesses including heart disease and liver disease in each and none had neuropathy. All of these patients were stable and in remission as account of their disease control with no active clinical or lab abnormality thus ruling out possibility of sleep distur-bances by these problems All 6 patients with associa-ted diabetes mellitus had Vitamin-D level<26 and all-11 patients having hypertension also showed Vit D deficiency with level <26 nmole/L

Mean a Vitamin-D level at first visit was ± 20.30 with standard deviation of ± 13.14 (CI 95%), Pittuburgh scale in first visit was 7(SD ± 2.66 , CI 95%. (Table-I). There was negative correlation between vitamin D levels with Pittsburgh sleep scale of -0.15(p < 0.05)(Table-I). In second observation after treatment with Vitamin-D 3 20000 IU monthly PO for two months Vitamin-D deficiency (level less than 26 nmole/L was seen in 38(35%), 68 patients (65%) had level between 26-75 (Vitamin-D insufficiency). Sleep recording of previous month showed that 78 patients (73%) had Pittsburgh sleep quality index score of 1-5 (mild to moderate problem) and 28(26%) had Pittsburgh sleep quality index score of >5(poor sleep, severe problem). Use of sedatives was seen in 34 whereas 51 were not using any medication. Significant association was found between sleep disturbance with Odds ratio of 3.9 (95% CI: 1.20, 12.7), Chi square 5.62 and p value .018. Adjusted odds ratio was 3.85 with p value .02 in logistic regression analysis with confounders. (Table-II)

Mean Vitamin-D level in second visit was $83.5(SD \pm 20, CI 95 \%)$. PSQI score mean $3.1(SD \pm 1.8, CI 95 \%)$. Odds ratio of 8.33 (95% CI: 3.14, 22.0) with Chi-Square 20.9,p value .000 was found in second visit indicating significant association of vitamin D deficiency with poor sleep score. Adjusted Odds ratio was 8.48 with p value .000(<.001) (Table-III)

Discussion

This is study from a tertiary care hospital establishing sleep disturbances in Vitamin-D deficient patients. We found that in absence of other causes of sleep disturbances Vitamin-D patients had decreased sleep hours and poor sleep quality with odds ratio of 3.9 in first visit and 8.3 in second visit. Sleep is very important for wellbeing of any person and factors affecting poor sleep need proper evaluation and treatment accordingly. Vitamin-D deficiency is common all over the world and more in our region because of dark skin and inadequate fortification of food like seen in developed world. Moreover, poverty keeps people in circle of finding basic food items and deprives them

Table 1: Demographic Detail	ls and Disease
Characteristics	

	Mean	Standard Deviation
Age	41.11	15.04
Vitamin-D level first visit	20.30	13.14
Pittsburgh sleep quality index first visit	6.62	2.66
Vitamin-D level 2 nd visit	83.51	20.74
Pittsburgh sleep quality index 2 nd visit	3.11	1.90

Table 2: Risk of Sleep Disturbances in Vitamin-D Deficiency First Visit.

		PSQ	l score	- Total	OP	A divisted OD	Chi Squara	D voluo
		>5	<5	10121	UK	Aujusteu OK	Cili-Square	r-value
Vitemin D	<25	78	12	90				
Vitamin-D Deficiency	26-75	10	06	16	2.0	2.0	5 60	019
Denetency		90	16	106	5.9	5.9	5.62	.018
Total		100.0%	100.0%	100.0%				

Table 3:	Risk of Sleep.	Disturbances in Vitan	nin-D Deficiency	2nd Visit
	June 1 June 1		····	

		PSQI score		T ()	0.0		CI : 0	D
		>5	<5	lotal	OR	Adjusted OR	Chi-Square	P-value
Vitamin-D	<75	20	18	38				
Deficiency	>75	08	60	68	8.33	8.48	20.9	.000
		28	78	106				
Total		100.0%	100.0%	100.0%				

with so-called luxury of nutrient rich food like fish. Vitamin D deficiency is affecting Pakistani population irrespective of age gender or area and cases recorded are only tip of the iceburg.^{18,19} Vitamin-D deficiency has been proven to be associated with many diseases and sleep disturbances Sleep deprivation or disturbance is also found to be associated with increased risk of certain diseases and all-cause mortality.²⁰ Vitamin-D deficiency has been found to be related with severity of liver disease in local population.²¹ Considering that, Vitamin-D replacement can reduce risk of diseases, severity of certain diseases, can decrease analgesic and sedatives use and can improve sleep quality.^{22,23}

Cheng et al. found that severe Vitamin-D deficiency is associated with sleep disturbances odds ratio calculated was 4.14(CI 95% 2.01,8.52) p-value <0.001) in pregnant females in Singapore.¹⁷ Eckini et al. conducted a study on pediatric population to know link between Vitamin-D and vitamin B12 deficiency with sleep disturbances and an association was found OR 1.93(95% CI,0.65-5.76,P<0.001).²⁴ similar link was found by Jung YS et al where an OR of 1.36 was found(95%CI,1.01,1.83) in fixed day field workers in the electronics manufacturing industry in Korea.²⁵ Piovezan RD found an association of obstructive sleep apnea as well as short sleep duration with Vitamin-D deficiency with OR 2.15(CI 95%, 1.21, 3.81). In our study we used Pittsburgh sleep quality index which measures sleep duration, quality of sleep and need for medications. It measures record of previous month sleep and is better marker of any kind of sleep disturbances. A negative correlation was found in our study of Vitamin-D levels with sleep disturbances. Higher Vitamin-D levels showed lower PSQI score and lower Vitamin-D levels showed higher PSQI scores. There are no local studies to find this asso-ciation although two studies as mentioned above have been reported from Korea and Singapore. The prob-lem is worst in developing countries as developed world has almost overcome the problem

by fortifica-tion of food, healthy diet facilities, education and good health care services.

As prevalence of Vitamin-D deficiency and its association with bone diseases, sub-fertility, liver disease, cardiovascular disease, tuberculosis etc. has been studied in Pakistani population^{18,21}, Our study will add its association with sleep disturbances in literature which in turn might help patients by finding cause of their sleep disturbance and treatment by vitamin D replacement so that patient will get rid of sedatives use and addiction

Conclusion

Higher frequency of sleep disturbances is observed in patients with vitamin D deficiency. Vitamin-D deficiency is found at any age younger to older individuals but seen more common in females having more sleep disturbances getting worse during pregnancies.

Author's Contribution

FS: Design manuscript, statistical analysis SS: Data collection MH, IJ: Statistical analysis

Grant Support & Financial Disclosures: None.

References

- Horlick MF, Biancuzzo RM, Chen TC, Klein EK, Young A, Bibuld D, et al. Vitamin D2 is as effective as vitamin D3 in maintaining circulationg concentration of 25-hydoxyvitamin D. J Clin Endocrinol Metab. 2008; 93(3):677-681. doi: 10.1210/jc.2007-2308
- Kennel KA, Drake MT, Hurley DL. Vitamin D deficiency in adults: when to test and how to treat. Mayo Clin Proc. 2010;85(8):752-757. doi: 10.4065/ mcp. 2010.0138
- Chapuy MC, Preziosi P, Maamer M, Arnaud S, Galan P, Hercberg S, et al. Prevalence of vitamin D insufficiency in adults' normal population. Osteoprosis Int.1997;7(5):439-443.doi:10.1007/s001980050030
- 4. Thacher TD, Clarke BL. Mayo Clin Proc. 2011; 86(1): 50-60. doi:10.4065/mcp.2010.0567

- Heaney RP. Functional indices of vitamin D status and ramifications of vitamin D deficiency. Am J Clin Nutr. 2004;80(Suppl 6):1706S-1709S. doi: 10.1093/ ajcn/80.6.1706S
- Hollis BW, Wagner CL, Drezner MK, Binkley NC. Circulating vitamin D3 and 25 hydroxyvitamin D in humans:an important tool to define adequate nutritional vitamin D status. J Steroid Biochem Mol Biol. 2007;103(3-5):631-634. doi: 10.1016/j.jsbmb.2006. 12.066
- Hagenau T, Vest R, Gissel TN, Poulsen CS, Erlandsen M, Mosekilde L, et al. Global vitamin D levels in relation to age, gender, skin pigmentation and latitude: an ecologic meta-regression analysis. Osteoporosis Int. 2009;20:133-140. doi: 10.1007/s00198-008-0626-y
- Gonzalez-Gross M, Valtuena J, Breidenassel C, Moreno LA, Ferrari M, Kersting M, et al. Vitamin D status among adolescents in Europe: the Healthy Lifestyle in Europe by Nutrition in Adolescence study. Br J Nutr. 2012;107(5):755-764. doi: 10.1017/ S0007114511003527
- Le Goaziou MF, Kellou N, Flori M, Perdrix C, Dupraz C, Boldier E, et al. Vitamin D supplementation for diffuse musculoskeletal pain: results before – and-after study. Eur J Gen Pract. 2014;20:3-9. doi: 10.3109/13814788.2013.825769
- Mete T, Yalcin Y, Berker D, Kiftci B, Guven SF, Topaloglu O, et al. Obstructive sleep apnea syndrome and its association with vitamin d deficiency. J Endocrinol Invest. 2013;36:681-685. doi: 10.3275/ 8923
- Rorie A, Goldner WS, Lyden E, Poole JA. Beneficial role for supplemental vitamin D3 treatment in chronic urticaria: a randomized study. Ann Allergy Asthma Immunol. 2014;112(4):376-382. doi: 10. 1016/j.anai.2014.01.010
- 12. Mozos I, Marginean O. Links between vitamin D deficiency and cardiovascular diseases. BioMed Res Int. 2015;109-275. doi: 10.1155/2015/109275
- Hirshkowitz M, Whiton K, Albert SM, Alessi C, Bruni O, Don Carlos L, et al. National sleep foundation's sleep time duration recommendations: Methodology and Result summary. Sleep Health. 2015;1:40-43. doi: 10.1016/j.sleh.2014.12.010
- Bhaskar S, Hemavathy D, Parasad S. Prevalence of chronic insomnia in adult patients and its correlation with medical comorbidities. J Fam Med Prim Care. 2016;5:780-784. doi: 10.4103/2249-4863.201153
- 15. Stang A. Critical evaluation of the Newcastle-Ottawa scale for the assessment of the quality of nonrando-

mized studies in meta-analyses. Eur J Epidemiol. 2010;25:603–605. doi: 10.1007/s10654-010-9491-z

- Buysse DJ, Monk TH, Berman SR, Kupfer DJ. The pittsburgh sleep quality index: A new instrument for psychiatric practice and research. Psychiatry Res. 1989;28:193–213. doi: 10.1016/0165-1781(89) 90047-4
- Cheng TS, Loy SL, Cheung YB, Cai S, Colega MT, Godfrey KM, et al. Plasma vitamin d deficiency is associated with poor sleep quality and night-time eating at mid-pregnancy in Singapore. Nutrients. 2017;9:340. doi: 10.3390/nu9040340
- Jadoon SA, Ahmed A, Alam MA. Vitamin-D deficiency in Pakistan: tip of iceberg. J Ayub Med Coll Abbottabad. 2018;30(1):78–80.
- Riaz H, Finlayson AE, Bashir S, Hussain S, Mahmood S, Malik F, et al. Prevalence of Vitamin-D deficiency in Pakistan and implications for the future. Expert Rev Clin Phar. 2016;9(2):329-338. doi: 10. 1586/17512433.2016.1122519
- Aurora RN, Kim JS, Crainiceanu C, O 'Hearn D, Punjabi NM. Habitual sleep duration and all-cause mortality in a general community sample. Sleep. 2016;39:1903. doi: 10.5665/sleep.6212
- Falak S, Aftab L, Saeed M, Islam A. Prevalence of Vitamin-D deficiency is related to severity of liver damage in Hepatitis-C patients. Pak J Med Sci. 2020; 36(3):445-450. doi: doi: 10.12669/pjms.36.3.1490
- 22. Shahi MM, Husseini SA, Helli B,H aghighyzade MH, Abofathi M.The effect of vitamin d supplement on quality of sleep in adult people with sleep disorders. Tehran Univ Med J. 2017;75:443-448. doi: 10.1080/1028415X.2017.1317395
- Hauang W, Shah S, Long Q, Crankshaw AK, Tanpricha V. Improvement of pain, sleep, and quality of life in chronic pain patients with vitamin d supplementation. Clin J Pain. 2013;29:341-347. doi: 10.1097/AJP.0b013e318255655d
- Ekinci RMK, Balci S, Serbes M, Dogruel D, Altintas DU, Yilmaz M, et al. Decreased serum vitamin b12 and vitamin D levels affect sleep quality in children with familial Mediterranean fever. Rheumatol Int. 2018;38:83–87. doi: 10.1007/s00296-017-3883-2
- 25. Jung YS, Chae CH, Kim YO, Son JS, Kim CW, Park HO, et al. The relationship between serum vitamin D levels and sleep quality in fixed day indoor field workers in the electronics manufacturing industry in Korea. Ann Occup Environ Med. 2017;29:25. doi: 10.1186/s40557-017-0187-7

Original Article

Frequency of Weight Gain and its Impact in Adults during Lockdown: A Cross-**Sectional Study**

Uswah Bokhari,¹ Uswah Shoaib,² Sana Tariq,³ Sehar Khauteja Khan,⁴ Fatima Syed,⁵ Bushra Amin,⁶ Farhat Ijaz,⁷ Rana Khurram Aftab⁸

Abstract

Objectives: The current lockdown in the country has led to a sedentary lifestyle because of a shift of daily activities online and a fear of contracting the illness leading to isolation inside homes; Hence an expected change in weight of the general population. This study aims to determine the frequency of weight gain and its impact in adults during the current lockdown of COVID-19.

Methods: Participants selected from the ages of 18-25 from different universities of Pakistan were sent questionnaires via WhatsApp, posted online using Microsoft Forms. A total of 157 responses were attained.

Results: Among the 157 participants the average weight before the lockdown was 61.95 kgs and after the lockdown was 64.99kgs so there was an increase of 3.016 kgs whereas 18.5% of the sample maintained their weight and 37.6% were reported to have lost weight. The results also depict a 1.6% increase in impairment of body image.

Conclusion: We concluded that the Lockdown due to the COVID-19 pandemic has caused a gain in the weight and lowered self-esteem with regard to body image of most young adults in Pakistan due to many factors including higher food intake, lack of exercise and also emotional distress.

Key words: Obesity, Weight gain, Lockdown, Body Image.

Introduction

n March 11, 2020 WHO Director General declared COVID-19 a global pandemic, the first ever pandemic caused by the coronavirus species.¹As governments, started to lockdown there countries, the stress and anxiety among the populations raised, as Brooks et al. found in their review a positive correlation of increased mental health problems during this pandemic. The factors leading to this rise include the long duration of isolation, fear of infection, inadequate supplies, boredom and frustration surrounding financial situations due increasing unemployment.² The article published by Zachery et al. May 2020, found that 22% of the subjects gained 5–10 pounds during self-isolation as they spent 20-24 hrs inside the

1	Uswah Bokhari	

3. Sana Tariq

5. Fatima Syed Farhat Ijaz

4 Bushra Amin 6. 8.

2.

Rana Khurram Aftab 1-7: CMH LMC & IOD(NUMS), Lahore

Uswah Shoaib

Sehar Khauteja Khan

8. Punjab Institute of Cardiology, Lahore, Pakistan.

Correspondence:

Dr. Farhat Ijaz, Assistant Professor, Department of Physiology, CMH Lahore Medical College & Institute of Dentistry, Lahore, Pakistan. Email: farhat_khurram_rana@cmhlahore.edu.pk

Submission Date:	01-12-2020
1st Revision Date:	10-12-2020
Acceptance Date:	27-12-2020

house.³ Furthermore, this study also found that a significantly higher percentage of people that gained weight were eating in response to stress or snacking after dinner.³

As the uncertainty surrounding and duration of the pandemic increases, people tend to make unhealthier lifestyle choices. People tend to choose foods with longer shelf life that are highly processed and rich in calories.⁴ This not only affects adults but also children. As schools, workplaces and gyms closed down, opportunities for physical activity also declined. Furthermore, people also have an unhealthier sleeping pattern during holidays. All of these factors i.e. unhealthy diet, lack of physical activity and poor sleeping habits lead to a heightened risk of obesity.³

As it is well known, obesity is linked to heightened morbidity and mortality. Obesity causes a low-grade systemic inflammation that leads to the development of metabolic dysfunction.⁵ According to Bary et al. dysfunctional subcutaneous fat deposition lead to increased free fatty acids and decreases triglycerides which in turn causes ectopic fat deposition. This lipid deposition in various systems of the body lead to

cardiovascular disease, diabetes mellitus and dyslipidemia. On the other hand there is increase in cytokines release and angiotensin which causes hypertension.⁶ Furthermore, there is an increased risk of breast cancer, endometrial cancer and other forms of cancer.⁷⁻⁹ Obesity also modifies the immune responses of the body, making the immune system more vulnerable to infections and less responsive to vaccinations, antivirals and antimicrobial therapies.¹⁰ It has with higher incidences of respiratory tract infections as well as rhinitis, sinusitis and pha-ryngitis/ laryngitis in obese individuals.¹¹ A greater incidence of bronchitis, pneumonia and influenza like illness has also been reported in obese individuals.¹²⁻¹⁴ In addition, according to Lee et al. and Delvin et al. there is a rise in mental health problems as obese people are more prone to weight based bullying, body image issues, depression and eating disorders.^{15,16} Keeping in view all these factors, this study was aimed to determine frequency of weight gain and its impact in adults during the current lockdown of COVID-19.

Methods

After approval by the ethical committee of CMH LMC & IOD, participants both male and female, age group of 18-25 years, belonging to different universities of Pakistan were offered to be enrolled in the study. The sample size was calculated to be 157 using the Rao soft formula with 95% confidence interval and 5% margin error. The population size used was calculated by using values of Zachary et al.²

Questionaries' were administered online using Microsoft Forms by sending the link for the form to WhatsApp groups. The questionnaires were adapted using Impact of Weight on Quality of Life (IWQOL)¹⁷ and Body Image Questionnaire (BIQ)¹⁸. The questions designed included questions from four areas: physical function, self-esteem, public distress and body image, respectively. Question 1 to 6 collected biodata of the participants. Question 7-16 were adapted from the IWQOL. Each question was rated on a three-point Likert scale with 'Never' scoring 0 points, 'Sometimes' scoring 3 points and 'All the time' scoring 5 points. The scores are additive and higher scores mean lower impact of weight gain on physical function, self-esteem, public distress. Question 17 -21 were adapted from the Body Image Questionnaire (BIQ).¹⁸ This part consist of 5 questions related to body image. Each item for this part was scored from 1

i.e., impaired to 5 i.e., most impaired. The total score was achieved by summing all scores. The total scores ranged from 6-30 with a higher score reflecting greater impairment of body image. All data was analyzed using SPSS software (version 26; IBM). Results were presented in frequency and percentages. Chi- square test was used for comparison of categorical variables. P value <0.05 was statistically significant.

Results

One hundred and fifty-seven people completed the survey of which 109 were females and 48 males. The average weight before lockdown was 61.95 kgs and after lock down was 64.966 kgs, an increase of 3.016 kgs. Stable weight was maintained by 18.5 % of the sample while 37.6 % and 11.5 % reported to have gained less than 5 kilograms and more than 5 kilograms respectively. This data is presented in figure 1.



Figure 1: Change in Weight by Percentage of Population

The average score for part 1 of the survey assessing quality of life was 12.185 before lockdown and 12.86 after lockdown (Table 1). The increase in this score shows that the overall quality of life worsened during lockdown however this difference is not significantly high. As represented by Table 1, physical function declined in two variables, trouble with moderate exercise i.e., trouble climbing stairs/running with a Pvalue of 0.033 and trouble with stiff joints i.e. I am troubled by painful or stiff joints with a P- value of 0.002. The area of self-esteem also showed significant p-values for the variables 'Because of my weight, I am afraid of being rejected' and 'Because of my weight, I avoid looking in mirrors or seeing myself in photographs' with p- values of 0.04 and 0.033 respectively. The P- value was also significant for the variable concerning the area of work i.e. trouble getting things accomplished or meeting my responsibilities (0.02). The average score for part 2 of the survey assessing impairment in body image was 12.796 before lock-down and 13.701 after lockdown (Table 1). This demonstrates that there has been an increase in the likelihood of impaired body image. Assessment of impairment of body image demonstrate an increased impairment in some variables.

Table 2 represents the variables with significant pvalues when populations were compared according to their change in weight. People were significantly selfconscious because of their weight after lockdown with a p-value of 0.026. Experience of being ridiculed, teased, or receiving unwanted attention increased

Table 1: Scores and Standard Deviation for Assessment

 of Quality of Life and body Image

	Assessn quality	nent of of life	Assessment of body image		
Average Score	Mean	Std	Mean	Std	
Before lockdown	12.1847	3.2420	12.7962	4.0884	
After lockdown	12.8599	3.8886	13.7006	4.8417	

in population with gain in weight, while it declined in those that lost weight(0.06).

For the area of body image after lockdown, p-value was significant for "How noticeable do you feel your weight was/is/will be to a stranger(0.043). From the population with gain of 5 kgs or more 4 people reported feeling that their weight was markedly noticeable to a stranger; however, this number doubled to 8 after lockdown.

Discussion

This cross-sectional study shows the association between weight gain (obesity) and lockdown during the Covid-19 pandemic in Pakistan. The population studied ranged from 18-25 years with mostly students who stayed home from Mid-March of 2020 to 15th September, 2020. The results how weight gain affected the physical and mental health of people. 49.1% of the participants gained weight and the rest of the 50.9% either had stable weight or had weight loss. We have focused on the effects of weight gain which may be due to poor physical activity as weren't allowed to go outside and many people prefer gyms/outdoors over home exercises, increased screen time, high fatty diet, and less vegetables. Another important reason was that the lockdown period was associated with a higher level of stress and people resorted towards "stress eating" as a coping mechanism as set by prior research of Zachary 2020.³

The most common side effect of weight gain was reduction in physical activities. Of those who gained weight 12 participants had trouble performing daily activities, 8 had difficulty in climbing stairs and 14 reported and an increase in joint pain. This showed that quite a few numbers of participants had side effects of obesity on their health. This can lead to complications later, if obesity is not controlled, such as Diabetes, PCOS in young women, atherosclerosis etc. An article reported that women were at a greater risk of gaining weight due to stress-related eating.¹⁹ This also brings attention to a relatively ignored population during this pandemic; women with PCOS, the most frequent endocrine disorder in women of reproductive age.²⁰ According to Barber et al. Even though postprandial thermogenesis was significantly lower in women with PCOS, it cannot be linked to weight gain as the resting metabolic rates remain similar to those without PCOS.²¹ However, as established by Deeks et al. PCOS is a significant contributor to anxiety and depression.²² Anxiety and depression, however have are linked to higher BMI, especially in women.²³ With the rise in anxiety due to the pandemic, there may be an increased risk of obesity in women, especially those with an underlying metabolic disorder like PCOS. Ultimately, this may attribute towards the fact that the amount of weight gain might have led to increased levels of inflammatory mediators like TNF,IL-1,IL-6, resulting in osteoarthritis as mentioned previously by Vincent HK.²⁴ The problem of osteoarthritis linked with obesity was more commonly seen in women; it affected the larger stabilizing joints mostly like knee, back and hip, that are important in performing physical activities like climbing stairs as presented also by Elizabeth M Badley in 2020.²⁵

In our society particularly the South Asian society weight gain comes with a social stigma that has a considerable amount of negative effect on the mental health of slightly obese and obese people. People tend to lose self-confidence, self-esteem and start avoiding their own body image. This has been highlighted in our results as well. Before lockdown 60.1% people were self-conscious about their weight and 61.7% were self-conscious after lockdown. More number of

Table 2: Significant Variables for Different Range of Weights

			Population with gain of less than 5 kgs	Population with gain of 5 kgs or	Stable weight	Population with loss of less than 5kgs	Population with loss of 5kgs or	P- value
Physical Function			J Kgs	more		than Skgs	more	
Because of my	_	Never	57	16	27	29	12	
weight, I have trouble tying my	Before	Sometimes	2	2	2	2	6	0.021
clothes, crossing my legs etc		Never	- 18	-	- 27	30	- 16	
clothes, clossing my legs etc.	After	Sometimes	10	8	27	30	2	0.0001
		Always	1	2	1	5	-	
I am troubled by painful or stiff		Never	44	10	21	20	8	
ioints		Sometimes	10	6	5	9	8	0.312
Jonnes	Before	Always	5	2	3	4	2	0.512
		Never	35	6	19	19	13	
	After	Sometimes	24	9	10	12	5	0.018
	11101	Always	_	3	-	12	-	
Self esteem		1 HWuy5	1	5	I	12		I
Because of my weight. I am self-		Never	26	8	16	11	6	
conscious		Sometimes	23	7	8	17	10	0.874
	Before	Always	10	3	5	5	2	
		Never	23	4	16	9	8	
		Sometimes	22	6	10	15	8	0.026
	After	Always	14	8	3	19	5	
Because of my weight, I avoid		Never	49	11	23	25	10	
looking in mirrors or seeing		Sometimes	8	6	23	8	7	0.108
myself in photographs	Before	Always	2	1	_	33	1	
		Never	42	6	25	26	13	
	After	Sometimes	16	8	5	5	15	0.001
		Always	1	4	1	2	_	
Because of my weight, I		Never	44	8	18	16	5	
experience ridicule, teasing, or	Before	Sometimes	13	10	10	15	10	0.002
unwanted attention		Always	2	18	1	2	3	
		Never	39	5	19	17	11	
	After	Sometimes	18	11	8	12	5	0.066
		Always	2	2	2	4	2	
Body Image								
How noticeable do you feel your		Not at all	25	5	11	12	1	
weight was/is/will be to a stranger		Slightly	3	6	7	12	6	
(if you do not camouflage	Before	Moderately	9	3	5	8	6	0.015
yourself e.g. with clothes and/or		Markedly	2	4	6	1	4	
makeup) and the feature has not		Very	3	-	-	-	-	
been pointed out to them?		Not at all	18	2	11	10	2	
		Slightly	19	4	7	12	8	
	After	Moderately	14	3	5	8	5	0.043
		Markedly	4	8	5	2	1	
		Very	4	1	1	1	2	
How much do you feel your		Not at all	8	1	6	5	1	
weight/body shape is the most		Slightly	16	5	7	10	6	
important aspect of who you are?	Before	Moderately	20	10	7	10	6	0.964
		Mostly	13	2	7	8	5	
		Totally	2	18	2	-	-	
How much do you feel your		Not at all	8	1	6	5	1	
weight/body shape is the most		Slightly	16	5	7	10	6	
important aspect of who you are?	Before	Moderately	20	10	7	10	6	0.964
		Mostly	13	2	7	8	5	
		Totally	2	18	2	-	-	
How much do you feel your		Not at all	10	1	1	4	2	
weight/body shape is the most		Slightly	13	3	6	9	5	0.011
important aspect of who you are?	After	Moderately	22	6	8	12	7	0.311
		Mostly	10	5	6		4	
		Iotally	4	3	2		-	

people feared social rejection based on their body weight after lockdown than before lockdown. This led them to avoid looking at their body image in mirrors (self- avoidance). Other contributory factors were peer victimization, unwanted teasing, societal pressure as given in prior research of Lowry in 2007²⁶ and has also been shown in our results. There was a gradual increase in number of young adults who were facing teasing and ridiculing due to weight gain after lockdown, whereas it decreased for people who lost weight after lockdown which depicts the strength of peer pressure on overweight individuals.

We lived in a difficult time during the Covid-19 pandemic with a lot of people reporting mental health issues they faced during lockdown and post lockdown. Weight gain could be a contributing factor. The limitations of our study include the questionnaires being sent online there might be a chance that these were not solved by the individuals themselves which may lead to ambiguous results. A proper identification procedure must have been added to avoid such discrepancy. A broader spectrum of age groups should have been used to get an accurate idea about how the weight altered within individuals. Based upon the number of responses, especially the huger share contributed by adults with less than 5 kg gain of weight, it may be suggested that they immediately switch to less fatty diet and observe healthier activities to cover up this short range of weight gain easily. Another limitation that the female responses were not segregated during data collection for the variables and hence the ratio of young females being affected by stiff joints, cannot be deciphered.

Conclusion

In conclusion, it is seen that the community-wide quarantine during COVID-19 pandemic has caused weight gain in adults. This weight gain has occurred due to availability of calorific processed foods, lack of physical activity, emotional distress and overall a sedentary lifestyle that seem to dominate the COVID-19 isolation. Such weight gain is not only deleterious for those who are already overweight, obese, immunocompromised or suffer from severe mental illnesses but also those who were of normal weight pre lockdown, immunocompetent neurotypicals. Our research clearly depicts the substantial changes in weight i.e., an increase of 3.016kg weight on average, post lockdown and an increase of 1.6% in impairment of body image among adults falling in 18-25 age group. With above mentioned results, there's no doubt that covid-19 isolation has not only led to stagnancy causing weight gain in young adults but also low self-esteem and negative body image ultimately giving rise to unhealthy individuals with mental health issues. So, the question arises are we really ready to deal with a low esteemed debilitating generation when the pandemic is finally over?

Author's Contribution

- **BU:** Literature search, study design & concept, questionaire design, data collection
- SU: Literature search, study design & concept, questionaire design, data collection, data analysis
- **TS, KKS, SF:** Literature search, study design & concept, questionaire design, data interpretation, drafting
- AB: Data analysis, data interpretation, drafting
- **IF:** Overall supervision, drafting, revision & final approval
- AKR: Data analysis, data interpretation, drafting

References

- 1. Coronavirus (COVID-19) events as they happen. Accessed July 26, 2020. https://www.who.int/ emergencies/ diseases/novel-coronavirus-2019/eventsas-they-happen
- 2. Brooks SK, Webster RK, Smith LE, et al. The psychological impact of quarantine and how to reduce it: rapid review of the evidence. Lancet. 2020; 395 (10227):912-920. doi:10.1016/S0140-6736(20) 30460-8
- 3. Zachary Z, Brianna F, Brianna L, et al. Self-quarantine and weight gain related risk factors during the COVID-19 pandemic. Obes Res Clin Pract. Published online 2020. doi:10.1016/j.orcp. 2020.05.004
- Rundle AG, Park Y, Herbstman JB, Kinsey EW, Wang YC. COVID-19–Related School Closings and Risk of Weight Gain Among Children. Obesity. 2020; 28(6):1008-1009. doi:10.1002/oby.22813
- Muscogiuri G, Pugliese G, Barrea L, Savastano S, Colao A. Commentary: Obesity: The "Achilles heel" for COVID-19? Metabolism. 2020;108:154251. doi:10.1016/j.metabol.2020.154251
- Bray GA, Heisel WE, Afshin A, et al. The science of obesity management: An endocrine society scientific statement. Endocr Rev. 2018;39(2):79-132. doi: 10. 1210/er.2017-00253
- 7. Rosner B, Eliassen AH, Toriola AT, et al. Short-term weight gain and breast cancer risk by hormone recep-

tor classification among pre- and postmenopausal women. Breast Cancer Res Treat. 2015;150(3):643-653. doi:10.1007/s10549-015-3344-0

- Aune D, Rosenblatt DAN, Chan DSM, et al. Anthropometric factors and ovarian cancer risk: A systematic review and nonlinear dose-response metaanalysis of prospective studies. Int J Cancer. 2015; 136(8):1888-1898. doi:10.1002/ijc.29207
- Calle EE, Rodriguez C, Walker-Thurmond K, Thun MJ. Overweight, obesity, and mortality from cancer in a prospectively studied cohort of U.S. Adults. N Engl J Med. 2003;348(17):1625-1638. doi: 10.1056/ NEJMoa021423
- Muscogiuri G, Pugliese G, Barrea L, Savastano S, Colao A. Obesity: The "Achilles heel" for COVID-19? Metabolism. 2020;108. doi:10.1016/ j.metabol. 2020.154251
- 11. Schwartz MW, Seeley RJ, Zeltser LM, et al. Obesity pathogenesis: An endocrine society scientific statement. Endocr Rev.2017;38(4):267-296.doi:10.1210/ ER.2017-00111
- Lee YL, Chen Y-C, Chen Y-A. Obesity and the occurrence of bronchitis in adolescents. Obesity. 2013;21(1):E149-E153. doi:10.1002/oby.20262
- Almirall J, Bolíbar I, Serra-Prat M, et al. New evidence of risk factors for community-acquired pneumonia: A population-based study. Eur Respir J. 2008; 31(6):1274-1284. doi:10.1183/09031936.00095807
- Cocoros NM, Lash TL, Demaria A, Klompas M. Obesity as a risk factor for severe influenza-like illness. Influenza Other Respi Viruses. 2014;8(1):25-32. doi:10.1111/irv.12156
- Lee BY, Bartsch SM, Mui Y, Haidari LA, Spiker ML, Gittelsohn J. A systems approach to obesity. doi: 10. 1093/nutrit/nuw049
- Devlin MJ, Yanovski SZ, Wilson GT. Obesity: What mental health professionals need to know. Am J Psychiatry. 2000;157(6):854-866. doi:10.1176/appi. ajp. 157.6.854
- Kolotkin RL, Head S, Hamilton M, Tse CJ. Assessing Impact of Weight on Quality of Life. Obes Res. 1995; 3(1):49-56. doi:10.1002/j.1550-8528.1995. tb00120. x
- 18. King's College London Body Image Questionn-

aires. Accessed July 27, 2020. https:// www.kcl.ac. uk/ioppn/depts/psychology/research/ResearchGrou pings/CADAT/Research/Body-Image-Questionnaires

- Mattioli AV, Pinti M, Farinetti A, Nasi M. Obesity risk during collective quarantine for the COVID-19 epidemic. Obes Med. Published online June 9, 2020:100263. doi:10.1016/j.obmed.2020.100263
- 20. Kyrou I, Karteris E, Robbins T, Chatha K, Drenos F, Randeva HS. Polycystic ovary syndrome (PCOS) and COVID-19: an overlooked female patient population at potentially higher risk during the COVID-19 pandemic. BMC Med. 2020;18(1):220. doi:10.1186/s12916-020-01697-5
- Barber TM, Hanson P, Weickert MO, Franks S. Obesity and Polycystic Ovary Syndrome: Implications for Pathogenesis and Novel Management Strategies. Clin Med Insights Reprod Heal. 2019;13:117955811987404. doi: 10.1177/ 1179558119874042
- 22. Deeks AA, Gibson-Helm ME, Paul E, Teede HJ. Is having polycystic ovary syndrome a predictor of poor psychological function including anxiety and depression? doi:10.1093/humrep/der071
- 23. Anderson SE, Cohen P, Naumova EN, Must A. Association of depression and anxiety disorders with weight change in a prospective community-based study of children followed up into adulthood. Arch Pediatr Adolesc Med. 2006;160(3):285-291. doi: 10.1001/archpedi.160.3.285
- Vincent H, Heywood K, Connelly J, Hurley R. Obesity and Weight Loss in the Treatment and Prevention of Osteoarthritis. PM R. 2012;4:S59-67. doi: 10.1016/j.pmrj.2012.01.005
- 25. Badley EM, Wilfong JM, Yip C, Millstone DB, Perruccio A V. The contribution of age and obesity to the number of painful joint sites in individuals reporting osteoarthritis: a population-based study. Rheumatology (Oxford). 2020;59(11):3350-3357. doi: 10. 1093/ rheumatology/keaa138
- Lowry KW, Sallinen BJ, Janicke DM. The effects of weight management programs on self-esteem in pediatric overweight populations. J Pediatr Psychol. 2007;32(10):1179-1195. doi:10.1093/jpepsy/jsm048

Shoulder Tip Pain in Laparoscopic Cholecystectomy with Active vs Passive Evacuation of Pneumoperitoneum

Anum Arif,¹ Sabih Nofal,² Muhammad Atif Khan,³ Abdul Waheed Khan,⁴ Ahsin M Bhatti,⁵ Syed Haider Ishaq⁶

Abstract

Objective: The objective of the study was to compare the frequency of severity of shoulder tip pain after active (gas suctioning) and passive removal of pneumoperitoneum among patient undergoing laparoscopic cholecystectomy.

Methods: This Observational comparative study was directed in general surgery department of DOW university hospital beginning from February 2016 to February 2017. Two hundred and six patients undergoing standard 4 port laparoscopic cholecystectomy were enrolled equally in either groups. The surgeon evacuated the abdomen by using a multiporous suction tube limiting the negative suction pressure to - 40 mmHg for 2-5 minutes under direct vision in active aspiration group, while in control group, CO_2 was removed passively. Pain scores were recorded using visual analog score at 16 hours post-operatively by residents of surgery blinded to the study.

Results: Mean VAS pain score at 16 hours in intervention group was much inferior than control group 1.00 $\pm 2.09 \text{ vs.} 3.06 \pm 2.58 (p < 0.001).$

Conclusion: Active aspiration of CO2 is an effective method that removes most if not all gas from the abdominal cavity. This will cause statistically significant decrease post-operative discomfort, pain and decrease need of rescue analgesics.

Key Words: Laparoscopic cholecystectomy, Pneumoperitoneum, Active Aspiration, shoulder tip pain, postlaproscopic cholecystectomy pain

Introduction

aparoscopic cholecystectomy has largely replaced conventional open cholecystectomy.¹ It provides great satisfaction to patient and at the same time beneficial for the operating surgeon as well in terms of high grade visibility minimum operative time, minimum anesthesia time, less postoperative pain, early mobilization, earlier discharges , and return to

1.	AnumArif	2.	Sabih Nofal
3.	Muhammad Atif Khan	4.	Abdul Waheed Khan
5.	Ahsin M Bhatti	6.	Syed Haider Ishaq
1.	CMH Lahore Medical College		•
2.	Rashid Latif Medical College, Lahore		
3.	Ayub Medical and Dental College		
4.	Department of General Surgery, Service	es Ho	ospital Lahore
5.	Department of Surgery, CMH Lahore M	Iedic	al College
6.	Department of Genereal Surgery, Laho	re Ge	eneral Hospital, Lahore
Co	orrespondence:	11.	-

Dr. Sabih Nofal, Consultant General and Laparoscopic Surgeon. Fellow Vascular Surgery, CMH Rawalpindi Medical College, E-mail: drsabih@gmail.com

Submission Date:	02-11-2020
1st Revision Date:	05-11-2020
Acceptance Date:	17-12-2020

activities of daily life.^{2,3} Out of many reasons, patients prefer laparoscopic cholecystectomy over open cholecystectomy because of less post-operative pain most common of them are shoulder tip pain and right hypochondrium pain. Assortment of shoulder tip pain reported incidentsare from 35% to 80% and may last for greater than 72 hours post-operatively.⁴

Post-operative shoulder pain and abdominal pain due to residual pneumoperitoneum leads to unpleasant discomfort and delay mobilization in spite of multiple doses of analgesics.^{2,5} It also leads to reduced intra operative urinary output, respiratory compliance, reduced cardiac output and decreased venous blood flow.^{3,5} The etiology of shoulder tip pain is multifactorial.² The shoulder tip pain due to residual CO₂ is also caused by stretching of diaphragm muscles and phrenic nerve irritation.² Therefore reduction in post laparoscopic cholecystectomy pain can be done by multiple methods like low pressure pneumoperitoneum, instillation of NSAIDS, instillation of intra-

peritoneal local anesthesia, infiltration of wound with local anesthesia and removal of residual pneumoperitoneum.^{3,5,6,7} Various methods have been introduced like pulmonary recruitment maneuver consisting of two to five insufflations, at the end of procedure active suctioning of CO₂ or filling the abdomen with warm saline.^{1,4,8} Patient receiving abdominal filling with saline voided noticeable amount of urine following the immediate post-operativenight, disposes the patient to fluid overload and its time consuming.^{3,9} Pulmonary recruitment maneuvers carries risk of pneumothorax and increased morbidity.¹² It implies that none is proven to be as assuring to be a standard method. Since no local data is available, and there is no standard technique, the rationale of the study was to see the effect of active aspiration of CO₂ as a superior technique. The objective of the study was to compare the frequency of severity of shoulder tip pain after active (gas suctioning) and passive removal of pneumoperi-toneum among patient undergoing laparoscopic cholecystectomy.

Methods

This observational comparitive study was performed in general surgery department, DOW university hospital, from February 2016 to February 2017 over a period of one year after approval from research and training cell of CPSP. A total of 216 patients of either gender, age ranged between 20 to 60 years and undergoing interval laproscopic cholecystectomy were included in the study. Pregnant females, HTN, COPD and DM, laparoscopic cholecystectomy converted to open cholecystectomy, ended in common bile exploration and Placement of drains were excluded. The Rao soft software was used for "sample size calculaton. Proportion of the incidence of shoulder pain varies from 35% to 80% and ranges from mild to severe with confidential interval of 95 % and margin of error of 9% sample size was n=108 in each group.⁴ All patients undergoing standard 4 port laparoscopic cholecystectomy were recruited in either of the 2 groups. Intervention group was labelled as group A and control group as group B. In Group A, the surgeon evacuated the abdomen by using a multiporous suction tube limiting the negative suction pressure to -40 mmHg for 2-5 minutes under direct camera view, while in group B, CO, was removed passively, trocars were removed and incisions were closed. Pain scores were recorded using visual analog score at 16 hours

post operatively by residents of surgery blinded to the study Those patients, who experience moderate to severe pain in spite of routine analgesics received a single bolus dose of Diclofenac sodium 75mg intramuscular or injection Nalbuphine 5 mg intravenous maximum thrice in 24 hours if needed.

Statistical package of social science software, SPSS, version 16 was used for data analysis. Frequency and percentage quantitative variables and mean and SD of qualitative variables was calculated. To compare both groups, the chi-square test was used. P value of ≤ 0.05 was considered statistically significant.

Result

The study is based on total of 216 patients and none of them were excluded. Out of them, 108 were allocated I neither group by sealed envelod method. Demographic variables are mentioned in table 1.

It was observed that 107 (91.1%) patients in control and 28 (25.9%) patients in case developed pain. P value < 0.001 for both groups.

The pain intensity was further characterized as no pain, mild moderate and severe pain based on Visual Analog Scale from 0 to 10. The results are as shown in graph 1. Over all Mean VAS score at 16 hours after laparoscopic cholecystectomy was 2.03 ± 2.56 . The score in control group which was much higher than case group (3.06 ± 2.58 vs. 1.00 ± 2.09).

After stratification in the context of effect modifiers, age, height, weight, BMI and period of surgery, it was found that all of them effect pain outcome. However it was observed that in age group between 20-30 years, no significant association was found with pain score (p value 0.77). Severity of pain score had significant association with age and BMI (p value <0.001). However, BMI of range between 20-25 kg/m² had no association with the severity of pain (p value 0.438).

Discussion

Pain after laparoscopic surgery can occur in abdomen ,either upper or lower , back or either shoulders.^{10,11,12} It can be transient or lasting up to days.¹⁰

Shoulder tip pain was documented in 99.07% of the control group and 32.85% of case group in our study. This shows that over all pain score in case group was significantly lower (p value < 0.001).

Table 1: Description	Of	Patient's	Characteristics
(n=216)			

CHARA	CTERISTICS	CONTROL	CASE	P value
		n 108(%)	n 108 (%)	
AGE GRO	UPS			
	20 - 30	72 (66.7)	12 (11.1)	< 0.001
	31 - 40	18(16.7)	31(28.7)	
	41 - 50	18(16.7)	65(60.2)	
SEX				
	Male	48 (44.4)	17(15.7)	< 0.001
	Female	60(55.6)	91(84.3)	
BMI				
	20-25	61	31	
	25-30	41	22	< 0.001
	35-40	6	55	
DURATIO	N OF SURGEF	RY		
	< 30 mins	0	6(5.6)	
	30-60 mins	54(50%)	41(38)	< 0.001
	61-120 mins	54(50%)	9(8.3)	
	> 121 mins	0	52(52)	

 Table 2: Description Of Analgesic Requirement N = 31

CHARACTERISTICS	CONTROL n(%)	CASE n(%)	P- value
ADDITIONAL ANALGES	ICS NAMES		
Toradol	18(58)	13(41.9)	< 0.01
Toradol and Nalbuphine	18(58)	2(6.4)	
ADDITIONAL ANALGES	ICS FREQUE	NCY	
Once	18(58)	13(41.9)	< 0.01
multiple	18(58)	2(6.4)	

Similar study conducted by Jasmin et al showed no pain 86.2% in the case group.⁴ The results are comparable with our study in which 78.8% of intervention group had no pain. In another research done by Fredman B et al., the active aspiration (AA) group in which gas was actively aspirated by suction, while no efforts, in the non-active aspiration (NAA) group, were made.¹³ Throughout the initial post-operative hour, lesser stresses were made by AA patients for morphine in comparison to those who belong to NAA group (15.3 +/- 15.7 vs 31.3 +/- 26.2) and also obtained a smaller dose of PCA morphine (2.7 +/- 1.3 mgvs 3.9 ± 1.9 mg) P = 0.056. This concluded that residual pneumoperitoneum was one of the important contributing factor leading postoperative pain as shown in previous studies in literatrure.^{13,14}

In a recent international study, patients experiencing mild, moderate and severe pain were 15.5%, 49.3 % and 35.2% from control group and 13.8% from intervention group experienced mild pain. However, none of the patient experienced moderate and severe pain.⁴ Whereas in our study, 7.4 % of Group A patient had mild pain whereas 12% and 1.9% patients mode-

rate and severe pain. One of the explanations can be difference of suction pressure used in either studies. It can be concluded to question the efficiency of various proposed method and some more trials should be conducted to decide which is the suitable one.



Fig 1: *Stratification According to Pain and Severity of Pain*

Results of our study are comparable with study conducted by Jasmin S et al. in which rescue analgesia was required by 33.1 % of the study population in contrast to only 14.3 % in our present study.⁴ Out of these, in contrast, their requirement of analgesia by control and case group were 50 % and 42.3% which was significantly higher than our study.^{4,15} This brights to highlight that patient's decrease demand of additional analgesia is an indirect measure of our maneour to evacuate pneumoperitomeum.

Since no local data is available in our country, we do not have any standard guidelines for our population. The limitation f our study was a single center study with small sample size. Further studies are required so that a concerte guideline can be postulated and new standards of care can be postulated for the best intrest of patient.

Conclusion

Active aspiration of CO_2 is an effective method that removes most if not all gas from the abdominal cavity. This will cause statistically significant decrease postoperative discomfort, pain and decrease need of rescue analgesics Acknowledgment: None Conflict of Interest None Funding Disclosure None

Author's Contribution

AA: Manuscript writing & data collection
NS: Manuscript writing & data processing
KAM: Data collection
KWA: Proof reading & correction
BMA: Proof reading & supervision
IHS: Data collection

References

- 1. Khanna A, Sezen E, Barlow A, Rayt H, Finch JG. Randomized clinical trial of a simple pulmonary recruitment maneuver to reduce pain after laparoscopy. Br J Surg. 2013;100:1290-1294.
- 2. Sarvestani AS, Zamiri M. Residual pneumoperitoneum volume and post laparoscopic pain. Anesth pain med. 2014;4(4):e17366.
- 3. Suginami R, Taniguchi F, Suginami H. Prevention of post laparoscopic shoulder pain by forced evacuation of residual CO2 .JSLS. 2009;13:56-59.
- 4. Salman JM, Merdan I, AsfarSN. The efficacy of active gas suctioning to decrease the residual CO_2 for preventing post laparoscopic cholecystectomy shoulder pain. Bas J Surg. 2012;18:1-10.
- Luketina RR, Knauer M, Kohler G, Koch OO, Strasser K, Egger M. Comparison of a standard CO₂ pressure pneumoperitoneum insufflators versus air seal study protocol of a randomized controlled trial. Trials 2014;15:239.
- 6. Singla S, Mittal G, Raghav, Mittal RK. Pain management after laparoscopic cholecystectomy-a randomized prospective trial of low pressure and standard pressure pneumoperitoneum. Journal of clinical and diagnostic research. 2014;8(2):92-94.

- Shin HY, Kim SH, Lee YJ ,Kim DK, .The effect of mechanical ventilation tidal volume during pneumoperitoneum on shoulder pain after a laparoscopic appendectomy. Surgendose. 2010;24:2002-2007.
- 8. Phleps P, Cakmankkaya S, Apfel CC, Radke OC. A simple clinical maneuver to reduce laparoscopy-induced shoulder pain a randomized control trial. Obstet gynecol. 2008;111:1155-1160.
- 9. TsaiHW, Chen YJ, Ho C M, Hseu SS, Chao KC, Tsai SK et al. Maneuvers to decrease laparoscopy-induced shoulder and upper abdominal pain a randomized control trial. Arch surg. 2011;146 (12):1360-1366
- 10. Alexander J. I. Pain after laparoscopy. Br. J. Anaesth. 1997;79: 369–378.
- 11. Sattar Z, Kareem Ullah M, Ahmed MS, Bashir S, Chaudhry SM, Zahid I M. Outcome comparison in patients undergoing laparoscopic cholecystectomy using low pressure and standard pressure pneumiperitoneum. PJHMS. 2015:1(9);77-79.
- 12. Siddiqui NA, Azami R, Murtaza G, Nasim S. Post operative port-site pain after gall bladder retrieval from epigastric vs. umblical port in laparoscopic cholecystectomy: A randomized control trial. International Journal of Surgery. 2012;213-216.
- Fredman B, Jedeikin R, Olsfanger D, Flor P, Gruzman A. Residual pneumoperitoneum: a cause of postoperative pain after laparoscopic cholecystectomy. AnesthAnalg. 1994;79(1):152-154.
- 14. CouceiroTC, Valença MM, Lima LC, de Menezes TC, Raposo MC. Prevalence and influence of gender, age, and type of surgery on postoperative pain. Rev Bras Anestesiol. 2009;59(3):314-320.
- Sarli L, Costi R, Sansebastiano G, Trivelli M, Roncoroni L. Prospective randomized trial of lowpressure pneumoperitoneum for reduction of shoulder-tip pain following laparoscopy. Br J Surg. 2000; 87(9):1161-1165.
- Perrakis E, Vezakis A, Velimezis G, Savanis G, Deverakis S, Antoniades J et al. Randomized comparison between different insufflation pressures for laparoscopic cholecystectomy. SurgLaparosc Endosc Percutan Tech. 2003;13(4):245-249.

COVID-19: Myths and Facts

Sofia Manzoor,¹ Saima Chaudhary,² Sara Humayun,³ Naheed Akhtar,⁴ Shamsa Humayun⁵

Abstract

The stormy spread of novel coronavirus around the world bewildered everyone. On 11th March 2020, WHO declared it a Global Pandemic. The progressing nature of COVID-19 disease with rising morbidity and mortality created panic and fear around the world which generated confusion, anxiety and misconceptions regarding its origin, nature, spread and treatment. These misconceptions among public favored negative practices leading to rapid disease spread, delay in acquiring the appropriate medical help and consequently increased morbidity and mortality. The facts and fictions surrounding the COVID-19 and the scientific evidence to resolve these misconceptions is necessary to lessen the morbidity and mortality of the disease by seeking timely and authentic medical advise. COVID-19 spreads by respiratory droplets. Different home remedies have only supportive role in recovery. The only solution to problem is dispelling the myths and strict practicing of respiratory and hands hygiene, physical interindividual distancing and avoidance of crowds as preventive measures.

KEYWORDS: COVID-19, facts and fictions

Introduction

ovid-19 originating from Wuhan city of China shocked the world with its stormy spread and deadly nature. On 11th March 2020, WHO declared it a pandemic. The dubious nature of disease with associated morbidity and mortality created panic and fear around the globe which generated confusion, anxiety and misconceptions regarding its origin, nature, spread and treatment. These misconceptions among public favored negative practices lead to rapid disease spread, delay in acquiring the appropriate medical help and consequently increased morbidity and mortality. The aim of this paper is to explore the facts and fiction surrounding the COVID-19 and the scientific evidence generated to resolve these misconceptions and misbeliefs.

MYTH #1: Corona Virus is a bioweapon,

1. Sofia Manzoor

2. Saima Chaudhary

3. Sara Humayun

4. Naheed Akhtar

5. Shamsa Humayun

1,2,4,5. Gynae and Obs, Unit 1, SGRH/FJMU, Lahore

3. Surgimed Hospital, Lahore

Correspondence:

Dr. Sofia Manzoor, Gynae and Obstetrics - Unit 1, Sir Ganga Ram Hospital/ Fatima Jinnah Medical University, Lahore. Email:drsofia@live.com

Submission Date:	17-10-2020
1st Revision Date:	11-11-2020
Acceptance Date:	23-11-2020

deliberately compounded in Wuhan laboratory.

FACT: The controversy surrounding the origin of COVID-19 generated heated debate among the superpowers. The mere fact that the epidemic was first reported in Wuhan, Hubei province, alone does not necessarily mean that it is humanly prepared bioweapon in China¹. Dr. Lau and colleagues concluded "there is currently no evidence showing that SARS-CoV-2 is an artificial recombinant."²

The public health scientists from the United States, Europe, and Asia further substantiated in The Lancet: "We stand together to strongly condemn conspiracy theories suggesting that Covid-19 does not have a natural origin³.

MYTH #2: It is transmitted to humans through bats and Wuhan market sea food.

FACT: Coronaviruses is a large group of family affecting different species of animals. According to CDC, it can rarely pass between humans and animals as in MERS and SARS. Initially, this novel coronavirus was thought to have started in wet market of Wuhan, suggesting animal-to-human transmission. But a large number of people diagnosed with the virus didn't have exposure to the wet markets, so it is clear that virus has person to person transmission⁴.

"Although the Wuhan market was initially suspected to be the epicenter of the epidemic, the immediate source remains elusive," Dr. Lau and colleagues wrote. The possibility that new combination of virus has developed, if bats carrying corona virus were mixed in the Wuhan market. However, no animal samples from the market were reported to be positive, neither the first identified case in a human nor other early patients had visited the market, all these suggesting the possibility of an alternative source.⁵

The plausible explanation could be that humans packed live bats in unhygienic conditions with other wild species which might have served as intermediate hosts. This may be the reason at Wuhan wet market where many experts believe COVID-19 emerged⁶.

MYTH #3: Extremes of temperature can kill the Virus.

FACT: There is no proven correlation between temperature variation and corona spread. In a French research, heating the virus at 56° C-30min and 60° C-60min did not significantly affect the number of detectable RNA copies.⁷

According to report of The National Academies of Science, warm weather in summer would have little impact on the spread of coronavirus in the United States. There is some evidence that it may transmit less efficiently in warmer temperature, but it still be rendered as insignificant because of lack of host immunity globally.⁸

The WHO also states that there is no reason to believe cold weather can kill the new coronavirus.⁹

MYTH#4: It targets only older people, not children.

FACT: SARS-CoV-2 can infect people of any age. Children are usually mildly affected, and it has affected 2% of children under the age of 18 years worldwide¹⁰. Older people and those with comorbid conditions like asthma, diabetes, cardiac disease and compromised immune system have serious complications.⁴

MYTH#5: It is transmitted through urine and faeces.

FACT: Coronavirus is present in faeces¹¹. However, there are no reports of feco-oral transmission of the COVID-19 virus to date.¹² According to Prof. John Edmunds, from the London School of Hygiene &

Tropical Medicine. Every time we swallow, we swallow mucus from our upper respiratory tract. In fact, it is an important defensive mechanism which sweeps viruses and bacteria down into our gut where they are denatured in the acidic environment of our stomach and when excreted in stool no more infectious to others.¹³

MYTH #6: It is transmitted through house flies and mosquito bites.

FACT: The existing evidence does not favor its transmission through houseflies and tick bites. According to WHO and Centre for Disease Control and Prevention it is not an air born disease and spreads by respiratory droplets.^{4,9}

MYTH #7: It is transmitted by 5G Radiations.

FACT: In The Guardian, mobile network representative stated that they have noticed cases of vandals setting fire to mobile masts, disrupting critical infrastructure, and spreading false information suggesting a connection between 5G and the COVID-19 pandemic".¹⁴ Ahmad et al reported that it is just a conspiracy theory and has no link to reality of coronavirus transmission of by 5G radiations.¹⁵

MYTH #8: Home remedies help in prevention and elimination of coronavirus.

FACT: There is no evidence that eating garlic, ginger and onion prevent or cure novel coronavirus. Garlic has different antimicrobial properties. Food can only boost immune system to combat the disease.^{9,16}

Drinking hot water every 15 minutes, taking lemon, honey, hot pepper soup, and gargling with warm salty water provide soothing effect on one's throat rather than elimination of virus. There is no role of hot baths in prevention of corona virus. Rather hot baths can damage and burn the skin.⁹

There is limited evidence that regular rinsing of nose with saline help people recover quickly from common cold but currently no scientific evidence exists that it can ward off novel coronavirus.^{4,9,16}

MYTH # 9- Holding breath for 10 seconds is diagnostic test for coronavirus.

FACT: No evidence exists to prove this breathing

exercise in diagnosis of coronavirus. It is diagnosed by lab test.⁹

MYTH # 10- Thermal scanners can diagnose coronavirus infection.

FACT: Thermal guns only detect temperature which can be raised due to other infections as well. It alone necessarily cannot diagnose coronavirus infection⁹.

MYTH #11- Overseas ordering and buying can spread novel coronavirus.

FACT: According to WHO, humidity, temperature changes and shipping conditions make it difficult for viruses to survive longer on objects such as letters or packages, so there is very low risk of spreading coronavirus from products or packaging that are shipped over a period of days or weeks⁹.

MYTH#12- Drinking methanol, ethanol or gargling with bleach can prevent coronavirus Infection.

FACT: Drinking alcohol is injurious to health and disinfecting the nose or mouth with bleach is also harmful. All these measures do not prevent from novel coronavirus infection⁹.

MYTH#13-Coronavirus infection is a simple flu.

FACT: coronavirus is far deadlier than flu. Simple flu can infect 0.1% of population and it is infecting about 3-4%. In severe cases, patients need hospitalization for ICU care.¹⁷

MYTH # 14- Once infected with coronavirus, infection cannot resolve.

FACT: Most people infected with novel coronavirus had mild signs and symptoms and recovered with symptomatic care.

MYHT # 15- Chloroquine and macrolides can be used for prevention and treatment of coronavirus.

FACT: Chloroquine and hydroxychloroquine are considered as immunomodulatory agents. In a non-randomized trial, Gautret et al. reported that hydro-xychloroquine has shown significant viral load reduction until viral disappearance and this effect was enhanced by the macrolide azithromycin.¹⁸

The Lancet stated that neither Hydroxychloroquine

nor chloroquine benefitted patients of COVID-19 and even raised the risk of death due to arrhythmias or problems in heart rhythm. But this study has been retracted, so use of these drugs need further research¹⁹.

MYTH #16- Pneumonia and H Influenza vaccines can protect from coronavirus.

FACT: Pneumococcal and H Influenza vaccines provide no protection against novel coronavirus. This virus is new and should have its own vaccine. The process of new vaccine production is under research and very well supported by WHO.⁹

MYTH #17- Antibiotics prevent or cure novel coronavirus infection.

Fact: Antibiotics can cure bacterial infections; they have no role in prevention or treatment of this viral infection. Though, empirical antibiotics can be useful for coexisting bacterial infections.⁹

MYTH # 18- Ibuprufen use can worsen the novel corona infection.

FACT: Initially WHO warned against the use of Ibuprufen use but later took it back as no evidence showed any harm with the use of ibuprofen and other anti-inflammatory pain killers.⁹

MYTH # 19- ACE inhibitors worsen novel coronavirus infection.

FACT: American College of Cardiology, American Heart Association, and Heart Failure Society of America suggest that people should not stop taking angiotensin converting enzyme (ACE) inhibitors and angiotensin receptor blockers (ARBs), as these drugs don't worsen the novel corona infection.²⁰

The only effective preventive strategies recommended by WHO and Centre for Disease Prevention and Control are:

- Frequent hand washing with soap and water for 20 seconds or rubbing with alcohol-based sanitizer.
- Avoid touching eyes, nose, and mouth.
- Practice of physical interindividual distancing of about 3 feet.
- Avoid going in crowded places.
- Observe good respiratory hygiene, cover mouth

and nose with bent elbow or tissue with cough or sneeze and dispose off the used tissue immediately and wash your hands.

- Stay home and self-isolate even with minor symptoms such as cough, headache, mild fever, until you recover. Have someone bring you supplies. If you need to leave your house, wear a mask to avoid infecting others.
- Healthcare workers caring for infected individuals should practice contact and airborne precautions which include PPE (N95 or FFP3 masks, eye protection, gowns, and gloves) to prevent transmission of the pathogen.

In conclusion, as health care professionals it is our moral obligation to resolve these misconceptions and create public awareness based on the scientific evidence. This is the only way forward to curb the disease spread and harmful practices among the public. The existing evidence holds that strict observation of preventive measures can protect from novel coronavirus and to date only supportive treatment is available till vaccine is produced.⁹

Authors Contribution

MS: Article concept, design and draft writing.

CS: Draft Writing

HS: Literature Search

AN: Draft Review

HS: Final Approval of Draft and all review

References

- 1. Khurshid S J. Novel Coronavirus (nCoVD)-2019 Is it a Bioweapon? J Bioterror Biodef 2020;11(1):166.
- 2. Lau S, Luk H, Wong A, Li K, Zhu L, He Z. Possible bat origin of severe acute respiratory syndrome coronavirus 2.Emerg Infect Dis.2020; 26(7):1542-1547.
- Calisher C, Carroll D, Colwell R, Corley RB, Daszak P, Drosten C et al. Statement in support of the scientists, public health professionals, and medical professionals of China combatting COVID-19. Lancet. 2020 March 7:395(10226)e42-e43.
- 4. Corona Virus Disease 2019 (COVID 19): Centre for disease control and prevention
- 5. Wuhan seafood may not be source of novel corona virus spreading globally, by John Cohen, Jan 26 2020.
- 6. It's wrong to blame bats for the coronavirus epidemic. March 24 2020. Peter Alagona, University of

California, Santa Barbara.

- B. Pastorino, F. Touret, M. Gilles, X. deLamballerie, R.N. Charrel. Evaluation of Heating and Chemical Protocols for Inactivating SARS-CoV-2.bioRxiv prept (2020), 10.1101/2020.04.11.036855
- 8. The National Academy of Sciences Report: coronavirus unlikely to diminish with warm weather. 16 April Washington news.
- 9. World Health Organization. Coronavirus disease (COVID-19) advice for the public: myth busters; 26 March 2020.
- 10. RCPCH Research & Evidence team.COVID-19research evidence summaries. Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health. MAY 2020.
- Zhang Y, Chen C, Zhu S, Shu C, Wang D, Song J et al. Isolation of 2019-nCoV from a stool specimen of a laboratory-confirmed case of the coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19). China CDC Weekly. 2020; 2(8): 123–4.
- 12. WORLD HEATH ORGANIZATION. Modes of transmission of virus causing COVID-19: implications for IPC precaution recommendations. Scientific brief.29 March 2020.
- 13. Expert comment about whether coronavirus can be spread via urine or faeces, 5 March 2020, Science Media Centre.
- 14. The Guardian News, Atleast 20 UK Phone masts vandalized over false 5G coronavirus claims.6 April 2020.
- Ahmad W, Vidal-Alaball J, Downing J.Covid-19 and 5G conspiracy theory: Social Network Analysis of Twitter data. J Med Internet Res. 2020 May; 22(5): e19458.
- Bucher A, White N. Vitamin C in the prevention and treatment of the common cold. Am J Lifestyle Med. 2016;10(3):181–183.
- 17. Zhou F, Yu T, Du R, Fan G, Liu Y, Liu Z et al. Clinical course and risk factors for mortality of adult inpatients with Covid-19 in Wuhan, China. A retrospective cohort study. 28 March 2020; 395(10229):1054-1062.The Lancet.
- Gautret P, Lagier J C, Parola P, Hoang V T, Meddeb L, Mailhe M et al. Hydroxychloroquine and azithromycin as a treatment of COVID-19: results of an openlabel non-randomized clinical trial. Int. J. Antimicrob. Agents. 2020 Mar 20;105949.
- 19. Mehra M R, Desae S, Ruschitzka F, Patel A N. Hydroxychloroquine or chloroquine with or without a macrolide for treatment of Covid-19: A multicenter registry analysis. DOI: https://doi.org/10.1016/ S0140-6736(20)31180-6.
- 20. Mehta N, Kalra A, Nowacki S. Association of use of angiotensin converting enzyme inhibitor and angiotensin II receptor blocker with testing positive for corona virus disease 2019 (COVID 19).5 May 2020.doi:10.1001 JAMA Cardio 2020.1855.

Instructions to Authors

The 'Esculapio. Official journal of Services Institute of Medical Sciences, Lahore", is a peer reviewed journal. It agrees to accept manuscripts prepared in accordance with the "Uniform Requirements submitted to the Biomedical Journals" as approved by the International Committee of Medical Journal Editors (ICMJE) guidelines.

All manuscripts must be submitted online at **publications@esculapio.pk**

Plagiarism: Manuscripts are screened for plagiarism using TURNITIN software

General Principles:

- 1. Manuscript must be written in British English.
- 2. Manuscript should be typed on A-4 size paper (8.5 x 11 inches or 21.6 x27 cm) white paper with margins of 1 inch.
- 3. Type on one side of the paper with double spacing.
- 4. All pages should be numbered on the lower right hand side of manuscript.
- The article should be formatted accordingly on MS Word:
 - · Font Type: Times New Roman
 - Font Size: 18 for article title, 14 for article text
 - Line spacing should be set at 1.5 throughout the text

Title page:

The title page should include the following: article title, article category, abstract word count, manuscript word count, number of references, and the number of tables and figures.

- The title length should not exceed more than 14 words.
- Do not capitalise the first letter of each word in the title unless it is a proper noun.
- Do not use abbreviations in the title.

Covering Letter :

Manuscript should be submitted with a **covering letter** signed by all authors, clearly mentioning name of corresponding author.

- Sequence of authors, once signed and submitted, cannot be changed.
- · Clearly identify full names, designations, qualifications, e-mails and institutes of all the authors.
- The journal will only contact to corresponding author.
- Explain role of each author in the study.
- Should be exclusively submitted to Esculapio.

Ethical permission letter: Authors must also submit a copy of ethical permission letter from the institutional review board or institution head where the research study was conducted.

Conflict of interest:

Authors should provide declaration of conflict of interest and funding information with regard to the research.

Instructions about formats of different manuscripts:

Original and review Article should be written under following headings,

- · Abstract
- · Introduction
- · Material & Methods
- · Result.
- · Discussion.
- \cdot Conclusion.

Instructions to Authors

Manuscript formatting

Structured abstract: 250 Words, should have headings :

- · Objective
- · Materials and methods
- · Results
- · Conclusion
 - Key words must be according to Medical Subject Headings (MeSH), List of index

Introduction

Describes background and objective of the study. Do not include data or conclusion from the current study . **Method:-**

The following heading should be used for the methods section, as appropriate:

- · Subjects and methods
- · Patients and methods
- · Materials and methods
- a. Study design, place and duration
- b. Selection and description of participants

The inclusion criteria of the study participants, which may be patients, healthy controls or healthy subjects, should be clearly described. Exclusion criteria need to be explained.

c. Technical Information & equipment

Recognized the method, procedures and any equipment (manufacturer's name and address) in detail so that workers easily reproduce them and also give references to establish methods including statistical method. All drugs and chemicals should be described in generic name(s), dose(s), and route(s) of administration.

c. Statistics

Simple way is used to describe statistical method so that reader enable to access the original data to correct the results. Statistical software should be mentioned.

Results

Results should be described in a logical sequence in the text, tables and illustrations.

Summarise important observations.

Frequencies and percentages both should be mentioned.

Exact p values should be reported.

Mean should be with standard deviations.

Discussion:-

Summarize main results and compared with results of other published studies. Emphasize new findings of research.

Conclusion:-

Findings which has been shown in the results should not be included in conclusion. Conclusion should be a brief summary of the study.

References:-

Vancouver style should be used, if there are more than six authors, write et al after the first six names. A table is provided below as summery of above mentioned information.

То

Manuscript Type	Abstract Structure	Abstract Word Count	Word Count	Number of References	Total Tables and Figures
Audit	Structured	250	3000	25	3
Case Report	Unstructured	150	1500	10	2
Short Comm	Unstructured	150	1250	10	2
Letter to the Editor	N/A	N/A	400	5	1
Original Article	Structured	250	3000	8-25	3
Review Article	Structured	250	4000	40	3
Editorial	-	-	1000	8-20	-

For Details visit our website www.esculapio.pk

Covering letter

10,		
The Editor in Chief		
ESCULAPIO : Journal of Services	Institute of Medical Sciences,	
Lahore.		
From:		
Name of correspondent author:		
Postal address:	_Name	
	Date of Submission	
Cell. No:	E-mail	
Type of Article: Original Article	Review Article Case Report Other	
<u>Undertaking</u>		
Solemnly declare that my/our art	ticle titled "	
		"
has not been submitted to any ot	her journal within country and abroad for publication and if ap	proved for publication in

"ESCULAPIO", it will not be submitted again elsewhere.

I/we further declare that it is review article/original article/ case report.

*(The copies of article once submitted will not be returned irrespective of its publication)

Instructions to Authors

1		
2		
3		
4		
5		
6		

Sr. No	Author's Name	Contribution
1		
2		
3		
4		
5		
6		